
 

 
 

 
 

 
Planning 
Committee 

 
 
 
 

Date: Friday, 24th August, 2007 

Time: 10.00 a.m. 

Place: The Council Chamber, Brockington, 
35 Hafod Road, Hereford 

Notes: Please note the time, date and venue of the 
meeting. 

For any further information please contact: 

Pete Martens, Members Services, Tel 01432 
260248 
 
e-mail: pmartens@herefordshire.gov.uk 

  
 
County of Herefordshire 
District Council 
 

 
 
 

 



 
 



COUNTY OF HEREFORDSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 24TH AUGUST, 2007 
 
 

AGENDA 
for the Meeting of the Planning Committee 

 
To: Councillor TW Hunt (Chairman) 

Councillor  RV Stockton (Vice-Chairman) 
 
 Councillors ACR Chappell, PGH Cutter, H Davies, GFM Dawe, DW Greenow, 

JW Hope MBE, B Hunt, G Lucas, RI Matthews, R Mills, PM Morgan, 
JE Pemberton, AP Taylor, DC Taylor, WJ Walling, PJ Watts and JD Woodward 

 

  

  

 Pages 

  
   
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE     
   
 To receive apologies for absence.  
   
2. NAMED SUBSTITUTES (IF ANY)     
   
 To receive details any details of Members nominated to attend the meeting 

in place of a Member of the Committee. 
 

   
3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST     
   
 To receive any declarations of interest by Members in respect of items on 

the Agenda. 
 

   
4. MINUTES   1 - 16  
   
 To approve and sign the Minutes of the meeting held on 13 July 2007.  
   
5. CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS     
   
 To receive any announcements from the Chairman.  
   
6. NORTHERN AREA PLANNING SUB-COMMITTEE   17 - 18  
   
 To receive the attached report of the Northern Area Planning Sub-

Committee meeting held on 25th July, 2007. 
 

   
7. CENTRAL AREA PLANNING SUB-COMMITTEE   19 - 20  
   
 To receive the attached report of the Central Area Planning Sub-

Committee meeting held on 24th August, 2007. 
 

   
8. SOUTHERN AREA PLANNING SUB-COMMITTEE   21 - 22  
   
 To receive the attached report of the Southern Area Planning Sub-

Committee meeting held on 18th July and 15th August, 2007. 
 

   
9. TARRINGTON PARISH PLAN   23 - 64  
   
 To consider the Tarrington Parish Plan for adoption as further planning 

guidance to the Herefordshire Unitary Development Plan. 
 
 
 
 
 

 

   



 

10. DCNC2007/0667/O - SITE FOR THE ERECTION OF AN ADDITIONAL 
BUILDING FOR PROVISION OF CARE TO THE ELDERLY MENTALLY 
INFIRM AT PENCOMBE HALL, PENCOMBE, BROMYARD, 
HEREFORDSHIRE, HR7 4RL   

65 - 74  

   
 For: Mr N Williams per Wall, James & Davies 15-23 Hagley Road 

Stourbridge West Midlands  DY8 1QW 
 
To consider a planning application which has been referred to the 
Committee because the Northern Area Planning Sub-Committee was 
mindful to approve it, contrary to policy and officer recommendations.  
Consideration of the application was deferred at the previous meeting for a 
site inspection. 
 
Ward: Bromyard 
 

 

   
11. DCNE2007/1224/F - PROPOSED TWO STOREY DWELLING FOR 

ANCILLARY ACCOMMODATION AT BLACK HILL, BRITISH CAMP, 
MALVERN, HEREFORDSHIRE, WR13 6DW   

75 - 80  

   
 For: Mr & Mrs Potts per Mrs V Greenhouse, Vanessa Greenhouse, 54 

Doctors Hill, Bournheath, Bromsgrove, B61 9JE 

 
To consider a planning application which has been referred to the 
Committee because the Northern Area Planning Sub-Committee was 
mindful to approve it, contrary to policy and officer recommendations. 
 
Ward: Hope End 
 

 

   
12. DCNE2007/0966/F - PROPOSED THREE STOREY BUILDING TO 

PROVIDE 13 APARTMENTS, WITH 18 PARKING SPACES AND 
ASSOCIATED CYCLE PARKING AT LAND REAR OF HOMEND 
SERVICE STATION, THE HOMEND, LEDBURY, HEREFORDSHIRE, 
HR8 1DS   

81 - 94  

   
 For: Refined Petroleum Ltd per Matthews & Goodman, 196 Deans Gate, 

Manchester,   M3 3WF 
 
To consider a planning application which has been referred to the 
Committee because the Northern Area Planning Sub-Committee was 
mindful to refduse it, contrary to policy and officer recommendations 
 
Ward: Ledbury 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

   



 

13. DCNC2006/3893/F - DEMOLITION OF REDUNDANT RACING STABLES 
AND ERECTION OF 4 NO. 3 BED HOUSES (LOW COST MARKET) 
TOGETHER WITH 8 PARKING SPACES AT RISBURY RACING 
STABLES, RISBURY, LEOMINSTER, HEREFORDSHIRE, HR6 0NQ   

95 - 118  

   
 For: Mr P Kelsall per Linton Design, 27 High Street, Bromyard, 

Herefordshire. HR7 4AA 
 
To consider a planning application which has been referred to the 
Committee because the Northern Area Planning Sub-Committee was 
mindful to approve it, contrary to policy and officer recommendations 
 
Ward: Hampton Court 
 

 

   
14. DCCE2007/1209/F - RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT TOGETHER WITH 

ALTERATIONS TO 10 LEDBURY ROAD TO PROVIDE 6 RESIDENTIAL 
UNITS AT 10 LEDBURY  ROAD, HEREFORD, HEREFORDSHIRE, HR1 
2SY   

119 - 128  

   
 For: Williams Bros per JBD Architects, Mortimer House, Holmer Road, 

Hereford, HR4 9TA 
 
To consider a planning application which has been referred to the 
Committee because the Central Area Planning Sub-Committee was 
mindful to refuse it, contrary to policy and officer recommendations 
 
Ward: Tupsley 
 

 

   
15. DCCE2007/1961/F - CONVERSION AND EXTENSION OF 

GARAGE/PREPARATION AREA TO SINGLE STOREY DWELLING AND 
EXTENSION OF TAKE-AWAY PREPARATION AREA. FORMATION OF 
PARKING AREA FOR EXISTING FLATS AT 1-3 PEREGRINE CLOSE, 
HEREFORD, HEREFORDSHIRE, HR2 6BS   

129 - 136  

   
 For: Pacemark Properties Limited, per Malcolm Rogers,  Dixon Rogers 

Designs, Highfields, Stanford Road, Great Witley, WR6 6JG 
 
To consider a planning application which has been referred to the 
Committee because the Central Area Planning Sub-Committee was 
mindful to refuse it, contrary to policy and officer recommendations 
 
Ward: St. Martins & Hinton 

 

   





The Public’s Rights to Information and Attendance at 
Meetings  
 
YOU HAVE A RIGHT TO: - 
 
 

• Attend all Council, Cabinet, Committee and Sub-Committee meetings unless the 
business to be transacted would disclose ‘confidential’ or ‘exempt’ information. 

• Inspect agenda and public reports at least five clear days before the date of the 
meeting. 

• Inspect minutes of the Council and all Committees and Sub-Committees and written 
statements of decisions taken by the Cabinet or individual Cabinet Members for up to 
six years following a meeting. 

• Inspect background papers used in the preparation of public reports for a period of 
up to four years from the date of the meeting.  (A list of the background papers to a 
report is given at the end of each report).  A background paper is a document on 
which the officer has relied in writing the report and which otherwise is not available 
to the public. 

• Access to a public Register stating the names, addresses and wards of all 
Councillors with details of the membership of Cabinet and of all Committees and 
Sub-Committees. 

• Have a reasonable number of copies of agenda and reports (relating to items to be 
considered in public) made available to the public attending meetings of the Council, 
Cabinet, Committees and Sub-Committees. 

• Have access to a list specifying those powers on which the Council have delegated 
decision making to their officers identifying the officers concerned by title. 

• Copy any of the documents mentioned above to which you have a right of access, 
subject to a reasonable charge (20p per sheet subject to a maximum of £5.00 per 
agenda plus a nominal fee of £1.50 for postage). 

• Access to this summary of your rights as members of the public to attend meetings 
of the Council, Cabinet, Committees and Sub-Committees and to inspect and copy 
documents. 

 

 



 

Please Note: 

Agenda and individual reports can be made available in large 
print.  Please contact the officer named on the front cover of this 
agenda in advance of the meeting who will be pleased to deal 
with your request. 

The meeting venue is accessible for visitors in wheelchairs. 

A public telephone is available in the reception area. 
 
 
Public Transport Links 
 
 
• Public transport access can be gained to Brockington via the service runs 

approximately every half hour from the ‘Hopper’ bus station at the Tesco store in 
Bewell Street (next to the roundabout junction of Blueschool Street / Victoria Street / 
Edgar Street). 

• The nearest bus stop to Brockington is located in Old Eign Hill near to its junction 
with Hafod Road.  The return journey can be made from the same bus stop. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
If you have any questions about this agenda, how the Council works or would like more 
information or wish to exercise your rights to access the information described above, 
you may do so either by telephoning the officer named on the front cover of this agenda 
or by visiting in person during office hours (8.45 a.m. - 5.00 p.m. Monday - Thursday 
and 8.45 a.m. - 4.45 p.m. Friday) at the Council Offices, Brockington, 35 Hafod Road, 
Hereford. 

 



 

COUNTY OF HEREFORDSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
 

BROCKINGTON, 35 HAFOD ROAD, HEREFORD. 
 
 
 

FIRE AND EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE 
 
 

 

In the event of a fire or emergency the alarm bell will ring 
continuously. 

You should vacate the building in an orderly manner through the 
nearest available fire exit. 

You should then proceed to Assembly Point J which is located at 
the southern entrance to the car park.  A check will be undertaken 
to ensure that those recorded as present have vacated the 
building following which further instructions will be given. 

Please do not allow any items of clothing, etc. to obstruct any of 
the exits. 

Do not delay your vacation of the building by stopping or returning 
to collect coats or other personal belongings. 
 
 





COUNTY OF HEREFORDSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

MINUTES of the meeting of Planning Committee held at : 
The Council Chamber, Brockington, 35 Hafod Road, 
Hereford on Friday, 13th July, 2007 at 2.00 p.m. 

Present: Councillor TW Hunt (Chairman) 
Councillor  RV Stockton (Vice Chairman) 

Councillors: ACR Chappell, PGH Cutter, H Davies, GFM Dawe, 
DW Greenow, JW Hope MBE, B Hunt, G Lucas, RI Matthews, R Mills, 
PM Morgan, JE Pemberton, DC Taylor, WJ Walling, PJ Watts and 
JD Woodward 

  
In attendance: Councillors JP French, KG Grumbley, A Seldon and K Swinburne
  
  
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
  
 Apologies for absence were received from Councillor  A Taylor.
  
2. NAMED SUBSTITUTES (IF ANY)  
  
 Councillor Mrs PA Andrews was appointed named substitutes for Councillor AP 

Taylor.
  
3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
  
 Councillor JW Hope declared a pecuniary interest in agenda item No.14 (Minute no. 

15) - DCNW2007/1271/F - proposed replacement dwelling including garage at 
Southview, Winforton and left the meeting for the duration of this item.  

  
4. MINUTES  
  

RESOLVED: That the Minutes of the meeting held on 20th April, 2007 be 
approved as a correct record and signed by the Chairman 

  
5. CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS  
  
 The Chairman welcomed Members to the first meeting of the Committee in 2007 – 

2008.   

He said that the Bulletin from the recent meeting of the Planning Chairman’s Group 
would contain information to inform and assist Members about a number of important 
issues.   

There were further Planning Training issues scheduled for September and October 
and he reminded Members that planning applications which were referred to the 
Planning Committee were done so because the Sub Committees were minded to 
approve or refuse them contrary to policy.  It was the duty of the Committee to 
uphold the Council’s planning policies.  

  

AGENDA ITEM 4

1



PLANNING COMMITTEE FRIDAY, 13TH JULY, 2007 

6. NORTHERN AREA PLANNING SUB-COMMITTEE  
  

RESOLVED: That the report of the meetings held on 29th May and 27th June, 
2007 be received and noted. 

  
7. CENTRAL AREA PLANNING SUB-COMMITTEE  
  

RESOLVED: That the report of the meetings held on 6th June and 4th July, 
2007 be received and noted. 

  
8. SOUTHERN AREA PLANNING SUB-COMMITTEE  
  

RESOLVED: That the report of the meetings held on 29th May and 20th June, 
2007 be received and noted. 

  
9. CONSERVATION AREA APPRAISALS FOR BOSBURY, CRADLEY, MUCH 

MARCLE , ORLETON, SUTTON.  
  
 The Team Leader (Building Conservation) presented the report of the Head of 

Planning Services about the latest draft Conservation Area Appraisals prepared for 
initial consultation with relevant parties.  He said that In April 2006 the Committee 
had recommended the consultation arrangements regarding a programme for the 
preparation of appraisals and management proposals for sixteen Conservation 
Areas in Herefordshire.  .  The results of the consultation process had helped to 
formulate the management proposals which formed part of the next stage of work in 
relation to the particular Conservation Areas.  The Appraisals which had been 
approved for consultation to date were Hampton Park, Almeley, Weobley, Ross On 
Wye, Mordiford, Dillwyn and Aylestone Hill.  He provided details of the latest batch of 
appraisals which had been prepared for Bosbury, Cradley, Much Marcle, Orleton and 
Sutton and these were discussed by the Committee. 

RESOLVED THAT: 

(i) the Cabinet Member (Environment) be requested to accept the 
appraisals for Bosbury, Cradley, Much Marcle, Orleton And Sutton and 
the issues raised in association with these for the purpose of 
instigating the initial consultations with interested parties; and  

(ii) prior to consultation commencing, the Team Leader (Building 
Conservation) should first meet with the Cabinet Member (Environment 
and Strategic Housing) and the Ward Councillors of the Conservation 
Areas.  

  
10. RESPONSE TO THE GOVERNMENT WHITE PAPER ON THE FUTURE OF 

PLANNING.  
  
 The Head of Planning Services presented his report about the scale and nature of 

the recent batch of consultation documents about the Planning system.  He said that 
the Planning White Paper set out the Government’s proposals for the future of the 
planning system.  He advised that the main elements of the White Paper related to 
Planning Performance Agreements, Planning Fees in England, changes to permitted 
development and improving the appeal process.  There were a batch of Consultation 
documents about these elements and the Officers had put forward a number of 
suggestions about the response that should be made to the Government.  He 
advised that central to the various consultation documents were the following future 
issues:- 

2



PLANNING COMMITTEE FRIDAY, 13TH JULY, 2007 

• the challenge of climate change; 

• supporting sustainable economic development; 

• increasing the supply of housing; 

• protecting and enhancing the environment and natural resources; 

• improving local and national infrastructure; and 

• maintaining security of energy supply 

The papers identified the recent improvements that had been introduced into the 
planning system which included the introduction of Local Development Frameworks, 
improvement in development control performance and the establishment of specialist 
agencies. The documents indicated in particular that: 

• national policy was not sufficiently clear and responsive;

• the planning system was too bureaucratic, took too long and was 
unpredictable; 

• individuals and communities found it difficult to be heard;  

• planning systems were confusing and unclear; and 

• decisions were not always taken at the right level 

The Committee discussed the summaries of the various consultation papers and 
endorsed the proposed responses put forward by the Officers.   

RESOLVED THAT: 

(a) the summaries of the various consultation papers at 
Appendices 1-5 set out in the report of the Head of 
Planning Services be noted; 

(b) the proposed responses in the various appendices set out 
within the report be approved; and 

(c) the Officers be instructed to submit further responses to 
the Department of Communities and Local Government on 
operational questions and issues raised in the various 
papers, in consultation with the Cabinet Member 
(Environment and Strategic Housing) 

  
11. REORTS OF HEAD OF PLANNING SERVICES  
  
 The Committee considered the following planning applications and authorised the 

Head of Planning Services to impose any additional or varied conditions and reasons 
which he considered to be necessary

  
12. DCNC2006/3364/F - PROPOSED TEMPORARY MOBILE HEALTH FACILITIES 

(TEMPORARY FOR SEVEN YEARS) AT BROAD STREET CAR PARK, 
LEOMINSTER, HEREFORDSHIRE.  

  
 The Development Control Manager said that the application had been deferred at 

the meeting of the Committee on 19th January 2007 for more information about the 
alternative sites which had been investigated that could be used to locate the facility.  
He outlined the alternatives that had been considered and explained why the NHS 
still wanted to use the Broad Street car park in Leominster.   

3



PLANNING COMMITTEE FRIDAY, 13TH JULY, 2007 

Councillor Mrs JP French welcomed the initiative but was still concerned that 
because of the size of the mobile unit there would be the loss of a large number of 
key town centre car parking spaces for long periods and an adverse affect upon the 
local economy and tourism.  She felt that further investigation should be made into a 
more suitable location in the town that did not have the same drawbacks, such as 
the Local Enterprise Park.  Whilst recognising the importance of the proposal, the 
Committee shared the views of Councillor Mrs French and decided to refuse the 
application. 

RESOLVED 

That the application be refused and that the applicants be requested to 
investigate a more suitable location. 

  
13. DCNC2007/0586/O - SITE FOR DWELLING FOR A RURAL ENTERPRISE AT 

THE OLD BLACKSMITH'S SHOP, DOCKLOW, LEOMINSTER, HEREFORDSHIRE 
  
 The Development Control Manager reported the following update: 

ADDITIONAL DOCUMENTATION 

There has been an exchange of correspondence between the Agent for the 
application and the Development Control Manager which re-states their 
respective views as set out in the report. 

The Inspector’s decision on the previous appeal on the site is attached for 
Members’ information. 

OFFICER COMMENTS 

The relevance of the policies remains as set out in the report. 

The Development Control Manager advised that the Northern Area Planning Sub-
Committee at its meeting on the 29th May 2007 was mindful to approve the 
application contrary to recommendation.  The Sub-Committee had given weight to 
benefits to the rural economy of the business. The applicant repaired agricultural 
machinery and frequently did so at short notice and at unsociable hours, thereby 
benefiting local agriculture.  The Sub-Committee felt that this justified approval under 
policy H8 of the Herefordshire Unitary development Plan (UDP) on the basis that it 
was in connection with a rural business.   

In accordance with the criteria for public speaking, Mr Hanson of Docklow & 
Hampton Wafer Parish Council and Mr Hill the applicant, spoke in favour of the 
application.   

Councillor KG Grumbley the Local Ward Member said that the applicant ran a 
twenty-four hour breakdown service to deal with the problems which were 
encountered by the local agricultural community with their farming equipment.  He 
needed to be on site in order to respond quickly to emergencies and at present he 
had to travel from Pembridge to his workshop to collect tools and replacement parts, 
and then onto a client.  This often involved a round-trip of over forty miles and during 
times of heavy demand such as harvesting, this was proving to be increasingly 
difficult.  The applicant also had stated that he needed a permanent presence on site 
to receive parts deliveries, security for the storage of those parts and to have an on-
site office which was currently lacking.  Councillor Grumbley felt that there was 
flexibility within Policy H8 of the Herefordshire Unitary Development Plan (UDP) to 

4



PLANNING COMMITTEE FRIDAY, 13TH JULY, 2007 

help with assisting small but essential agricultural businesses such as this one.  He 
also felt that the point had been reached where there was a danger of loosing the 
business if permission was refused and that this would be to the considerable 
detriment of the agricultural community.  Granting the application would enable the 
applicant to achieve greater security and allow modest growth of the business. 

The Development Control Manager advised that Policy H8 was intended to cover 
circumstances such as livestock farming where there was a clear need for day-to-
day supervision and care of the animals. It was not intended to cover situations such 
as this whereby a business was located in the countryside but had no connection 
with the land. Essentially, the principal benefits of a house on the site would be to 
reduce the commuting distance from the applicant’s current home and provide him 
with greater security. 

Having considered all the facts regarding the application, the Committee felt that 
there was sufficient flexibility to grant the application for what they considered to be 
an essential rural business. 

RESOLVED 

that the application be approved subject to any appropriate conditions felt to 
be necessary by the Head of Planning Services and subject to the building 
being tied to the business. 

  
14. DCNC2007/0667/O - SITE FOR THE ERECTION OF AN ADDITIONAL BUILDING 

FOR PROVISION OF CARE TO THE ELDERLY MENTALLY INFIRM AT PENCOMBE 
HALL, PENCOMBE, BROMYARD, HEREFORDSHIRE, HR7 4RL  

The Development Control Manager reported the following updates: 

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 

On 11th July 2007 the following statement was received from   Diane Topham, 
Commissioning  Manager, Mental Health and  Sue Bennison, Operational 
Manager, DMHOP  in respect of the current provision of care facilities for the elderly in 
Herefordshire. 

Current Provision 

There are currently a number of homes within Herefordshire that are registered for 
Dementia, over 65 years of age (DE) nursing beds.  The majority of these homes are 
however registered for a number of categories. It is not generally appropriate that 
services for older people with complex psycho-behavioural disorders are integrated with 
other client groups in shared facilities and hence comparatively few of these places are 
utilised for DE provision. There are only two homes (Broomy Hill and Holmer Care 
Centre) that are registered purely for older people with a mental disorder.    The 
significance of this is that these two homes have built up a knowledge base and 
expertise in working with people with complex presentations characterized by psycho-
behavioural disturbance. 

These two homes provide 89 beds, of which 23 are block purchased and 1 spot 
purchased by the PCT for people assessed as meeting full NHS continuing care, and 3 
for respite care.  Herefordshire Council currently spot-purchase a further 35 beds in 
these two homes.   

The Council is also spot-purchasing within Herefordshire a further 20 nursing 
placements in homes registered for DE and 39 placements in general nursing homes for 

5



PLANNING COMMITTEE FRIDAY, 13TH JULY, 2007 

people over 65 years of age with a mental disorder.  

There are also 22 people currently placed out of county due to; 
Ø Lack of capacity within Herefordshire. 
Ø lack of appropriate beds in an emergency 
Ø Personal choice, e.g. no appropriate nursing homes in particular areas - people in 

the Ledbury or Bromyard areas choose homes in Gloucestershire and 
Worcestershire.  

Ø Personal choice – to be close to family and/or friends 
Ø Top-up issues 

There is currently no provision of nursing beds registered for DE within the areas of 
Bromyard or Ledbury.  

Total registered nursing beds, number of beds registered for Dementia, over 65 
years of age (DE) in Herefordshire. 

Area 
Total (DE) 
Nursing 
Places** 

Total  
registered  
Nursing 
Places 

Current (DE) 
nursing 
placements 
funded  by HPCT 
and HC 

Total 
nursing 
placemen
ts for 
older 
people 
with 
mental 
disorder  
funded by 
HPCT and 
HC 

Bromyard 0 28 0 6 

Hereford 89 293 65 89 

Kington 53 127 8 9 

Ledbury 0 36 0 1 

Leominster 84* 115 2 9 

Ross on 
Wye 45 103 7 

7 

Total 271 702 82 121 

Out of 
County - - 22 

22 

*Beds in both the homes in Leominster are dual registered for residential and nursing 
beds – there is no indication of total number of EMI nursing places available –total beds 
have been included within nursing category  

**There are 265 beds registered for dementia, over 65 years of age (DE) however the 
majority of these beds are also registered and used by other service groups, i.e. Old 
age, not falling within any other category, which reduces the actual availability of DE 
nursing beds. 

Future need 

The needs analysis for older people conducted in 2006 anticipated the need for an extra 
25 mental frailty nursing care placements funded by social care between 2007-2011. 

Future Provision 

It is anticipated that social care will provide an extra 10 nursing beds for people with 
dementia, over 65 years of age (DE) via their block-contracted beds in Autumn 2008. 
The extent to which out of County placements are influenced by current availability is 

6



PLANNING COMMITTEE FRIDAY, 13TH JULY, 2007 

not fully understood but it is likely that the needs of some of these individuals could 
have been better met through local provision.  

Within the experience of Herefordshire mental health services, there is a shortage of 
residential and nursing beds for older people with complex psycho-behavioural 
disorders.  It is not generally appropriate that they are managed with other client groups 
and the potential to make better use of beds also registered for general nursing is 
therefore currently limited both by this and the level of demand for general nursing care 
places.   

OFFICER COMMENTS 

The new information updates the information in the report which gave the overall picture 
in respect of specific current needs for “EMI” beds in the county. Whilst the new 
information gives more detail of the complexity if the different types of specialist care it 
does not identify a need for 70 EMI (i.e. the existing 30 plus the 40 new ones proposed) 
in or near Pencombe. Consequently there is no overriding need for this development in 
this location and the application proposals remain in conflict with Unitary Development 
Plan policy. 

The Development Control Manager reported that at its meeting on the 27th June, 2007 the 
Northern Area Planning Sub-Committee was mindful to approve the application contrary to 
recommendation.  He advised that the proposal represented the provision of a new 
residential care facility in an open countryside location where new residential development 
would be unacceptable.  Its location was unsustainable by because of its remoteness from 
public transport facilities and services.  The applicant had failed to demonstrate that there 
were sufficient material planning considerations to outweigh these factors and the proposal 
was contrary to Policies S1, DR2 and CF7 of the Herefordshire Unitary Development Plan 
2007 and the guidance in Planning Policy Statement 7 – Sustainable Development in Rural 
Areas. 

In accordance with the criteria for public speaking, Mr Tilling an objector spoke against the 
application and Mr Jolly the applicant’s agent spoke in support. 

One of the Local Ward Members, Councillor B Hunt felt that there was merit in the Committee 
undertaking a site inspection and the Committee concurred with this view. 

RESOLVED: 

that a site inspection be held for the following reasons: 

(i) The character or appearance of the development itself is a 
 fundamental planning consideration; 

(ii) A judgement is required on visual impact; and 

(iii) The setting and surroundings are fundamental to the determination  or 
to the conditions being considered. 

7



PLANNING COMMITTEE FRIDAY, 13TH JULY, 2007 

15. DCNW2007/1271/F - PROPOSED REPLACEMENT DWELLING INCLUDING 
GARAGE AT SOUTHVIEW, WINFORTON, HEREFORD, HEREFORDSHIRE, HR3 
6EB  

  
 The application had been submitted to the Committee in accordance with the 

provisions of the Council’s Constitution because it was from a relative of a Member. 

RESOLVED 

that planning permission be granted subject to the following conditions:- 

1 -   A01 (Time limit for commencement (full permission) ) 

  Reason: Required to be imposed by Section 91 of the Town and Country 
Planning Act 1990. 

2 -   B01 (Samples of external materials ) 

  Reason: To ensure that the materials harmonise with the surroundings. 

3 -   E16 (Removal of permitted development rights ) 

  Reason: In order to clarify the terms under which this permission is 
granted. 

4 -   G04 (Landscaping scheme (general) ) 

  Reason: In order to protect the visual amenities of the area. 

5 -   G05 (Implementation of landscaping scheme (general) ) 

  Reason:  In order to protect the visual amenities of the area. 

6 -   G09 (Retention of trees/hedgerows ) 

  Reason: To safeguard the amenity of the area. 

7 -  No demolition works shall be carried out on site between the 1st March 
and 31st August inclusive in any year, unless otherwise approved in 
writing by Herefordshire Council. Prior to demolition works, a report 
detailing an assessment of and mitigation measures for nesting birds 
present shall be submitted to and approved in writing by Herefordshire 
Council. Works should avoid disturbance to the nests, young, eggs, 
adults and nesting area.” 

Reason:
 To comply with Herefordshire Council’s Policy NC8 and NC9 in relation to 

Nature Conservation and Biodiversity and to meet the requirements of 
PPS9 Biodiversity and Geological Conservation.   

8 -  A watching brief should be kept during the works for the presence of 
bats. If found to be present during the work, operations should cease, 
Herefordshire Council and Natural England informed, and an ecologist 
licensed by Natural England for bat surveys should be engaged to 
determine the species, populations and impact of the works together with 
mitigation and compensation measures.” 

8



PLANNING COMMITTEE FRIDAY, 13TH JULY, 2007 

Reason
To ensure the law is not breached with regard to nesting birds which are 
protected under the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981, the Conservation 
(Natural Habitats) Regulations 1994 and policies NC1, NC5, NC6 and NC7 
within the UDP.  

  
16. DCNE2006/3998/F - RECONFIGURATION OF EXISTING DWELLING INTO 3 

UNITS AND ASSOCIATED WORKS TO INCLUDE A NEW VEHICULAR ACCESS 
AT STANLEY HILL COURT, BOSBURY, LEDBURY, HEREFORDSHIRE HR8 1HE  

  
 The application had been submitted to the Committee in accordance with the 

provisions of the Council’s Constitution because it was from a Member of the council. 

The Development Control Manager reported the receipt of the following updates: 

AMENDED PLANS 

The applicant has submitted further revised plans which change the position of 
the access to one which has been the subject of earlier objection. The new 
plans have, accordingly been made the subject of re-consultation with parties 
who had previously expressed views on the application. The re-consultation 
period does not expire until 24th July 2007. 

OFFICER COMMENTS 

The application should not now be determined until all parties have had the 
opportunity to comment on the revised plans. The position of the access now 
submitted by the applicant takes the proposed new access further away form 
the junction with the B4214 and an existing oak tree close to the site frontage, 
but will require extensive engineering works due to level changes and will have 
a detrimental impact on the landscape quality of the lane at this point. There is, 
therefore, a balanced judgement to be made between which of the access 
options is the better. 

In accordance with the criteria for public speaking, Mr. Clutterbuck an objector spoke 
against the application and Dr G Swinburne the applicant spoke in support. 

The Committee decided to approve the application and concurred with the view of 
the Development control Manager that he be given delegated powers to determine it 
at the end of the consultation period. 

RESOLVED 

that the officers named in the scheme of delegation to officers be authorised 
to determine the application on the expiry of the latest consultation period on 
24th July 2007, subject to no new material planning matters being raised 
during the consultation period and subject to the following conditions: 

1 -   A01 (Time limit for commencement (full permission) ) 

  Reason: Required to be imposed by Section 91 of the Town and Country 
Planning Act 1990. 

2 -   C05 (Details of external joinery finishes ) 

9



PLANNING COMMITTEE FRIDAY, 13TH JULY, 2007 

  Reason: To safeguard the character and appearance of this building of 
[special] architectural or historical interest. 

3 -   E16 (Removal of permitted development rights )   

  Reason: [Special Reason]. 

4 -   H08 (Access closure ) 

Reason: To ensure the safe and free flow of traffic using the adjoining 
County highway. 

5 -   H01 (Single access - not footway ) 
  
  Reason: In the interests of highway safety. 

6 -   H04 (Visibility over frontage ) 

  Reason: In the interests of highway safety. 

7 -   H03 (Visibility splays ) (B road 2.4 x 60 to north and 2.4 x 90 to south) 

  Reason: In the interests of highway safety. 

8 -   H05 (Access gates ) 

  Reason: In the interests of highway safety. 

9 -   H13 (Access, turning area and parking ) 

  Reason: In the interests of highway safety and to ensure the free flow of 
traffic using the adjoining highway. 

10 -   G01 (Details of boundary treatments ) 

  Reason: In the interests of visual amenity and to ensure dwellings have 
satisfactory privacy. 

11 -   G04 (Landscaping scheme (general) ) 

  Reason: In order to protect the visual amenities of the area. 

12 -   G05 (Implementation of landscaping scheme (general) ) 

  Reason:  In order to protect the visual amenities of the area. 

13 -  Prior to the commencement of development details of a non-invasive 
method of   driveway construction within the Root Protection Area of the 
oak tree adjacent to the vehicular access from the C1152 shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority.   

Reason:  In order to protect this important specimen in the wider interests 
of visual amenity.

  

10



PLANNING COMMITTEE FRIDAY, 13TH JULY, 2007 

 Informatives: 

1 -   N15 - Reason(s) for the Grant of PP/LBC/CAC 

2 -   N19 - Avoidance of doubt 

  
17. DCSE2007/0852/F - CHANGE OF USE OF FARM BUILDING TO B1 USE WITH 

TREATMENT PLANT AND ANCILLARY WORKS AT EVERSTONE FARM, 
PETERSTOW, ROSS-ON-WYE, HEREFORDSHIRE,HR9 6LH.  

  
  

The Development Control Manager reported the receipt of the following updates: 

ADDITIONAL DOCUMENTATION 

An email has been received from one of the objectors pointing out that his 
domestic curtilage comes to within 25 metres of the building and, on that basis, 
the objector considers that the officer’s report understates the likely impact of 
the commercial use on his domestic property.  

OFFICER COMMENTS 

There is an open area between the building which is the subject of the 
application and the nearest dwelling. Part of this area is given over to private 
gardens. Paragraph 6.2 of the report correctly points out that “.. the building is 
about 47 metres from the nearest residential dwelling..”. This is the critical 
distance in terms of likely impact of, for example, an office use on the amenities 
of the nearest dwelling. The analysis in the report is not changed by this. 

The Development Control Manager advised that the Southern Area Planning Sub-
Committee at its meeting on the 29th May 2007 was mindful to refuse the application 
contrary to recommendation.  The Sub-Committee had given weight to objections 
received from residents of adjoining barn conversions, especially regarding their 
concerns over traffic likely to be generated by the use. It considered that the 
proposal was unacceptable on highway safety grounds and that a residential 
conversion was preferable, notwithstanding the policy objection to such use and the 
recent appeal history. It also considered that any form of “Industrial” use would have 
an adverse impact on residential amenities, notwithstanding the definition of B1 use. 
In particular it was felt that a mixed use of residential on one part of the farm 
complex and B1 use on another part would be inappropriate.  The objections of the 
Traffic Manager that there was inadequate car parking for the proposed use was 
also taken into consideration. 

The Development Control Manager said that refusal of permission would be difficult 
to sustain in the event of an appeal, and that the Sub-Committee’s preference for  
residential development would be inappropriate for the following reasons: 

1. a highway safety objection could not be defended on appeal given the 
acceptance of the Highways Agency for the access arrangements. The 
access to the A49 already existed and was acceptable for the proposed use. 
The Traffic Manager’s concerns about car parking provision could be  
satisfied by providing more on-site parking; 

2. the residential amenity objection would not be possible to sustain on appeal 
because the proposed use, use class B1, was compatible with residential 
use; and 

3. residential use would be contrary to Herefordshire Council’s policies for the 

11



PLANNING COMMITTEE FRIDAY, 13TH JULY, 2007 

re-use of rural buildings and would also fail to take account of the recent 
appeal decision to dismiss a proposal for the use of these same buildings for 
residential holiday lets. 

In accordance with the criteria for public speaking, Mr. Howells an objector spoke 
against the application and Mr Griffin the applicants agent spoke in support.  

Councillor J.A. Hyde confirmed felt that the application was contrary to policy HBA12 
of the Unitary Development Plan and should therefore be refused contrary to the 
officers recommendation. She also felt that the mix of B1 and residential use was not 
acceptable and cited highway safety as a further ground for refusal.  She said that  
holiday accommodation would have been be more suitable on the site but noted that 
this had previously been refused and lost on appeal.  The Committee agreed with 
her view that the B1 usage would have an unacceptable impact on the local 
residents and the local road network. 

Having discussed all the aspects of the application, the Committee noted the 
objections that had been raised but did not feel that there were sufficient grounds to 
support a refusal if it went to appeal.  

RESOLVED 

that planning permission be granted subject to the following conditions: 

1 A01 (Time limit for commencement (full permission) ) 

 Reason: Required to be imposed by Section 91 of the Town and Country 
Planning Act 1990. 

2 G04 (Landscaping scheme (general) ) 

 Reason: In order to protect the visual amenities of the area. 

3 G05 (Implementation of landscaping scheme (general) ) 

 Reason:  In order to protect the visual amenities of the area. 

4 G01 (Details of boundary treatments ) 

 Reason: In the interests of visual amenity and to ensure dwellings have 
satisfactory privacy. 

5 B01 (Samples of external materials ) 

 Reason: To ensure that the materials harmonise with the surroundings. 

6 E06 (Restriction on Use ) 

 Reason: The local planning authority wish to control the specific use of 
the land/premises, in the interest of local amenity. 

7 E01 (Restriction on hours of working ) 

 Reason: To safeguard the amenities of the locality. 

8 F32 (Details of floodlighting/external lighting )

12



PLANNING COMMITTEE FRIDAY, 13TH JULY, 2007 

Reason: To safeguard local amenities. 

9  No process shall be carried out and no goods, equipment or material 
shall be stored except within the units hereby permitted. 

Reason:  To protect the visual amenities of the area. 

10  F14 (Time restriction on music ) 

Reason:  In order to protect the amenity of occupiers of nearby 
properties. 

11 H15 (Turning and parking: change of use – commercial) 

Reason:  To minimise the likelihood of indiscriminate parking in the 
interests of highway safety. 

12 H29 (Secure parking provision) 

Reason:  To ensure that there is adequate provision for secure cycle 
accommodation within the application site, encouraging alternative 
modes of transport in accordance with both local and national planning 
policy. 

INFORMATIVES: 

1  N19 - Avoidance of doubt 

2  N15 - Reason(s) for the Grant of Planning Permission 

  
18. DCSE2007/0995/F - PROPOSED 4 NO. FOUR BEDROOM DETACHED 

DWELLINGS, LONG ORCHARD, THE LEA, ROSS-ON-WYE, HR9 7JY.  
  
 The Development Control Manager advised that the Southern Area Planning Sub-

Committee at its meeting on the 29th May 2007 was mindful to refuse the application 
contrary to recommendation. The Sub-Committee had given weight to the objections 
from Lea Parish Council and local residents who were concerned about highway 
safety and felt that the application should be refused on those grounds.  He said that 
a highway safety objection could not be defended on appeal given the support of the 
Highways Agency for the access arrangements. Furthermore, the scheme fully met 
the standards for visibility splays.  

Having discussed all the points raised about the application, the Committee noted 
that it complied with the Herefordshire Unitary Development Plan and that the 
objections raised by the Sub-Committee could not be supported as reasons for 
refusal. 

13



PLANNING COMMITTEE FRIDAY, 13TH JULY, 2007 

RESOLVED 

that planning permission be granted subject to the following conditions:  

1. A01 (Time limit for commencement (full permission) ) 

Reason: Required to be imposed by Section 91 of the Town and Country 
Planning Act 1990. 

2. B01 (Samples of external materials ) 

 Reason: To ensure that the materials harmonise with the surroundings. 

3. H03 (Visibility splays ) 

  
Reason: In the interests of highway safety. 

4. H11 (Parking - estate development (more than one house) ) 

 Reason: In the interests of highway safety and to ensure the free flow of 
traffic using the adjoining highway. 

5. No development within the application site shall be undertaken until the 
proposed site access shown on drawing number 21829 _ 1A May 2007, 
including any subsequent revisions resulting from the implementation of 
the Road safety Audit, has been completed to the satisfaction of the local 
planning authority after consultation with the Highways Agency. 

 Reason:  As directed by the Highways Agency and in the interests of 
highway safety. 

Informative(s): 

1. The highway proposals associated with this permission involve works 
within the public highway, which is land over which you have no control.  
The Highways Agency therefore requires you to enter into suitable legal 
agreement to cover the design and construction of the works.  The 
applicant should contact 
Mr Jon McCarthy of the Highways Agency’s Area 9 S278 team, at an early 
stage to discuss details of the highways agreement, his contact details 
are as follows, telephone number 0121 678 8742 or C4/5 Broadway, Broad 
Street, Birmingham, B15 1BL 

2. N19 - Avoidance of doubt 

3. N15 - Reason(s) for the Grant of Planning Permission 

  
19. DCSE2007/1018/F - CONVERSION OF LEISURE BUILDINGS TO A 

RETIREMENT DWELLING WITH GARAGING AND ANNEX AND WITH NEW 
ACCESSES TO THE HIGHWAY, WYE LEA COUNTRY MANOR, BRIDSTOW, 
ROSS-ON-WYE, HEREFORDSHIRE, HR9 6PZ.  

  
 The Development Control Manager advised that the Southern Area Planning Sub-

Committee at its meeting on the 29th May 2007 was mindful to approve the 
application contrary to recommendation.  The Sub-Committee was of the view that 

14



PLANNING COMMITTEE FRIDAY, 13TH JULY, 2007 

the re-use of the building for commercial purposes would be unlikely to be viable and 
that a residential use would be compatible with the rest of the site.  It also felt that 
traffic conditions would be improved rather than made worse by the proposals and 
that satisfactory measures could be taken to protect the trees.  The Development 
Control Manager advised that the proposal conflicted with the UDP. 

In accordance with the criteria for public speaking, Mr Thorne the applicants agent 
spoke in support of the application. 

Councillor J.A. Hyde, the Local Ward Member, felt that the application should be 
approved contrary to the officer’s recommendation. She felt that there would have 
been higher levels of traffic on the site when it was operating as a leisure complex. 
She also felt that the site could not be referred to as an isolated location as it was in 
the centre of a retirement complex surrounded by residential dwellings.   

Having discussed all the aspects of the application, the Committee the Committee 
decided that it should be approved. 

RESOLVED 

that planning permission be granted subject to any conditions felt to be 
necessary by the Head of Planning Services 

  
The meeting ended at 5.08 p.m. CHAIRMAN

15



16



 

6NAPSCReporttoPlanning24August20070.doc 

 

 
 
PLANNING COMMITTEE                                                                       24TH AUGUST, 2007 
 

REPORT OF THE NORTHERN AREA PLANNING  
SUB-COMMITTEE 

Meetings held on 25th July, 2007 

 
Membership: 
 
Councillors: Councillor J.W. Hope M.B.E (Chairman) 

 Councillor P.M. Morgan (Vice-Chairman)  

LO Barnett, WLS Bowen, RBA Burke, ME Cooper, JP French,  
JHR Goodwin, KG Grumbley, B Hunt, RC Hunt, TW Hunt, TM James,  
P Jones CBE, R Mills, RJ Phillips, A Seldon, RV Stockton, J Stone,  
JK Swinburne, PJ Watts  

 
PLANNING APPLICATIONS 
 

1. The Sub-Committee has dealt with the planning applications referred to it as follows:- 
 

(a) applications approved as recommended – 10 

(b) applications refused as recommended – 0 

(c) applications refused contrary to recommendation but not referred to Planning 
committee – 1 

(d) applications minded to approve contrary to recommendation and referred to 
Planning Committee – 2 

(a) applications minded to refuse contrary to recommendation and referred to 
Planning Committee – 2 

(b) applications deferred for further information - 1 

(c) number of public speakers – 1 Parish Council; 4 objectors and 9 supporters 
 
 

PLANNING APPEALS 
 

2. The Sub-Committee received an information report about 4 appeals received, 1 
dismissed and 2 upheld. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
J.W. HOPE M.B.E 
CHAIRMAN 
NORTHERN AREA PLANNING SUB-COMMITTEE 
 
 
l BACKGROUND PAPERS – Agenda for meetings held on 25th July-, 2007 

AGENDA ITEM 6

17



18



 

CAPSCReporttoPlanningCommittee24Aug070.doc 

 

 
 
PLANNING COMMITTEE 24TH AUGUST, 2007 
 

REPORT OF THE CENTRAL AREA PLANNING SUB-COMMITTEE 
 

Meeting held on 1st August, 2007 
 

 
Membership 
 
Councillors:  

JE Pemberton (Chairman) 
GA Powell (Vice-Chairman) 
 
PA Andrews, WU Attfield, DJ Benjamin, AJM Blackshaw, ACR Chappell, 
SPA Daniels, H Davies, GFM Dawe, PJ Edwards, DW Greenow, 
KS Guthrie, MAF Hubbard, TW Hunt (ex-officio), MD Lloyd-Hayes, 
RI Matthews, AT Oliver, SJ Robertson, RV Stockton (ex-officio), 
AP Taylor, AM Toon, NL Vaughan, WJ Walling, DB Wilcox and 
JD Woodward. 

 
 

PLANNING APPLICATIONS 
 

1. The Sub-Committee has met once and dealt with the planning applications referred 
to it as follows:- 

 
(a) applications approved as recommended - 1 

(b) applications refused contrary to recommendation - 2 

(c) applications deferred for site inspection - 2 

(d) applications deferred for further discussions - 1 

(e) number of public speakers - 6 (parish - 2, objectors – 3, supporters - 1) 
 
 

PLANNING APPEALS 
 

2. The Sub-Committee received information reports about 4 appeals that had been 
received and 2 that had been determined (1 dismissed and 1 upheld). 

 
 
JE PEMBERTON 
CHAIRMAN 
CENTRAL AREA PLANNING SUB-COMMITTEE 
 
 
l BACKGROUND PAPERS – Agenda for the meeting held on 1st August, 2007 

AGENDA ITEM 7

19



20



 

8SAPSCReporttoPlanning0.doc 

 

 
 
PLANNING COMMITTEE   24TH AUGUST, 2007 
 

REPORT OF THE SOUTHERN AREA PLANNING  
SUB-COMMITTEE 

Meetings held on 18th July and 15th August, 2007 

 
Membership: 
 
Councillors: Councillor G Lucas (Chairman) 
 Councillors PD Price (Vice-Chairman) 
 

CM Bartrum, H. Bramer, PGH Cutter, MJ Fishley, A.E. Gray,  
TW Hunt (Ex-officio), JA Hyde, JG Jarvis TMR McLean, RH Smith,  
D.C. Taylor and J.B. Williams 

 
 

PLANNING APPLICATIONS 
 

1. The Sub-Committee has dealt with the planning applications referred to it as follows:- 
 

(a) applications approved as recommended - 7 

(b) applications minded to refuse 3 

(c) applications minded to approve 1 (1 referred to Planning Committee) 

(d) number of public speakers – 2 Parish Council; 3 objectors and 4 supporter. 

 
PLANNING APPEALS 
 

2. The Sub-Committee received information reports about 6 appeals received and 4 
determined (3 Dismissed, 1 Upheld). 

 
 
 
G. Lucas 
CHAIRMAN 
SOUTHERN AREA PLANNING SUB-COMMITTEE 
 
 
l BACKGROUND PAPERS – Agenda for the meeting held on 18th July and 15th August, 2007. 

AGENDA ITEM 8

21



22



 
PLANNING COMMITTEE 24TH AUGUST 2007 
 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Siobhan O’Dwyer on (01432) 260142 

 
Tarrington Committee Report ,  July 2007 

  TARRINGTON PARISH PLAN 

Report By: Forward Planning Manager 

 

Wards Affected   
Backbury Ward  

 

Purpose    
To consider the Tarrington Parish Plan for adoption as further planning guidance to 
the adopted Herefordshire Unitary Development Plan (UDP). 
 

Background 
The Government's White Paper 'Our Countryside, the Future' (2000) proposed that 
all rural communities should develop 'Town, Village and Parish Plans' to identify key 
facilities and services, to set out the problems that need to be tackled and to 
demonstrate how distinctive character and features could be preserved. The 
Department of Food and Rural Affairs (DEFRA) currently supports Parish Plans 
through the Rural Social and Community programme.  The programme aims to 
develop the capacity of the rural voluntary and community and parish council sectors 
to help shape the communities that they serve and includes the former Countryside 
Agency’s Vital Villages Parish Plans grant scheme.  Parish Plans should address the 
needs of the entire community and everyone in the parish should have an opportunity 
to take part in its preparation. Local Planning Authorities are encouraged to adopt the 
planning components of Parish Plans as further planning guidance.   
 

            Herefordshire Council has now adopted its UDP and is preparing its Local 
Development Framework (LDF) in accordance with the requirements of the Planning 
and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. During this transitional period (UDP to LDF), 
Parish Plans are to be adopted as further planning guidance to the UDP, since old 
style supplementary planning guidance (SPG) can no longer be formally adopted. 
The further planning guidance should, however, be afforded the same weight by both 
the Herefordshire Council and the Government’s Planning Inspectors since it will be 
produced in the same way as former SPG. 

Adoption by Herefordshire Council 
Parish Plans will not have any statutory powers. They will however be a definitive 
statement about local character and issues. For a Parish Plan to be adopted as 
further planning guidance, it must be consistent with planning policy and prepared in 
wide consultation with the community and interested parties. Only elements of Plans 
relevant to land use and development can be adopted as further planning guidance. 

 
Adoption will enable the Parish Council and local community to draw the attention of 
the Local Planning Authority and others to its context whenever it is pertinent to 
planning decisions within the village/parish. The Parish Plan will be used as a 
material consideration in the determination of planning applications and be of 
assistance at their earlier compilation and pre-application stages. 
 
The adoption of Parish Plans as further planning guidance will confirm their status in 
the Council's overall planning policy framework alongside the UDP.  This is also 
consistent with the former Countryside Agency guidance which still applies.  
 

AGENDA ITEM 9

23



 
PLANNING COMMITTEE 24TH AUGUST 2007 
 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Siobhan O’Dwyer on (01432) 260142 

 
Tarrington Committee Report ,  July 2007 

This Parish Plan is the fourteenth to be presented to the Council for consideration as 
further planning guidance. 

 

Tarrington Parish Plan 
The Tarrington Parish Plan began early 2005 with a public meeting agreeing that 
work should start on a Parish Plan with a Steering Committee set up with regular 
monthly meetings.  The Steering Committee then organised a ‘Planning for 
Tarrington’ event which asked parishioners to identify what were the major issues 
that needed to be addressed in the Parish.  125 adults and young people attended 
this event expressing in total 248 separate issues.   
 
Following on from this, a questionnaire based on the 248 issues identified was 
drafted with the assistance of the Council’s Research Team.  Questionnaires for 
adults and a tailor made one for young people were hand delivered to every 
household in the Parish during December 2005.  The same questionnaires were 
again collected by volunteers.  These efforts resulted in an 80% response rate from 
adults and a 90% response rate from young people.  This assisted the preparation of 
a draft Plan which was made available for comment. Amendments were made and a 
final version of the Plan agreed. The Council have now been requested to adopt the 
planning elements of this final Plan. 

 

A particular aim of the document is to identify measures by which the community can 
improve and enhance the quality of the built environment and to provide a 
mechanism to inform and influence the decisions of statutory bodies about 
community priorities and local needs. 

Key recommendations are included within the Parish Plan on traffic and transport, 
environment, planning, community facilities, health, youth and crime and safety. 

The status of Tarrington as a main village within the UDP is acknowledged in the 
introductory paragraph of the Parish Plan on page 22.  As such development in 
principle is allowed within the settlement boundary provided other UDP policies are 
met.  The Parish Plan does however make clear that the majority of parishioners are 
opposed to further development. It therefore seeks to discourage further 
development especially executive homes and infill out of character with surrounding 
development.  The Parish Plan confirms that if new housing is to occur then it is to be 
within the settlement boundary, single or small scale, preferably 
‘brownfield’/conversion, using materials in keeping with rural nature of the parish. 
New housing should also take into account those who have expressed an interest in 
some form of low cost housing.  The planning related elements of this Plan are 
contained on page 11 and 22 – 24.    

 

RECOMMENDATION 
  

THAT  It be recommended to the Cabinet Member (Environment and 
Strategic Housing) that the planning elements of the Tarrington 
Parish Plan be adopted as further planning guidance as an 
expression of local distinctiveness and community participation. 

 
 
Background paper 
Tarrington Parish Plan 

24



1
A

T
ar

ri
n

g
to

n
P

ar
is

h
P

la
n
fi

n
al

d
ra

ft
0
.d

o
c 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
1
4
/0

8
/2

0
0
7
 

Ta
rr

in
g

to
n

 

P
a

ri
sh

 P
la

n
 2

0
0

7
 

         
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
1

. 
S

ch
o
o

l 
L

a
n

e 
–
 t

h
e 

o
ri

g
in

a
l 

m
a
in

 r
o
a

d
 

 
 

 
 

 
3
. 
T

h
e 

C
h

u
rc

h
 o

f 
S

t 
P

h
il

ip
 &

 S
t 

J
a
m

es
 

 

25



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

2

 

 
 

 
2
. 
B
a
d
m
in
to
n
 

2
. 
B
a
d
m
in
to
n
 

2
. 
B
a
d
m
in
to
n
 

2
. 
B
a
d
m
in
to
n
 – –––
 a
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 H
a
ll
 a
ct
iv
it
y

 a
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 H
a
ll
 a
ct
iv
it
y

 a
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 H
a
ll
 a
ct
iv
it
y

 a
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 H
a
ll
 a
ct
iv
it
y
    

    
    

    
    

    
4
. 
C
a
lo
r 
H
e
re
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 V
il
la
g
e
 o
f 
th
e
 Y
e
a
r 
2
0
0
6

4
. 
C
a
lo
r 
H
e
re
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 V
il
la
g
e
 o
f 
th
e
 Y
e
a
r 
2
0
0
6

4
. 
C
a
lo
r 
H
e
re
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 V
il
la
g
e
 o
f 
th
e
 Y
e
a
r 
2
0
0
6

4
. 
C
a
lo
r 
H
e
re
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 V
il
la
g
e
 o
f 
th
e
 Y
e
a
r 
2
0
0
6

26



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

3

 
 

 
5
. 
P
la
n
n
in
g
 f
o
r

5
. 
P
la
n
n
in
g
 f
o
r

5
. 
P
la
n
n
in
g
 f
o
r

5
. 
P
la
n
n
in
g
 f
o
r
 T
a
rr
in
g
to
n
 e
v
e
n
t

 T
a
rr
in
g
to
n
 e
v
e
n
t

 T
a
rr
in
g
to
n
 e
v
e
n
t

 T
a
rr
in
g
to
n
 e
v
e
n
t    
    

    
    

    
    

    
7
. 
T
h
e
 L
e
y
s
 

7
. 
T
h
e
 L
e
y
s
 

7
. 
T
h
e
 L
e
y
s
 

7
. 
T
h
e
 L
e
y
s
 – –––
 a
 s
y
m
p
a
th
e
ti
c 
b
a
rn
 c
o
n
v
e
rs
io
n

 a
 s
y
m
p
a
th
e
ti
c 
b
a
rn
 c
o
n
v
e
rs
io
n

 a
 s
y
m
p
a
th
e
ti
c 
b
a
rn
 c
o
n
v
e
rs
io
n

 a
 s
y
m
p
a
th
e
ti
c 
b
a
rn
 c
o
n
v
e
rs
io
n
    

 

 
 

 
6
. 
T
ra
ff
ic
 o
n
 t
h
e
 A
4
3
8

6
. 
T
ra
ff
ic
 o
n
 t
h
e
 A
4
3
8

6
. 
T
ra
ff
ic
 o
n
 t
h
e
 A
4
3
8

6
. 
T
ra
ff
ic
 o
n
 t
h
e
 A
4
3
8
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

8
. 
B
a
rr
s
 O
rc
h
a
rd
 S
tr
e
e
t 
P
a
rt
y

8
. 
B
a
rr
s
 O
rc
h
a
rd
 S
tr
e
e
t 
P
a
rt
y

8
. 
B
a
rr
s
 O
rc
h
a
rd
 S
tr
e
e
t 
P
a
rt
y

8
. 
B
a
rr
s
 O
rc
h
a
rd
 S
tr
e
e
t 
P
a
rt
y
    

27



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

4

28



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

5

 
FO

R
E
W

O
R

D
 -

 W
H

Y
 B

O
TH

E
R

 W
IT

H
 A

 P
A

R
IS

H
 P

LA
N

?
 

 W
h

e
n

 t
h

e
 id

e
a

 o
f 

a
 P

a
ri
sh

 P
la

n
 f

o
r 

Ta
rr

in
g

to
n

 w
a

s 
fi
rs

t 
m

o
o

te
d

 in
 e

a
rl
y
 2

0
0
5
, 
th

e
re

 w
e

re
 m

a
n

y
 p

e
o

p
le

 (
th

e
re

 m
a

y
 s

ti
ll 

b
e

) 
w

h
o

 
w

e
re

 f
a

ir
ly

 s
c

e
p

ti
c

a
l 
w

h
e

th
e

r 
it
 w

a
s 

w
o

rt
h

 t
h

e
 e

ff
o

rt
 –

"w
ill

 a
n

y
b

o
d

y
 t

a
k
e

 a
n

y
 n

o
ti
c

e
",

 it
 w

a
s 

sa
id

. 
  

 N
o

w
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 S

te
e

ri
n

g
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 h

a
s 

b
e

e
n

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
w

o
 y

e
a

rs
 o

f 
fa

ir
ly

 in
te

n
si

v
e

 c
o

n
su

lt
a

ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 v

ill
a

g
e

, 
w

it
h

 r
e

le
v
a

n
t 

o
u

ts
id

e
 A

u
th

o
ri
ti
e

s 
a

n
d

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 P

a
ri
sh

 C
o

u
n

c
il,

 a
n

d
 h

a
v
e

 l
o

o
k
e

d
 c

a
re

fu
lly

 a
t 

w
h

a
t 

a
ll 

th
o

se
 p

e
o

p
le

 h
a

v
e

 s
a

id
, 

w
e

 c
a

n
 s

a
y
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 P

a
ri
sh

 P
la

n
 w

ill
 b

e
n

e
fi
t 

Ta
rr

in
g

to
n

 in
 t

w
o

 w
a

y
s,

 w
h

ic
h

 w
e

 m
ig

h
t 

c
a

ll 
th

e
 e

xt
e

rn
a

l 
a

n
d

 in
te

rn
a

l 
w

a
y
s.

  
 

 Th
e

 e
xt

e
rn

a
l 
o

n
e

 is
 t

h
e

 t
ra

d
it
io

n
a

l 
ju

st
if
ic

a
ti
o

n
 f

o
r 

a
 P

a
ri
sh

 P
la

n
 –

 t
h

a
t 

it
 w

ill
 g

iv
e

 u
s 

st
ro

n
g

 e
v
id

e
n

c
e

 o
f 

th
e

 c
o

n
se

n
su

s 
o

f 
th

e
 v

ill
a

g
e

 
o

n
 t

h
o

se
 v

it
a

l 
is

su
e

s 
- 

e
.g

. 
h

o
u

si
n

g
, 
tr

a
ff

ic
, 
p

u
b

lic
 a

m
e

n
it
ie

s 
–
 w

h
e

re
 w

e
 n

e
e

d
 o

u
ts

id
e

 b
o

d
ie

s 
to

 d
o

 w
h

a
t 

w
e

 w
a

n
t,

 o
r 

a
t 

le
a

st
 

ta
k
e

 o
u

r 
v
ie

w
s 

in
to

 a
c

c
o

u
n

t.
  

It
 w

ill
 g

iv
e

 T
a

rr
in

g
to

n
 “

V
it
a

l 
V

ill
a

g
e

” 
st

a
tu

s 
a

n
d

 m
a

k
e

 it
 e

a
si

e
r 

fo
r 

th
e

 P
a

ri
sh

 C
o

u
n

c
il,

 a
n

d
 o

th
e

r 
b

o
d

ie
s 

w
it
h

in
 t

h
e

 v
ill

a
g

e
, 
to

 a
c

c
e

ss
 g

ra
n

ts
 a

n
d

 g
e

t 
a

p
p

ro
v
a

ls
 f

o
r 

a
c

ti
o

n
s 

b
a

c
k
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 P
la

n
. 

 N
o

 l
e

ss
 im

p
o

rt
a

n
t,

 w
e

 f
e

e
l, 

is
 t

h
e

 in
te

rn
a

l 
b

e
n

e
fi
t 

–
 o

n
e

 m
a

y
 a

lm
o

st
 c

a
ll 

it
 t

h
e

 h
id

d
e

n
 b

e
n

e
fi
t 

–
 o

f 
th

e
 P

la
n

. 
 I
t 

h
a

s 
g

iv
e

n
 u

s 
a

 
u

n
iq

u
e

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
y
 t

o
 t

a
k
e

 a
 l
o

n
g

, 
h

a
rd

 l
o

o
k
 a

t 
th

is
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
, 
se

e
 w

h
a

t 
w

e
 a

re
 g

e
tt

in
g

 r
ig

h
t 

(w
e

 t
h

in
k
 q

u
it
e

 a
 l
o

t)
 a

n
d

 a
ls

o
 

w
h

a
t 

w
e

’r
e

 d
o

in
g

 w
ro

n
g

 (
a

 b
it
 o

f 
th

a
t 

to
o

).
  

In
 t

h
e

 p
ro

c
e

ss
 w

e
’v

e
 f

o
u

n
d

 t
h

a
t 

so
m

e
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
m

m
o

n
 a

ss
u

m
p

ti
o

n
s 

a
b

o
u

t 
w

h
a

t 
p

e
o

p
le

 w
a

n
t 

h
e

re
 a

re
 w

ro
n

g
. 
 W

e
’v

e
 a

ls
o

 f
o

u
n

d
 t

h
a

t,
 in

 s
o

m
e

 c
a

se
s,

 w
h

a
t 

w
e

 t
h

o
u

g
h

t 
w

a
s 

h
a

p
p

e
n

in
g

, 
a

n
d

 w
e

re
 c

o
m

p
la

c
e

n
t 

a
b

o
u

t,
 h

a
sn

’t
 b

e
e

n
. 
 W

e
’v

e
 f

o
u

n
d

 t
h

a
t 

w
h

a
t 

w
e

 h
a

d
 t

h
o

u
g

h
t 

w
a

s 
a

 f
a

ir
ly

 in
c

lu
si

v
e

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 a

c
tu

a
lly

 e
xc

lu
d

e
s 

so
m

e
 

si
g

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
e

le
m

e
n

ts
. 
 T

h
e

 p
ro

c
e

ss
 h

a
s 

m
a

d
e

 u
s 

re
a

lis
e

 t
h

a
t 

a
 l
o

t 
th

a
t'
s 

b
o

th
 g

o
o

d
 a

n
d

 n
o

t 
so

 g
o

o
d

 in
 t

h
e

 P
a

ri
sh

 d
o

e
sn

’t
 in

 f
a

c
t 

n
e

e
d

 m
u

c
h

 o
u

ts
id

e
 h

e
lp

 t
o

 m
a

in
ta

in
 o

r 
p

u
t 

ri
g

h
t.

  
Th

e
 b

ig
g

e
st

 n
e

e
d

 is
 f

o
r 

u
s 

to
 r

e
c

o
g

n
is

e
 it

 a
n

d
 d

o
 it

 o
u

rs
e

lv
e

s.
  

W
e

 h
a

v
e

 t
h

e
 

k
n

o
w

le
d

g
e

 (
w

e
 t

h
in

k
):

  
w

h
a

t 
w

e
 n

e
e

d
 n

o
w

 is
 t

h
e

 e
n

e
rg

y
 a

n
d

 in
it
ia

ti
v
e

 (
w

h
ic

h
 m

e
a

n
s 

v
o

lu
n

te
e

rs
!)

 t
o

 c
o

m
p

le
te

 t
h

e
 jo

b
. 

 W
e

 h
o

p
e

 y
o

u
 e

n
jo

y
 r

e
a

d
in

g
 t

h
e

 P
a

ri
sh

 P
la

n
. 
 B

e
in

g
 t

h
e

 w
o

rk
 o

f 
M

a
n

 (
e

v
e

n
 w

o
rs

e
, 
o

f 
a

 C
o

m
m

it
te

e
),

 it
’s

 n
o

t 
p

e
rf

e
c

t.
  

C
e

rt
a

in
ly

 
n

o
t 

e
v
e

ry
o

n
e

’s
 v

ie
w

s 
h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 c
o

n
v
e

rt
e

d
 in

to
 A

c
ti
o

n
s 

in
 t

h
e

 A
c

ti
o

n
 P

la
n

s.
  

E
v
e

ry
o

n
e

’s
 v

ie
w

s 
h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 l
is

te
n

e
d

 t
o

, 
h

o
w

e
v
e

r,
 

a
n

d
 w

h
e

n
e

v
e

r 
th

e
re

 h
a

s 
b

e
e

n
 a

 c
o

n
se

n
su

s 
o

n
 a

n
y
 p

o
in

t,
 o

r 
e

v
e

n
 a

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
m

in
o

ri
ty

 v
ie

w
, 
it
 h

a
s 

b
e

e
n

 f
a

it
h

fu
lly

 r
e

fl
e

c
te

d
 in

 
th

e
 P

la
n

. 
 I
t 

sh
o

u
ld

 b
e

 s
tr

e
ss

e
d

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

 v
ie

w
s 

se
t 

o
u

t 
in

 t
h

e
 P

la
n

 a
re

 t
h

o
se

 o
f 

th
e

 v
ill

a
g

e
 a

n
d

 n
o

t 
n

e
c

e
ss

a
ri
ly

 o
f 

th
e

 S
te

e
ri
n

g
 

C
o

m
m

it
te

e
. 

29



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

6

C
O

N
TE

N
TS

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 P
a

g
e

 N
o

. 
 

1
. 

Ta
rr

in
g

to
n

 P
a

ri
sh

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 7

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

2
. 

C
o

n
su

lt
a

ti
o

n
 P

ro
c

e
ss

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 9
 

 

3
. 

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 

P
ro

p
o

se
d

 A
c

ti
o

n
s 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

1
1
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

4
. 

A
c

ti
o

n
 P

la
n

s 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

1
3
 

 

4
.1

 T
ra

ff
ic

 &
 T

ra
n

sp
o

rt
a

ti
o

n
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

1
3

 
4

.2
 E

n
v

ir
o

n
m

e
n

t  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
1

8
 

 
4

.3
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
2

2
 

 
4

.4
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 F

a
c

ili
ti
e

s 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

2
5

 
4

.5
 H

e
a

lt
h

 &
 S

o
c

ia
l S

e
rv

ic
e

s 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
2

9
 

4
.6

 Y
o

u
n

g
 P

e
o

p
le

’s
 I
n

te
re

st
s 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

3
1

 
4

.7
 C

ri
m

e
 &

 S
a

fe
ty

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
3

5
 

 

5
. 

C
o

n
c

lu
si

o
n

s 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

3
7
 

 
 

6
. 

A
c

k
n

o
w

le
d

g
e

m
e

n
ts

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

3
8
 

 

30



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

7

  

1
. 

TA
R

R
IN

G
TO

N
 P

A
R

IS
H

 

 Th
e

 P
a

ri
sh

 o
f 

Ta
rr

in
g

to
n

 is
 s

it
u

a
te

d
 o

n
 t

h
e

 A
4
3
8
 a

p
p

ro
x 

m
id

w
a

y
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 L

e
d

b
u

ry
 a

n
d

 H
e

re
fo

rd
. 
 I
t 

is
 a

n
 e

xa
m

p
le

 o
f 

a
 v

ill
a

g
e

 
w

h
o

se
 c

e
n

tr
e

 h
a

s 
“
m

o
v
e

d
” 

in
 t

h
a

t 
p

ri
o

r 
to

 t
h

e
 1

8
th

 c
e

n
tu

ry
 t

h
e

 m
a

in
 r

o
a

d
 f

ro
m

 H
e

re
fo

rd
 t

o
 L

e
d

b
u

ry
 r

a
n

 a
lo

n
g

 t
h

e
 l
in

e
 o

f 
th

e
 

p
re

se
n

t 
S
c

h
o

o
l 
La

n
e

 –
 t

h
u

s 
m

a
n

y
 o

f 
th

e
 o

ld
e

r 
h

o
u

se
s 

in
 t

h
e

 v
ill

a
g

e
, 
a

n
d

 t
h

e
 C

h
u

rc
h

, 
a

re
 a

lo
n

g
 t

h
e

 l
in

e
 o

f 
th

is
 L

a
n

e
 a

n
d

 t
h

is
 a

re
a

 
is

 n
o

w
 a

 q
u

ie
t 

b
a

c
k
w

a
te

r 
o

f 
th

e
 m

a
in

 v
ill

a
g

e
 (

se
e

 p
h

o
to

 1
).

 
 Th

e
 e

a
rl
ie

st
 w

ri
tt

e
n

 r
e

c
o

rd
 o

f 
Ta

rr
in

g
to

n
 is

 in
 t

h
e

 D
o

m
e

sd
a

y
 B

o
o

k
 o

f 
1
0
8
6
 (

se
e

 in
si

d
e

 b
a

c
k
 c

o
v
e

r)
 w

h
e

re
 it

 is
 r

e
fe

rr
e

d
 t

o
 a

s 
Ta

ti
n

tu
n

e
 a

n
d

 it
s 

o
w

n
e

rs
h

ip
 a

n
d

 v
a

lu
e

 a
ss

e
ss

e
d

. 
 T

h
e

 m
a

n
o

r 
o

f 
Ta

rr
in

g
to

n
 t

h
e

n
 p

a
ss

e
d

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 h

a
n

d
s 

o
f 

v
a

ri
o

u
s 

N
o

rm
a

n
 

lo
rd

s 
(i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 E

d
m

u
n

d
 d

e
 l
a

 B
a

rr
e

, 
fr

o
m

 w
h

o
m

 t
h

e
 n

a
m

e
 B

a
rr

s 
C

o
u

rt
 d

e
ri
v
e

s)
 a

n
d

 e
v
e

n
tu

a
lly

 in
to

 t
h

o
se

 o
f 

th
e

 B
o

d
e

n
h

a
m

, 
th

e
n

 L
in

g
e

n
 f

a
m

ili
e

s.
  

Th
e

 L
in

g
e

n
s'

 e
st

a
te

s 
w

e
re

 c
o

n
fi
sc

a
te

d
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
m

 a
ft

e
r 

th
e

 C
iv

il 
W

a
r 

(t
h

e
 L

in
g

e
n

s 
b

e
in

g
 f

e
rv

e
n

t 
R

o
y
a

lis
ts

),
 

re
st

o
re

d
 t

o
 t

h
e

m
 a

t 
th

e
 R

e
st

o
ra

ti
o

n
 b

u
t 

so
o

n
 p

u
rc

h
a

se
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 r
is

in
g

 F
o

le
y
 f

a
m

ily
. 
 

  T
h

e
 F

o
le

y
s 

su
b

se
q

u
e

n
tl
y
 a

c
q

u
ir
e

d
 m

u
c

h
 o

f 
Ta

rr
in

g
to

n
 a

n
d

 b
e

c
a

m
e

 t
h

e
 m

a
in

 e
m

p
lo

y
e

rs
 o

f 
v
ill

a
g

e
 p

e
o

p
le

. 
It

 is
 in

te
re

st
in

g
 t

h
a

t 
in

 
1
8
5
1
, 
th

e
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
 o

f 
Ta

rr
in

g
to

n
 w

a
s 

5
3
4
 (

sl
ig

h
tl
y
 m

o
re

 t
h

a
n

 it
 is

 t
o

d
a

y
),

 in
c

lu
d

in
g

 1
1
 f

a
rm

e
rs

, 
2
 m

a
so

n
s,

 2
 w

h
e

e
lw

ri
g

h
ts

, 
a

 
b

la
c

k
sm

it
h

, 
a

 c
o

o
p

e
r,

 2
 s

h
o

e
m

a
k
e

rs
, 
a

 b
u

ild
e

r,
 a

 r
a

te
-c

o
lle

c
to

r,
 a

 p
lu

m
b

e
r 

a
n

d
 g

la
zi

e
r,

 a
 b

u
tc

h
e

r,
 2

 s
h

o
p

k
e

e
p

e
rs

, 
a

 p
u

b
lic

a
n

, 
a

 
sc

h
o

o
lm

a
st

e
r 

a
n

d
 m

is
tr

e
ss

 ,
a

 d
o

c
to

r 
a

n
d

 t
h

e
 v

ic
a

r.
 W

e
 c

o
u

ld
 d

o
 w

it
h

 s
o

m
e

 o
f 

th
e

se
 o

c
c

u
p

a
ti
o

n
s 

in
 t

h
e

 v
ill

a
g

e
 t

o
d

a
y
! 

 In
 t

h
e

 e
a

rl
y
 2

0
th

 c
e

n
tu

ry
, 
d

e
a

th
 d

u
ti
e

s 
a

n
d

 t
h

e
 d

e
p

re
ss

io
n

 in
 f

a
rm

in
g

 o
b

lig
e

d
 t

h
e

 F
o

le
y
 f

a
m

ily
 (

lik
e

 m
a

n
y
 o

th
e

r 
la

n
d

e
d

 f
a

m
ili

e
s 

a
c

ro
ss

 t
h

e
 c

o
u

n
tr

y
) 

to
 b

re
a

k
 u

p
 m

u
c

h
 o

f 
th

e
ir
 e

st
a

te
s 

a
n

d
 t

h
e

 F
o

le
y
s 

so
ld

 m
u

c
h

 o
f 

th
e

ir
 l
a

n
d

 in
 T

a
rr

in
g

to
n

 t
o

 in
d

iv
id

u
a

l 
o

w
n

e
rs

h
ip

. 
 S

ti
ll 

fo
r 

m
a

n
y
 y

e
a

rs
 v

ill
a

g
e

 p
e

o
p

le
 w

e
re

 e
m

p
lo

y
e

d
 v

e
ry

 l
a

rg
e

ly
 o

n
 l
o

c
a

l 
fa

rm
s 

o
r 

in
 a

g
ri
c

u
lt
u

ra
l 
re

la
te

d
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s.
  

Th
is

 
o

f 
c

o
u

rs
e

 h
a

s 
g

re
a

tl
y
 c

h
a

n
g

e
d

 s
in

c
e

 t
h

e
 S

e
c

o
n

d
 W

a
r 

a
n

d
 n

o
w

 v
e

ry
 f

e
w

 v
ill

a
g

e
rs

 a
re

 s
o

 e
m

p
lo

y
e

d
. 
 T

h
e

 v
ill

a
g

e
 r

e
m

a
in

s 
h

o
w

e
v
e

r 
su

rr
o

u
n

d
e

d
 b

y
 f

a
rm

 l
a

n
d

 a
n

d
 it

s 
ru

ra
l 
n

a
tu

re
 (

a
n

d
 e

sp
e

c
ia

lly
 it

s 
p

e
a

c
e

fu
l 
ru

ra
l 
“
h

e
a

rt
” 

ro
u

n
d

 t
h

e
 C

h
u

rc
h

, 
C

h
u

rc
h

 L
a

n
e

, 
S
c

h
o

o
l 
La

n
e

, 
A

ld
e

rs
e

n
d

 R
d

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 C
o

m
m

o
n

 R
d

) 
a

re
 m

u
c

h
 v

a
lu

e
d

 b
y
 p

a
ri
sh

io
n

e
rs

. 
 Th

e
 2

0
0
1
 c

e
n

su
s 

sh
o

w
e

d
 t

h
a

t 
Ta

rr
in

g
to

n
 P

a
ri
sh

 c
o

n
ta

in
e

d
 5

0
6
 p

e
rs

o
n

s,
 o

f 
w

h
ic

h
 9

5
(1

9
%

) 
w

e
re

 u
n

d
e

r 
1
8
 a

n
d

 1
1
0
 (

2
2
%

) 
w

e
re

 6
5
 o

r 
o

v
e

r.
  

2
1
8
 p

e
rs

o
n

s 
b

e
tw

e
e

n
 t

h
e

 a
g

e
 o

f 
1
6
 a

n
d

 7
4
 w

e
re

 in
 f

u
ll 

o
r 

p
a

rt
-t

im
e

 e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 5

5
 s

e
lf
-e

m
p

lo
y
e

d
 p

e
rs

o
n

s;
 

u
n

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
st

o
o

d
 a

t 
4
%

. 
 7

%
 o

f 
e

m
p

lo
y
e

d
 p

e
rs

o
n

s 
w

o
rk

e
d

 in
 a

g
ri
c

u
lt
u

re
 o

r 
h

o
rt

ic
u

lt
u

re
; 
th

e
 e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
se

c
to

rs
 o

f 
th

e
 

re
m

a
in

d
e

r 
in

c
lu

d
e

d
 h

e
a

lt
h

, 
so

c
ia

l 
w

o
rk

, 
e

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
, 
b

u
si

n
e

ss
 a

n
d

 m
a

n
u

fa
c

tu
ri
n

g
 in

d
u

st
ri
e

s 
(a

lm
o

st
 e

n
ti
re

ly
 o

u
ts

id
e

 t
h

e
 P

a
ri
sh

).
 

1
5
%

 o
f 

e
m

p
lo

y
e

d
 p

e
rs

o
n

s 
w

o
rk

e
d

 a
t 

o
r 

fr
o

m
 h

o
m

e
 w

h
ils

t 
7
8
%

 t
ra

v
e

lle
d

 b
y
 r

o
a

d
 t

o
 w

o
rk

 o
u

ts
id

e
 t

h
e

 P
a

ri
sh

. 
 

 

31



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

8

Th
e

 P
a

ri
sh

 h
a

s 
in

 e
xc

e
ss

 o
f 

2
0
0
 p

ro
p

e
rt

ie
s,

 c
o

n
c

e
n

tr
a

te
d

 l
a

rg
e

ly
 o

n
 e

it
h

e
r 

si
d

e
 o

f 
th

e
 A

4
3
8
 a

n
d

 b
e

tw
e

e
n

 t
h

a
t 

ro
a

d
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 

P
a

ri
sh

 C
h

u
rc

h
, 
a

n
d

 w
it
h

 s
c

a
tt

e
re

d
 s

e
tt

le
m

e
n

ts
 a

lo
n

g
 S

c
h

o
o

l 
La

n
e

, 
A

ld
e

rs
e

n
d

 R
d

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 C
o

m
m

o
n

 R
d

. 
 O

u
tl
y
in

g
 h

a
m

le
ts

 a
t 

Li
tt

le
 

Ta
rr

in
g

to
n

, 
G

a
rb

ro
o

k
, 
E
a

st
w

o
o

d
 a

n
d

 D
u

rl
o

w
 a

ls
o

 f
o

rm
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 P
a

ri
sh

. 
 T

h
e

 m
a

jo
ri
ty

 o
f 

th
e

 P
a

ri
sh

 is
 s

ti
ll 

fa
rm

e
d

 l
a

n
d

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

re
 

re
m

a
in

 s
e

v
e

ra
l 
w

o
rk

in
g

 f
a

rm
s 

w
it
h

in
 t

h
e

 P
a

ri
sh

. 
Th

e
re

 a
re

 a
ls

o
 a

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

sm
a

ll 
b

u
si

n
e

ss
e

s,
 l
a

rg
e

ly
 c

a
rr

ie
d

 o
n

 f
ro

m
 h

o
m

e
. 
Th

e
 

o
n

ly
 h

o
u

si
n

g
 e

st
a

te
 o

f 
si

g
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
si

ze
 is

 B
a

rr
s 

O
rc

h
a

rd
/P

o
u

n
d

 C
lo

se
 ju

st
 n

o
rt

h
 o

f 
th

e
 C

h
u

rc
h

. 
  T

h
e

 V
ill

a
g

e
 S

c
h

o
o

l 
c

lo
se

d
 in

 1
9
8
6
, 
a

n
d

 t
h

e
re

fo
re

 t
h

e
 y

o
u

n
g

 p
e

o
p

le
 o

f 
th

e
 P

a
ri
sh

 t
ra

v
e

l 
o

u
ts

id
e

 t
o

 s
c

h
o

o
l. 

 T
h

e
 D

o
c

to
r’

s 
S
u

rg
e

ry
 

c
lo

se
d

 in
 2

0
0
0
, 
th

e
 P

o
st

 O
ff

ic
e

/V
ill

a
g

e
 S

to
re

 in
 2

0
0
1
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 P

a
ri
sh

 l
o

st
 it

s 
re

si
d

e
n

t 
R

e
c

to
r 

in
 2

0
0
5
. 
 T

h
e

se
 o

f 
c

o
u

rs
e

 a
re

 f
a

m
ili

a
r 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
ts

 in
 v

ill
a

g
e

s 
c

o
u

n
tr

y
-w

id
e

. 
O

n
 t

h
e

 m
o

re
 p

o
si

ti
v
e

 s
id

e
, 
th

e
 P

a
ri
sh

 h
a

s 
re

ta
in

e
d

 a
 w

e
ll-

p
a

tr
o

n
is

e
d

 p
u

b
/r

e
st

a
u

ra
n

t,
 h

a
s 

a
 n

e
w

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 H

a
ll 

(c
o

n
v
e

rt
e

d
 f

ro
m

 
th

e
 f

o
rm

e
r 

V
ill

a
g

e
 S

c
h

o
o

l 
w

it
h

 t
h

e
 a

id
 o

f 
fu

n
d

s 
fr

o
m

 a
 v

a
ri
e

ty
 o

f 
so

u
rc

e
s)

 w
h

ic
h

 is
 e

xt
re

m
e

ly
 b

u
sy

 w
it
h

 a
 v

a
ri
e

ty
 o

f 
a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s/
c

lu
b

s 
(s

e
e

 p
h

o
to

 2
) 

a
n

d
 a

 p
la

y
 g

ro
u

p
. 
Th

e
 P

a
ri
sh

 a
ls

o
 h

a
s 

a
n

 a
c

ti
v
e

 C
h

u
rc

h
 (

se
e

 p
h

o
to

 3
).

  
It

 is
 a

 f
a

ir
ly

 c
lo

se
-k

n
it
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 w

h
ic

h
 a

 
n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
v
o

lu
n

te
e

rs
 w

o
rk

 h
a

rd
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 w

it
h

 a
 r

a
n

g
e

 o
f 

so
c

ia
l, 

re
c

re
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
a

n
d

 s
p

ir
it
u

a
l 
a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s 
d

u
ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 c
o

u
rs

e
 o

f 
th

e
 

y
e

a
r.

  
It

s 
su

c
c

e
ss

 a
s 

a
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 h

a
s 

b
e

e
n

 r
e

c
o

g
n

is
e

d
 b

y
 t

w
ic

e
 w

in
n

in
g

 (
in

 2
0
0
5
 a

n
d

 2
0
0
6
) 

a
 S

ilv
e

r 
A

w
a

rd
 in

 “
B

ri
ta

in
 in

 B
lo

o
m

” 
a

n
d

 b
e

in
g

 t
h

e
 H

e
re

fo
rd

sh
ir
e

 w
in

n
e

r 
o

f 
th

e
 C

a
lo

r 
V

ill
a

g
e

 o
f 

th
e

 Y
e

a
r 

C
o

m
p

e
ti
ti
o

n
 in

 2
0
0
6
 (

se
e

 p
h

o
to

 4
).

  
In

 t
h

e
 l
a

tt
e

r 
c

o
m

p
e

ti
ti
o

n
 

th
e

 ju
d

g
e

s 
to

ld
 u

s 
th

a
t 

"Y
o

u
 c

e
rt

a
in

ly
 g

a
v
e

 u
s 

th
e

 i
m

p
re

ss
io

n
 t

h
a

t 
p

e
o

p
le

 i
n

 T
a

rr
in

g
to

n
 c

a
re

 a
b

o
u

t 
th

e
ir
 l
o

c
a

l 
c

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 a

n
d

 

th
a

t 
it

 i
s 

a
 l
iv

e
ly

 p
la

c
e

 t
o

 l
iv

e
!"

 
 

32



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

9

2
. 

TH
E
 C

O
N

S
U

LT
A

TI
O

N
 P

R
O

C
E
S
S
 

 In
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
0
5
 t

h
e

 P
a

ri
sh

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

o
rg

a
n

is
e

d
 a

 p
u

b
lic

 m
e

e
ti
n

g
 a

t 
th

e
 T

a
rr

in
g

to
n

 A
rm

s 
to

 p
ro

p
o

se
 t

o
 t

h
e

 P
a

ri
sh

 t
h

a
t 

w
o

rk
 s

h
o

u
ld

 
st

a
rt

 o
n

 a
 P

a
ri
sh

 P
la

n
. 
  

It
 w

a
s 

e
xp

la
in

e
d

 w
h

a
t 

a
 P

a
ri
sh

 P
la

n
 w

a
s 

a
n

d
 it

s 
a

d
v
a

n
ta

g
e

s 
fo

r 
th

e
 P

a
ri
sh

. 
 T

h
e

 m
e

e
ti
n

g
 w

a
s 

w
e

ll 
a

tt
e

n
d

e
d

 (
1
3
0
 p

a
ri
sh

io
n

e
rs

) 
a

n
d

 t
h

e
 p

ro
p

o
sa

l 
w

a
s 

g
re

e
te

d
 w

it
h

 s
o

m
e

 e
n

th
u

si
a

sm
. 
 I
n

 n
o

 t
im

e
 a

t 
a

ll 
a

 S
te

e
ri
n

g
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 (

“
S
C

”)
 

o
f 

2
2
 m

e
m

b
e

rs
 w

a
s 

fo
rm

e
d

 a
n

d
 h

e
ld

 it
s 

fi
rs

t 
m

e
e

ti
n

g
. 
 T

h
e

re
a

ft
e

r,
 S

C
 M

e
e

ti
n

g
s 

w
e

re
 h

e
ld

 m
o

n
th

ly
 t

ill
 t

h
e

 c
o

m
p

le
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 P

la
n

. 
 

Th
e

 a
v
e

ra
g

e
 a

tt
e

n
d

a
n

c
e

 w
a

s 
a

p
p

ro
x 

1
2
 p

e
rs

o
n

s,
 w

h
ic

h
 m

a
in

ta
in

e
d

 t
h

e
 m

o
m

e
n

tu
m

 o
f 

th
e

 p
ro

je
c

t.
 

 Th
e

 S
C

 d
e

c
id

e
d

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

 f
ir
st

 s
te

p
 in

 t
h

e
 P

la
n

 p
ro

c
e

ss
 w

a
s 

to
 o

rg
a

n
is

e
 a

 “
P

la
n

n
in

g
 f

o
r 

Ta
rr

in
g

to
n

” 
(“

P
fT

”)
 e

v
e

n
t 

in
 t

h
e

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 

H
a

ll,
 h

e
ld

 in
 J

u
ly

 2
0
0
5
. 
 F

o
r 

th
is

 p
u

rp
o

se
, 
la

rg
e

 s
c

a
le

 m
a

p
s 

o
f 

th
e

 P
a

ri
sh

 w
e

re
 p

re
p

a
re

d
 t

o
g

e
th

e
r 

w
it
h

 f
la

g
s 

a
n

d
 p

in
s 

e
n

a
b

lin
g

 
p

a
ri
sh

io
n

e
rs

 t
o

 id
e

n
ti
fy

 w
h

a
t 

fo
r 

th
e

m
 w

e
re

 t
h

e
 m

a
jo

r 
is

su
e

s 
n

e
e

d
in

g
 t

o
 b

e
 a

d
d

re
ss

e
d

 in
 t

h
e

 P
a

ri
sh

 –
 w

h
e

th
e

r 
in

 t
e

rm
s 

o
f 

tr
a

ff
ic

/t
ra

n
sp

o
rt

, 
c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 f

a
c

ili
ti
e

s,
 h

o
u

si
n

g
, 
th

e
 e

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

t,
 c

ri
m

e
 a

n
d

 s
a

fe
ty

, 
y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

’s
 in

te
re

st
s 

o
r 

o
th

e
rw

is
e

. 
 A

g
a

in
, 

th
e

re
 w

a
s 

a
 v

e
ry

 g
o

o
d

 r
e

sp
o

n
se

 t
o

 t
h

is
 e

v
e

n
t 

–
 a

 t
o

ta
l 
o

f 
1
2
5
 a

d
u

lt
s 

a
n

d
 y

o
u

n
g

 p
e

o
p

le
 a

tt
e

n
d

in
g

. 
 A

lt
o

g
e

th
e

r 
1
4
4
4
 e

xp
re

ss
io

n
s 

o
f 

v
ie

w
 r

e
p

re
se

n
ti
n

g
 2

4
8
 s

e
p

a
ra

te
 is

su
e

s 
w

e
re

 r
a

is
e

d
 (

se
e

 p
h

o
to

 5
).

  
In

 o
rg

a
n

is
in

g
 a

n
d

 s
tr

u
c

tu
ri
n

g
 t

h
is

 e
v
e

n
t,

 a
 g

re
a

t 
d

e
a

l 
o

f 
h

e
lp

 
w

a
s 

re
c

e
iv

e
d

 f
ro

m
 A

n
g

e
la

 D
o

w
n

in
g

 a
t 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 F

ir
st

 a
n

d
 L

y
n

d
a

 W
ilc

o
x 

a
t 

H
e

re
fo

rd
 A

ss
o

c
. 
o

f 
Lo

c
a

l 
C

o
u

n
c

ils
. 

 Th
e

 P
fT

 e
v
e

n
t 

n
o

t 
o

n
ly

 c
o

n
fi
rm

e
d

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

re
 w

a
s 

a
 l
iv

e
ly

 in
te

re
st

 in
 t

h
e

 v
ill

a
g

e
 a

s 
to

 h
o

w
 q

u
a

lit
y
 o

f 
lif

e
 h

e
re

 c
a

n
 b

e
 im

p
ro

v
e

d
 b

u
t 

a
ls

o
 g

a
v
e

 t
h

e
 S

C
 t

h
e

 e
ss

e
n

ti
a

l 
ra

w
 d

a
ta

 r
e

g
a

rd
in

g
 t

h
e

 n
a

tu
re

 o
f 

th
e

 is
su

e
s 

th
a

t 
c

o
n

c
e

rn
 p

e
o

p
le

. 
 T

h
is

 e
n

a
b

le
d

 it
 t

o
 p

ro
c

e
e

d
 t

o
 

th
e

 s
e

c
o

n
d

 p
h

a
se

 o
f 

c
o

n
su

lt
a

ti
o

n
 –

 a
 Q

u
e

st
io

n
n

a
ir
e

 f
o

r 
e

v
e

ry
 a

d
u

lt
 in

 t
h

e
 P

a
ri
sh

 t
o

 c
o

m
p

le
te

, 
w

it
h

 a
 s

e
p

a
ra

te
 t

a
ilo

r-
m

a
d

e
 o

n
e

 
fo

r 
y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

. 
 T

h
e

 2
4
8
 is

su
e

s 
ra

is
e

d
 a

t 
th

e
 P

fT
 e

v
e

n
t 

w
e

re
 c

o
n

so
lid

a
te

d
 in

to
 7

6
 q

u
e

st
io

n
s 

d
iv

id
e

d
 in

to
 6

 t
o

p
ic

 a
re

a
s 

fo
r 

th
e

 
A

d
u

lt
 Q

u
e

st
io

n
n

a
ir
e

 a
n

d
 a

 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

1
1
 q

u
e

st
io

n
s 

fo
r 

th
e

 s
e

p
a

ra
te

 Y
o

u
th

 Q
u

e
st

io
n

n
a

ir
e

. 
B

o
th

 Q
u

e
st

io
n

n
a

ir
e

s 
w

e
re

 d
ra

w
n

 u
p

 w
it
h

 
th

e
 h

e
lp

 o
f 

th
e

 R
e

se
a

rc
h

 G
ro

u
p

 a
t 

H
e

re
fo

rd
sh

ir
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

(“
H

C
”)

 a
n

d
 h

a
n

d
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 t

o
 e

v
e

ry
 h

o
u

se
 in

 t
h

e
 P

a
ri
sh

 in
 

N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r/

D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0
0
5
. 
 W

e
 w

e
re

 d
e

te
rm

in
e

d
 t

o
 t

ry
 t

o
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

 t
h

e
 h

ig
h

e
st

 p
o

ss
ib

le
 l
e

v
e

l 
o

f 
re

sp
o

n
se

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e

 P
a

ri
sh

 s
o

 o
u

r 
b

ra
v
e

 v
o

lu
n

te
e

rs
 a

g
re

e
d

 n
o

t 
o

n
ly

 t
o

 d
e

liv
e

r 
to

 e
v
e

ry
 h

o
u

se
 b

u
t,

 a
ft

e
r 

g
iv

in
g

 t
w

o
 w

e
e

k
s 

o
r 

so
 f

o
r 

p
e

o
p

le
 t

o
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 t

h
e

 f
o

rm
s,

 
to

 c
o

lle
c

t 
a

s 
w

e
ll.

  
B

y
 v

ir
tu

e
 o

f 
th

is
, 
w

e
 r

e
c

e
iv

e
d

 c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 Q

u
e

st
io

n
n

a
ir
e

s 
fr

o
m

 a
lm

o
st

 8
0
%

 o
f 

a
d

u
lt
s 

a
n

d
 o

v
e

r 
9
0
%

 o
f 

y
o

u
n

g
 

p
e

o
p

le
 –

 a
 r

e
su

lt
 w

e
 f

e
lt
 p

re
tt

y
 p

le
a

se
d

 w
it
h

! 
 

33



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

1
0

B
y
 e

a
rl
y
 F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 2

0
0
6
, 
th

e
 Q

u
e

st
io

n
n

a
ir
e

 r
e

su
lt
s 

h
a

d
 b

e
e

n
 a

n
a

ly
se

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 R
e

se
a

rc
h

 G
ro

u
p

 a
t 

H
C

. 
 T

h
e

 S
C

 t
h

e
n

 d
iv

id
e

d
 in

to
 

W
o

rk
in

g
 G

ro
u

p
s 

(“
W

G
s”

).
  

E
a

c
h

 W
G

 t
o

o
k
 o

n
e

 o
f 

th
e

 t
o

p
ic

 a
re

a
s 

th
a

t 
th

e
 P

fT
 e

v
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 Q

u
e

st
io

n
n

a
ir
e

 r
e

tu
rn

s 
h

a
d

 h
ig

h
lig

h
te

d
 

a
n

d
 c

o
n

si
d

e
re

d
 l
it
e

ra
lly

 e
v
e

ry
 c

o
m

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 a

n
sw

e
r 

e
n

te
re

d
 b

y
 e

a
c

h
 p

e
rs

o
n

 o
n

 t
h

e
 Q

u
e

st
io

n
n

a
ir
e

. 
 T

h
e

 t
o

p
ic

 a
re

a
s 

w
e

re
 

E
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

t,
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 F

a
c

ili
ti
e

s,
 C

ri
m

e
 &

 S
a

fe
ty

, 
Tr

a
ff

ic
 &

 T
ra

n
sp

o
rt

, 
Y

o
u

n
g

 P
e

o
p

le
’s

 I
n

te
re

st
s,

 H
e

a
lt
h

 a
n

d
 P

la
n

n
in

g
. 
 T

h
e

 W
G

s 
h

a
d

 n
o

t 
o

n
ly

 t
o

 c
o

n
si

d
e

r 
a

ll 
th

e
 c

o
m

m
e

n
ts

/a
n

sw
e

rs
 in

 t
h

e
 Q

u
e

st
io

n
n

a
ir
e

s 
b

u
t 

to
 d

is
c

u
ss

 t
h

e
 is

su
e

s 
ra

is
e

d
 w

it
h

, 
a

n
d

 s
e

e
k
 

a
p

p
ro

p
ri
a

te
 g

u
id

a
n

c
e

 f
ro

m
, 
th

o
se

 e
xt

e
rn

a
l 
“
se

rv
ic

e
 p

ro
v
id

e
rs

” 
w

h
o

se
 c

o
-o

p
e

ra
ti
o

n
 w

o
u

ld
 b

e
 c

ru
c

ia
l 
to

 im
p

le
m

e
n

t 
A

c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n

s 
a

d
d

re
ss

in
g

 t
h

o
se

 is
su

e
s 

–
 e

.g
. 
th

e
 P

o
lic

e
 f

o
r 

c
ri
m

e
 &

 s
a

fe
ty

 is
su

e
s 

a
n

d
 H

e
re

fo
rd

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

Fo
rw

a
rd

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 U
n

it
 f

o
r 

p
la

n
n

in
g

 is
su

e
s.

 
 B

y
 t

h
e

 e
n

d
 o

f 
S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

a
ll 

th
e

 W
G

s 
h

a
d

 f
u

lly
 c

o
n

si
d

e
re

d
 t

h
e

 is
su

e
s 

ra
is

e
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 P
a

ri
sh

 a
n

d
 h

e
ld

 t
h

e
ir
 c

o
n

su
lt
a

ti
o

n
s 

w
it
h

 t
h

e
 

k
e

y
 o

u
ts

id
e

 b
o

d
ie

s.
  

Th
e

y
 w

e
re

 a
b

le
 t

h
e

re
fo

re
 t

o
 d

ra
ft

 in
d

iv
id

u
a

l 
A

c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n

s 
(“

A
P

s”
) 

se
e

k
in

g
 t

o
 a

d
d

re
ss

 t
h

e
 is

su
e

s 
in

 a
 r

e
a

lis
ti
c

 
a

n
d

 a
c

h
ie

v
a

b
le

 w
a

y
. 
 T

h
e

se
 A

P
s 

w
e

re
 r

e
v
ie

w
e

d
 a

n
d

 a
p

p
ro

v
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 P
a

ri
sh

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

in
 N

o
v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0
0
6
. 
 T

h
e

y
 a

re
 o

b
v
io

u
sl

y
 t

h
e

 
re

a
l 
h

e
a

rt
 a

n
d

 s
u

b
st

a
n

c
e

 o
f 

th
e

 P
a

ri
sh

 P
la

n
 a

n
d

 a
re

 s
e

t 
o

u
t 

in
 f

u
ll 

b
e

lo
w

. 
 T

h
e

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 A
P

 w
a

s 
se

p
a

ra
te

ly
 r

e
v
ie

w
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 
Fo

rw
a

rd
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 U

n
it
 o

f 
H

C
 w

h
o

 a
d

v
is

e
d

 t
h

a
t 

it
 is

 in
 p

ri
n

c
ip

le
 s

u
it
a

b
le

 f
o

r 
a

d
o

p
ti
o

n
 b

y
 H

C
 a

s 
a

 F
u

rt
h

e
r 

P
la

n
n

in
g

 G
u

id
a

n
c

e
 

d
o

c
u

m
e

n
t,

 w
h

ic
h

 w
ill

 g
iv

e
 it

 e
xt

ra
 w

e
ig

h
t.

 
 H

C
 r

e
v
ie

w
e

d
 t

h
e

 f
in

a
l 
d

ra
ft

 o
f 

th
e

 f
u

ll 
P

la
n

 in
 M

a
y
 2

0
0
7
 a

n
d

 r
a

is
e

d
 s

e
v
e

ra
l 
v
a

lu
a

b
le

 c
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 s
u

g
g

e
st

io
n

s.
 T

h
e

se
 w

e
re

 
in

c
o

rp
o

ra
te

d
 in

to
 t

h
e

 P
la

n
 in

 J
u

n
e

 2
0
0
7
, 
a

t 
w

h
ic

h
 s

ta
g

e
 t

h
e

 P
la

n
 t

o
o

k
 o

n
 it

s 
fi
n

a
l 
fo

rm
. 

 Th
e

 f
in

a
l 
st

e
p

 in
 t

h
is

 p
ro

c
e

ss
 o

f 
c

o
n

su
lt
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 f
o

rm
u

la
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 P

la
n

 w
a

s 
th

e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 t
o

 e
v
e

ry
 h

o
u

se
h

o
ld

 o
f 

a
 c

o
p

y
 o

f 
th

e
 

fi
n

is
h

e
d

 P
la

n
 f

o
llo

w
e

d
 s

h
o

rt
ly

 t
h

e
re

a
ft

e
r 

b
y
 a

 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

p
u

b
lic

 m
e

e
ti
n

g
 a

t 
th

e
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 H

a
ll 

fo
r 

th
e

 f
o

rm
a

l 
la

u
n

c
h

 o
f 

th
e

 P
la

n
 a

n
d

 
th

e
 r

e
q

u
e

st
 f

o
r 

v
o

lu
n

te
e

rs
 t

o
 h

e
lp

 im
p

le
m

e
n

t 
it
. 

 

34



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

1
1

3
. 

S
U

M
M

A
R

Y
 O

F 
P
R

O
P
O

S
E
D

 A
C

TI
O

N
S
 

 Th
e

 h
e

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 P
a

ri
sh

 P
la

n
 is

 t
h

e
 s

e
c

ti
o

n
 o

f 
A

c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n

s 
th

a
t 

fo
llo

w
s.

  
Th

e
 P

la
n

s 
a

re
 d

e
ta

ile
d

 s
in

c
e

 t
h

e
y
 a

d
d

re
ss

 q
u

it
e

 a
 l
a

rg
e

 
n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
is

su
e

s 
ra

is
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 e
xc

e
p

ti
o

n
a

lly
 h

ig
h

 r
e

sp
o

n
se

 r
a

te
 o

f 
th

e
 Q

u
e

st
io

n
n

a
ir
e

s 
a

n
d

 t
h

e
 P

fT
 e

v
e

n
t.

  
To

 a
v
o

id
 b

e
c

o
m

in
g

 
to

o
 c

o
n

fu
se

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 m
u

lt
ip

lic
it
y
 o

f 
is

su
e

s 
in

 t
h

e
se

 P
la

n
s,

 w
e

 t
h

o
u

g
h

t 
it
 u

se
fu

l 
to

 t
ry

 t
o

 s
u

m
m

a
ri
se

 t
h

e
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
is

su
e

s 
–
 w

h
a

t 
re

a
lly

 
m

a
tt

e
rs

 t
o

 t
h

e
 r

e
si

d
e

n
ts

 o
f 

th
is

 P
a

ri
sh

?
 

 In
 b

o
th

 t
h

e
 A

d
u

lt
 a

n
d

 Y
o

u
th

 Q
u

e
st

io
n

n
a

ir
e

s,
 w

e
 a

sk
e

d
 p

e
o

p
le

 t
o

 l
is

t 
th

re
e

 is
su

e
s 

m
o

st
 im

p
o

rt
a

n
t 

to
 t

h
e

m
. 
 T

h
e

 t
o

p
 t

h
re

e
 is

su
e

s 
in

 
th

e
 A

d
u

lt
 Q

u
e

st
io

n
n

a
ir
e

 w
e

re
 R

o
a

d
 S

a
fe

ty
/T

ra
ff

ic
/S

p
e

e
d

in
g

; 
E
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

ta
l 
Is

su
e

s 
a

n
d

 P
la

n
n

in
g

. 
O

th
e

r 
is

su
e

s 
in

 o
rd

e
r 

o
f 

im
p

o
rt

a
n

c
e

 w
e

re
 f

o
o

tp
a

th
s;

 a
 v

ill
a

g
e

 s
h

o
p

/p
o

st
 o

ff
ic

e
; 
h

e
a

lt
h

; 
lig

h
ti
n

g
; 
p

a
rk

in
g

 a
n

d
 d

o
g

 f
o

u
lin

g
. 
 I
n

 t
h

e
 Y

o
u

th
 Q

u
e

st
io

n
n

a
ir
e

 t
h

e
 

m
o

st
 im

p
o

rt
a

n
t 

is
su

e
 w

a
s 

la
c

k
 o

f 
a

 v
ill

a
g

e
 s

h
o

p
 f

o
llo

w
e

d
 b

y
 c

o
n

c
e

rn
 f

o
r 

e
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 t
ra

ff
ic

. 
B

o
re

d
o

m
 w

a
s 

a
ls

o
 a

n
 is

su
e

. 
P

a
st

 e
xp

e
ri
e

n
c

e
 a

n
d

 s
o

u
n

d
in

g
s 

b
y
 t

h
e

 Y
o

u
th

 W
G

 d
is

c
lo

se
d

 a
 s

e
n

se
 o

f 
a

lie
n

a
ti
o

n
 o

n
 t

h
e

 p
a

rt
 o

f 
so

m
e

 o
f 

o
u

r 
y
o

u
n

g
st

e
rs

. 
 Le

t’
s 

th
e

n
 ju

st
 s

u
m

m
a

ri
se

 w
h

a
t 

th
e

 A
c

ti
o

n
 P

la
n

s 
p

ro
p

o
se

 t
o

 d
o

 o
n

 a
ll 

th
e

se
 is

su
e

s:
- 

 Tr
a

ff
ic

 a
n

d
 T

ra
n

sp
o

rt
 –

 d
e

ta
ile

d
 r

e
c

o
m

m
e

n
d

a
ti
o

n
s 

to
 m

a
in

ta
in

 p
re

ss
u

re
 f

o
r 

lo
w

e
r 

sp
e

e
d

 l
im

it
s 

a
n

d
 s

a
fe

r 
ju

n
c

ti
o

n
s,

 t
o

 m
o

n
it
o

r 
tr

a
ff

ic
 s

p
e

e
d

s,
 t

o
 in

st
a

ll 
sp

e
e

d
 w

a
rn

in
g

 l
ig

h
ts

, 
to

 r
e

q
u

e
st

 a
 R

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
A

c
c

id
e

n
t 

R
e

c
o

rd
 a

n
d

 P
e

d
e

st
ri
a

n
 S

u
rv

e
y
, 
to

 im
p

le
m

e
n

t 
a

 
p

u
b

lic
it
y
/e

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
 c

a
m

p
a

ig
n

 a
n

d
 t

o
 e

n
su

re
 t

h
a

t 
, 
w

h
e

re
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
, 
“
lo

w
-n

o
is

e
” 

ta
rm

a
c

 is
 u

se
d

 in
 f

u
tu

re
. 
 L

ig
h

ti
n

g
 s

a
fe

ty
 

is
su

e
s 

to
 b

e
 c

o
n

si
d

e
re

d
. 
 P

a
rk

in
g

 c
h

a
n

g
e

s 
n

o
t 

g
e

n
e

ra
lly

 f
a

v
o

u
re

d
. 

 E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t 

–
 im

p
ro

v
e

 a
c

c
e

ss
 t

o
 a

n
d

 m
a

in
te

n
a

n
c

e
 o

f 
fo

o
tp

a
th

s,
 c

re
a

te
 c

ir
c

u
la

r 
w

a
lk

s,
 d

e
a

l 
w

it
h

 d
o

g
 f

o
u

lin
g

 a
n

d
 l
it
te

r,
 im

p
ro

v
e

 
re

c
y
c

lin
g

, 
m

o
n

it
o

r 
p

o
ly

tu
n

n
e

ls
, 
m

a
in

ta
in

/e
n

h
a

n
c

e
 a

p
p

e
a

ra
n

c
e

 o
f 

P
a

ri
sh

. 
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 –

 d
is

c
o

u
ra

g
e

 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t,

 e
sp

e
c

ia
lly

 e
xe

c
u

ti
v
e

 h
o

m
e

s 
a

n
d

 in
fi
lls

 o
u

t 
o

f 
c

h
a

ra
c

te
r 

w
it
h

 s
u

rr
o

u
n

d
s.

  
A

n
y
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

to
 b

e
 w

it
h

in
 S

e
tt

le
m

e
n

t 
B

o
u

n
d

a
ry

, 
n

o
t 

e
st

a
te

s,
 a

n
d

 in
 h

a
rm

o
n

y
 w

it
h

 r
u

ra
l 
n

a
tu

re
 o

f 
th

e
 P

a
ri
sh

. 
 M

in
o

ri
ty

 v
ie

w
s 

in
 

fa
v
o

u
r 

o
f 

lo
w

 c
o

st
 h

o
u

si
n

g
 t

o
 b

e
 t

a
k
e

n
 in

to
 a

c
c

o
u

n
t.

 
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y

 F
a

c
ili

ti
e

s 
–
 w

id
e

r 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 u

se
 o

f 
C

h
u

rc
h

, 
e

st
a

b
lis

h
 W

o
rk

in
g

 G
ro

u
p

 f
o

r 
V

ill
a

g
e

 S
h

o
p

/P
O

 a
n

d
 a

lt
e

rn
a

ti
v
e

s,
 e

xp
lo

re
 

a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
o

u
td

o
o

r 
a

n
d

 in
d

o
o

r 
fa

c
ili

ti
e

s 
a

t 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 H

a
ll,

 t
ry

 t
o

 g
e

t 
m

o
re

 p
o

st
 b

o
xe

s,
 im

p
ro

v
e

 v
ill

a
g

e
 w

e
b

si
te

 a
n

d
 T

V
 

re
c

e
p

ti
o

n
. 

 H
e

a
lt
h

 –
 m

o
re

 v
o

lu
n

te
e

rs
 f

o
r 

tr
a

n
sp

o
rt

 t
o

 S
u

rg
e

ri
e

s,
 p

re
sc

ri
p

ti
o

n
 c

o
lle

c
ti
o

n
 s

c
h

e
m

e
, 
sp

re
a

d
 a

w
a

re
n

e
ss

 a
s 

to
 h

o
w

 t
o

 c
o

n
ta

c
t 

se
rv

ic
e

s 

35



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

1
2

 Y
o

u
th

 –
 s

h
o

p
 is

su
e

s,
 e

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 t
ra

ff
ic

 a
re

 d
e

a
lt
 w

it
h

 in
 o

th
e

r 
P

la
n

s 
so

 t
h

e
 f

o
c

u
s 

w
a

s 
y
o

u
th

 b
o

re
d

o
m

 a
n

d
 a

lie
n

a
ti
o

n
 f

ro
m

 
th

e
 r

e
st

 o
f 

th
e

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
. 
 A

 v
e

ry
 s

u
c

c
e

ss
fu

l 
“
p

ilo
t”

 s
c

h
e

m
e

 o
f 

su
m

m
e

r 
a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s 
h

a
s 

p
o

in
te

d
 t

h
e

 w
a

y
 t

o
 m

o
re

 l
o

n
g

-t
e

rm
 

a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

. 
A

 p
e

rm
a

n
e

n
t 

k
ic

k
a

b
o

u
t/

p
la

y
in

g
 a

re
a

 is
 a

 p
ri
o

ri
ty

 f
o

r 
in

v
e

st
ig

a
ti
o

n
. 

 C
ri

m
e

 &
 S

a
fe

ty
 –

 it
 is

 g
o

o
d

 t
h

a
t 

th
is

 w
a

s 
n

o
t 

h
ig

h
lig

h
te

d
 a

s 
a

 p
ri
o

ri
ty

 c
o

n
c

e
rn

. 
 H

o
w

e
v
e

r,
 t

h
e

 A
c

ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 e
n

v
is

a
g

e
s 

fr
e

q
u

e
n

t 
p

u
b

lic
is

e
d

 v
is

it
s 

b
y
 t

h
e

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 O

ff
ic

e
rs

, 
P

o
lic

e
 S

u
rg

e
ri
e

s,
 b

e
tt

e
r 

a
w

a
re

n
e

ss
 o

f 
P

o
lic

e
 c

o
n

ta
c

ts
 a

n
d

 a
n

 o
v
e

rh
a

u
l 
o

f 
th

e
 N

e
ig

h
b

o
u

rh
o

o
d

 W
a

tc
h

 S
c

h
e

m
e

. 
 Th

is
 t

h
e

n
 is

 a
 s

u
m

m
a

ry
 o

f 
w

h
a

t 
th

e
 P

a
ri
sh

 P
la

n
 h

o
p

e
s,

 a
n

d
 e

xp
e

c
ts

, 
to

 a
c

h
ie

v
e

. 
 I
n

 a
ll,

 6
1
 a

c
ti
o

n
s 

a
re

 p
ro

p
o

se
d

 o
f 

w
h

ic
h

 5
7
 a

re
 

to
ta

lly
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 c
o

n
tr

o
l 
o

f 
th

e
 P

a
ri
sh

, 
th

e
 b

a
la

n
c

e
 n

e
e

d
in

g
 s

o
m

e
 f

o
rm

 o
f 

e
xt

e
rn

a
l 
h

e
lp

/a
u

th
o

ri
ty

. 
If

 h
a

lf
 is

 d
o

n
e

, 
th

e
 P

la
n

 w
ill

 
h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 w
o

rt
h

w
h

ile
 b

u
t 

th
e

re
 is

 n
o

 r
e

a
so

n
 a

t 
a

ll 
w

h
y
 a

ll,
 o

r 
p

ra
c

ti
c

a
lly

 a
ll,

 c
a

n
n

o
t 

b
e

 a
c

h
ie

v
e

d
. 
 T

h
e

 o
n

ly
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 t
h

a
t 

ra
is

e
 

m
a

jo
r 

is
su

e
s 

o
f 

e
xt

e
rn

a
l 
a

p
p

ro
v
a

l/
fu

n
d

in
g

 a
re

 t
h

e
 s

h
o

p
, 
p

o
te

n
ti
a

l 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 H

a
ll 

p
la

y
in

g
 f

ie
ld

, 
a

n
d

 p
o

ss
ib

le
 s

p
e

e
d

 w
a

rn
in

g
 

lig
h

ts
. 
Th

e
 o

th
e

r 
p

ro
p

o
se

d
 in

it
ia

ti
v
e

s 
a

re
 r

e
la

ti
v
e

ly
 l
o

w
 o

r 
n

o
 c

o
st

 o
n

e
s.

 T
h

e
 t

ra
ff

ic
 in

it
ia

ti
v
e

s 
w

ill
 h

o
w

e
v
e

r 
re

q
u

ir
e

 H
ig

h
w

a
y
s 

A
u

th
o

ri
ty

 im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti
o

n
. 
 

 To
 a

p
p

re
c

ia
te

 f
u

lly
 t

h
e

 jo
b

 in
 h

a
n

d
, 
n

o
w

 r
e

a
d

 t
h

e
 f

u
ll 

d
e

ta
ils

 o
f 

th
e

 P
la

n
s.

 

36



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

1
3

4
. 

A
C

TI
O

N
 P

LA
N

S
 

 4
.1

  
Tr

a
ff
ic

 a
n

d
 T

ra
n

sp
o

rt
 A

c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 
 In

tr
o

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 

 C
o

n
si

d
e

ra
ti
o

n
 o

f 
tr

a
n

sp
o

rt
a

ti
o

n
 is

su
e

s 
in

 t
h

e
 P

a
ri
sh

 is
 d

o
m

in
a

te
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 m
a

in
 r

o
a

d
 (

A
4
3
8
) 

ru
n

n
in

g
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 t

h
e

 P
a

ri
sh

 b
e

tw
e

e
n

 
H

e
re

fo
rd

 a
n

d
 L

e
d

b
u

ry
. 
It

 d
iv

id
e

s 
th

e
 P

a
ri
sh

 in
 p

h
y
si

c
a

l 
te

rm
s 

a
n

d
 a

ls
o

 a
tt

ra
c

ts
 d

iv
id

e
d

 o
p

in
io

n
s 

re
g

a
rd

in
g

 s
p

e
e

d
 l
im

it
s 

a
n

d
 t

h
e

 
h

a
za

rd
s 

it
 p

re
se

n
ts

 (
se

e
 p

h
o

to
 6

).
 

M
a

n
y
 p

e
o

p
le

 r
e

ly
 a

lm
o

st
 e

n
ti
re

ly
 o

n
 t

h
e

ir
 c

a
rs

 f
o

r 
w

o
rk

, 
sh

o
p

p
in

g
 a

n
d

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s 

su
c

h
 a

s 
h

e
a

lt
h

c
a

re
. 
Fo

r 
th

o
se

 w
h

o
 d

o
 n

o
t 

h
a

v
e

 
a

c
c

e
ss

 t
o

 a
 c

a
r 

(p
a

rt
ic

u
la

rl
y
 t

h
e

 y
o

u
n

g
 a

n
d

 e
ld

e
rl
y
),

 p
u

b
lic

 t
ra

n
sp

o
rt

, 
in

 t
h

e
 f

o
rm

 o
f 

b
u

se
s,

 p
ro

v
id

e
s 

a
 l
im

it
e

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 d
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 
d

a
y
ti
m

e
 t

o
 H

e
re

fo
rd

 a
n

d
 L

e
d

b
u

ry
, 
b

u
t 

th
is

 is
 in

a
d

e
q

u
a

te
 f

o
r 

a
c

c
e

ss
 t

o
 o

th
e

r 
lo

c
a

ti
o

n
s 

(s
u

c
h

 a
s 

th
e

 F
o

w
n

h
o

p
e

 S
u

rg
e

ry
).

 
S
u

p
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ry

 f
a

c
ili

ti
e

s 
su

c
h

 a
s 

th
e

 L
e

d
b

u
ry

 R
in

g
 a

n
d

 R
id

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 a
n

d
 d

e
d

ic
a

te
d

 s
c

h
o

o
l 
b

u
s 

se
rv

ic
e

s 
c

o
m

p
e

n
sa

te
 t

o
 s

o
m

e
 

d
e

g
re

e
, 
b

u
t 

le
a

v
e

 l
it
tl
e

 s
c

o
p

e
 f

o
r 

fl
e

xi
b

ili
ty

 f
o

r 
th

e
 in

d
iv

id
u

a
l. 

U
n

fo
rt

u
n

a
te

ly
, 
th

e
 o

th
e

r 
m

a
jo

r 
fo

rm
 o

f 
P

u
b

lic
 T

ra
n

sp
o

rt
 –

 R
a

il 
–
 s

im
p

ly
 p

a
ss

e
s 

th
ro

u
g

h
 t

h
e

 P
a

ri
sh

 w
it
h

 n
o

 a
c

c
e

ss
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 t

o
 

re
si

d
e

n
ts

. 
Th

e
 p

o
te

n
ti
a

l 
c

o
st

s 
o

f 
p

ro
v
id

in
g

 a
 “

H
a

lt
” 

in
 T

a
rr

in
g

to
n

 a
re

 s
o

 h
ig

h
 t

h
a

t 
it
 s

e
e

m
s 

e
xt

re
m

e
ly

 u
n

lik
e

ly
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 e

xt
ra

 
re

v
e

n
u

e
 g

e
n

e
ra

te
d

 w
o

u
ld

 ju
st

if
y
 it

s 
e

xp
e

n
d

it
u

re
. 
C

o
n

se
q

u
e

n
tl
y
 n

o
 r

a
il-

re
la

te
d

 a
c

ti
o

n
s 

a
re

 p
ro

p
o

se
d

 f
o

r 
th

e
 A

P
. 

Li
k
e

w
is

e
, 
n

o
 a

c
ti
o

n
s 

a
re

 p
ro

p
o

se
d

 f
o

r 
c

y
c

le
 l
a

n
e

s 
o

n
 t

h
e

 m
a

in
 r

o
a

d
 a

s 
th

e
re

 is
 c

le
a

rl
y
 in

su
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

sp
a

c
e

 f
o

r 
th

e
m

 a
n

d
 m

ix
e

d
 

su
p

p
o

rt
 f

ro
m

 Q
u

e
st

io
n

n
a

ir
e

 r
e

sp
o

n
d

e
n

ts
. 

 Th
e

 I
ss

u
e

s 
 S
p

e
e

d
in

g
 

Th
is

 w
a

s 
d

e
sc

ri
b

e
d

 a
s 

a
 p

ro
b

le
m

 b
y
 a

lm
o

st
 t

h
re

e
 q

u
a

rt
e

rs
 o

f 
th

e
 s

u
rv

e
y
 r

e
sp

o
n

d
e

n
ts

, 
w

it
h

 v
a

ri
o

u
s 

lo
c

a
ti
o

n
s 

a
lo

n
g

 t
h

e
 A

4
3
8
 

b
e

in
g

 id
e

n
ti
fi
e

d
 b

y
 m

a
n

y
 a

s 
n

e
e

d
in

g
 a

 l
o

w
e

r 
sp

e
e

d
 l
im

it
. 
 (

S
p

e
c

if
ic

a
lly

 T
a

rr
in

g
to

n
 V

ill
a

g
e

, 
G

a
rb

ro
o

k
, 
H

ill
fi
e

ld
 t

o
 t

h
e

 D
u

rl
o

w
 

ju
n

c
ti
o

n
).

 
O

p
in

io
n

s 
re

g
a

rd
in

g
 t

h
e

 s
o

lu
ti
o

n
s 

w
e

re
 l
e

ss
 c

le
a

r-
c

u
t,

 w
it
h

 a
b

o
u

t 
h

a
lf
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 im

p
ro

v
e

d
 e

n
fo

rc
e

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

e
xi

st
in

g
 l
im

it
s 

a
n

d
 a

 
si

m
ila

r 
n

u
m

b
e

r 
su

p
p

o
rt

in
g

 im
p

ro
v
e

d
 w

a
rn

in
g

 s
ig

n
s.

 T
h

e
 m

o
re

 a
g

g
re

ss
iv

e
 a

p
p

ro
a

c
h

 o
f 

u
si

n
g

 t
ra

ff
ic

 c
a

lm
in

g
 a

n
d

/o
r 

tr
a

ff
ic

 
c

a
m

e
ra

s 
a

tt
ra

c
te

d
 r

o
u

g
h

ly
 e

q
u

a
l 
su

p
p

o
rt

 a
n

d
 o

p
p

o
si

ti
o

n
. 

D
is

c
u

ss
io

n
s 

w
it
h

 a
 H

e
re

fo
rd

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

("
H

C
")

 r
e

p
re

se
n

ta
ti
v
e

 s
u

g
g

e
st

 t
h

a
t,

 c
u

rr
e

n
tl
y
, 
in

tr
o

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
n

e
w

 l
im

it
s 

(i
n

 a
d

d
it
io

n
 t

o
 t

h
e

 3
0
 

M
P

H
 l
im

it
 in

 t
h

e
 v

ill
a

g
e

 c
e

n
tr

e
, 
w

h
ic

h
 is

 a
lr
e

a
d

y
 im

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
) 

is
 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o

 t
a

k
e

 a
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
ti
m

e
 a

n
d

 b
e

 s
u

b
je

c
t 

to
 s

tr
ic

t 
c

ri
te

ri
a

 
re

g
a

rd
in

g
 t

h
e

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

a
c

c
e

ss
 p

o
in

ts
 p

e
r 

k
m

 (
g

a
te

w
a

y
s 

o
r 

si
d

e
 r

o
a

d
s)

. 
H

o
w

e
v
e

r,
 t

h
e

 W
G

 b
e

lie
v
e

s 
th

a
t 

2
 s

tr
e

tc
h

e
s 

o
f 

ro
a

d
 

w
o

u
ld

 s
a

ti
sf

y
 t

h
e

se
 c

ri
te

ri
a

 a
n

d
 a

c
ti
o

n
s 

to
 im

p
le

m
e

n
t 

lim
it
s 

a
re

 r
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
e

d
 in

 t
h

e
 A

P
. 
  

37



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

1
4

A
 r

e
c

e
n

t 
re

v
ie

w
 o

f 
sp

e
e

d
 l
im

it
s 

b
y
 t

h
e

 D
e

p
a

rt
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
Tr

a
n

sp
o

rt
 (

p
u

b
lis

h
e

d
 e

a
rl
y
 in

 A
u

g
u

st
 2

0
0
6
) 

m
a

y
 f

o
rc

e
 H

e
re

fo
rd

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

to
 

re
v
ie

w
 it

s 
g

u
id

e
lin

e
s 

a
n

d
 m

a
k
e

 it
 p

o
ss

ib
le

 t
o

 im
p

o
se

 l
o

w
e

r 
lim

it
s.

 H
o

w
e

v
e

r 
th

e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 p

la
c

e
s 

st
ro

n
g

 e
m

p
h

a
si

s 
o

n
 in

fl
u

e
n

c
in

g
 

d
ri
v
e

r 
b

e
h

a
v
io

u
r 

ra
th

e
r 

th
a

n
 s

im
p

ly
 im

p
o

si
n

g
 r

e
d

u
c

e
d

 s
p

e
e

d
 l
im

it
s,

 w
h

ic
h

 w
o

u
ld

 s
u

g
g

e
st

 t
h

a
t 

im
p

ro
v
e

d
 h

a
za

rd
 w

a
rn

in
g

 s
ig

n
s 

a
n

d
 a

c
ti
v
e

 s
p

e
e

d
 l
im

it
 in

d
ic

a
to

rs
 w

o
u

ld
 b

e
 f

a
v
o

u
re

d
 b

e
fo

re
 t

ra
ff

ic
 c

a
m

e
ra

s 
o

r 
lo

w
e

r 
lim

it
s.

 
In

tr
o

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

n
y
 s

p
e

e
d

 w
a

rn
in

g
 d

e
v
ic

e
s 

w
o

u
ld

 h
a

v
e

 t
o

 f
o

llo
w

 a
 p

h
a

se
d

 p
ro

c
e

ss
:-

 
a

) 
M

o
n

it
o

r 
sp

e
e

d
s 

a
n

d
 d

e
m

o
n

st
ra

te
 a

 p
ro

b
le

m
, 

b
) 

U
ti
lis

e
 t

e
m

p
o

ra
ry

 w
a

rn
in

g
 l
ig

h
ts

 a
n

d
 c

h
e

c
k
 w

h
e

th
e

r 
th

e
y
 w

e
re

 e
ff

e
c

ti
v
e

, 
c

) 
In

st
a

ll 
p

e
rm

a
n

e
n

t 
w

a
rn

in
g

 l
ig

h
ts

 
Lo

c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 w

a
rn

in
g

 l
ig

h
ts

 m
a

y
 b

e
 p

ro
b

le
m

a
ti
c

 in
 s

o
m

e
 p

la
c

e
s,

 d
u

e
 t

o
 t

h
e

 n
a

rr
o

w
 v

e
rg

e
s 

in
 a

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

a
re

a
s.

 T
h

e
re

 is
 a

ls
o

 
a

 c
o

st
 e

le
m

e
n

t 
to

 b
e

 c
o

n
si

d
e

re
d

. 
 P

u
b

lic
 T

ra
n

sp
o

rt
 

A
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
m

in
o

ri
ty

 o
f 

re
sp

o
n

d
e

n
ts

 (
3
8
%

) 
st

a
te

d
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
y
 h

a
d

 n
o

 e
xp

e
ri
e

n
c

e
 o

f 
u

si
n

g
 p

u
b

lic
 t

ra
n

sp
o

rt
, 
th

o
u

g
h

 m
a

n
y
 a

ls
o

 
a

n
ti
c

ip
a

te
d

 in
c

re
a

se
d

 d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

c
y
 in

 t
h

e
 f

u
tu

re
. 
A

 s
im

ila
r 

p
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 f
e

lt
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
se

rv
ic

e
 w

a
s 

a
d

e
q

u
a

te
. 
A

n
 im

p
ro

v
e

d
 

b
u

s 
se

rv
ic

e
 a

n
d

 b
u

s 
st

o
p

 f
a

c
ili

ti
e

s,
 p

a
rt

ic
u

la
rl
y
 n

e
a

r 
th

e
 T

a
rr

in
g

to
n

 A
rm

s,
 w

a
s 

re
q

u
e

st
e

d
 b

y
 a

 t
h

ir
d

 o
f 

re
sp

o
n

d
e

n
ts

. 
C

a
r-

sh
a

ri
n

g
 w

a
s 

n
o

t 
h

e
a

v
ily

 f
a

v
o

u
re

d
 (

1
9
%

),
 b

u
t 

it
 is

 s
u

g
g

e
st

e
d

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

 P
a

ri
sh

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

sh
o

u
ld

 c
o

n
si

d
e

r 
th

e
 p

re
p

a
ra

ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

 
c

o
n

ti
n

g
e

n
c

y
 p

la
n

 t
o

 o
rg

a
n

is
e

 a
 c

o
-o

rd
in

a
te

d
 s

c
h

e
m

e
 in

 t
h

e
 e

v
e

n
t 

o
f 

fu
e

l 
sh

o
rt

a
g

e
s 

o
r 

si
g

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
fu

e
l 
p

ri
c

e
 r

is
e

s.
  

 
 P

e
d

e
st

ri
a

n
 F

a
c

ili
ti
e

s 
  

Th
is

 f
a

lls
 in

to
 t

h
e

 T
ra

ff
ic

 a
n

d
 T

ra
n

sp
o

rt
a

ti
o

n
 s

e
c

ti
o

n
, 
in

 s
o

 f
a

r 
a

s 
p

e
d

e
st

ri
a

n
 s

a
fe

ty
 is

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

tl
y
 a

ff
e

c
te

d
 b

y
 t

ra
ff

ic
 a

n
d

 r
o

a
d

 
la

y
o

u
ts

. 
P

ro
v
is

io
n

 o
f 

a
 p

e
d

e
st

ri
a

n
 c

ro
ss

in
g

 in
 t

h
e

 v
ill

a
g

e
 c

e
n

tr
e

 w
a

s 
th

e
 o

n
e

 o
f 

th
e

 m
o

st
 c

o
m

m
o

n
 c

o
m

m
e

n
ts

 in
 t

h
e

 f
re

e
-f

o
rm

 s
e

c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 Q

u
e

st
io

n
n

a
ir
e

 r
e

sp
o

n
se

s.
 D

if
fi
c

u
lt
y
 in

 c
ro

ss
in

g
 t

h
e

 m
a

in
 r

o
a

d
 w

a
s 

a
ls

o
 f

re
q

u
e

n
tl
y
 c

it
e

d
 a

s 
a

n
 is

su
e

 b
y
 r

e
sp

o
n

d
e

n
ts

 t
o

 t
h

e
 

Y
o

u
th

 Q
u

e
st

io
n

n
a

ir
e

. 
C

lo
se

ly
 r

e
la

te
d

 t
o

 t
h

e
 is

su
e

 o
f 

sp
e

e
d

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 v

ill
a

g
e

, 
it
 is

 a
 c

o
n

c
e

rn
 f

o
r 

m
a

n
y
. 
A

n
 in

te
g

ra
te

d
 

a
p

p
ro

a
c

h
, 
w

h
ic

h
 s

lo
w

s 
tr

a
ff

ic
 in

to
 t

h
e

 v
ill

a
g

e
, 
m

o
v
e

s 
/ 

im
p

ro
v
e

s 
th

e
 b

u
s 

st
o

p
 f

a
c

ili
ti
e

s 
a

n
d

 p
ro

v
id

e
s 

a
 p

e
d

e
st

ri
a

n
 c

ro
ss

in
g

, 
p

re
fe

ra
b

ly
 l
ig

h
t-

c
o

n
tr

o
lle

d
, 
w

o
u

ld
 b

e
 v

e
ry

 p
o

p
u

la
r.

 A
n

 a
c

c
id

e
n

t,
 in

 A
u

g
u

st
 2

0
0
6
, 
h

ig
h

lig
h

te
d

 t
h

e
 is

su
e

, 
w

h
e

n
 a

 y
o

u
n

g
 m

a
n

 w
a

s 
k
n

o
c

k
e

d
 o

v
e

r,
 ju

st
 a

ft
e

r 
h

e
 g

o
t 

o
ff

 t
h

e
 b

u
s 

fr
o

m
 H

e
re

fo
rd

. 
O

th
e

r 
is

su
e

s 
a

ff
e

c
ti
n

g
 p

e
d

e
st

ri
a

n
s,

 w
h

ic
h

 h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 r
a

is
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 Q
u

e
st

io
n

n
a

ir
e

, 
in

c
lu

d
e

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 o
f 

a
 f

o
o

tp
a

th
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 t

h
e

 
v
ill

a
g

e
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 H

a
ll 

a
n

d
 o

f 
lig

h
ti
n

g
 a

t 
k
e

y
 ju

n
c

ti
o

n
s 

(e
n

tr
a

n
c

e
 t

o
 B

a
rr

s 
O

rc
h

a
rd

, 
A

4
3
8
 ju

n
c

ti
o

n
 b

y
 t

h
e

 T
a

rr
in

g
to

n
 A

rm
s 

&
 S

c
h

o
o

l 
R

o
a

d
).

 H
o

w
e

v
e

r 
it
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e

 n
o

te
d

 t
h

a
t 

a
lm

o
st

 h
a

lf
 a

ll 
re

sp
o

n
d

e
n

ts
 o

p
p

o
se

d
 m

o
re

 l
ig

h
ti
n

g
 a

n
d

 b
e

a
ri
n

g
 t

h
is

 in
 m

in
d

, 
it
 

is
 r

e
c

o
m

m
e

n
d

e
d

 t
o

 e
xp

lo
re

 l
ig

h
ti
n

g
 s

c
h

e
m

e
s 

w
h

ic
h

 m
in

im
is

e
 l
ig

h
t 

p
o

llu
ti
o

n
. 
In

st
a

lla
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 r
u

n
n

in
g

 c
o

st
s 

w
o

u
ld

 p
ro

b
a

b
ly

 f
a

ll 
o

n
 

th
e

 P
a

ri
sh

 C
o

u
n

c
il.

 A
n

y
 p

ro
p

o
sa

l 
w

o
u

ld
 b

e
 s

c
ru

ti
n

is
e

d
 c

lo
se

ly
 b

y
 H

C
 t

o
 e

n
su

re
 t

h
e

 r
e

su
lt
 w

a
s 

sa
fe

 f
o

r 
a

ll 
ro

a
d

 u
se

rs
. 

 

38



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

1
5

S
p

e
c

if
ic

 R
o

a
d

 S
a

fe
ty

 C
o

n
c

e
rn

s 

In
 t

h
e

 s
e

c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
ro

a
d

 b
e

tw
e

e
n

 t
h

e
 D

u
rl
o

w
 ju

n
c

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 G
a

rb
ro

o
k
, 
th

e
re

 h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 a
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
m

a
jo

r 
a

c
c

id
e

n
ts

, 
so

 f
a

r 
w

it
h

o
u

t 
fa

ta
lit

ie
s.

 T
h

is
 is

 t
h

e
 n

a
rr

o
w

e
st

 a
n

d
 m

o
st

 w
in

d
in

g
 s

e
c

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 A

4
3
8
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 L

e
d

b
u

ry
 a

n
d

 H
e

re
fo

rd
. 
M

a
n

y
 P

a
ri
sh

io
n

e
rs

 
w

ill
 b

e
 a

w
a

re
 o

f 
th

e
se

, 
h

a
v
in

g
 b

e
e

n
 in

v
o

lv
e

d
 in

 t
h

e
 a

ft
e

rm
a

th
 o

f 
th

e
se

 in
c

id
e

n
ts

, 
a

n
d

 t
h

e
 l
o

c
a

l 
re

si
d

e
n

ts
 r

e
g

u
la

rl
y
 h

a
v
e

 t
o

 “
p

ic
k
 

u
p

 t
h

e
 p

ie
c

e
s”

 a
ft

e
r 

th
e

 e
v
e

n
ts

. 
Th

e
y
 a

re
 n

a
tu

ra
lly

 v
e

ry
 c

o
n

c
e

rn
e

d
 t

o
 s

e
e

 a
c

ti
o

n
 t

a
k
e

n
 u

rg
e

n
tl
y
 t

o
 p

re
v
e

n
t 

th
e

 a
c

c
id

e
n

ts
 

c
o

n
ti
n

u
in

g
. 
Th

e
y
 a

re
 s

tr
o

n
g

ly
 in

 f
a

v
o

u
r 

o
f 

a
 4

0
 M

P
H

 l
im

it
 b

e
in

g
 im

p
o

se
d

 a
n

d
 a

ll 
o

th
e

r 
p

o
ss

ib
le

 m
e

a
su

re
s 

ta
k
e

n
 t

o
 im

p
ro

v
e

 t
h

e
 

ro
a

d
 in

 t
h

is
 a

re
a

. 
Li

k
e

w
is

e
, 
c

o
n

c
e

rn
 w

a
s 

e
xp

re
ss

e
d

 a
b

o
u

t 
th

e
 d

a
n

g
e

ro
u

s 
ri
g

h
t 

a
n

g
le

 b
e

n
d

 in
 L

it
tl
e

 T
a

rr
in

g
to

n
 a

n
d

 a
c

ti
o

n
 o

n
 b

o
th

 
o

f 
th

e
se

 is
su

e
s 

is
 r

e
c

o
m

m
e

n
d

e
d

 in
 t

h
e

 A
P

. 
M

o
st

 ju
n

c
ti
o

n
s 

o
f 

si
d

e
 r

o
a

d
s 

w
it
h

 t
h

e
 A

4
3
8
 w

e
re

 id
e

n
ti
fi
e

d
 a

s 
d

a
n

g
e

r 
sp

o
ts

 a
n

d
 a

c
ti
o

n
 

is
 r

e
c

o
m

m
e

n
d

e
d

 in
 t

h
e

 A
P

. 
H

C
 a

re
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 r

e
-s

u
rf

a
c

in
g

 w
o

rk
 in

 t
h

is
 s

e
c

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 A

4
3
8
, 
d

u
ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 s
u

m
m

e
r 

o
f 

2
0
0
7
, 
a

im
e

d
 p

a
rt

ic
u

la
rl
y
 a

t 
im

p
ro

v
in

g
 

a
d

h
e

si
o

n
 in

 w
e

t 
c

o
n

d
it
io

n
s.

 
 G

e
n

e
ra

l 
R

o
a

d
 S

a
fe

ty
 C

o
n

c
e

rn
s 

C
h

a
n

g
e

s 
to

 p
a

rk
in

g
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

, 
o

r 
in

tr
o

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
p

a
rk

in
g

 r
e

st
ri
c

ti
o

n
s,

 w
e

re
 g

e
n

e
ra

lly
 n

o
t 

fa
v
o

u
re

d
, 
th

o
u

g
h

 d
if
fi
c

u
lt
ie

s 
w

e
re

 
id

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 in

 a
 c

o
u

p
le

 o
f 

sp
e

c
if
ic

 a
re

a
s 

–
 B

a
rr

s 
O

rc
h

a
rd

 a
n

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 T
a

rr
in

g
to

n
 A

rm
s 

ju
n

c
ti
o

n
. 
D

is
c

u
ss

io
n

s 
w

it
h

 a
n

 H
C

 
re

p
re

se
n

ta
ti
v
e

 s
u

g
g

e
st

e
d

 t
h

a
t,

 w
it
h

o
u

t 
a

 s
tr

o
n

g
 e

n
fo

rc
e

m
e

n
t 

re
g

im
e

, 
a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
re

st
ri
c

ti
o

n
s 

w
o

u
ld

 b
e

 in
e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

. 
In

 B
a

rr
s 

O
rc

h
a

rd
, 
th

e
 r

e
si

d
e

n
ts

 s
h

o
u

ld
 d

is
c

u
ss

 t
h

e
ir
 n

e
e

d
s 

w
it
h

 E
lg

a
r 

H
o

u
si

n
g

 a
s 

H
C

 w
o

u
ld

 n
o

t 
in

te
rv

e
n

e
. 

 In
tr

o
d

u
c

ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

 v
e

h
ic

le
 w

e
ig

h
t 

lim
it
 in

 t
h

e
 v

ill
a

g
e

 w
a

s 
fa

v
o

u
re

d
 b

y
 2

5
%

 b
u

t 
o

p
p

o
se

d
 b

y
 3

7
%

. 
Th

e
 u

n
d

e
rl
y
in

g
 c

o
n

c
e

rn
, 

re
g

a
rd

in
g

 f
a

st
, 
h

e
a

v
y
 v

e
h

ic
le

s,
 w

o
u

ld
 p

ro
b

a
b

ly
 b

e
 a

lle
v
ia

te
d

 b
y
 in

tr
o

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 /

 e
n

fo
rc

e
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
lo

w
e

r 
sp

e
e

d
 l
im

it
s.

 N
o

 o
th

e
r 

a
c

ti
o

n
 is

 r
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
e

d
. 

Th
e

re
 w

e
re

 a
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
c

o
m

m
e

n
ts

 r
e

g
a

rd
in

g
 l
a

c
k
 o

f 
tr

a
ff

ic
-a

w
a

re
n

e
ss

 b
y
 y

o
u

n
g

 p
e

d
e

st
ri
a

n
s/

c
y
c

lis
ts

, 
p

a
rt

ic
u

la
rl
y
 a

t 
th

e
 

e
n

tr
a

n
c

e
 t

o
 B

a
rr

s 
O

rc
h

a
rd

 a
n

d
 a

lo
n

g
 S

c
h

o
o

l 
R

o
a

d
. 
 T

h
e

 W
G

 d
o

e
s 

n
o

t 
b

e
lie

v
e

 t
h

e
re

 a
re

 p
h

y
si

c
a

l 
m

e
a

su
re

s 
th

a
t 

c
a

n
 b

e
 

re
a

so
n

a
b

ly
 in

tr
o

d
u

c
e

d
 t

o
 r

e
st

ri
c

t 
e

it
h

e
r 

v
e

h
ic

le
s 

o
r 

th
e

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

. 
 I
t 

n
e

e
d

s 
to

 b
e

 d
e

a
lt
 w

it
h

 b
y
 e

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
/p

u
b

lic
it
y
 t

o
 

in
fl
u

e
n

c
e

 r
e

si
d

e
n

ts
 o

f 
a

ll 
a

g
e

s 
to

 b
e

 m
o

re
 a

w
a

re
 o

f 
th

e
 h

a
za

rd
s.

 
 Im

p
a

c
t 

o
f 

Tr
a

ff
ic

 N
o

is
e

 

Th
e

re
 w

e
re

 a
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
c

o
m

m
e

n
ts

 r
e

g
a

rd
in

g
 e

xt
e

n
si

o
n

 o
f 

th
e

 u
se

 o
f 

lo
w

-n
o

is
e

 t
a

rm
a

c
 s

u
rf

a
c

e
 t

o
 r

e
d

u
c

e
 t

h
e

 in
tr

u
si

v
e

 n
o

is
e

 
fr

o
m

 t
ra

ff
ic

. 
H

a
v
in

g
 d

is
c

u
ss

e
d

 t
h

is
 w

it
h

 H
C

, 
it
 is

 c
le

a
r 

th
a

t 
th

is
 is

 u
n

lik
e

ly
 t

o
 b

e
 a

d
o

p
te

d
 g

e
n

e
ra

lly
, 
b

e
c

a
u

se
 s

u
c

h
 a

 s
u

rf
a

c
e

 h
a

s 
lo

w
e

r 
sk

id
-r

e
si

st
a

n
c

e
 a

n
d

 w
o

rs
e

 w
e

a
r 

p
ro

p
e

rt
ie

s.
 I
t 

is
 n

o
rm

a
lly

 a
p

p
lie

d
 o

n
ly

 t
o

 s
p

e
e

d
-l
im

it
e

d
 r

o
a

d
s.

 I
ts

 u
se

 c
a

n
 a

ls
o

 h
a

v
e

 t
h

e
 

e
ff

e
c

t 
o

f 
in

c
re

a
si

n
g

 s
p

e
e

d
s 

–
 d

u
e

 t
o

 d
ri
v
e

rs
 ju

d
g

in
g

 t
h

e
ir
 s

p
e

e
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 n
o

is
e

 l
e

v
e

l. 
 

39



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

1
6

   

Is
su

e
 

Tr
a

ff
ic

 &
 T

ra
n

sp
o

rt
a

ti
o

n
 A

c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 
Ti

m
e

sc
a

le
 

R
e

sp
o

n
si

b
ili

ty
 

P
a

rt
n

e
rs

 
C

o
st

/ 

R
e

so
u

rc
e

s 
  Sp

e
e

d
in

g
 o

n
 A

4
3

8
: 

V
ill

a
g

e
 c

e
n

tr
e

 

 R
e

q
u

e
st

 m
o

n
it

o
ri
n

g
 o

f 
tr

a
ff

ic
 s

p
e

e
d

s 
fo

llo
w

in
g

 
in

tr
o

d
u

c
ti

o
n

 o
f 

n
e

w
 s

p
e

e
d

 li
m

it
. 

 R
e

q
u

e
st

 u
ti

lis
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
te

m
p

o
ra

ry
 s

p
e

e
d

 w
a

rn
in

g
 li

g
h

ts
 

to
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 n

e
w

 li
m

it
, 
if
 m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 d

e
m

o
n

st
ra

te
s 

n
e

e
d

. 
 

 Im
m

e
d

ia
te

 
  1

 y
e

a
r 

 P
C

 
  P

C
 

 

 H
C

 /
 W

e
st

 
M

e
rc

ia
 P

o
lic

e
 

 H
C

 /
 W

e
st

 
M

e
rc

ia
 P

o
lic

e
 

 To
 b

e
 

in
v

e
st

ig
a

te
d

 
 A

p
p

ro
x.

 £
4

0
0

 
p

e
r 

lo
c

a
ti

o
n

 
p

a
d

, 
a

t 
le

a
st

 
£

3
5

0
0

 p
e

r 
te

m
p

o
ra

ry
 

w
a

rn
in

g
 u

n
it

  
 

    Sp
e

e
d

in
g

 o
n

 A
4

3
8

: 
D

u
rl
o

w
 t

o
 

G
a

rb
ro

o
k
 

R
e

q
u

e
st

 f
o

rm
a

l R
e

v
ie

w
 o

f 
A

c
c

id
e

n
t 

R
e

c
o

rd
 a

n
d

 r
o

a
d

 
d

e
si

g
n

 a
lo

n
g

 t
h

is
 s

e
c

ti
o

n
 o

f 
ro

a
d

, 
w

it
h

 p
a

rt
ic

u
la

r 
e

m
p

h
a

si
s 

o
n

 t
h

e
 D

u
rl
o

w
 /

 W
o

o
d

 E
n

d
 ju

n
c

ti
o

n
 t

o
 

H
ill

fi
e

ld
s 

se
c

ti
o

n
. 

 U
se

 R
e

v
ie

w
 a

n
d

 p
u

b
lic

 o
p

in
io

n
 t

o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 r

e
q

u
e

st
 f

o
r 

re
d

u
c

e
d

 s
p

e
e

d
 li

m
it

, 
a

n
d

/o
r 

o
th

e
r 

sa
fe

ty
 m

e
a

su
re

s 
su

c
h

 a
s 

w
a

rn
in

g
 s

ig
n

s,
 a

lo
n

g
 t

h
is

 s
e

c
ti

o
n

 o
f 

ro
a

d
. 

A
c

c
e

ss
 c

o
u

n
t 

c
o

u
ld

 ju
st

if
y
 li

m
it

. 
 Im

p
le

m
e

n
t 

"n
e

a
r 

m
is

s"
 r

e
p

o
rt

in
g

 s
c

h
e

m
e

. 

 Im
m

e
d

ia
te

 
    Im

m
e

d
ia

te
 

   6
 m

o
n

th
s 

 P
C

 
    P

C
 

   P
C

 

 H
C

 /
 W

e
st

 
M

e
rc

ia
 P

o
lic

e
 

  H
C

 /
 W

e
st

 
M

e
rc

ia
 P

o
lic

e
 

   “
Ta

tl
e

r”
 e

d
it

o
r 

/ 
H

C
 /

 W
e

st
 

M
e

rc
ia

 P
o

lic
e

 

 N
o

n
e

  
    N

o
n

e
  

   N
o

n
e

 
 

 Sp
e

e
d

in
g

: 
Li

tt
le

 T
a

rr
in

g
to

n
 

R
e

q
u

e
st

 r
e

v
ie

w
 o

f 
sp

e
e

d
 li

m
it

 in
 s

e
tt

le
m

e
n

t 
a

re
a

 a
n

d
 

o
f 

im
p

ro
v

e
d

 w
a

rn
in

g
 s

ig
n

s 
fo

r 
th

e
 r

ig
h

t 
a

n
g

le
 b

e
n

d
. 

A
c

c
e

ss
 c

o
u

n
t 

fr
o

m
 M

ill
p

o
n

d
 (

St
o

c
k
s 

C
o

tt
a

g
e

) 
to

 
G

le
n

sh
e

e
 c

o
u

ld
 ju

st
if
y
 s

p
e

e
d

 li
m

it
. 

 Im
m

e
d

ia
te

 
 P

C
 

 H
C

 /
 W

e
st

 
M

e
rc

ia
 P

o
lic

e
 

  

  N
o

n
e

 

Sp
e

e
d

in
g

: 
V

ill
a

g
e

 s
id

e
-r

o
a

d
s 

 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

t 
p

u
b

lic
it

y
 /

 e
d

u
c

a
ti

o
n

 c
a

m
p

a
ig

n
 t

o
 

p
e

rs
u

a
d

e
 “

lo
c

a
ls

” 
to

 s
lo

w
 d

o
w

n
 

6
-1

2
 m

o
n

th
s 

P
C

 
H

C
 /

 W
e

st
 

M
e

rc
ia

 P
o

lic
e

 
N

o
n

e
 

40



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

1
7

  

Is
su

e
 

Tr
a

ff
ic

 &
 T

ra
n

sp
o

rt
a

ti
o

n
 A

c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 

(c
o

n
ti
n

u
e

d
) 

Ti
m

e
sc

a
le

 
R

e
sp

o
n

si
b

ili
ty

 
P
a

rt
n

e
rs

 
C

o
st

/ 

R
e

so
u

rc
e

s 
D

a
n

g
e

ro
u

s 
e

xi
ts

 –
 

Sc
h

o
o

l L
a

n
e

 (
w

e
st

),
 

St
a

ti
o

n
 R

o
a

d
, 
V

ill
a

g
e

 
R

o
a

d
, 
Li

tt
le

 T
a

rr
in

g
to

n
 

–
 a

ll 
w

it
h

 A
4

3
8

 
 

R
e

q
u

e
st

 r
e

v
ie

w
 o

f 
o

p
ti

o
n

s 
to

 im
p

ro
v

e
 s

a
fe

ty
 a

t 
a

ll 
th

e
se

 ju
n

c
ti

o
n

s.
 

 Im
m

e
d

ia
te

 
 P

C
  

 H
C

 /
 W

e
st

 
M

e
rc

ia
 P

o
lic

e
 

  N
o

n
e

 

Y
o

u
n

g
 c

y
c

lis
ts

 a
n

d
 

p
e

d
e

st
ri
a

n
s 

sh
o

w
in

g
 

p
o

o
r 

ro
a

d
-s

e
n

se
 

 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

t 
p

u
b

lic
it

y
 /

 e
d

u
c

a
ti

o
n

 c
a

m
p

a
ig

n
 t

o
 

ra
is

e
 a

w
a

re
n

e
ss

 le
v

e
ls

 a
t 

a
ll 

a
g

e
s 

6
 m

o
n

th
s 

–
 b

u
t 

o
n

-g
o

in
g

 
 P

C
  

H
C

 /
 W

e
st

 
M

e
rc

ia
 P

o
lic

e
 

 

R
e

so
u

rc
e

s 
o

ff
e

re
d

 b
y
 H

C
 

R
o

a
d

 S
a

fe
ty

 
G

ro
u

p
 

D
if
fi
c

u
lt

 f
o

r 
p

e
d

e
st

ri
a

n
s 

to
 c

ro
ss

 A
4

3
8

, 
in

 
v

ill
a

g
e

, 
d

u
e

 t
o

 t
ra

ff
ic

 
sp

e
e

d
 a

n
d

 d
e

n
si

ty
 

 

R
e

q
u

e
st

 P
e

d
e

st
ri
a

n
 S

u
rv

e
y
, 
w

it
h

 a
 v

ie
w

 t
o

 h
a

v
in

g
 

p
e

d
e

st
ri
a

n
 c

ro
ss

in
g

 in
st

a
lle

d
, 
n

e
a

r 
Ta

rr
in

g
to

n
 

A
rm

s.
 

 Im
m

e
d

ia
te

 
 P

C
  

 H
C

 
 N

o
n

e
 

St
re

e
t 

lig
h

ti
n

g
 p

o
o

r 
a

t 
se

v
e

ra
l j

u
n

c
ti

o
n

s 
a

n
d

 
n

o
n

-e
xi

st
e

n
t 

in
 t

h
e

 
m

a
jo

ri
ty

 o
f 

th
e

 v
ill

a
g

e
, 

le
a

d
in

g
 t

o
 s

a
fe

ty
 

c
o

n
c

e
rn

s 
fo

r 
p

e
d

e
st

ri
a

n
s 

P
a

ri
sh

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

to
 c

o
n

si
d

e
r 

fo
r 

a
re

a
s 

w
h

e
re

 t
h

e
re

 
a

re
 s

p
e

c
if
ic

 s
a

fe
ty

 is
su

e
s 

(p
a

rt
ic

u
la

rl
y
 f

o
r 

p
e

d
e

st
ri
a

n
s)

 w
h

e
th

e
r 

a
d

d
it

io
n

a
l l

o
w

-l
e

v
e

l l
ig

h
ti

n
g

 
is

 f
e

a
si

b
le

 a
s 

a
 c

o
m

p
ro

m
is

e
; 
im

p
ro

v
in

g
 s

a
fe

ty
, 

w
h

ils
t 

sa
ti

sf
y
in

g
 t

h
o

se
 s

tr
o

n
g

ly
 o

p
p

o
se

d
 t

o
 s

tr
e

e
t-

lig
h

ti
n

g
 o

n
 t

h
e

 g
ro

u
n

d
s 

o
f 

lig
h

t 
p

o
llu

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 lo
ss

 
o

f 
“
v

ill
a

g
e

 c
h

a
ra

c
te

r”
. 

   M
e

d
iu

m
-t

e
rm

 

   P
C

 

 H
C

 /
 W

e
st

 
M

e
rc

ia
 P

o
lic

e
 

 A
d

d
it

io
n

a
l 

lig
h

ti
n

g
 

in
st

a
lla

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 
ru

n
n

in
g

 c
o

st
s 

m
a

y
 f

a
ll 

o
n

 P
C

 
 

Im
p

ro
v

e
 m

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e

 
o

f 
fo

o
tw

a
y
s.

 
 

E
n

su
re

 S
c

h
o

o
l R

o
a

d
 a

n
d

 A
4

3
8

 f
ro

m
 V

ill
a

g
e

 t
o

 
Li

tt
le

 T
a

rr
in

g
to

n
 f

o
o

tw
a

y
s 

a
re

 m
a

in
ta

in
e

d
 

re
g

u
la

rl
y
. 
 

Im
m

e
d

ia
te

 a
n

d
 

c
o

n
ti

n
u

in
g

 
P

C
 F

o
o

tp
a

th
 

O
ff

ic
e

r 
 

 H
C

 
 N

o
n

e
 

R
e

v
ie

w
 lo

c
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 
d

e
si

g
n

 o
f 

b
u

s-
st

o
p

 a
t 

Ta
rr

in
g

to
n

 A
rm

s 

A
p

p
ro

a
c

h
 H

C
 t

o
 r

e
q

u
e

st
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 b

u
s-

st
o

p
 b

e
 

m
o

v
e

d
 a

w
a

y
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 V

ill
a

g
e

 r
o

a
d

 ju
n

c
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 

fo
r 

a
 la

y
-b

y
 t

o
 b

e
 p

ro
v

id
e

d
. 
(T

o
 b

e
 d

o
n

e
 in

 
c

o
n

ju
n

c
ti

o
n

 w
it

h
 p

e
d

e
st

ri
a

n
 c

ro
ss

in
g

 ?
) 

1
2

 m
o

n
th

s 
 

P
C

 
H

C
 

N
o

n
e

 

Im
p

ro
v

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
fo

o
tw

a
y
s 

 

E
n

su
re

 t
h

a
t 

a
n

y
 r

o
a

d
 im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

sc
h

e
m

e
s 

in
c

lu
d

e
 p

ro
v

is
io

n
 f

o
r 

fo
o

tw
a

y
s 

 M
e

d
iu

m
-t

e
rm

 
 P

C
 

 H
C

 
 N

o
n

e
 

R
o

a
d

 n
o

is
e

 
E
n

su
re

 t
h

a
t 

a
n

y
 r

o
a

d
 s

c
h

e
m

e
s 

u
ti

lis
e

 “
lo

w
-n

o
is

e
” 

ta
rm

a
c

 s
u

rf
a

c
e

, 
w

h
e

re
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 a

n
d

 
p

ra
c

ti
c

a
l. 

Lo
n

g
-t

e
rm

 
P

C
 

H
C

 
N

o
n

e
 

41



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

1
8

 4
.2

 
E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t 

A
c

ti
o

n
 P

la
n

  

 Th
e

 m
a

jo
ri
ty

 o
f 

th
e

 P
a

ri
sh

 is
 f

a
rm

e
d

 l
a

n
d

 t
h

a
t 

in
c

lu
d

e
s 

a
ra

b
le

 c
ro

p
s,

 l
iv

e
st

o
c

k
 a

n
d

 a
p

p
le

 o
rc

h
a

rd
s.

 H
o

p
 g

ro
w

in
g

, 
o

n
c

e
 a

 m
a

jo
r 

c
ro

p
 in

 t
h

e
 P

a
ri
sh

, 
is

 n
o

w
 a

lm
o

st
 n

o
n

-e
xi

st
e

n
t.

 T
h

e
re

 is
 v

e
ry

 l
it
tl
e

 in
d

u
st

ry
 in

 t
h

e
 P

a
ri
sh

. 
 Th

e
 P

a
ri
sh

 h
a

s 
c

h
a

n
g

e
d

 in
 r

e
c

e
n

t 
y
e

a
rs

 w
it
h

 f
a

rm
s 

c
o

n
so

lid
a

ti
n

g
 in

to
 l
a

rg
e

r 
u

n
it
s,

 f
e

w
e

r 
w

o
rk

e
rs

 b
e

in
g

 e
m

p
lo

y
e

d
 in

 a
g

ri
c

u
lt
u

re
 

a
n

d
 r

e
la

te
d

 in
d

u
st

ri
e

s,
 f

a
rm

 b
u

ild
in

g
s 

a
n

d
 r

e
la

te
d

 p
ro

p
e

rt
ie

s 
b

e
in

g
 c

o
n

v
e

rt
e

d
 f

o
r 

re
si

d
e

n
ti
a

l 
u

se
, 
n

e
w

 h
o

u
si

n
g

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
ts

 
a

n
d

 a
n

 in
fl
u

x 
o

f 
re

si
d

e
n

ts
 w

h
o

 s
h

o
w

 a
 s

tr
o

n
g

 in
te

re
st

 in
 r

e
ta

in
in

g
 t

h
e

 r
u

ra
l 
n

a
tu

re
 o

f 
th

e
 P

a
ri
sh

. 
S
u

c
c

e
ss

fu
l 
p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o

n
 in

 t
h

e
 

"B
ri
ta

in
 in

 B
lo

o
m

" 
c

a
m

p
a

ig
n

 h
a

s 
e

n
h

a
n

c
e

d
 t

h
e

 a
p

p
e

a
ra

n
c

e
 o

f 
th

e
 P

a
ri
sh

. 
Th

e
re

 is
 a

 d
iv

e
rs

it
y
 o

f 
w

ild
lif

e
 h

a
b

it
a

ts
 in

c
lu

d
in

g
 p

o
n

d
s,

 
m

e
a

d
o

w
s,

 h
e

d
g

e
ro

w
s 

a
n

d
 w

o
o

d
la

n
d

. 
 

 S
e

v
e

ra
l 
fa

c
to

rs
 w

ill
 l
ik

e
ly

 c
o

m
b

in
e

 t
o

 c
h

a
n

g
e

 t
h

e
 f

a
c

e
 o

f 
fa

rm
in

g
 a

ro
u

n
d

 T
a

rr
in

g
to

n
 in

 t
h

e
 c

o
m

in
g

 y
e

a
rs

. 
A

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
re

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 

in
 f

a
rm

 s
u

b
si

d
ie

s 
re

su
lt
in

g
 f

ro
m

 r
e

fo
rm

 o
f 

th
e

 C
o

m
m

o
n

 A
g

ri
c

u
lt
u

ra
l 
P

o
lic

y
, 
G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
in

c
e

n
ti
v
e

s 
to

 g
ro

w
 c

ro
p

s 
fo

r 
fu

e
l 
a

n
d

 
p

o
w

e
r 

g
e

n
e

ra
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 g
lo

b
a

l 
w

a
rm

in
g

 m
a

y
 a

ll 
in

d
u

c
e

 f
a

rm
e

rs
 t

o
 c

o
n

si
d

e
r 

d
if
fe

re
n

t 
c

ro
p

s 
fr

o
m

 t
h

o
se

 o
f 

to
d

a
y
. 

 Th
e

 i
ss

u
e

s 

 Fo
o

tp
a

th
s 

Th
e

 m
a

jo
ri
ty

 o
f 

re
si

d
e

n
ts

 k
n

o
w

 t
h

e
 l
o

c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 f

o
o

tp
a

th
s 

in
 t

h
e

 P
a

ri
sh

 a
n

d
 c

o
n

si
d

e
r 

th
e

m
 w

e
ll 

si
g

n
p

o
st

e
d

. 
H

o
w

e
v
e

r 
a

 
si

g
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
n

u
m

b
e

r 
ra

is
e

d
 c

o
n

c
e

rn
s 

a
b

o
u

t 
e

a
se

 o
f 

a
c

c
e

ss
 –

 m
a

in
ly

 o
v
e

rg
ro

w
n

 s
ti
le

s 
a

n
d

 f
o

o
tp

a
th

s.
 O

th
e

r 
is

su
e

s 
ra

is
e

d
 w

e
re

 
d

if
fi
c

u
lt
y
 w

it
h

 a
c

c
e

ss
 t

o
 f

o
o

tp
a

th
s 

o
v
e

r 
st

ile
s 

a
n

d
 r

e
q

u
e

st
s 

fo
r 

c
ir
c

u
la

r 
w

a
lk

s.
 A

s 
re

g
a

rd
s 

th
e

 f
ir
st

 p
o

in
t,

 w
e

 h
a

v
e

 in
v
e

st
ig

a
te

d
 t

h
e

 
le

g
a

l 
p

o
si

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 it
 a

p
p

e
a

rs
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 P

a
ri
sh

 c
a

n
 in

st
a

ll,
 a

t 
it
s 

c
o

st
, 
m

o
re

 u
se

r 
fr

ie
n

d
ly

 a
c

c
e

ss
 t

o
 f

o
o

tp
a

th
s 

(e
.g

. 
k
is

si
n

g
 g

a
te

s)
 b

u
t 

o
n

ly
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 p

e
rm

is
si

o
n

 o
f 

th
e

 l
a

n
d

o
w

n
e

r.
 

 C
y

c
le

 T
ra

c
k

s 

A
 m

in
o

ri
ty

 o
f 

re
si

d
e

n
ts

 r
e

q
u

e
st

e
d

 r
e

c
re

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
c

y
c

le
 t

ra
c

k
s 

fo
r 

c
h

ild
re

n
. 
N

o
 a

c
ti
o

n
 is

 p
ro

p
o

se
d

 o
n

 t
h

is
 is

su
e

 p
a

rt
ly

 d
u

e
 t

o
 t

h
e

 
in

a
b

ili
ty

 t
o

 id
e

n
ti
fy

 a
n

y
 o

ff
-r

o
a

d
 t

ra
c

k
s 

(e
.g

. 
b

ri
d

le
w

a
y
s 

su
it
a

b
le

 f
o

r 
th

is
 p

u
rp

o
se

) 
a

n
d

 p
a

rt
ly

 d
u

e
 t

o
 5

0
%

 o
f 

th
e

 r
e

si
d

e
n

ts
 o

p
p

o
si

n
g

 
c

y
c

le
 t

ra
c

k
s.

 H
o

w
e

v
e

r 
th

e
re

 is
 a

 H
e

re
fo

rd
sh

ir
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

in
it
ia

ti
v
e

 t
o

 e
xp

lo
re

 t
h

e
 f

e
a

si
b

ili
ty

 o
f 

a
 c

y
c

le
 t

ra
c

k
 f

ro
m

 H
e

re
fo

rd
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 

Ta
rr

in
g

to
n

 t
o

 L
e

d
b

u
ry

 a
n

d
 w

e
 h

a
v
e

 e
xp

re
ss

e
d

 o
u

r 
in

te
re

st
 in

 p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

ti
n

g
 in

 t
h

is
 p

ro
je

c
t.

 

42



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

1
9

 D
o

g
s 

Th
e

re
 w

e
re

 v
e

ry
 m

a
n

y
 c

o
m

m
e

n
ts

 c
o

n
c

e
rn

in
g

 d
o

g
 f

o
u

lin
g

 in
 s

p
e

c
if
ic

 a
re

a
s 

o
f 

th
e

 P
a

ri
sh

. 
O

th
e

r 
is

su
e

s 
w

e
re

 l
a

c
k
 o

f 
p

la
c

e
s 

to
 

e
xe

rc
is

e
 d

o
g

s 
a

n
d

 p
ro

b
le

m
s 

w
it
h

 d
o

g
s 

n
o

t 
b

e
in

g
 k

e
p

t 
u

n
d

e
r 

c
o

n
tr

o
l. 

N
o

 a
c

ti
o

n
 is

 p
ro

p
o

se
d

 in
 r

e
sp

e
c

t 
o

f 
e

xe
rc

is
in

g
 d

o
g

s 
b

e
c

a
u

se
 t

h
e

 P
a

ri
sh

 h
a

s 
v
e

ry
 m

a
n

y
 l
a

n
e

s 
a

n
d

 f
o

o
tp

a
th

s 
su

it
a

b
le

 f
o

r 
th

is
 p

u
rp

o
se

. 
 P

la
n

ts
 a

n
d

 T
re

e
s 

O
p

in
io

n
s 

w
e

re
 d

iv
id

e
d

 o
v
e

r 
w

h
e

th
e

r 
th

e
 P

a
ri
sh

 is
 in

 n
e

e
d

 o
f 

m
o

re
 f

lo
w

e
r 

b
o

xe
s,

 p
la

n
ts

 a
n

d
 t

re
e

s 
a

n
d

 w
h

e
th

e
r 

ti
d

y
in

g
 u

p
 o

f 
p

a
rt

ic
u

la
r 

p
ro

p
e

rt
ie

s,
 t

re
e

s 
a

n
d

 h
e

d
g

e
s 

is
 n

e
c

e
ss

a
ry

. 
 R

e
c

y
c

lin
g

 

M
a

n
y
 r

e
si

d
e

n
ts

 w
e

re
 u

n
a

w
a

re
 o

f 
th

e
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
re

c
y
c

lin
g

 f
a

c
ili

ti
e

s 
lo

c
a

te
d

 b
e

h
in

d
 t

h
e

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 H

a
ll.

 T
h

e
re

 w
e

re
 n

u
m

e
ro

u
s 

re
q

u
e

st
s 

fo
r 

a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
re

c
y
c

lin
g

 f
a

c
ili

ti
e

s 
fo

r 
c

a
rd

b
o

a
rd

 a
n

d
 c

lo
th

e
s.

 F
o

llo
w

in
g

 d
is

c
u

ss
io

n
s 

w
it
h

 H
C

, 
w

e
 u

n
d

e
rs

ta
n

d
 t

h
a

t 
te

xt
ile

 
re

c
y
c

lin
g

 is
 e

a
sy

 t
o

 a
rr

a
n

g
e

 b
u

t 
c

a
rd

b
o

a
rd

 is
 m

o
re

 d
if
fi
c

u
lt
 t

o
 im

p
le

m
e

n
t 

b
e

c
a

u
se

 a
 l
a

rg
e

 s
k
ip

 w
ill

 n
o

t 
fi
t 

th
ro

u
g

h
 t

h
e

 g
a

te
s 

o
f 

th
e

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 H

a
ll.

 W
e

 a
ls

o
 l
o

o
k
e

d
 a

t 
th

e
 p

o
ss

ib
ili

ty
 o

f 
m

a
k
in

g
 a

 l
a

rg
e

 s
k
ip

 a
v
a

ila
b

le
 t

w
ic

e
 p

e
r 

y
e

a
r 

fo
r 

g
e

n
e

ra
l 
re

c
y
c

lin
g

 b
u

t 
th

is
 c

o
u

ld
 b

e
 d

if
fi
c

u
lt
 d

u
e

 t
o

 l
e

g
a

l 
o

b
lig

a
ti
o

n
s,

 h
e

a
lt
h

 &
 s

a
fe

ty
 a

n
d

 l
o

c
a

ti
o

n
 is

su
e

s.
 H

C
 h

a
v
e

 s
u

g
g

e
st

e
d

 t
h

e
 P

a
ri
sh

 F
re

ig
h

te
r 

S
c

h
e

m
e

 a
s 

a
n

 a
lt
e

rn
a

ti
v
e

. 
H

C
 h

a
v
e

 a
ls

o
 v

o
lu

n
te

e
re

d
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 r

e
c

y
c

lin
g

 in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 f

o
r 

p
u

b
lic

a
ti
o

n
 in

 t
h

e
 T

a
tl
e

r.
 

 Li
tt

e
r/

Fl
y

 T
ip

p
in

g
 

Fl
y
 t

ip
p

in
g

 d
id

 n
o

t 
re

g
is

te
r 

a
s 

a
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
p

ro
b

le
m

 in
 t

h
e

 P
a

ri
sh

. 
C

a
su

a
l 
lit

te
r 

w
a

s 
fe

lt
 b

y
 m

a
n

y
 t

o
 b

e
 a

 p
ro

b
le

m
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
re

 w
e

re
 

su
g

g
e

st
io

n
s 

fo
r 

lit
te

r 
b

in
s 

a
n

d
 r

e
g

u
la

r 
lit

te
r 

p
a

tr
o

ls
 

 Im
p

o
rt

a
n

t 
Fe

a
tu

re
s 

W
o

o
d

la
n

d
s,

 o
rc

h
a

rd
s,

 p
o

n
d

s,
 m

e
a

d
o

w
s 

a
n

d
 l
is

te
d

 b
u

ild
in

g
s 

w
e

re
 a

ll 
fe

lt
 t

o
 b

e
 im

p
o

rt
a

n
t 

fe
a

tu
re

s 
o

f 
th

e
 e

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

t.
 

 P
o

ly
tu

n
n

e
ls

 

4
2
%

 o
f 

th
e

 r
e

sp
o

n
d

e
n

ts
 o

p
p

o
se

d
 t

h
e

 s
it
in

g
 o

f 
p

o
ly

tu
n

n
e

ls
 in

 t
h

e
 P

a
ri
sh

, 
2
1
%

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

e
d

 t
h

e
ir
 u

se
 a

n
d

 2
9
%

 e
xp

re
ss

e
d

 n
o

 o
p

in
io

n
. 

H
C

 h
a

v
e

 n
o

te
d

 t
h

e
se

 v
ie

w
s 

a
n

d
 h

a
v
e

 in
fo

rm
e

d
 u

s 
th

a
t 

p
o

ly
tu

n
n

e
ls

 n
o

w
 r

e
q

u
ir
e

 p
la

n
n

in
g

 p
e

rm
is

si
o

n
. 

 O
th

e
r 

Is
su

e
s 

S
o

m
e

 o
f 

th
e

 is
su

e
s 

ra
is

e
d

 in
 t

h
e

 E
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

t 
se

c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 Q

u
e

st
io

n
n

a
ir
e

 w
e

re
 t

ra
n

sf
e

rr
e

d
 t

o
 t

h
e

 T
ra

ff
ic

 a
n

d
 T

ra
n

sp
o

rt
 W

G
 s

in
c

e
 

th
e

y
 in

v
o

lv
e

d
 c

o
n

ta
c

t 
w

it
h

 t
h

e
 H

ig
h

w
a

y
s 

D
e

p
a

rt
m

e
n

t 
–
 r

o
a

d
 n

o
is

e
, 
ro

a
d

 s
ig

n
s,

 s
tr

e
e

t 
lig

h
ti
n

g
 a

n
d

 c
y
c

le
 l
a

n
e

s 
o

n
 t

h
e

 A
4
3
8
. 

Th
e

se
 a

re
 a

d
d

re
ss

e
d

 in
 t

h
e

 T
ra

ff
ic

 &
 T

ra
n

sp
o

rt
 A

P
. 

43



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

2
0

   

Is
su

e
 

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t 

A
c

ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 
Ti

m
e

sc
a

le
 

R
e

sp
o

n
si

b
ili

ty
 

P
a

rt
n

e
rs

 
C

o
st

/ 
R

e
so

u
rc

e
s 

    P
o

o
r 

m
a

in
te

n
a

n
c

e
/ 

d
if
fi
c

u
lt

 a
c

c
e

ss
 t

o
 

se
v

e
ra

l f
o

o
tp

a
th

s 

  
  

  
1

. 
  

E
re

c
t 

"R
ig

h
t 

to
 R

o
a

m
" 

si
g

n
p

o
st

 t
o

 t
h

e
 f

o
o

tp
a

th
s 

  
  

  
  

  
  

a
c

c
e

ss
in

g
 T

a
rr

in
g

to
n

 C
o

m
m

o
n

. 
 

2
. 

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

te
 v

ia
 T

a
tl

e
r 

a
n

d
 n

o
ti

c
e

 b
o

a
rd

s 
"R

ig
h

t 
to

  
 R

o
a

m
" 

la
n

d
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 r

e
sp

o
n

si
b

ili
ti

e
s 

o
f 

ra
m

b
le

rs
 

 
3

. 
O

rg
a

n
is

e
 a

 t
e

a
m

 o
f 

v
o

lu
n

te
e

rs
 t

o
 m

a
in

ta
in

 c
le

a
r 

a
c

c
e

ss
 t

o
 s

ti
le

s 
o

n
 p

u
b

lic
 f

o
o

tp
a

th
s.

 
 

4
. 

C
h

e
c

k
 t

h
a

t 
a

ll 
fo

o
tp

a
th

s 
a

re
 s

ig
n

p
o

st
e

d
 a

n
d

 
re

m
e

d
y
 a

s 
n

e
c

e
ss

a
ry

. 
 

5
. 

O
rg

a
n

is
e

 w
a

lk
s 

tw
ic

e
 p

e
r 

y
e

a
r 

       Sh
o

rt
 t

e
rm

 

P
C

 
  P

C
 

   P
C

 
  P

C
 

  V
o

lu
n

te
e

r 

N
o

n
e

 
  N

o
n

e
 

   P
a

ri
sh

 P
a

th
s 

P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 
 P

a
ri
sh

 P
a

th
s 

P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 
 N

o
n

e
 

C
o

st
 w

ill
 b

e
 h

a
v

e
 t

o
 b

e
 

b
o

rn
e

 b
y
 P

C
 

 N
o

n
e

 
   N

o
n

e
 

  N
o

n
e

 
  N

o
 c

o
st

 –
 a

lr
e

a
d

y
 

im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

 

St
ile

s 
m

a
k
e

 it
 

d
if
fi
c

u
lt

 t
o

 a
c

c
e

ss
 

so
m

e
 f

o
o

tp
a

th
s 

In
v

e
st

ig
a

te
 t

h
e

 p
o

ss
ib

ili
ty

 o
f 

m
a

k
in

g
 a

c
c

e
ss

 t
o

 
fo

o
tp

a
th

s 
m

o
re

 u
se

r 
fr

ie
n

d
ly

 (
e

.g
. 
k
is

si
n

g
 g

a
te

s)
. 

Sh
o

rt
 t

e
rm

 
P

C
 

La
n

d
o

w
n

e
r 

To
 b

e
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
d

 

   C
ir
c

u
la

r 
fo

o
tp

a
th

s 

  
  

  
1

. 
  

Id
e

n
ti

fy
 c

ir
c

u
la

r 
w

a
lk

s 
b

a
se

d
 o

n
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
fo

o
tp

a
th

s 
 

  
  

  
  

  
  

a
n

d
 r

o
a

d
s 

 
2

. 
O

rg
a

n
is

e
 a

 t
e

a
m

 o
f 

v
o

lu
n

te
e

rs
 t

o
 w

a
lk

 a
n

d
 

re
c

o
rd

 e
a

c
h

 o
f 

th
e

 r
o

u
te

s.
 

 
3

. 
P

e
rm

a
n

e
n

tl
y
 p

la
c

e
 t

h
e

 w
a

lk
in

g
 r

o
u

te
s 

o
n

 t
h

e
 

P
a

ri
sh

 n
o

ti
c

e
 b

o
a

rd
s.

 

Sh
o

rt
 t

e
rm

 
  Sh

o
rt

 t
e

rm
 

  Sh
o

rt
 t

e
rm

 

V
o

lu
n

te
e

r 
  V

o
lu

n
te

e
r 

  V
o

lu
n

te
e

r 

N
o

n
e

 
  N

o
n

e
 

  N
o

n
e

 

N
o

n
e

 
  N

o
 c

o
st

 –
 a

lr
e

a
d

y
 in

 
p

ro
g

re
ss

 
 N

o
n

e
 

 D
o

g
 F

o
u

lin
g

 
Id

e
n

ti
fy

 lo
c

a
ti

o
n

s 
in

 T
a

rr
in

g
to

n
 v

ill
a

g
e

 a
n

d
 o

th
e

r 
p

la
c

e
s 

su
sc

e
p

ti
b

le
 t

o
 d

o
g

 f
o

u
lin

g
 a

n
d

 in
st

a
ll 

b
o

th
 d

is
p

o
sa

l b
a

g
 

d
is

p
e

n
se

rs
 a

n
d

 b
in

s.
 

 Im
m

e
d

ia
te

 
 P

C
 

 H
C

 
N

o
 c

o
st

 t
o

 T
a

rr
in

g
to

n
 

P
C

. 
H

C
 h

a
v

e
 o

ff
e

re
d

 
su

p
p

o
rt

. 

D
o

g
s 

n
o

t 
k
e

p
t 

u
n

d
e

r 
c

o
n

tr
o

l 
P

u
b

lis
h

 r
e

g
u

la
r 

re
m

in
d

e
rs

 in
 t

h
e

 T
a

tl
e

r 
c

o
n

c
e

rn
in

g
 t

h
e

 
re

sp
o

n
si

b
ili

ti
e

s 
o

f 
d

o
g

 o
w

n
e

rs
. 

 

 Im
m

e
d

ia
te

 
 P

C
 

 N
o

n
e

 
 N

o
 c

o
st

 –
 a

lr
e

a
d

y
 

im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

. 

M
a

in
ta

in
 t

h
e

 
a

p
p

e
a

ra
n

c
e

 o
f 

th
e

 P
a

ri
sh

. 

P
a

ri
sh

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

to
 e

n
su

re
 t

h
a

t 
a

n
y
 p

ro
p

o
sa

ls
 f

o
r 

n
e

w
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
ts

 in
c

lu
d

e
 t

re
e

s/
v

e
rg

e
s 

e
tc

 in
 k

e
e

p
in

g
 w

it
h

 
th

e
 a

p
p

e
a

ra
n

c
e

 o
f 

th
e

 P
a

ri
sh

. 

 O
n

g
o

in
g

 
 P

C
 

 H
C

 
 N

o
n

e
 

44



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

2
1

 

Is
su

e
 

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t 

A
c

ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 
Ti

m
e

sc
a

le
 

R
e

sp
o

n
si

b
ili

ty
 

P
a

rt
n

e
rs

 
C

o
st

/ 
R

e
so

u
rc

e
s 

     Im
p

ro
v

e
d

 
re

c
y
c

lin
g

 f
a

c
ili

ti
e

s 

1
. 

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

te
 t

h
e

 e
xi

st
in

g
 f

a
c

ili
ti

e
s 

to
 a

ll 
re

si
d

e
n

ts
 

–
 r

e
p

e
a

t 
a

rt
ic

le
s 

in
 t

h
e

 T
a

tl
e

r 
a

n
d

 P
a

ri
sh

 n
o

ti
c

e
 

b
o

a
rd

s.
 

 
2

. 
M

a
k
e

 a
 c

a
se

 f
o

r 
th

e
 c

o
lle

c
ti

o
n

 o
f 

re
c

y
c

la
b

le
 

w
a

st
e

 f
ro

m
 h

o
m

e
s 

a
lo

n
g

 w
it

h
 t

h
e

 b
la

c
k
 b

in
 b

a
g

s.
 

 
3

. 
D

e
te

rm
in

e
 if

 it
 is

 p
o

ss
ib

le
 t

o
 a

d
d

 r
e

c
y
c

lin
g

 o
f 

te
xt

ile
s 

a
n

d
 c

a
rd

b
o

a
rd

 t
o

 t
h

e
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
fa

c
ili

ti
e

s.
 

 
4

. 
D

e
te

rm
in

e
 t

h
e

 f
e

a
si

b
ili

ty
 o

f 
m

a
k
in

g
 a

 la
rg

e
 s

k
ip

 
a

v
a

ila
b

le
 t

w
ic

e
 p

e
r 

y
e

a
r.

 

 Sh
o

rt
 t

e
rm

 
  Sh

o
rt

 t
e

rm
 

  Sh
o

rt
 t

e
rm

 
  Sh

o
rt

 t
e

rm
 

 V
o

lu
n

te
e

r 
  P

C
 

  P
C

 
  P

C
  

 H
C

 
  H

C
 

  H
C

 
  H

C
 

 

 N
o

n
e

 
  Th

is
 is

 c
u

rr
e

n
tl

y
 b

e
in

g
 

a
ss

e
ss

e
d

 b
y
 H

C
 

 N
o

n
e

 
  N

o
n

e
 

  Li
tt

e
r 

1
. 

O
rg

a
n

is
e

 r
e

g
u

la
r 

p
a

tr
o

ls
 (

o
r"

 a
d

o
p

t 
a

 r
o

a
d

")
 t

o
 

c
o

lle
c

t 
lit

te
r 

d
ro

p
p

e
d

 f
ro

m
 c

a
rs

. 
 

2
. 

In
st

a
ll 

a
 li

tt
e

r 
b

in
 a

t 
th

e
  

e
n

tr
a

n
c

e
 t

o
 B

a
rr

's
 

O
rc

h
a

rd
 

 

 Sh
o

rt
 t

e
rm

 
  Sh

o
rt

 t
e

rm
 

 P
C

 
  P

C
 

 H
C

 
  H

C
 

H
C

 c
a

n
 p

ro
v

id
e

 li
tt

e
r 

p
ic

k
in

g
 k

it
s 

fo
r 

v
o

lu
n

te
e

rs
 

 H
C

 

 P
o

ly
tu

n
n

e
ls

 
P

a
ri
sh

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

to
 m

a
k
e

 H
e

re
fo

rd
sh

ir
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

a
w

a
re

 o
f 

th
e

 v
ie

w
s 

o
f 

th
e

 p
a

ri
sh

io
n

e
rs

 c
o

n
c

e
rn

in
g

 
p

o
ly

tu
n

n
e

ls
 

Im
m

e
d

ia
te

 
a

n
d

 
o

n
g

o
in

g
 

 P
C

 
 H

C
 

 N
o

n
e

 

  M
a

k
e

 
e

n
v

ir
o

n
m

e
n

ta
l 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 o

n
 a

 
ra

n
g

e
 o

f 
is

su
e

s 
re

a
d

ily
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 t

o
 

p
a

ri
sh

io
n

e
rs

. 

In
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 is

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

d
 f

o
r 

: 
•
 

Th
e

 r
o

u
te

 o
f 

fo
o

tp
a

th
s 

a
n

d
 c

ir
c

u
la

r 
w

a
lk

s 
•
 

Th
e

 lo
c

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

R
ig

h
t 

to
 R

o
a

m
 la

n
d

 
•
 

Th
e

 lo
c

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

re
c

y
c

lin
g

 f
a

c
ili

ti
e

s 
 M

a
k
e

 k
n

o
w

n
 t

h
e

 p
ro

c
e

d
u

re
s 

fo
r 

: 
•
 

R
e

q
u

e
st

s 
fo

r 
fo

o
tp

a
th

 m
a

in
te

n
a

n
c

e
 

•
 

R
e

p
o

rt
in

g
 o

f 
u

n
si

g
h

tl
y
 p

ro
p

e
rt

ie
s 

•
 

R
e

p
o

rt
in

g
 o

v
e

rg
ro

w
n

 v
e

rg
e

s 
a

n
d

 h
e

d
g

e
s.

 

    Sh
o

rt
 t

e
rm

 

    P
C

  
   

    N
o

n
e

 

    N
o

n
e

 

45



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

2
2

4
.3

 
P
la

n
n

in
g

 A
c

ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 

 In
tr

o
d

u
c

ti
o

n
 

 Ta
rr

in
g

to
n

 is
 c

o
n

si
d

e
re

d
 a

 “
m

a
in

 v
ill

a
g

e
” 

u
n

d
e

r 
th

e
 H

e
re

fo
rd

sh
ir
e

 U
n

it
a

ry
 D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

P
la

n
 (

“
th

e
 U

D
P

”)
 a

n
d

 f
o

r 
o

u
r 

P
la

n
n

in
g

 A
P

 
to

 b
e

 e
ff

e
c

ti
v
e

 it
 m

u
st

 b
e

 “
a

d
o

p
te

d
” 

b
y
 t

h
e

 H
e

re
fo

rd
sh

ir
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

(“
H

C
”)

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 A
u

th
o

ri
ti
e

s.
  

Fo
r 

th
is

 t
o

 h
a

p
p

e
n

 t
h

e
 A

P
 m

u
st

 
b

e
 c

o
n

si
st

e
n

t 
w

it
h

 t
h

e
 p

o
lic

ie
s 

o
f 

th
e

 U
D

P
. 
 A

c
c

o
rd

in
g

ly
 t

h
e

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 W
G

 h
a

s 
m

e
t 

w
it
h

 t
h

e
 c

o
n

c
e

rn
e

d
 o

ff
ic

ia
ls

 a
t 

th
e

 H
C

 a
n

d
 w

e
 

b
e

lie
v
e

 t
h

a
t 

o
u

r 
A

P
 is

 f
u

lly
 c

o
n

si
st

e
n

t 
w

it
h

 t
h

e
 U

D
P

 p
o

lic
ie

s,
 w

h
ils

t 
a

t 
th

e
 s

a
m

e
 t

im
e

 r
e

fl
e

c
ti
n

g
 t

h
e

 w
is

h
e

s 
o

f 
th

e
 v

ill
a

g
e

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 

a
s 

e
xp

re
ss

e
d

 in
 t

h
e

 P
fT

 e
v
e

n
t,

 t
h

e
 Q

u
e

st
io

n
n

a
ir
e

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 v
a

ri
o

u
s 

re
p

re
se

n
ta

ti
o

n
s 

m
a

d
e

 t
o

 t
h

e
 W

G
 in

 it
s 

m
e

e
ti
n

g
s 

o
p

e
n

 t
o

 t
h

e
 

p
u

b
lic

. 
 

 Th
e

 I
ss

u
e

s 

 P
a

ri
sh

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 is
 a

s 
m

u
c

h
 a

b
o

u
t 

id
e

n
ti
fy

in
g

 w
h

a
t’

s 
ri
g

h
t 

in
 t

h
e

 v
ill

a
g

e
, 
a

n
d

 s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 p

re
se

rv
e

d
, 
a

s 
w

h
a

t’
s 

w
ro

n
g

 a
n

d
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e

 
c

h
a

n
g

e
d

. 
 T

h
is

 w
a

s 
c

e
rt

a
in

ly
 b

ro
u

g
h

t 
o

u
t 

in
 o

u
r 

P
la

n
n

in
g

 c
o

n
su

lt
a

ti
o

n
s.

 
 

1
. 

A
 c

le
a

r 
m

a
jo

ri
ty

 o
f 

th
e

 P
a

ri
sh

 (
5
5
%

 r
e

p
re

se
n

ti
n

g
 1

8
0
 p

e
rs

o
n

s)
 b

e
lie

v
e

 t
h

e
re

 s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 n

o
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 
h

o
u

si
n

g
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 

th
a

t 
th

e
 p

re
se

n
t 

m
ix

 o
f 

h
o

m
e

s 
is

 r
ig

h
t 

(6
4
%

, 
2
0
9
 p

e
rs

o
n

s)
. 
M

o
st

 (
2
0
%

, 
6
6
 p

e
rs

o
n

s)
 o

f 
th

e
 2

7
%

 o
f 

th
e

 r
e

sp
o

n
d

e
n

ts
 w

h
o

 w
e

re
 

in
 f

a
v
o

u
r 

o
f 

fu
rt

h
e

r 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

w
a

n
te

d
 s

o
m

e
 f

o
rm

 o
f 

lo
w

 c
o

st
 h

o
u

si
n

g
 (

h
o

m
e

s 
fo

r 
c

o
u

p
le

s/
sm

a
ll 

fa
m

ili
e

s,
 r

e
ti
re

d
 p

e
o

p
le

, 
p

e
o

p
le

 w
it
h

 d
is

a
b

ili
ti
e

s,
 f

la
ts

/s
m

a
ll 

h
o

u
se

s,
 s

h
e

lt
e

re
d

 h
o

u
si

n
g

, 
a

ff
o

rd
a

b
le

 h
o

u
se

s 
to

 b
u

y
 o

r 
re

n
t)

. 
Th

e
re

 w
a

s 
v
e

ry
 l
it
tl
e

 
su

p
p

o
rt

 (
3
%

) 
fo

r 
b

u
ild

in
g

 e
xe

c
u

ti
v
e

 h
o

m
e

s.
 

 
2
. 

O
n

e
 t

h
ir
d

 (
1
0
6
) 

o
f 

th
e

 r
e

sp
o

n
d

e
n

ts
 r

e
g

is
te

re
d

 v
ie

w
s 

e
it
h

e
r 

a
p

p
ro

v
in

g
 a

n
d

/o
r 

d
is

a
p

p
ro

v
in

g
 o

f 
p

re
v
io

u
s 

h
o

u
si

n
g

 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
ts

. 
Th

e
 r

e
m

a
in

in
g

 t
w

o
-t

h
ir
d

s 
d

id
 n

o
t 

re
g

is
te

r 
a

 v
ie

w
. 
M

o
st

 o
f 

th
e

 a
p

p
ro

v
a

ls
 r

e
la

te
d

 t
o

 b
a

rn
/f

a
rm

 c
o

n
v
e

rs
io

n
s 

(1
1
) 

(s
e

e
 p

h
o

to
 7

),
 t

h
e

 M
ill

p
o

n
d

 f
is

h
in

g
/c

a
ra

v
a

n
 s

it
e

 (
3
) 

a
n

d
 t

h
e

 u
se

 o
f 

m
a

te
ri
a

ls
 in

 k
e

e
p

in
g

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 s

u
rr

o
u

n
d

in
g

s.
 T

h
e

 
m

a
jo

ri
ty

 o
f 

d
is

a
p

p
ro

v
a

ls
 r

e
la

te
d

 t
o

 e
xe

c
u

ti
v
e

 h
o

m
e

s 
(3

7
),

 in
fi
lli

n
g

 o
n

 s
it
e

s 
o

f 
in

su
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

si
ze

 (
3
8
) 

a
n

d
 t

h
e

 u
se

 o
f 

m
a

te
ri
a

ls
 

n
o

t 
in

 k
e

e
p

in
g

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 s

u
rr

o
u

n
d

in
g

s.
 

 

46



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

2
3

3
. 

It
 is

 a
c

c
e

p
te

d
 t

h
a

t,
 a

s 
a

 “
m

a
in

 v
ill

a
g

e
” 

u
n

d
e

r 
th

e
 U

D
P

, 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

w
ill

 in
 p

ri
n

c
ip

le
 b

e
 p

e
rm

it
te

d
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 e
xi

st
in

g
 

S
e

tt
le

m
e

n
t 

B
o

u
n

d
a

ry
 b

u
t 

th
e

 v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 v

ill
a

g
e

 is
 t

h
a

t 
a

n
y
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

sh
o

u
ld

 :
- 

 
i. 

o
n

ly
 b

e
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 p
re

se
n

t 
S
e

tt
le

m
e

n
t 

B
o

u
n

d
a

ry
 

 
ii.

 
b

e
 s

in
g

le
 d

w
e

lli
n

g
s 

o
r 

sm
a

ll 
g

ro
u

p
s 

a
n

d
 n

o
t 

e
st

a
te

s 
 

iii
. 

b
e

 s
e

n
si

ti
v
e

 t
o

 t
h

e
 r

e
a

l 
c

o
n

c
e

rn
 o

v
e

r 
th

e
 l
o

ss
 o

f 
th

e
 r

u
ra

l/
p

e
a

c
e

fu
l 
c

h
a

ra
c

te
r 

o
f 

th
e

 v
ill

a
g

e
. 
 T

h
e

 P
a

ri
sh

 a
g

re
e

s 
w

it
h

 t
h

e
 U

D
P

 t
h

a
t 

p
ri
o

ri
ty

 in
 a

n
y
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

sh
o

u
ld

 b
e

 “
b

ro
w

n
fi
e

ld
”/

c
o

n
v
e

rs
io

n
 o

f 
e

xi
st

in
g

 b
u

ild
in

g
s 

a
n

d
 n

o
t 

o
n

 "
g

re
e

n
fi
e

ld
" 

la
n

d
 

 
iv

. 
b

e
 in

 h
a

rm
o

n
y
 w

it
h

 it
s 

su
rr

o
u

n
d

s,
 w

h
e

th
e

r 
in

 t
e

rm
s 

o
f 

st
y
le

, 
u

se
 o

f 
lo

c
a

l 
m

a
te

ri
a

ls
, 
g

o
o

d
 d

e
si

g
n

 e
tc

. 
 T

h
u

s 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
ts

 n
o

t 
in

 k
e

e
p

in
g

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 s

u
rr

o
u

n
d

in
g

s 
(e

g
 r

e
d

-b
ri
c

k
 s

u
b

u
rb

a
n

 s
ty

le
 h

o
m

e
s)

 a
re

 o
u

t 
b

u
t 

se
n

si
ti
v
e

 
b

a
rn

 c
o

n
v
e

rs
io

n
s 

re
ta

in
in

g
 r

u
ra

l 
c

h
a

ra
c

te
r 

a
re

 in
. 
 T

h
is

 r
e

fl
e

c
ts

 U
D

P
 p

o
lic

y
. 

 
4
. 

Th
e

re
 is

, 
fi
n

a
lly

, 
g

e
n

e
ra

l 
su

p
p

o
rt

 f
o

r 
th

e
 e

n
c

o
u

ra
g

e
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
sm

a
ll 

b
u

si
n

e
ss

e
s 

(p
ro

v
id

e
d

 t
h

e
y
 m

e
e

t 
th

e
 a

b
o

v
e

 c
ri
te

ri
a

 a
n

d
 

b
e

n
e

fi
t 

th
e

 v
ill

a
g

e
/v

ill
a

g
e

 p
e

o
p

le
) 

b
u

t 
th

e
 m

a
jo

ri
ty

 w
e

re
 a

g
a

in
st

 s
m

a
ll 

in
d

u
st

ri
a

l 
w

o
rk

sh
o

p
s.

 O
p

in
io

n
s 

w
e

re
 e

v
e

n
ly

 
b

a
la

n
c

e
d

 f
o

r 
a

n
d

 a
g

a
in

st
 e

n
c

o
u

ra
g

in
g

 t
o

u
ri
sm

, 
p

o
ss

ib
ly

 in
fl
u

e
n

c
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 d
e

si
re

 t
o

 m
a

in
ta

in
 t

h
e

 r
u

ra
l 
c

h
a

ra
c

te
r 

o
f 

th
e

 
P

a
ri
sh

. 

47



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

2
4

    

Is
su

e
 

P
la

n
n

in
g

 A
c

ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 
Ti

m
e

sc
a

le
 

R
e

sp
o

n
si

b
ili

ty
 

P
a

rt
n

e
rs

 
C

o
st

/ 
R

e
so

u
rc

e
s 

  H
o

u
si

n
g

/ 
D

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 

1
 D

is
c

o
u

ra
g

e
 n

e
w

 b
u

ild
in

g
s,

 e
sp

e
c

ia
lly

 e
xe

c
u

ti
v

e
 

h
o

m
e

s,
 b

u
ild

in
g

s 
o

n
 s

it
e

s 
o

f 
in

su
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

si
ze

/o
u

t 
o

f 
c

h
a

ra
c

te
r 

w
it

h
 s

u
rr

o
u

n
d

in
g

 b
u

ild
in

g
s 

a
n

d
 t

h
e

 u
se

 o
f 

m
a

te
ri
a

ls
 n

o
t 

in
 k

e
e

p
in

g
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 r

u
ra

l n
a

tu
re

 o
f 

th
e

 
P

a
ri
sh

. 
 

  O
n

g
o

in
g

 

  P
C

 

  H
C

 
P

la
n

n
in

g
 

  N
o

n
e

 

      H
o

u
si

n
g

/ 
D

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 

2
 I
t 

is
 a

c
c

e
p

te
d

 t
h

a
t 

d
e

sp
it

e
 t

h
e

 c
le

a
r 

m
a

jo
ri
ty

 o
f 

th
e

 p
a

ri
sh

io
n

e
rs

 b
e

in
g

 o
p

p
o

se
d

 t
o

 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t,

 a
s 

a
 “

m
a

in
 v

ill
a

g
e

” 
Ta

rr
in

g
to

n
 is

 
lia

b
le

 t
o

 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t.

  
If

 t
h

is
 o

c
c

u
rs

, 
th

e
 

sa
m

e
 s

h
o

u
ld

:-
 

i  
b

e
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 p
re

se
n

t 
Se

tt
le

m
e

n
t 

B
o

u
n

d
a

ry
, 
 

ii 
b

e
 s

in
g

le
 d

w
e

lli
n

g
s 

o
r 

sm
a

ll 
g

ro
u

p
s,

 p
re

fe
ra

b
ly

 
"b

ro
w

n
fi
e

ld
"/

c
o

n
v

e
rs

io
n

 o
f 

e
xi

st
in

g
 b

u
ild

in
g

s 
 

iii
 u

ti
lis

e
 m

a
te

ri
a

ls
 in

 k
e

e
p

in
g

 w
it

h
 t

h
e

 r
u

ra
l n

a
tu

re
 o

f 
th

e
 P

a
ri
sh

 
iv

 t
a

k
e

 in
to

 a
c

c
o

u
n

t 
th

e
 2

0
%

 m
in

o
ri
ty

 (
6

6
 p

e
rs

o
n

s)
 

w
h

o
 e

xp
re

ss
e

d
 a

n
 in

te
re

st
 in

 s
o

m
e

 f
o

rm
 o

f 
lo

w
 c

o
st

 
h

o
u

si
n

g
. 

 

      O
n

g
o

in
g

 

      P
C

 

      H
C

 
P

la
n

n
in

g
 

      N
o

n
e

 

 B
u

si
n

e
ss

 
D

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 

3
 E

n
c

o
u

ra
g

e
 s

m
a

ll 
b

u
si

n
e

ss
e

s 
p

ro
v

id
e

d
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
y
 

m
e

e
t 

th
e

 a
b

o
v

e
 c

ri
te

ri
a

 a
n

d
 b

e
 in

 p
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
 t

o
 t

h
e

 
v

ill
a

g
e

 a
n

d
 it

s 
e

c
o

n
o

m
ic

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

, 
w

h
e

th
e

r 
in

 
th

e
 f

o
rm

 o
f 

lo
c

a
l e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
o

r 
se

rv
ic

e
s 

 

 O
n

g
o

in
g

 
 P

C
 

 

 H
C

 
P

la
n

n
in

g
 

 N
o

n
e

 

 A
d

o
p

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 

a
b

o
v

e
 is

su
e

s 

4
 E

n
su

re
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 P

a
ri
sh

's
 w

is
h

e
s 

a
s 

se
t 

o
u

t 
a

b
o

v
e

 
a

re
 "

a
d

o
p

te
d

" 
b

y
 H

e
re

fo
rd

sh
ir
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

a
n

d
 t

h
e

n
 

im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

 b
y
 it

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 P
a

ri
sh

 C
o

u
n

c
il.

 
 

 
Sh

o
rt

 t
e

rm
 

a
n

d
 

O
n

g
o

in
g

 

 P
C

 
 H

C
 

P
la

n
n

in
g

 

 N
o

n
e

 

48



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

2
5

4
.4

 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y

 F
a

c
ili

ti
e

s 
A

c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 

 In
tr

o
d

u
c

ti
o

n
 

 Ta
rr

in
g

to
n

’s
 p

re
se

n
t 

m
a

in
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 F

a
c

ili
ti
e

s 
c

o
n

si
st

 o
f 

th
e

 P
a

ri
sh

 C
h

u
rc

h
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 L

a
d

y
 E

m
ily

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 H

a
ll 

(a
n

 im
p

o
rt

a
n

t 
fu

rt
h

e
r 

fa
c

ili
ty

 is
 t

h
e

 T
a

rr
in

g
to

n
 A

rm
s 

p
u

b
 b

u
t 

th
a

t 
d

id
 n

o
t 

fe
a

tu
re

 in
 t

h
e

 P
a

ri
sh

 P
la

n
 c

o
n

su
lt
a

ti
o

n
 p

ro
c

e
ss

).
  

Th
e

re
 w

a
s 

a
 s

m
a

ll 
v
ill

a
g

e
 s

h
o

p
 in

 t
h

e
 P

a
ri
sh

 u
n

ti
l 
5
 y

e
a

rs
 a

g
o

 b
u

t 
it
 w

a
s 

c
lo

se
d

 o
n

 g
ro

u
n

d
s 

o
f 

c
o

m
m

e
rc

ia
l 
v
ia

b
ili

ty
. 
 T

h
e

 is
su

e
 o

f 
h

e
a

lt
h

 c
a

re
 f

a
c

ili
ti
e

s 
is

 c
o

n
si

d
e

re
d

 in
 t

h
e

 H
e

a
lt
h

 a
n

d
 S

o
c

ia
l 
S
e

rv
ic

e
s 

se
c

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 P

la
n

. 
B

o
th

 t
h

e
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 H

a
ll 

a
n

d
 (

to
 a

 l
e

ss
e

r 
d

e
g

re
e

) 
th

e
 C

h
u

rc
h

 a
re

 w
e

ll 
u

se
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 P
a

ri
sh

, 
a

n
d

 b
y
 m

a
n

y
 v

is
it
o

rs
 f

ro
m

 o
u

ts
id

e
, 

a
n

d
 t

h
e

 m
a

in
 f

o
c

u
s 

o
f 

th
e

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 F

a
c

ili
ti
e

s 
c

o
n

su
lt
a

ti
o

n
 p

ro
c

e
ss

 w
a

s 
to

 t
ry

 t
o

 s
e

e
 h

o
w

 t
h

e
se

 t
w

o
 f

a
c

ili
ti
e

s 
c

a
n

 b
e

 e
n

h
a

n
c

e
d

 
–
 a

n
d

 w
h

a
t 

a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
fa

c
ili

ti
e

s 
c

a
n

 b
e

 b
o

lt
e

d
 o

n
 t

o
 t

h
e

m
 o

r 
se

p
a

ra
te

ly
 a

d
d

e
d

. 
 

B
o

th
 t

h
e

 C
h

u
rc

h
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 H

a
ll 

a
re

 a
c

c
e

ss
ib

le
 t

o
 w

h
e

e
lc

h
a

ir
s 

a
n

d
 t

h
e

re
fo

re
 n

o
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 
a

c
ti
o

n
 n

e
e

d
s 

to
 b

e
 t

a
k
e

n
 

c
o

n
c

e
rn

in
g

 w
h

e
e

lc
h

a
ir
 a

c
c

e
ss

. 
 Th

e
 I

ss
u

e
s 

 Th
e

 C
h

u
rc

h
 -

 R
e

g
a

rd
in

g
 t

h
e

 C
h

u
rc

h
 t

h
e

re
 w

a
s 

st
ro

n
g

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 f
o

r 
th

e
 r

e
-i
n

st
a

te
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
a

 r
e

si
d

e
n

t 
v
ic

a
r,

 f
o

r 
th

e
 in

st
a

lla
ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

 
to

ile
t 

a
n

d
 a

 k
it
c

h
e

n
. 
A

ll 
th

e
se

 is
su

e
s 

a
re

 d
e

a
lt
 w

it
h

 in
 t

h
e

 P
la

n
, 
to

g
e

th
e

r 
w

it
h

 t
h

e
 b

ro
a

d
e

r 
q

u
e

st
io

n
 o

f 
tr

y
in

g
 t

o
 m

a
k
e

 t
h

e
 C

h
u

rc
h

 
m

o
re

 a
v
a

ila
b

le
 t

o
 t

h
e

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 a

t 
la

rg
e

. 
M

o
re

 c
o

m
fo

rt
a

b
le

/m
o

v
a

b
le

 s
e

a
ti
n

g
 w

a
s 

a
ls

o
 a

n
 is

su
e

 b
u

t 
th

e
re

 w
a

s 
n

o
t 

a
 s

u
ff

ic
ie

n
tl
y
 

c
le

a
r 

o
p

in
io

n
 o

n
e

 w
a

y
 o

r 
th

e
 o

th
e

r 
to

 ju
st

if
y
 a

n
y
 a

c
ti
o

n
. 

 V
ill

a
g

e
 S

h
o

p
/P

o
st

 O
ff

ic
e

 –
 T

h
is

 w
a

s 
u

n
d

o
u

b
te

d
ly

 t
h

e
 m

o
st

 d
if
fi
c

u
lt
 is

su
e

 w
e

 h
a

d
 t

o
 a

d
d

re
ss

. 
 T

h
e

re
 w

a
s 

st
ro

n
g

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 f
o

r 
th

e
 

o
p

e
n

in
g

 o
f 

a
 v

ill
a

g
e

 s
h

o
p

/P
o

st
 O

ff
ic

e
 b

u
t 

th
e

 q
u

e
st

io
n

s 
o

f 
h

o
w

 t
h

a
t 

c
a

n
 b

e
st

 b
e

 d
o

n
e

 a
n

d
 it

s 
lo

n
g

-t
e

rm
 v

ia
b

ili
ty

 a
re

 c
o

m
p

le
x.

 
S
o

m
e

 o
f 

th
e

 r
e

le
v
a

n
t 

is
su

e
s 

a
re

: 
 

•
 

Is
 t

h
e

 d
e

m
a

n
d

 f
o

r 
a

 s
h

o
p

 s
u

ff
ic

ie
n

t 
fo

r 
it
 t

o
 b

e
 a

 v
ia

b
le

 c
o

n
c

e
rn

?
 

•
 

H
o

w
 h

a
v
e

 o
th

e
r 

P
a

ri
sh

e
s 

fa
re

d
 w

it
h

 s
im

ila
r 

p
ro

je
c

ts
?

 
•
 

W
h

e
re

 s
h

o
u

ld
 a

 s
h

o
p

 b
e

 l
o

c
a

te
d

 (
o

n
 t

h
e

 m
a

in
 r

o
a

d
 t

o
 c

a
tc

h
 p

a
ss

in
g

 t
ra

ff
ic

?
) 

•
 

Is
 a

 p
o

st
 o

ff
ic

e
 v

ia
b

le
 o

r 
w

o
u

ld
 a

 p
o

st
 s

h
o

p
 b

e
 m

o
re

 a
p

p
ro

p
ri
a

te
?

 
•
 

H
o

w
 w

o
u

ld
 it

 b
e

 o
w

n
e

d
, 
m

a
n

a
g

e
d

 a
n

d
 r

u
n

?
 

•
 

S
h

o
u

ld
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
fa

c
ili

ti
e

s 
su

c
h

 a
s 

c
o

n
fe

re
n

c
e

/t
ra

in
in

g
 r

o
o

m
 b

e
 in

c
lu

d
e

d
?

 
•
 

W
h

a
t 

a
re

 t
h

e
 f

u
n

d
in

g
 im

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
s?

 
  

49



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

2
6

A
 c

e
rt

a
in

 a
m

o
u

n
t 

o
f 

p
re

lim
in

a
ry

 f
e

a
si

b
ili

ty
 s

tu
d

y
 w

a
s 

d
o

n
e

 b
u

t 
it
 b

e
c

a
m

e
 c

le
a

r 
th

a
t 

a
 g

re
a

t 
d

e
a

l 
m

o
re

 m
u

st
 b

e
 d

o
n

e
 b

e
fo

re
 

a
n

y
 in

fo
rm

e
d

 d
e

c
is

io
n

 w
h

e
th

e
r 

o
r 

n
o

t 
to

 a
tt

e
m

p
t 

su
c

h
 a

 p
ro

je
c

t 
c

a
n

 b
e

 m
a

d
e

. 
 T

h
e

 A
P

 a
c

c
o

rd
in

g
ly

 s
u

g
g

e
st

s 
th

e
 f

o
rm

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

 
W

o
rk

in
g

 G
ro

u
p

 t
o

 t
a

k
e

 t
h

is
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 
fo

rw
a

rd
. 
 S

o
m

e
 a

lt
e

rn
a

ti
v
e

s 
to

 t
h

e
 f

u
ll 

v
ill

a
g

e
 s

h
o

p
/P

O
 p

ro
je

c
t 

to
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

 l
im

it
e

d
 r

a
n

g
e

 o
f 

se
rv

ic
e

s 
a

re
 a

ls
o

 c
o

n
si

d
e

re
d

. 
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y

 H
a

ll 
–
 T

h
e

re
 w

a
s 

q
u

it
e

 a
 b

it
 o

f 
su

p
p

o
rt

 f
o

r 
m

o
re

 in
d

o
o

r 
a

n
d

 o
u

td
o

o
r 

a
c

ti
v
it
ie

s 
a

t 
th

e
 H

a
ll 

a
n

d
 t

h
e

 A
P

 p
ro

v
id

e
s 

fo
r 

th
e

 
H

a
ll 

C
o

m
m

it
te

e
 t

o
 t

a
k
e

 t
h

e
se

 id
e

a
s 

fu
rt

h
e

r.
 T

h
e

 is
su

e
 o

f 
w

a
lk

in
g

 g
ro

u
p

s 
is

 in
c

lu
d

e
d

 in
 t

h
e

 E
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

t 
A

P
. 
M

a
n

y
 s

u
g

g
e

st
io

n
s 

in
 

th
is

 c
o

n
te

xt
 a

re
 d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 

o
n

 t
h

e
 a

v
a

ila
b

ili
ty

 o
f 

su
it
a

b
le

 l
a

n
d

 a
n

d
 w

ill
 r

e
q

u
ir
e

 t
h

e
 c

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
o

n
 o

f 
lo

c
a

l 
la

n
d

o
w

n
e

rs
. 

 C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
s 

–
 G

e
n

e
ra

lly
 s

p
e

a
k
in

g
, 
p

e
o

p
le

 t
h

o
u

g
h

t 
th

a
t 

c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
s 

w
it
h

 a
n

d
 in

si
d

e
 t

h
e

 P
a

ri
sh

 w
e

re
 v

e
ry

 g
o

o
d

. 
 T

h
e

re
 

w
a

s 
a

 h
ig

h
 l
e

v
e

l 
o

f 
a

w
a

re
n

e
ss

 o
f 

th
e

 c
o

n
te

n
ts

 o
f 

th
e

 P
a

ri
sh

 N
o

ti
c

e
 B

o
a

rd
s 

a
n

d
 t

h
e

 v
ill

a
g

e
 m

a
g

a
zi

n
e

 (
th

e
 “

Ta
rr

in
g

to
n

 T
a

tl
e

r”
),

 
w

it
h

 t
h

e
 l
a

tt
e

r 
c

o
m

in
g

 in
 f

o
r 

p
a

rt
ic

u
la

r 
p

ra
is

e
. 
 H

o
w

e
v
e

r,
 w

e
 h

a
v
e

 id
e

n
ti
fi
e

d
 c

e
rt

a
in

 r
e

sp
e

c
ts

 in
 w

h
ic

h
 P

a
ri
sh

 c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
 

c
o

u
ld

 b
e

 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

im
p

ro
v
e

d
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 A

P
 c

o
n

ta
in

s 
a

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

id
e

a
s 

h
e

re
. 

 

50



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

2
7

 
Is

su
e

 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y

 F
a

c
ili

ti
e

s 
A

c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 
Ti

m
e

sc
a

le
 

R
e

sp
o

n
si

b
ili

ty
 

P
a

rt
n

e
rs

 
C

o
st

/ 
R

e
so

u
rc

e
s  

     In
c

re
a

se
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 

u
se

 o
f 

C
h

u
rc

h
 F

a
c

ili
ti

e
s 

 

Th
e

 P
a

ro
c

h
ia

l C
h

u
rc

h
 C

o
u

n
c

il 
(P

C
C

) 
to

 in
it

ia
te

 a
 

m
e

e
ti

n
g

 w
it

h
 t

h
e

 P
a

ri
sh

 C
o

u
n

c
il,

 V
ill

a
g

e
 H

a
ll 

C
o

m
m

it
te

e
 (

LE
C

H
) 

a
n

d
 t

h
e

 w
id

e
r 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 w

it
h

 
th

e
 o

b
je

c
ti

v
e

 o
f 

fo
rm

in
g

 a
 D

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
G

ro
u

p
 

to
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
 t

h
e

 f
e

a
si

b
ili

ty
 o

f:
 

•
 

th
e

 in
st

a
lla

ti
o

n
 o

f 
to

ile
ts

 
•
 

a
 k

it
c

h
e

n
 

•
 

a
 c

a
fé

 
•
 

In
te

rn
e

t 
a

c
c

e
ss

 
•
 

h
o

ld
in

g
 c

o
n

c
e

rt
s 

•
 

a
 m

e
e

ti
n

g
 p

la
c

e
 f

o
r 

si
n

g
in

g
 g

ro
u

p
s.

 
 

     A
SA

P
 

     P
C

C
 

     LE
C

H
, 
P

C
, 

W
id

e
r 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 

     N
o

n
e

 in
it

ia
lly

 

 R
e

-i
n

st
a

te
 a

 r
e

si
d

e
n

t 
v

ic
a

r 
in

 t
h

e
 P

a
ri
sh

 

D
is

c
u

ss
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 D

io
c

e
se

 w
h

e
th

e
r 

th
e

 R
e

c
to

ry
 

c
o

u
ld

 b
e

 a
 H

o
u

se
 f

o
r 

D
u

ty
 (

w
it

h
 a

 V
ic

a
r)

. 
(T

h
e

 
P

C
C

 h
a

s 
a

lr
e

a
d

y
 a

g
re

e
d

 in
 p

ri
n

c
ip

le
).

 
 

 A
SA

P
 

 C
h

a
ir
m

a
n

 o
f 

th
e

 
P

C
C

 

 D
io

c
e

se
 

 P
o

te
n

ti
a

l c
o

st
 f

o
r 

P
C

C
 

 V
ill

a
g

e
 S

h
o

p
/P

o
st

 
O

ff
ic

e
 

 

E
st

a
b

lis
h

 a
 W

G
 o

f 
in

te
re

st
e

d
 p

a
rt

ie
s 

to
 in

v
e

st
ig

a
te

 
th

e
 v

ia
b

ili
ty

 o
f 

e
st

a
b

lis
h

in
g

 a
 v

ill
a

g
e

 s
h

o
p

/p
o

st
 

o
ff

ic
e

/p
o

st
 s

h
o

p
 

 

 A
SA

P
 

 P
C

  
 R

o
y
a

l M
a

il 
 TB

D
 

 E
xp

lo
re

 a
lt

e
rn

a
ti

v
e

s 
to

 
a

 V
ill

a
g

e
 S

h
o

p
 

In
v

e
st

ig
a

te
 t

h
e

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 o
f 

so
m

e
 o

f 
th

e
 f

a
c

ili
ti

e
s 

re
q

u
e

st
e

d
 in

 t
h

e
 P

a
ri
sh

 P
la

n
 -

 N
e

w
sp

a
p

e
r 

c
o

lle
c

ti
o

n
, 
m

ilk
, 
b

re
a

d
 in

 a
n

 a
lt

e
rn

a
ti

v
e

 lo
c

a
ti

o
n

. 

To
 b

e
 r

u
n

 in
 

p
a

ra
lle

l w
it

h
 

th
e

 v
ill

a
g

e
 

sh
o

p
 p

ro
je

c
t 

 P
C

 
 U

n
k
n

o
w

n
 

 U
n

k
n

o
w

n
 

 D
a

y
 N

u
rs

e
ry

 
R

e
v

ie
w

 t
h

e
 a

c
tu

a
l d

e
m

a
n

d
 f

o
r 

a
 d

a
y
 n

u
rs

e
ry

 
se

rv
in

g
 t

h
e

 v
ill

a
g

e
 a

n
d

 d
e

te
rm

in
e

 t
h

e
 

a
p

p
ro

p
ri
a

te
 c

o
u

rs
e

 o
f 

a
c

ti
o

n
 

 

 A
SA

P
 

C
u

rr
e

n
t 

le
a

d
e

r 
o

f 
th

e
 p

la
y
g

ro
u

p
 o

r 
a

lt
e

rn
a

te
 

 H
C

 
 N

o
n

e
 

   A
d

d
it

io
n

a
l O

u
td

o
o

r 
fa

c
ili

ti
e

s 
a

ss
o

c
ia

te
d

 
w

it
h

 t
h

e
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 

H
a

ll 

C
o

n
d

u
c

t 
a

 f
e

a
si

b
ili

ty
 s

tu
d

y
 t

o
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
 t

h
e

 
re

a
lis

ti
c

 d
e

m
a

n
d

 f
o

r 
th

e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 f

a
c

ili
ti

e
s:

 
Te

n
n

is
 C

o
u

rt
 

 
 

  
C

ri
c

k
e

t 
P

it
c

h
 

 
  

P
la

y
in

g
 F

ie
ld

 
 

 
B

o
w

lin
g

 G
re

e
n

 
G

a
rd

e
n

in
g

 C
lu

b
 

If
 p

o
si

ti
v

e
, 
in

v
e

st
ig

a
te

 t
h

e
 a

v
a

ila
b

ili
ty

 o
f 

la
n

d
 in

 
th

e
 P

a
ri
sh

 (
p

o
ss

ib
le

 li
n

k
 w

it
h

 V
ill

a
g

e
 S

h
o

p
).

 
 

   A
SA

P
. 

   St
u

d
y
: 
LE

C
H

 
To

 im
p

le
m

e
n

t:
 

LE
C

H
 o

r 
n

e
w

 
Sp

o
rt

s 
G

ro
u

p
 

   St
u

d
y
: 
P

C
 

To
 im

p
le

m
e

n
t:

 
Lo

tt
e

ry
 

fu
n

d
in

g
 e

tc
 

   Fo
r 

th
e

 s
tu

d
y
, 

m
in

im
a

l c
o

st
, 
b

u
t 

se
v

e
ra

l p
e

o
p

le
’s

 
ti

m
e

. 
In

 e
xc

e
ss

 o
f 

£
5

0
K

 t
o

 
im

p
le

m
e

n
t 

51



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

2
8

  

Is
su

e
 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 F
a

c
ili

ti
e

s 
A

c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 (
c

o
n

t.
) 

Ti
m

e
sc

a
le

 
R

e
sp

o
n

si
b

ili
ty

 
P
a

rt
n

e
rs

 
C

o
st

/ 
R

e
so

u
rc

e
s 

      
A

d
d

it
io

n
a

l I
n

d
o

o
r 

fa
c

ili
ti

e
s 

a
t 

th
e

 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 H

a
ll 

In
v

e
st

ig
a

te
 t

h
e

 f
e

a
si

b
ili

ty
 o

f 
in

tr
o

d
u

c
in

g
 t

h
e

 f
o

llo
w

in
g

 
a

c
ti

v
it

ie
s 

a
n

d
 a

n
 a

ss
e

ss
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
th

e
 li

k
e

ly
 r

e
a

l 
d

e
m

a
n

d
:-

 
Y

o
u

th
 C

lu
b

 (
a

lr
e

a
d

y
 im

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
) 

A
c

c
e

ss
 t

o
 C

o
p

ie
r/

p
ri
n

te
r 

 
C

a
fé

  
B

a
lle

t 
C

la
ss

e
s 

 
In

te
rn

e
t 

A
c

c
e

ss
  

D
is

c
o

s/
V

ill
a

g
e

 H
o

p
s 

 
(T

h
e

 r
e

q
u

e
st

 f
o

r 
B

a
llr

o
o

m
 D

a
n

c
in

g
 h

a
s 

b
e

e
n

 
a

c
ti

o
n

e
d

).
 

N
o

te
 t

h
a

t 
so

m
e

 o
f 

th
e

se
 a

c
ti

v
it

ie
s 

m
a

y
 r

e
q

u
ir
e

 li
a

is
o

n
 

w
it

h
 o

th
e

r 
G

ro
u

p
s 

e
.g

. 
Y

o
u

th
 a

n
d

 s
o

m
e

 m
a

y
 b

e
 m

o
re

 
a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 in

 v
e

n
u

e
s 

o
th

e
r 

th
a

n
 t

h
e

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 

H
a

ll.
 

 

        A
SA

P
 

         L
E
C

H
 

      P
C

C
, 
P

C
, 

H
e

re
fo

rd
 Y

o
u

th
 

o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
s 

P
ri
v

a
te

 t
e

a
c

h
e

rs
 

(b
a

lle
t)

 

 Fo
r 

st
u

d
y
, 
m

in
im

a
l 

c
o

st
, 
b

u
t 

se
v

e
ra

l 
p

e
o

p
le

’s
 t

im
e

. 
To

 im
p

le
m

e
n

t:
  

In
te

rn
e

t/
c

o
p

ie
r 

e
tc

 
~

£
5

k
  

 C
a

fé
 c

o
st

 d
e

p
e

n
d

s 
o

n
 f

in
a

l l
o

c
a

ti
o

n
. 

 Y
o

u
th

 c
lu

b
 –

 in
it

ia
l 

(s
e

t-
u

p
) 

c
o

st
 ~

£
2

K
. 

A
n

n
u

a
l r

u
n

n
in

g
 c

o
st

 
~

£
1

-2
K

 

 
A

d
d

it
io

n
a

l p
o

st
 

b
o

xe
s 

D
is

c
u

ss
 w

it
h

 R
o

y
a

l M
a

il 
th

e
 p

ro
v

is
io

n
 o

f 
tw

o
 e

xt
ra

 p
o

st
 

b
o

xe
s 

in
 V

ill
a

g
e

 (
o

u
ts

id
e

 B
a

rr
s 

O
rc

h
a

rd
 a

n
d

 
G

a
rb

ro
o

k
).

 

 A
SA

P
 

 P
C

  
 R

o
y
a

l M
a

il 
 N

il 

 
P

o
o

r 
TV

 R
e

c
e

p
ti

o
n

 
P

ro
v

id
e

 r
e

si
d

e
n

ts
 w

it
h

 in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 o

n
 h

o
w

 t
o

 a
c

c
e

ss
 

b
e

tt
e

r 
re

c
e

p
ti

o
n

. 
 

 A
SA

P
 

 P
C

 
 O

FC
O

M
  

/ 
J 

Ta
lli

s 

 Te
st

 e
q

u
ip

m
e

n
t 

u
p

 
to

 £
5

k
 

  
P

a
ri
sh

 W
e

b
si

te
 

E
n

su
re

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

 P
a

ri
sh

 w
e

b
si

te
 is

 im
p

ro
v

e
d

 a
n

d
 k

e
p

t 
u

p
 t

o
 d

a
te

 a
n

d
 a

w
a

re
n

e
ss

 b
u

ilt
. 

(T
h

e
 w

e
b

si
te

 w
a

s 
c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 in
 J

u
n

e
 2

0
0

6
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 

n
e

e
d

 n
o

w
 is

 t
o

 b
u

ild
 a

w
a

re
n

e
ss

) 

  O
n

g
o

in
g

 

  P
C

 

LE
C

H
, 
P

C
C

, 
Ta

rr
in

g
to

n
 A

rm
s,

 
O

th
e

r 
o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti

o
n

s 
in

 
v

ill
a

g
e

 

 A
n

n
u

a
l r

u
n

n
in

g
 c

o
st

 
o

f 
£

5
0

0
 

 
P

a
ri
sh

 n
o

ti
c

e
 

b
o

a
rd

s 

R
e

p
la

c
e

 e
xi

st
in

g
 o

p
e

n
 n

o
ti

c
e

 b
o

a
rd

s 
a

t 
D

u
rl
o

w
 a

n
d

 
Li

tt
le

 T
a

rr
in

g
to

n
 w

it
h

 e
n

c
lo

se
d

 g
la

ss
 f

ro
n

te
d

 n
o

ti
c

e
 

b
o

a
rd

s 
re

si
st

a
n

t 
to

 t
h

e
 w

e
a

th
e

r 
to

 a
llo

w
 t

h
e

 p
o

st
in

g
 

o
f 

p
e

rm
a

n
e

n
t 

n
o

ti
c

e
s.

 

 A
SA

P
 

 P
C

 
 N

o
n

e
 

£
2

0
0

-5
0

0
 e

a
c

h
, 

d
e

p
e

n
d

in
g

 o
n

 s
iz

e
 /

 
q

u
a

lit
y
 

    

52



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

2
9

4
.5

 
H

e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 S

o
c

ia
l 
S
e

rv
ic

e
s 

A
c

ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 
 

In
tr

o
d

u
c

ti
o

n
 

 Th
e

 H
e

a
lt
h

 a
n

d
 S

o
c

ia
l 
S
e

rv
ic

e
s 

W
G

 h
a

d
 a

 s
e

ri
e

s 
o

f 
m

e
e

ti
n

g
s,

 a
n

d
 w

h
e

re
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 c

o
n

ta
c

te
d

 t
h

e
 a

g
e

n
c

ie
s/

o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
s 

in
v
o

lv
e

d
. 
 T

h
e

se
 w

e
re

 (
a

) 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 T

ra
n

sp
o

rt
 H

e
re

fo
rd

sh
ir
e

/C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 V

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 A

c
ti
o

n
; 
(b

) 
P

ri
m

a
ry

 C
a

re
 T

ru
st

 s
u

rg
e

ri
e

s 
a

t 
Fo

w
n

h
o

p
e

 a
n

d
 L

e
d

b
u

ry
 a

s 
w

e
ll 

a
s 

th
e

 a
ss

o
c

ia
te

d
 c

h
e

m
is

ts
 (

B
ri
g

g
s 

a
n

d
 B

o
o

ts
);

 (
c

) 
th

e
 P

ro
je

c
t 

M
a

n
a

g
e

rs
 f

o
r 

C
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d

 A
d

u
lt
s 

fr
o

m
 t

h
e

 S
o

c
ia

l 
S
e

rv
ic

e
s.

 
 Th

e
 I

ss
u

e
s 

 ♦
 

Th
e

 m
a

in
 is

su
e

 r
a

is
e

d
 w

a
s 

th
e

 t
ra

n
sp

o
rt

 d
if
fi
c

u
lt
y
 o

f 
so

m
e

 r
e

si
d

e
n

ts
 t

o
 a

n
d

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e

 d
o

c
to

rs
’ 

su
rg

e
ri
e

s.
 T

h
is

 p
ro

b
le

m
 a

ro
se

 
b

e
c

a
u

se
 t

h
e

re
 is

 n
o

 l
o

n
g

e
r 

a
 d

o
c

to
r 

in
 T

a
rr

in
g

to
n

, 
a

n
d

 t
h

o
se

 p
e

o
p

le
 r

e
g

is
te

re
d

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 T

a
rr

in
g

to
n

 s
u

rg
e

ry
 w

e
re

 m
a

in
ly

 
tr

a
n

sf
e

rr
e

d
 t

o
 t

h
e

 F
o

w
n

h
o

p
e

 s
u

rg
e

ry
 a

b
o

u
t 

6
 m

ile
s 

a
w

a
y
 (

a
s 

Le
d

b
u

ry
 s

u
rg

e
ri
e

s 
w

e
re

 f
u

lly
 s

u
b

sc
ri
b

e
d

) 
w

it
h

 n
o

 p
u

b
lic

 t
ra

n
sp

o
rt

 
to

 t
h

a
t 

v
ill

a
g

e
. 
O

f 
th

e
 a

d
u

lt
 r

e
si

d
e

n
ts

 w
h

o
 f

ill
e

d
 in

 t
h

e
 Q

u
e

st
io

n
n

a
ir
e

, 
th

e
re

 a
re

 a
p

p
ro

xi
m

a
te

ly
 2

0
8
 r

e
si

d
e

n
ts

 r
e

g
is

te
re

d
 a

t 
th

e
 

Fo
w

n
h

o
p

e
 s

u
rg

e
ry

, 
7
7
 w

it
h

 L
e

d
b

u
ry

 s
u

rg
e

ri
e

s,
 a

n
d

 2
3
 a

t 
H

e
re

fo
rd

, 
p

lu
s 

a
 f

e
w

 w
it
h

 o
th

e
r 

su
rg

e
ri
e

s.
 1

7
 r

e
si

d
e

n
ts

 f
o

u
n

d
 it

 ‘
o

ft
e

n
’ 

d
if
fi
c

u
lt
 a

n
d

 5
3
 ‘

o
c

c
a

si
o

n
a

lly
’ 

d
if
fi
c

u
lt
 t

o
 t

ra
v
e

l 
to

 a
 d

o
c

to
r'
s 

su
rg

e
ry

. 
Th

e
re

 is
 p

u
b

lic
 t

ra
n

sp
o

rt
 t

o
 b

o
th

 L
e

d
b

u
ry

 a
n

d
 H

e
re

fo
rd

. 
 

♦
 

R
e

la
te

d
 t

o
 t

h
e

 m
a

in
 is

su
e

 w
a

s 
p

re
sc

ri
p

ti
o

n
 c

o
lle

c
ti
o

n
 –

 a
g

a
in

 d
if
fi
c

u
lt
y
 w

it
h

 t
ra

n
sp

o
rt

, 
e

sp
e

c
ia

lly
 t

o
 F

o
w

n
h

o
p

e
. 
 I
n

 t
h

e
 A

d
u

lt
 

Q
u

e
st

io
n

n
a

ir
e

, 
4
2
 p

e
o

p
le

 f
o

u
n

d
 it

 d
if
fi
c

u
lt
 t

o
 c

o
lle

c
t 

m
e

d
ic

in
e

 o
n

 p
re

sc
ri
p

ti
o

n
, 
3
7
 o

f 
w

h
o

m
 w

e
re

 r
e

g
is

te
re

d
 a

t 
th

e
 F

o
w

n
h

o
p

e
 

su
rg

e
ry

, 
3
 a

t 
Le

d
b

u
ry

 s
u

rg
e

ri
e

s 
a

n
d

 2
 f

ro
m

 o
th

e
r 

su
rg

e
ri
e

s.
 F

o
w

n
h

o
p

e
 s

u
rg

e
ry

 is
 h

o
p

in
g

 t
o

 e
st

a
b

lis
h

 a
 p

re
sc

ri
p

ti
o

n
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 
se

rv
ic

e
 b

u
t 

a
t 

p
re

se
n

t 
sp

a
c

e
 c

o
n

st
ra

in
ts

 m
a

k
e

 t
h

is
 d

if
fi
c

u
lt
. 

♦
 

W
it
h

 r
e

g
a

rd
 t

o
 d

o
c

to
rs

’ 
su

rg
e

ri
e

s,
 in

 t
h

e
 Q

u
e

st
io

n
n

a
ir
e

 5
5
 p

e
o

p
le

 c
la

ss
e

d
 t

h
e

m
se

lv
e

s 
a

s 
‘h

a
v
in

g
 a

 d
is

a
b

ili
ty

, 
lo

n
g

-t
e

rm
 il

ln
e

ss
 

o
r 

in
fi
rm

it
y
’.

  
S
o

m
e

 p
e

o
p

le
 h

a
d

 d
if
fi
c

u
lt
ie

s 
w

it
h

 t
h

e
 s

u
rg

e
ry

 h
o

u
rs

 a
n

d
 b

o
o

k
in

g
 a

p
p

o
in

tm
e

n
ts

. 
 A

ll 
th

e
 l
o

c
a

l 
su

rg
e

ri
e

s 
h

a
v
e

 a
 

sy
st

e
m

 o
f 

b
lo

c
k
 b

o
o

k
in

g
s 

fo
r 

sa
m

e
-d

a
y
, 
a

s 
w

e
ll 

a
s 

a
d

v
a

n
c

e
 b

o
o

k
in

g
s.

  
W

h
e

n
 t

h
e

se
 a

p
p

o
in

tm
e

n
ts

 h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 f
ill

e
d

, 
so

m
e

ti
m

e
s 

p
a

ti
e

n
ts

 w
ill

 h
a

v
e

 t
o

 h
a

v
e

 a
n

 a
p

p
o

in
tm

e
n

t 
th

e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 d

a
y
. 
 H

o
m

e
 v

is
it
s 

b
y
 d

o
c

to
rs

 w
e

re
 a

ls
o

 m
e

n
ti
o

n
e

d
 –

 
h

o
w

e
v
e

r 
th

is
 is

 a
lw

a
y
s 

a
t 

th
e

 d
is

c
re

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 d

o
c

to
r’

s 
a

ss
e

ss
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
th

e
 n

e
e

d
 o

f 
th

e
 p

a
ti
e

n
t.

  
 T

h
e

 p
o

ss
ib

ili
ty

 o
f 

a
 d

o
c

to
r 

o
r 

n
u

rs
e

 d
o

in
g

 a
 s

u
rg

e
ry

 a
t 

th
e

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 H

a
ll 

in
 t

h
e

 v
ill

a
g

e
 w

a
s 

ra
is

e
d

. 
 I
t 

w
a

s 
fe

lt
 t

h
a

t,
 w

it
h

 a
 s

te
e

p
 s

ta
ir
c

a
se

, 
a

n
d

 n
o

 s
u

it
a

b
le

 
p

ri
v
a

te
 r

o
o

m
s 

d
o

w
n

st
a

ir
s 

th
e

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 H

a
ll 

w
o

u
ld

 n
o

t 
b

e
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
, 
e

xc
e

p
t 

fo
r 

g
e

n
e

ra
l 
fl
u

 ja
b

s 
e

tc
. 

♦
 

S
e

v
e

ra
l 
p

e
o

p
le

 m
e

n
ti
o

n
e

d
 t

h
e

 p
ro

b
le

m
 o

f 
re

g
is

te
ri
n

g
 w

it
h

 a
n

 N
H

S
 d

e
n

ti
st

 w
it
h

in
 a

 r
e

a
so

n
a

b
le

 d
is

ta
n

c
e

. 
 

♦
 

O
th

e
r 

p
o

in
ts

 r
a

is
e

d
 w

e
re

: 
(a

) 
Th

e
 l
o

n
g

 w
a

it
in

g
 t

im
e

 a
t 

th
e

 A
&

E
 H

e
re

fo
rd

 (
w

h
ic

h
 w

e
 u

n
d

e
rs

ta
n

d
 t

o
 b

e
 a

 m
a

xi
m

u
m

 t
im

e
 o

f 
4
 h

o
u

rs
, 
w

h
ic

h
 is

 s
ta

n
d

a
rd

);
 

(b
) 
C

o
u

n
se

llo
rs

 f
o

r 
y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 a
n

d
 t

h
is

 h
a

s 
b

e
e

n
 f

o
rw

a
rd

e
d

 t
o

 t
h

e
 Y

o
u

th
 W

G
; 

(c
) 
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

 a
b

o
u

t 
d

if
fi
c

u
lt
ie

s 
o

f 
w

h
e

e
lc

h
a

ir
 a

c
c

e
ss

 a
ro

u
n

d
 t

h
e

 v
ill

a
g

e
, 
a

n
d

 t
h

is
 h

a
s 

b
e

e
n

 p
a

ss
e

d
 o

n
 t

o
 t

h
e

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 

Fa
c

ili
ti
e

s 
W

G
. 

53



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

3
0

 
  

Is
su

e
 

H
e

a
lt
h

 &
 S

o
c

ia
l 
S
e

rv
ic

e
s 

A
c

ti
o

n
 

P
la

n
 

Ti
m

e
sc

a
le

 
R

e
sp

o
n

si
b

ili
ty

 
P
a

rt
n

e
rs

 
C

o
st

/ 

R
e

so
u

rc
e

s 
Tr

a
n

sp
o

rt
 t

o
 a

n
d

 f
ro

m
 D

rs
’ 

Su
rg

e
ri
e

s,
 a

n
d

 f
o

r 
a

ll 
o

th
e

r 
re

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

 t
o

 a
n

d
 f

ro
m

 
v

ill
a

g
e

, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 o

u
ti

n
g

s 
fo

r 
sh

o
p

p
in

g
 e

tc
. 

 

R
in

g
-&

-R
id

e
, 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 V

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 

A
c

ti
o

n
 c

o
v

e
rs

 T
a

rr
in

g
to

n
. 

M
o

re
 v

o
lu

n
te

e
r 

d
ri
v

e
rs

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

d
. 
 

A
d

v
e

rt
is

e
 in

 T
a

rr
in

g
to

n
 T

a
tl

e
r 

 A
SA

P
 

 Ta
rr

in
g

to
n

 p
e

o
p

le
 in

 
c

o
n

ju
n

c
ti

o
n

 w
it

h
 

R
e

g
 T

a
y
lo

r 
o

f 
R

in
g

-
&

-R
id

e
 

 

 N
/A

 
 N

o
 c

o
st

 t
o

 P
C

 

 P
re

sc
ri

p
ti
o

n
 C

o
lle

c
ti
o

n
 

fr
o

m
 (

a
) 

Fo
w

n
h

o
p

e
 

   
  

  
  

  
 

  
  

  
  

  
 

  
  

  
  

  
 

  
  

  
  

  
 

  
  

  
  

 (
b

) 
Le

d
b

u
ry

 
 

 M
a

u
ri
c

e
 S

m
it

h
 (

p
lu

s 
A

 N
 O

th
e

r 
fo

r 
M

S 
to

 a
rr

a
n

g
e

 w
h

e
n

 h
e

 is
 a

w
a

y
) 

in
 

c
o

n
ju

n
c

ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 F
o

w
n

h
o

p
e

 s
u

rg
e

ry
. 
  

    A
s 

th
e

re
 is

 p
u

b
lic

 t
ra

n
sp

o
rt

 t
o

 a
n

d
 

fr
o

m
 L

e
d

b
u

ry
, 
it

 w
a

s 
fe

lt
 u

n
n

e
c

e
ss

a
ry

 
to

 o
rg

a
n

is
e

 a
 p

re
sc

ri
p

ti
o

n
 c

o
lle

c
ti

o
n

 
sc

h
e

m
e

 f
ro

m
 L

e
d

b
u

ry
. 

 

    Im
m

e
d

ia
te

 
 

    Fo
w

n
h

o
p

e
 S

u
rg

e
ry

 
in

 c
o

n
ju

n
c

ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 
M

a
u

ri
c

e
 S

m
it

h
 a

n
d

 
o

th
e

r 
Ta

rr
in

g
to

n
 

re
si

d
e

n
ts

. 
   

    N
H

S 

    N
o

 c
o

st
 t

o
 P

C
 

V
is

it
 t

o
 v

ill
a

g
e

 b
y

 d
o

c
to

r 
o

r 

n
u

rs
e

  

Th
e

re
 is

 a
 n

a
ti

o
n

a
l s

c
h

e
m

e
 in

 t
h

e
 

p
ip

e
lin

e
 b

y
 t

h
e

 D
e

p
a

rt
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
H

e
a

lt
h

 t
o

 m
a

n
a

g
e

 lo
n

g
-t

e
rm

 il
ln

e
ss

e
s 

b
y
 ‘

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
’ 

m
a

tr
o

n
s 

in
 o

rd
e

r 
to

 
a

v
o

id
 h

o
sp

it
a

l t
re

a
tm

e
n

t.
  

 T
h

is
 w

o
u

ld
 

e
n

ta
il 

h
o

m
e

 v
is

it
s 

to
 t

h
o

se
 s

u
ff

e
ri
n

g
 

fr
o

m
 c

h
ro

n
ic

 il
ln

e
ss

. 
 

 

Tw
o

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 M

a
tr

o
n

 
p

o
st

s 
h

a
v

e
 b

e
e

n
 s

e
t 

u
p

 
in

 H
e

re
fo

rd
 C

it
y
. 
 W

e
 a

re
 

n
o

t 
a

w
a

re
 o

f 
th

e
 

ti
m

e
sc

a
le

 f
o

r 
fu

rt
h

e
r 

p
o

st
s,

 b
u

t 
u

n
d

e
rs

ta
n

d
 

th
a

t 
th

e
y
 a

re
 e

n
v

is
a

g
e

d
 

n
a

ti
o

n
w

id
e

. 

    P
ri
m

a
ry

 C
a

re
 T

ru
st

 

    N
H

S 

    N
o

 c
o

st
 t

o
 P

C
 

N
H

S
 D

e
n

ti
st

 –
 d

if
fi
c

u
lt
 t

o
 

fi
n

d
 

 G
e

n
e

ra
l 
la

c
k

 o
f 
h

o
w

 t
o

 

c
o

n
ta

c
t 

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s 

 G
P
 r

e
g

is
tr

a
ti
o

n
 

 

N
H

S 
D

e
n

ta
l A

c
c

e
ss

 C
e

n
tr

e
s 

a
re

 in
 

H
e

re
fo

rd
, 
R

o
ss

, 
a

n
d

 L
e

d
b

u
ry

. 
 

D
e

n
ta

l 
H

e
lp

lin
e

 0
1

4
3

2
 3

6
3

 9
7

1
 

N
H

S
 D

ir
e

c
t 

–
 0

8
4

5
 4

6
4

7
 

R
in

g
-&

-R
id

e
 (

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 T

ra
n

sp
o

rt
) 

 
–
 0

1
5

3
1

 6
3

5
5

0
3

 
G

P
 s

u
rg

e
ry

 i
n

fo
 –

 0
1

4
3

2
 3

6
3

9
7

2
 

Th
e

se
 e

xi
st

 n
o

w
. 

 Fu
tu

re
 T

a
rr

in
g

to
n

 T
a

tl
e

rs
 

c
o

u
ld

 h
a

v
e

 p
e

rm
a

n
e

n
t 

fe
a

tu
re

 o
f 

th
e

se
 4

 t
e

l. 
N

o
s.

 t
o

 h
e

lp
 n

e
w

 p
e

o
p

le
 

to
 t

h
e

 a
re

a
. 

N
H

S 
P

ri
m

a
ry

 C
a

re
 

Tr
u

st
  

 E
d

it
o

r 
o

f 
Ta

rr
in

g
to

n
 

Ta
tl

e
r 

N
H

S 
  N

/A
 

N
o

 c
o

st
 t

o
 P

C
 

  N
o

 c
o

st
 t

o
 P

C
 

54



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

3
1

4
.6

 
Y

o
u

n
g

 P
e

o
p

le
’s

 I
n

te
re

st
s 

 In
tr

o
d

u
c

ti
o

n
 

 C
u

rr
e

n
tl
y
 f

e
w

 s
p

e
c

if
ic

 f
a

c
ili

ti
e

s 
a

re
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 in
 t

h
e

 P
a

ri
sh

 f
o

r 
y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

. 
 T

h
e

re
 is

 S
u

n
d

a
y
 f

o
o

tb
a

ll,
 t

h
e

 c
h

ild
re

n
’s

 p
la

y
g

ro
u

n
d

 
b

e
h

in
d

 t
h

e
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 H

a
ll 

a
n

d
 t

h
e

 N
a

tu
re

 C
lu

b
. 
 T

h
e

re
 is

 a
ls

o
 t

h
e

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
y
 t

o
 jo

in
 in

 a
ll-

a
g

e
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s 
su

c
h

 a
s 

c
ri
c

k
e

t 
(o

v
e

r 
th

e
 s

u
m

m
e

r)
, 
b

a
d

m
in

to
n

 a
n

d
 b

o
w

ls
. 

 A
 Y

o
u

th
 S

u
rv

e
y
 (

su
p

p
le

m
e

n
ta

l 
to

 t
h

e
 A

d
u

lt
 Q

u
e

st
io

n
n

a
ir
e

) 
w

a
s 

g
iv

e
n

 t
o

 a
ll 

c
h

ild
re

n
 in

 t
h

e
 v

ill
a

g
e

 a
g

e
d

 4
 –

 1
8
 y

e
a

rs
. 
 7

8
 f

o
rm

s 
w

e
re

 r
e

tu
rn

e
d

; 
m

o
re

 t
h

a
n

 9
0
%

 o
f 

th
e

 t
o

ta
l!
  

Th
e

 s
p

lit
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 m

a
le

 a
n

d
 f

e
m

a
le

 w
a

s 
4
6
%

 t
o

 5
4
%

. 
 U

n
d

e
r 

1
4
s 

a
c

c
o

u
n

te
d

 f
o

r 
8
0
%

 
o

f 
th

e
 t

o
ta

l. 
 Th

e
 I

ss
u

e
s 

 

 Th
e

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 w
h

o
 r

e
sp

o
n

d
e

d
 t

o
 t

h
e

 Q
u

e
st

io
n

n
a

ir
e

 s
p

e
n

d
 m

u
c

h
 o

f 
th

e
ir
 t

im
e

 w
a

tc
h

in
g

 T
V

, 
v
is

it
in

g
 f

ri
e

n
d

s 
a

n
d

 r
id

in
g

 
b

ic
y
c

le
s.

  
A

b
o

u
t 

a
 t

h
ir
d

 p
la

y
 c

o
m

p
u

te
r 

g
a

m
e

s 
a

n
d

 f
o

o
tb

a
ll.

  
S
m

a
ll 

n
u

m
b

e
rs

 e
n

jo
y
 B

ro
w

n
ie

s,
 s

k
a

te
b

o
a

rd
in

g
, 
N

a
tu

re
 C

lu
b

, 
h

o
rs

e
 

ri
d

in
g

, 
sw

im
m

in
g

 a
n

d
 r

u
g

b
y
. 

 O
n

 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

q
u

e
st

io
n

in
g

, 
it
 b

e
c

o
m

e
s 

c
le

a
r 

th
a

t 
m

a
n

y
 c

h
ild

re
n

 h
a

v
e

 a
n

y
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
p

la
n

n
e

d
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s 
(o

ft
e

n
 s

c
h

o
o

l 
re

la
te

d
) 

o
n

 
m

o
st

 w
e

e
k
d

a
y
 e

v
e

n
in

g
s.

  
Th

e
 g

a
p

s 
re

la
te

 t
o

 in
fo

rm
a

l 
th

in
g

s 
to

 d
o

 l
o

c
a

lly
 a

n
d

 t
o

 h
o

lid
a

y
 t

im
e

s.
  

It
 is

 t
h

e
se

 g
a

p
s 

th
a

t 
o

u
r 

A
P

 is
 

d
e

si
g

n
e

d
 t

o
 f

ill
. 

 M
o

st
 r

e
ly

 o
n

 f
a

m
ily

 m
e

m
b

e
rs

 t
o

 t
ra

v
e

l 
to

 H
e

re
fo

rd
 o

r 
Le

d
b

u
ry

. 
 A

 t
h

ir
d

 u
se

 t
h

e
 b

u
s 

so
m

e
ti
m

e
s.

 
 N

e
a

rl
y
 a

ll 
fe

e
l 
th

a
t 

Ta
rr

in
g

to
n

 is
 a

 q
u

ie
t,

 s
a

fe
 v

ill
a

g
e

 w
it
h

 f
ri
e

n
d

ly
 p

e
o

p
le

 a
n

d
 p

le
a

sa
n

t 
c

o
u

n
tr

y
si

d
e

. 
 H

o
w

e
v
e

r,
 t

h
e

y
 a

re
 c

ri
ti
c

a
l 
o

f 
th

e
 l
a

c
k
 o

f 
sp

o
rt

in
g

 a
n

d
 y

o
u

th
 f

a
c

ili
ti
e

s 
a

n
d

 c
o

n
c

e
rn

e
d

 a
b

o
u

t 
b

a
d

 b
e

h
a

v
io

u
r.

 
 K

e
y
 c

o
n

c
e

rn
s 

id
e

n
ti
fi
e

d
 in

 t
h

e
 Q

u
e

st
io

n
n

a
ir
e

 w
e

re
: 

 S
p

e
e

d
in

g
 t

ra
ff

ic
/m

a
in

 r
o

a
d

 c
ro

ss
in

g
/s

ig
n

a
g

e
/f

o
o

tp
a

th
s/

c
y
c

le
 p

a
th

s 
B

o
re

d
o

m
 

E
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

t 
(d

o
g

 m
e

ss
 a

n
d

 l
it
te

r)
 

B
u

lly
in

g
 a

n
d

 a
n

ti
-s

o
c

ia
l 
b

e
h

a
v
io

u
r 

La
c

k
 o

f 
v
ill

a
g

e
 s

h
o

p
 

55



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

3
2

 A
 d

e
ta

ile
d

 a
n

a
ly

si
s 

o
f 

th
e

 r
e

sp
o

n
se

s 
to

 t
h

e
 q

u
e

st
io

n
 "

W
h

a
t 

w
o

u
ld

 m
a

k
e

 T
a

rr
in

g
to

n
 a

 b
e

tt
e

r 
p

la
c

e
" 

id
e

n
ti
fi
e

d
 t

h
e

 f
o

llo
w

in
g

 is
su

e
s 

a
s 

th
e

 m
o

st
 im

p
o

rt
a

n
t 

a
n

d
 w

e
ll 

a
h

e
a

d
 o

f 
a

ll 
o

th
e

rs
; 

1
st
 p

ri
o

ri
ty

: 
a

 s
h

o
p

/P
O

 
2

n
d
 p

ri
o

ri
ty

: 
a

 p
e

d
e

st
ri
a

n
 c

ro
ss

in
g

 o
n

 t
h

e
 A

4
3
8
 

3
rd

 p
ri
o

ri
ty

: 
(a

ll 
e

q
u

a
l)

 c
y
c

le
 l
a

n
e

s,
 y

o
u

th
 c

lu
b

/d
is

c
o

, 
a

n
d

 k
ic

k
a

b
o

u
t/

p
la

y
 a

re
a

 
 R

o
a

d
 a

n
d

 T
ra

ff
ic

 r
e

la
te

d
 is

su
e

s,
 E

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

t 
is

su
e

s 
a

n
d

 S
h

o
p

/P
O

 f
a

ll 
m

o
re

 d
ir
e

c
tl
y
 u

n
d

e
r 

th
e

 s
c

o
p

e
 o

f 
o

th
e

r 
W

G
s 

(T
ra

ff
ic

 &
 

Tr
a

n
sp

o
rt

, 
E
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 F

a
c

ili
ti
e

s 
re

sp
e

c
ti
v
e

ly
) 

a
n

d
 a

re
 a

d
d

re
ss

e
d

 in
 t

h
e

ir
 A

P
s.

 
 A

c
c

o
rd

in
g

ly
 w

e
 p

la
c

e
d

 o
u

r 
fo

c
u

s 
o

n
 t

h
e

 r
e

m
a

in
in

g
 is

su
e

s 
o

f 
K

ic
k
a

b
o

u
t/

P
la

y
 a

re
a

 (
a

n
d

 r
e

la
te

d
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s)
 a

n
d

 y
o

u
th

 c
lu

b
/d

is
c

o
. 
 

 W
e

 a
ls

o
 d

e
c

id
e

d
 t

o
 a

d
d

re
ss

 a
n

o
th

e
r 

is
su

e
 t

h
a

t 
w

a
s 

ra
is

e
d

 o
n

 a
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
o

c
c

a
si

o
n

s 
d

u
ri
n

g
 o

u
r 

d
is

c
u

ss
io

n
s:

 "
B

ri
n

g
in

g
 t

o
g

e
th

e
r 

a
re

a
s 

o
f 

th
e

 v
ill

a
g

e
 a

n
d

 a
g

e
-g

ro
u

p
s 

th
a

t 
h

a
v
e

n
’t

 t
ra

d
it
io

n
a

lly
 m

ix
e

d
".

  
 Th

e
 is

su
e

 o
f 

c
o

u
n

se
lli

n
g

 f
o

r 
y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 w
a

s 
re

fe
rr

e
d

 t
o

 u
s 

b
y
 t

h
e

 H
e

a
lt
h

 a
n

d
 S

o
c

ia
l 
S
e

rv
ic

e
s 

W
G

 b
u

t 
w

e
 d

id
 n

o
t 

fe
e

l 
th

a
t 

th
is

 
w

a
s 

e
it
h

e
r 

a
p

p
ro

p
ri
a

te
 o

r 
n

e
e

d
e

d
 a

t 
th

is
 t

im
e

. 
 Y

o
u

n
g

 P
e

o
p

le
 A

c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 

 S
u

m
m

e
r 

“P
ilo

t”
 S

c
h

e
m

e
s 

 W
e

 h
a

v
e

 a
p

p
ro

a
c

h
e

d
 t

h
e

 c
e

n
tr

a
l 
is

su
e

 o
f 

y
o

u
th

 a
c

ti
v
it
ie

s 
in

 t
w

o
 p

h
a

se
s.

  
W

e
 f

e
lt
 t

h
a

t 
it
 w

a
s 

im
p

o
rt

a
n

t 
fo

r 
u

s 
to

 l
a

u
n

c
h

 a
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
“
p

ilo
t”

 p
ro

je
c

ts
 o

v
e

r 
th

e
 s

u
m

m
e

r 
o

f 
2
0
0
6
 b

o
th

 t
o

 f
in

d
 o

u
t 

in
 m

o
re

 d
e

p
th

 w
h

a
t 

w
e

re
 t

h
e

 n
e

e
d

s 
a

n
d

 in
te

re
st

s 
o

f 
th

e
 y

o
u

n
g

 
p

e
o

p
le

 in
 T

a
rr

in
g

to
n

 a
n

d
 s

e
c

o
n

d
ly

 t
o

 g
a

u
g

e
 h

o
w

 m
u

c
h

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 a
n

d
 e

xp
e

ri
e

n
c

e
 w

e
 h

a
d

 in
 t

h
e

 v
ill

a
g

e
 t

o
 o

p
e

ra
te

 s
u

c
h

 s
c

h
e

m
e

s 
su

c
c

e
ss

fu
lly

. 
Th

e
 “

p
ilo

t”
 s

c
h

e
m

e
s 

w
e

 o
p

e
ra

te
d

 o
v
e

r 
th

e
 s

u
m

m
e

r 
w

e
re

 f
o

o
tb

a
ll,

 c
ri
c

k
e

t,
 t

e
n

n
is

, 
b

a
d

m
in

to
n

, 
c

o
o

k
in

g
, 
g

a
rd

e
n

in
g

, 
fi
sh

in
g

, 
fi
rs

t-
a

id
, 
d

ra
m

a
, 
c

y
c

lin
g

 a
n

d
 s

k
a

te
-b

o
a

rd
in

g
. 
 F

o
o

tb
a

ll,
 c

ri
c

k
e

t,
 t

e
n

n
is

, 
b

a
d

m
in

to
n

 a
n

d
 c

o
o

k
in

g
 p

ro
v
e

d
 g

re
a

t 
su

c
c

e
ss

e
s.

  
Fi

rs
t-

a
id

 
a

n
d

 g
a

rd
e

n
in

g
 w

e
re

 r
e

a
so

n
a

b
ly

 w
e

ll 
su

p
p

o
rt

e
d

 b
u

t 
c

y
c

lin
g

, 
fi
sh

in
g

 a
n

d
 s

k
a

te
-b

o
a

rd
in

g
 w

e
re

 n
o

t 
so

 w
e

ll 
a

tt
e

n
d

e
d

. 
 H

o
w

e
v
e

r,
 it

 
is

 t
o

o
 e

a
rl
y
 t

o
 d

is
m

is
s 

a
n

y
 o

f 
th

e
se

 p
ro

je
c

ts
 f

o
r 

th
e

 f
u

tu
re

 a
n

d
 o

u
r 

p
re

se
n

t 
in

te
n

ti
o

n
 is

 t
o

 r
u

n
 t

h
e

m
 a

ll 
a

g
a

in
 n

e
xt

 s
u

m
m

e
r.

  
It

 is
 

h
o

p
e

d
 in

 f
a

c
t 

th
a

t 
w

e
 m

a
y
 b

e
 a

b
le

 t
o

 r
u

n
 t

h
e

m
, 
o

r 
so

m
e

 o
f 

th
e

m
, 
o

v
e

r 
o

th
e

r 
h

o
lid

a
y
s 

a
s 

w
e

ll 
(e

.g
. 
C

h
ri
st

m
a

s)
. 
 W

e
 d

o
n

’t
 o

f 
c

o
u

rs
e

 r
u

le
 o

u
t 

a
d

d
in

g
 m

o
re

 p
ro

je
c

t 
a

re
a

s 
if
 w

e
 f

e
e

l 
th

e
re

 is
 a

n
 in

te
re

st
 t

h
e

re
. 

 

56



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

3
3

It
’s

 t
o

 b
e

 n
o

te
d

 t
h

a
t 

o
n

e
 w

e
lc

o
m

e
 s

p
in

-o
ff

 o
f 

th
e

se
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 h
a

s 
b

e
e

n
 t

h
a

t 
se

v
e

ra
l 
y
o

u
n

g
st

e
rs

 h
a

v
e

 n
o

w
 jo

in
e

d
 o

n
 a

 r
e

g
u

la
r 

b
a

si
s 

so
m

e
 o

f 
th

e
 p

e
rm

a
n

e
n

t 
sp

o
rt

s 
g

ro
u

p
s 

in
 t

h
e

 v
ill

a
g

e
 (

e
.g

. 
th

e
 B

a
d

m
in

to
n

 C
lu

b
 a

t 
th

e
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 H

a
ll)

. 
 B

a
rb

e
c

u
e

 a
n

d
 F

u
n

 D
a

y
 i
n

 B
a

rr
s 

O
rc

h
a

rd
 

 O
n

 2
7
 A

u
g

u
st

 2
0
0
6
 w

e
 o

rg
a

n
is

e
d

 a
 b

a
rb

e
c

u
e

 a
n

d
 s

tr
e

e
t 

p
a

rt
y
 w

it
h

 v
a

ri
o

u
s 

a
c

ti
v
it
ie

s 
in

 B
a

rr
s 

O
rc

h
a

rd
. 
 T

h
is

 w
a

s 
v
e

ry
 w

e
ll 

a
tt

e
n

d
e

d
 a

n
d

 w
e

 t
h

in
k
 a

 g
re

a
t 

su
c

c
e

ss
 –

 e
sp

e
c

ia
lly

 in
 b

ri
n

g
in

g
 o

u
t 

a
n

d
 t

o
g

e
th

e
r 

a
re

a
s 

o
f 

th
e

 v
ill

a
g

e
 a

n
d

 a
g

e
-g

ro
u

p
s 

th
a

t 
h

a
v
e

n
’t

 t
ra

d
it
io

n
a

lly
 m

ix
e

d
 (

se
e

 p
h

o
to

 8
).

  
O

u
r 

in
te

n
ti
o

n
 is

 t
o

 r
e

p
e

a
t 

th
is

 e
xe

rc
is

e
 a

g
a

in
 n

e
xt

 y
e

a
r.

  
C

o
n

si
d

e
ra

ti
o

n
 w

ill
 a

ls
o

 b
e

 
g

iv
e

n
, 
in

 c
o

n
ju

n
c

ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 P

C
, 
to

 w
h

e
th

e
r 

it
’s

 f
e

a
si

b
le

 t
o

 r
u

n
 s

im
ila

r 
e

v
e

n
ts

 f
o

r 
o

th
e

r 
a

re
a

s 
o

f 
th

e
 p

a
ri
sh

 (
e

.g
. 
G

a
rb

ro
o

k
, 

D
u

rl
o

w
, 
E
a

st
w

o
o

d
) 

th
a

t 
p

e
rh

a
p

s 
a

re
 a

 l
it
tl
e

 is
o

la
te

d
 f

ro
m

 m
a

in
 v

ill
a

g
e

 a
c

ti
v
it
ie

s.
 

 Y
o

u
th

 C
lu

b
 

 It
 h

a
s 

a
lw

a
y
s 

b
e

e
n

 a
c

k
n

o
w

le
d

g
e

d
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
re

 is
 a

 n
e

e
d

 f
o

r 
a

 Y
o

u
th

 C
lu

b
 in

 T
a

rr
in

g
to

n
. 
Fo

llo
w

in
g

 t
h

e
 s

u
c

c
e

ss
fu

l 
p

ilo
t 

sc
h

e
m

e
s,

 a
 

fe
a

si
b

ili
ty

 s
tu

d
y
 w

a
s 

c
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

e
d

 c
o

n
su

lt
in

g
 y

o
u

n
g

 p
e

o
p

le
 f

ro
m

 T
a

rr
in

g
to

n
, 
a

s 
w

e
ll 

a
s 

th
e

 n
e

ig
h

b
o

u
ri
n

g
 p

a
ri
sh

e
s 

o
f 

S
to

k
e

 E
d

it
h

 
a

n
d

 D
o

rm
in

g
to

n
. 
Th

is
 s

tu
d

y
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
e

d
 t

h
e

 im
m

e
d

ia
te

 e
st

a
b

lis
h

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

a
 Y

o
u

th
 C

lu
b

 t
o

 s
e

rv
e

 t
h

e
se

 t
h

re
e

 p
a

ri
sh

e
s.

 A
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 

w
a

s 
e

st
a

b
lis

h
e

d
 t

o
 d

o
 t

h
is

, 
a

n
d

 o
n

 1
6
 F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 2

0
0
7
 t

h
e

 Y
o

u
th

 C
lu

b
 w

a
s 

la
u

n
c

h
e

d
 w

it
h

 a
 d

is
c

o
. 
Th

e
 Y

o
u

th
 C

lu
b

 h
a

s 
b

e
e

n
 g

iv
e

n
 

a
 g

ra
n

t 
fr

o
m

 t
h

e
 H

e
re

fo
rd

 Y
o

u
th

 O
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s 
Fu

n
d

 a
n

d
 s

o
 it

 is
 n

o
w

 a
b

le
 t

o
 in

v
e

st
 in

 e
q

u
ip

m
e

n
t 

to
 u

se
 in

 it
s 

w
e

e
k
ly

 s
e

ss
io

n
s 

o
n

 
Th

u
rs

d
a

y
 e

v
e

n
in

g
s.

 T
h

e
 Y

o
u

th
 C

lu
b

 C
o

m
m

it
te

e
 w

ill
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

 t
o

 w
o

rk
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 y

o
u

n
g

st
e

rs
 in

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

in
g

 t
h

e
 C

lu
b

 a
s 

a
 s

o
c

ia
l 

a
tt

ra
c

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 a
s 

a
 p

la
c

e
 w

h
e

re
 y

o
u

th
 c

a
n

 t
h

ri
v
e

. 
  

  
 K

ic
k

a
b

o
u

t/
P

la
y

 A
re

a
 f

o
r 

Y
o

u
n

g
st

e
rs

 

 W
e

 c
e

rt
a

in
ly

 b
e

lie
v
e

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 o
f 

th
e

 v
ill

a
g

e
 n

e
e

d
 a

n
d

 d
e

se
rv

e
 t

h
e

ir
 o

w
n

 d
e

d
ic

a
te

d
 p

la
c

e
s 

to
 g

a
th

e
r 

a
n

d
 p

la
y
. 

 Th
e

re
 a

re
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 t

h
re

e
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 p

la
y
 a

re
a

s 
fo

r 
c

h
ild

re
n

 –
 b

u
t 

o
n

ly
 o

n
e

 is
 in

 u
se

: 
 

•
 

Th
e

 a
re

a
 b

e
h

in
d

 t
h

e
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 H

a
ll 

(c
u

rr
e

n
tl
y
 in

 u
se

).
 T

h
is

 a
re

a
 is

 a
ls

o
 u

se
d

 a
s 

a
 f

o
o

tb
a

ll 
p

it
c

h
 a

n
d

 f
o

r 
c

ri
c

k
e

t 
n

e
ts

. 
•
 

Th
e

 g
re

e
n

 a
re

a
s 

w
it
h

in
 B

a
rr

's
 O

rc
h

a
rd

 (
th

e
 p

la
y
 e

q
u

ip
m

e
n

t 
h

a
s 

b
e

e
n

 r
e

m
o

v
e

d
 b

y
 E

lg
a

r 
H

o
u

si
n

g
) 

•
 

Th
e

 p
u

b
lic

 g
re

e
n

 s
p

a
c

e
 in

 f
ro

n
t 

o
f 

C
h

u
rc

h
 V

ie
w

 o
w

n
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 P
C

 (
n

o
t 

c
u

rr
e

n
tl
y
 in

 u
se

) 
 

Fu
rt

h
e

r 
a

n
a

ly
si

s 
is

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

d
 t

o
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
 t

h
e

 b
e

st
 u

se
 a

n
d

 s
u

it
a

b
ili

ty
 o

f 
th

e
se

 f
a

c
ili

ti
e

s.
 

57



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

3
4

 B
o

th
 t

h
e

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 f
o

r 
Ta

rr
in

g
to

n
 e

v
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 t

h
e

 A
d

u
lt
 Q

u
e

st
io

n
n

a
ir
e

 s
h

o
w

e
d

 a
 h

ig
h

 l
e

v
e

l 
o

f 
in

te
re

st
 in

 a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
o

u
td

o
o

r 
a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s 
su

c
h

 a
s 

Te
n

n
is

 C
o

u
rt

, 
C

ri
c

k
e

t 
P

it
c

h
, 
P

la
y
in

g
 F

ie
ld

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

se
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s 
fo

rm
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 F

a
c

ili
ti
e

s 
A

c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n

. 
Th

e
se

 f
a

c
ili

ti
e

s 
w

o
u

ld
 a

ls
o

 b
e

 a
v
a

ila
b

le
 t

o
 t

h
e

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 o
f 

th
e

 P
a

ri
sh

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 L
E
C

H
 w

ill
 b

e
a

r 
th

is
 in

 m
in

d
 a

s 
th

e
y
 c

o
n

d
u

c
t 

a
 

fe
a

si
b

ili
ty

 s
tu

d
y
 (

re
f 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 F

a
c

ili
ti
e

s 
A

c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 p
. 
2
7
).

 
 Ti

m
e

sc
a

le
 

 Th
e

 t
im

e
sc

a
le

s 
fo

r 
o

u
r 

a
b

o
v
e

 in
it
ia

ti
v
e

s 
a

re
 im

p
lic

it
 in

 w
h

a
t 

w
e

’v
e

 s
a

id
. 
 H

o
w

e
v
e

r,
 in

 e
ss

e
n

c
e

:-
 

 S
u

m
m

e
r 

sc
h

e
m

e
s 

  S
u

m
m

e
r 

2
0
0
7
 a

n
d

 h
o

p
e

fu
lly

 f
u

tu
re

 s
u

m
m

e
rs

. 
 B

a
rr

s 
O

rc
h

a
rd

 E
v

e
n

t 
 

 A
u

g
u

st
 2

0
0
7
 

 Y
o

u
th

 C
lu

b
  

 A
lr
e

a
d

y
 u

p
 a

n
d

 r
u

n
n

in
g

. 
 K

ic
k

a
b

o
u

t/
P

la
y

 A
re

a
  

 Fe
a

si
b

ili
ty

 s
tu

d
ie

s 
to

 s
ta

rt
 im

m
e

d
ia

te
ly

 
 R

e
sp

o
n

si
b

ili
ty

 
 W

e
 h

a
v
e

 a
lr
e

a
d

y
 f

o
rm

e
d

 a
 Y

o
u

th
 S

te
e

ri
n

g
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 f

o
rm

a
lly

 t
a

k
e

 o
v
e

r 
re

sp
o

n
si

b
ili

ty
 f

o
r 

d
ri
v
in

g
 f

o
rw

a
rd

 Y
o

u
th

 
A

c
ti
v
it
ie

s 
fr

o
m

 t
h

e
 p

re
se

n
t 

Y
o

u
th

 W
G

 o
f 

th
e

 P
a

ri
sh

 P
la

n
 S

te
e

ri
n

g
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 o

n
c

e
 t

h
e

 l
a

tt
e

r 
is

 d
is

so
lv

e
d

 o
n

 c
o

m
p

le
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 

P
a

ri
sh

 P
la

n
. 
Th

e
 Y

o
u

th
 C

lu
b

 w
ill

 b
e

 r
u

n
 b

y
 a

 s
e

p
a

ra
te

 C
o

m
m

it
te

e
 w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 m

a
in

 Y
o

u
th

 S
te

e
ri
n

g
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
. 
 T

h
e

 
La

d
y
 E

m
ily

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 H

a
ll 

C
o

m
m

it
te

e
 w

ill
 t

a
k
e

 r
e

sp
o

n
si

b
ili

ty
 f

o
r 

b
o

th
 t

h
e

se
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
s.

 
 

58



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

3
5

 4
.7

 
C

ri
m

e
 &

 S
a

fe
ty

 A
c

ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 
 In

tr
o

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 

 Th
e

 C
ri
m

e
 &

 S
a

fe
ty

 W
G

 h
a

d
 a

 s
e

ri
e

s 
o

f 
m

e
e

ti
n

g
s 

a
n

d
 r

e
v
ie

w
e

d
 t

h
e

 d
a

ta
 o

n
 t

h
is

 is
su

e
 c

o
lle

c
te

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 f
o

r 
Ta

rr
in

g
to

n
 

(P
fT

) 
a

n
d

 t
h

e
 Q

u
e

st
io

n
n

a
ir
e

. 
 R

e
p

re
se

n
ta

ti
v
e

s 
o

f 
th

e
 v

ill
a

g
e

 N
e

ig
h

b
o

u
rh

o
o

d
 W

a
tc

h
 s

c
h

e
m

e
 (

“
th

e
 N

W
”)

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 l
o

c
a

l 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

(“
th

e
 C

S
O

”)
 w

e
re

 in
v
o

lv
e

d
 in

 a
ll 

d
is

c
u

ss
io

n
s 

a
n

d
 W

e
st

 M
e

rc
ia

 P
o

lic
e

 w
e

re
 a

ls
o

 c
o

n
su

lt
e

d
 o

n
 t

h
e

 
is

su
e

s 
a

n
d

 t
h

e
 p

ro
p

o
se

d
 A

P
. 
 T

h
e

 A
P

 is
 a

p
p

ro
v
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 C
S
O

 a
n

d
 W

e
st

 M
e

rc
ia

 P
o

lic
e

 a
n

d
 h

a
s 

th
e

ir
 f

u
ll 

su
p

p
o

rt
. 

 
Th

e
 I

ss
u

e
s 

 

 Th
a

n
k
fu

lly
, 
c

ri
m

e
 is

 c
le

a
rl
y
 n

o
t 

a
 m

a
jo

r 
is

su
e

 in
 T

a
rr

in
g

to
n

. 
 I
n

 t
h

e
 P

fT
 e

v
e

n
t,

 o
n

ly
 t

w
o

 f
la

g
s 

re
la

ti
n

g
 t

o
 c

ri
m

e
 is

su
e

s 
w

e
re

 p
la

c
e

d
 

a
n

d
 in

 t
h

e
 Q

u
e

st
io

n
n

a
ir
e

 o
n

ly
 5

%
 o

f 
re

sp
o

n
d

e
n

ts
 s

a
id

 t
h

e
y
 f

e
lt
 u

n
sa

fe
 in

 t
h

e
 P

a
ri
sh

 b
e

c
a

u
se

 o
f 

c
ri
m

e
. 

 H
a

v
in

g
 s

a
id

 t
h

is
, 
it
 is

 c
le

a
r 

fr
o

m
 t

h
e

 a
n

sw
e

rs
 t

o
 t

h
e

 o
th

e
r 

c
ri
m

e
 &

 s
a

fe
ty

 q
u

e
st

io
n

s 
in

 t
h

e
 Q

u
e

st
io

n
n

a
ir
e

 t
h

a
t 

a
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
p

e
o

p
le

 f
e

lt
 t

h
a

t 
sa

fe
ty

 f
ro

m
 c

ri
m

e
 in

 t
h

e
 v

ill
a

g
e

 c
o

u
ld

 b
e

 im
p

ro
v
e

d
 in

 a
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
w

a
y
s.

  
S
e

v
e

ra
l 
p

e
o

p
le

 v
o

ic
e

d
 t

h
e

 w
is

h
 t

o
 

h
a

v
e

 a
 P

o
lic

e
 p

e
rs

o
n

 b
a

se
d

 in
 t

h
e

 P
a

ri
sh

 o
r 

o
n

e
 h

e
re

 o
n

 a
n

 a
lm

o
st

 d
a

ily
 b

a
si

s.
  

Th
is

 w
a

s 
d

is
c

u
ss

e
d

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 P

o
lic

e
 b

u
t 

it
 h

a
s 

to
 b

e
 

a
c

c
e

p
te

d
 t

h
a

t 
se

tt
in

g
 T

a
rr

in
g

to
n

’s
 e

xt
re

m
e

ly
 l
o

w
 c

ri
m

e
 r

a
te

 a
g

a
in

st
 t

h
e

 r
e

so
u

rc
e

s 
a

v
a

ila
b

le
 t

o
 t

h
e

 P
o

lic
e

 t
o

 c
o

m
b

a
t 

m
u

c
h

 
h

ig
h

e
r 

ra
te

s 
o

f 
c

ri
m

e
 e

ls
e

w
h

e
re

, 
th

is
 is

 ju
st

 n
o

t 
a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
. 
 H

o
w

e
v
e

r,
 t

h
e

 P
o

lic
e

 d
id

 a
c

c
e

p
t 

th
a

t 
th

e
re

 is
 r

e
a

l 
c

o
n

c
e

rn
 in

 t
h

e
 

P
a

ri
sh

 w
it
h

 (
a

) 
a

 l
a

c
k
 o

f 
P

o
lic

e
 v

is
ib

ili
ty

 (
e

sp
e

c
ia

lly
 in

 s
o

m
e

 o
u

tl
y
in

g
 a

re
a

s)
 (

b
) 

u
n

c
e

rt
a

in
ly

 h
o

w
 t

o
 c

o
n

ta
c

t 
th

e
 P

o
lic

e
 o

r 
th

e
 C

S
O

 
w

h
e

n
 n

e
e

d
e

d
. 
 W

e
 h

a
v
e

 t
ri
e

d
 t

o
 a

d
d

re
ss

 t
h

e
se

 is
su

e
s,

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 o

f 
th

e
 P

o
lic

e
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 C

S
O

, 
in

 t
h

e
 A

P
. 
 A

n
 e

xt
ra

 C
S
O

 is
 t

o
 

b
e

 m
a

d
e

 a
v
a

ila
b

le
 t

o
 im

p
le

m
e

n
t 

th
e

 P
la

n
. 

 It
 w

a
s 

a
ls

o
 c

le
a

r 
fr

o
m

 t
h

e
 Q

u
e

st
io

n
n

a
ir
e

 t
h

a
t 

a
lt
h

o
u

g
h

 m
o

st
 p

e
o

p
le

 f
e

lt
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 P

a
ri
sh

’s
 N

W
 s

c
h

e
m

e
 w

o
rk

e
d

 q
u

it
e

 w
e

ll,
 q

u
it
e

 a
 

lo
t 

c
o

u
ld

 b
e

 d
o

n
e

 t
o

 im
p

ro
v
e

 it
 –

 in
 t

e
rm

s 
o

f 
in

c
re

a
si

n
g

 it
s 

m
e

m
b

e
rs

h
ip

, 
g

e
o

g
ra

p
h

ic
a

l 
c

o
v
e

r,
 k

n
o

w
le

d
g

e
 o

f 
w

h
o

 t
o

 c
o

n
ta

c
t,

 
h

a
v
in

g
 m

o
re

 r
e

g
u

la
r 

m
e

e
ti
n

g
s 

e
tc

. 
 A

g
a

in
, 
th

e
 A

P
 a

d
d

re
ss

e
s 

th
e

se
 p

o
in

ts
, 
w

it
h

 t
h

e
 e

n
th

u
si

a
st

ic
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 o

f 
th

e
 N

W
 s

c
h

e
m

e
. 

 A
 t

h
ir
d

 is
su

e
 r

a
is

e
d

 b
y
 s

e
v
e

ra
l 
p

e
o

p
le

 w
a

s 
a

n
ti
-s

o
c

ia
l 
b

e
h

a
v
io

u
r,

 l
a

rg
e

ly
 a

m
o

n
g

st
 s

o
m

e
 y

o
u

n
g

 p
e

o
p

le
 in

 t
h

e
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
. 
 T

h
is

 
to

p
ic

 w
a

s 
c

le
a

rl
y
 o

n
e

 o
f 

c
e

n
tr

a
l 
im

p
o

rt
a

n
c

e
 t

o
 t

h
e

 Y
o

u
th

 W
G

 s
o

 t
h

e
 v

ie
w

s 
ra

is
e

d
 b

y
 p

e
o

p
le

 o
n

 t
h

is
 t

o
p

ic
 w

e
re

 r
e

la
y
e

d
 t

o
 t

h
a

t 
G

ro
u

p
 a

n
d

 h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 t
a

k
e

n
 in

to
 a

c
c

o
u

n
t 

in
 f

o
rm

in
g

 t
h

e
 Y

o
u

th
 A

P
. 

 

59



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

3
6

O
n

e
 f

in
a

l 
p

o
in

t.
  

A
lt
h

o
u

g
h

, 
a

s 
h

a
s 

b
e

e
n

 s
a

id
, 
th

e
 c

o
n

c
e

rn
s 

o
f 

th
e

 P
a

ri
sh

 r
e

g
a

rd
in

g
 s

a
fe

ty
 d

u
e

 t
o

 c
ri
m

e
 a

re
 f

a
ir
ly

 l
im

it
e

d
, 
th

e
re

 
w

e
re

 m
a

n
y
 m

o
re

 c
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 m

a
d

e
, 
b

o
th

 a
t 

th
e

 P
fT

 e
v
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 in

 t
h

e
 Q

u
e

st
io

n
n

a
ir
e

, 
a

b
o

u
t 

sa
fe

ty
 d

u
e

 t
o

 t
ra

ff
ic

 a
n

d
 p

o
o

r 
lig

h
ti
n

g
. 
 T

h
e

se
 is

su
e

s 
w

e
re

 d
e

a
lt
 w

it
h

 b
y
 t

h
e

 W
G

 d
e

a
lin

g
 w

it
h

 T
ra

ff
ic

 &
 T

ra
n

sp
o

rt
 a

n
d

 a
re

 a
d

d
re

ss
e

d
 in

 t
h

e
ir
 A

P
. 

 

 

Is
su

e
 

 
C

ri
m

e
 &

 S
a

fe
ty

 A
c

ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 
Ti

m
e

sc
a

le
 

 

R
e

sp
o

n
si

b
ili

ty
 

 

P
a

rt
n

e
rs

 
C

o
st

/ 
R

e
so

u
rc

e
s 

  
La

c
k
 o

f 
p

o
lic

e
 v

is
ib

ili
ty

 

M
o

re
 f

re
q

u
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 b

e
tt

e
r 

p
u

b
lic

iz
e

d
 v

is
it

s 
b

y
 C

SO
 

to
 P

a
ri
sh

 
 Q

u
a

rt
e

rl
y
 P

o
lic

e
 S

u
rg

e
ry

 e
v

e
n

ts
 in

 P
a

ri
sh

 
 

Im
m

e
d

ia
te

 
  

Im
m

e
d

ia
te

 

C
SO

 
  C

SO
/L

o
c

a
l 

P
o

lic
e

 O
ff

ic
e

r 

W
e

st
 M

e
rc

ia
 

C
o

n
st

a
b

u
la

ry
  

 
W

e
st

 M
e

rc
ia

 
C

o
n

st
a

b
u

la
ry

 

  
  

  
  

  
 N

o
n

e
 

  
N

o
n

e
 

 
La

c
k
 o

f 
a

w
a

re
n

e
ss

 
h

o
w

 t
o

 c
o

n
ta

c
t 

p
o

lic
e

 

 

 P
o

lic
e

 a
w

a
re

n
e

ss
 c

o
n

ta
c

t 
c

a
m

p
a

ig
n

 e
.g

. 
•
 

P
a

ri
sh

 n
o

ti
c

e
 b

o
a

rd
s 

•
 

Ta
tl

e
r 

•
 

P
a

ri
sh

 w
e

b
 s

it
e

 

  
Im

m
e

d
ia

te
 

 C
SO

/L
o

c
a

l 
P

o
lic

e
 

O
ff

ic
e

r/
N

W
 

 
W

e
st

 M
e

rc
ia

 
C

o
n

st
a

b
u

la
ry

 

  
N

o
n

e
 

    
O

v
e

rh
a

u
l 

N
e

ig
h

b
o

u
rh

o
o

d
 

W
a

tc
h

 S
c

h
e

m
e

 

In
c

re
a

se
 m

e
m

b
e

rs
h

ip
 

 E
n

su
re

 f
u

ll 
c

o
v

e
ra

g
e

 o
f 

 P
a

ri
sh

 
 E
n

su
re

 t
h

a
t 

e
a

c
h

 N
W

 c
o

-o
rd

in
a

to
r 

is
 k

n
o

w
n

 b
y
 a

ll 
in

 h
is

/h
e

r 
zo

n
e

 
 E
n

su
re

 f
u

ll 
a

v
a

ila
b

ili
ty

 o
f 

N
e

w
sb

e
a

ts
 

 H
o

ld
 r

e
g

u
la

r 
m

e
e

ti
n

g
s 

w
it

h
 P

o
lic

e
 o

p
e

n
 t

o
 a

ll 
v

ill
a

g
e

 a
n

d
 r

e
g

u
la

r 
N

W
 c

o
-o

rd
in

a
to

rs
’ 

m
e

e
ti

n
g

s 
 

    
Im

m
e

d
ia

te
 

    
N

W
 

c
o

o
rd

in
a

to
rs

 

    
W

e
st

 M
e

rc
ia

 
C

o
n

st
a

b
u

la
ry

 

    
N

o
n

e
 

60



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

3
7

5
. 

C
O

N
C

LU
S
IO

N
S
  

 A
t 

th
e

 e
n

d
 o

f 
th

e
 A

d
u

lt
 Q

u
e

st
io

n
n

a
ir
e

 w
e

 a
sk

e
d

 p
e

o
p

le
 w

h
e

th
e

r 
th

e
y
 t

h
o

u
g

h
t 

th
a

t 
th

e
 P

a
ri
sh

 h
a

d
 b

e
c

o
m

e
 a

 b
e

tt
e

r 
o

r 
w

o
rs

e
 

p
la

c
e

 t
o

 l
iv

e
 o

v
e

r 
th

e
 p

a
st

 t
w

o
 y

e
a

rs
. 
 4

0
%

 s
a

id
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
y
 s

a
w

 n
o

 c
h

a
n

g
e

. 
 H

o
w

e
v
e

r,
 2

7
%

 t
h

o
u

g
h

t 
it
 h

a
d

 b
e

c
o

m
e

 b
e

tt
e

r 
a

s 
a

g
a

in
st

 9
%

 w
o

rs
e

. 
 F

o
r 

th
o

se
 w

h
o

 t
h

o
u

g
h

t 
it
 w

a
s 

b
e

tt
e

r,
 t

h
e

 m
a

in
 im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

 s
e

e
m

 t
o

 b
e

 t
h

e
 r

a
n

g
e

 o
f 

a
c

ti
v
it
ie

s/
fa

c
ili

ti
e

s 
o

ff
e

re
d

, 
th

e
 P

u
b

, 
th

e
 t

id
y
in

g
-u

p
 o

f 
th

e
 v

ill
a

g
e

, 
th

e
 in

fl
u

x 
o

f 
n

e
w

 p
e

o
p

le
/i

d
e

a
s,

 b
e

tt
e

r 
in

tr
a

-v
ill

a
g

e
 c

o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 g
e

n
e

ra
lly

 
in

c
re

a
se

d
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 s

p
ir
it
. 
 F

o
r 

th
o

se
 w

h
o

 t
h

o
u

g
h

t 
th

e
 P

a
ri
sh

 h
a

d
 b

e
c

o
m

e
 a

 w
o

rs
e

 p
la

c
e

 t
o

 l
iv

e
, 
th

e
 l
o

ss
 o

f 
th

e
 s

h
o

p
/P

O
 a

n
d

 
D

o
c

to
r’

s 
S
u

rg
e

ry
 w

a
s 

th
e

 m
a

in
 c

o
m

p
la

in
t,

 f
o

llo
w

e
d

 b
y
 in

c
re

a
se

d
 t

ra
ff

ic
 a

n
d

 n
o

is
e

, 
in

a
p

p
ro

p
ri
a

te
 n

e
w

 h
o

u
si

n
g

, 
lit

te
r 

a
n

d
 b

o
re

d
 

y
o

u
th

. 
 A

n
o

th
e

r 
q

u
e

st
io

n
 a

t 
th

e
 e

n
d

 o
f 

th
e

 Q
u

e
st

io
n

n
a

ir
e

 a
sk

e
d

 f
o

r 
g

e
n

e
ra

l 
c

o
m

m
e

n
ts

 o
r 

su
g

g
e

st
io

n
s 

c
o

n
c

e
rn

in
g

 t
h

e
 P

a
ri
sh

. 
 M

a
n

y
 o

f 
th

e
se

 d
u

p
lic

a
te

d
 t

h
e

 a
n

sw
e

rs
 t

o
 t

h
e

 p
re

v
io

u
s 

q
u

e
st

io
n

s.
  

H
o

w
e

v
e

r,
 s

o
m

e
 g

a
v
e

 p
a

u
se

 f
o

r 
th

o
u

g
h

t.
  

O
n

 t
h

e
 p

o
st

iv
e

 s
id

e
, 
th

e
re

 is
 

st
ro

n
g

 f
e

e
lin

g
 t

h
a

t 
Ta

rr
in

g
to

n
 is

 a
 w

o
n

d
e

rf
u

l 
p

la
c

e
 t

o
 l
iv

e
, 
b

e
c

a
u

se
 o

f 
b

o
th

 t
h

e
 n

a
tu

ra
l 
a

n
d

 h
u

m
a

n
 e

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

t.
  

Le
ss

 p
o

si
ti
v
e

ly
, 

so
m

e
 o

u
tl
y
in

g
 a

re
a

s 
o

f 
th

e
 P

a
ri
sh

 f
e

e
l 
le

ft
-o

u
t 

o
f 

P
a

ri
sh

 a
c

ti
v
it
ie

s 
a

n
d

 s
o

m
e

 n
e

w
c

o
m

e
rs

 f
in

d
 it

 d
if
fi
c

u
lt
 t

o
 jo

in
 in

. 
 T

h
e

re
 is

 a
ls

o
 a

 
fe

e
lin

g
 t

h
a

t 
Ta

rr
in

g
to

n
 is

 “
ru

n
” 

b
y
 a

 r
e

la
ti
v
e

ly
 s

m
a

ll 
b

o
d

y
 o

f 
p

e
o

p
le

. 
 Th

e
 a

im
 o

f 
th

e
 P

la
n

 is
 t

o
 b

u
ild

 o
n

 a
n

d
 t

a
k
e

 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

w
h

a
t 

p
e

o
p

le
 t

h
in

k
 is

 a
lr
e

a
d

y
 g

o
o

d
 a

b
o

u
t 

th
e

 P
a

ri
sh

 a
n

d
 t

o
 t

ry
 t

o
 a

d
d

re
ss

 a
n

d
 

c
o

rr
e

c
t 

th
o

se
 a

re
a

s 
w

h
e

re
 t

h
in

g
s 

a
re

 c
le

a
rl
y
 l
e

ss
 t

h
a

n
 p

e
rf

e
c

t.
  

A
s 

w
e

 h
a

v
e

 s
a

id
 p

re
v
io

u
sl

y
 (

p
 1

2
),

 n
o

t 
a

ll 
th

e
se

 a
re

a
s 

a
re

 w
it
h

in
 

o
u

r 
c

o
n

tr
o

l 
b

u
t 

a
 s

u
rp

ri
si

n
g

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

a
re

 (
o

v
e

r 
9
0
%

 a
c

c
o

rd
in

g
 t

o
 o

u
r 

a
n

a
ly

si
s)

, 
o

r 
c

a
n

 b
e

 m
a

d
e

 t
o

 b
e

c
o

m
e

 s
o

. 
 W

e
 s

h
o

u
ld

 a
ls

o
 r

e
c

o
g

n
is

e
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 P

la
n

 is
 a

 l
iv

in
g

 d
o

c
u

m
e

n
t.

 A
s 

so
m

e
 o

f 
it
s 

p
ro

p
o

se
d

 a
c

ti
o

n
s 

a
re

 c
o

m
p

le
te

d
, 
th

e
 n

e
e

d
 f

o
r 

o
th

e
r 

a
c

ti
o

n
s,

 a
s 

y
e

t 
u

n
fo

re
se

e
n

, 
m

a
y
 e

m
e

rg
e

. 
S
o

m
e

 a
c

ti
o

n
s 

m
a

y
 e

v
e

n
 b

e
 r

e
n

d
e

re
d

 u
n

n
e

c
e

ss
a

ry
 b

y
 e

v
e

n
ts

. 
C

o
n

se
q

u
e

n
tl
y
 t

h
is

 
d

o
c

u
m

e
n

t 
n

e
e

d
s 

to
 b

e
 c

o
n

st
a

n
tl
y
 r

e
v
ie

w
e

d
 a

n
d

 u
p

d
a

te
d

 a
n

d
 w

e
 s

u
g

g
e

st
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 P

a
ri
sh

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

c
a

rr
ie

s 
o

u
t 

a
 r

e
v
ie

w
 a

n
d

 
u

p
d

a
te

 e
v
e

ry
 6

 m
o

n
th

s.
 

 U
lt
im

a
te

ly
, 
o

f 
c

o
u

rs
e

, 
a

 h
a

p
p

y
, 
in

te
g

ra
te

d
 a

n
d

 s
u

c
c

e
ss

fu
l 
c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 d

o
e

s 
n

o
t 

d
e

p
e

n
d

 o
n

 p
la

n
s,

 t
h

e
o

ri
e

s 
o

r 
b

it
s 

o
f 

p
a

p
e

r 
a

t 
a

ll.
  

It
 d

e
p

e
n

d
s 

o
n

 t
h

e
 e

n
e

rg
y
 a

n
d

 g
o

o
d

-w
ill

 o
f 

a
ll 

o
f 

u
s 

h
e

re
. 
 A

s 
w

ill
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 s
e

e
n

, 
a

 v
e

ry
 l
a

rg
e

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

th
e

 in
it
ia

ti
v
e

s 
se

t 
o

u
t 

in
 

th
e

 P
la

n
 f

a
ll 

to
 t

h
e

 P
a

ri
sh

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

to
 im

p
le

m
e

n
t.

 T
h

e
y
 w

ill
 t

h
e

re
fo

re
 n

e
e

d
 q

u
it
e

 a
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
e

n
th

u
si

a
st

ic
 v

o
lu

n
te

e
rs

 a
n

d
 

c
o

n
ti
n

u
in

g
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 P

a
ri
sh

io
n

e
rs

. 
Th

e
se

 w
ill

 a
ls

o
 b

e
 n

e
e

d
e

d
 f

o
r 

th
e

 v
a

ri
o

u
s 

sp
e

c
ia

l 
W

o
rk

in
g

 G
ro

u
p

s 
su

g
g

e
st

e
d

 in
 t

h
e

 A
P

s.
  

H
o

w
e

v
e

r,
 s

e
p

a
ra

te
 f

ro
m

 t
h

a
t,

 a
ll 

o
f 

u
s 

c
a

n
 s

e
t 

o
u

rs
e

lv
e

s 
ta

rg
e

ts
, 
fr

o
m

 w
h

a
t 

w
e

 h
a

v
e

 l
e

a
rn

e
d

 in
 t

h
e

 P
la

n
, 
to

 im
p

ro
v
e

 t
h

e
 l
iv

e
s 

o
f 

e
v
e

ry
o

n
e

. 
  

 
 Th

e
 f

u
tu

re
 r

e
a

lly
 is

 in
 a

ll 
o

u
r 

h
a

n
d

s.
 

61



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

3
8

  6
. 

A
C

K
N

O
W

LE
D

G
E
M

E
N

TS
 

 Th
e

 p
re

p
a

ra
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 P

a
ri
sh

 P
la

n
 h

a
s 

in
v
o

lv
e

d
 q

u
it
e

 a
 l
a

rg
e

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

p
e

o
p

le
 in

 t
h

e
 P

a
ri
sh

 (
w

h
ic

h
 is

 a
s 

it
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e

).
  

S
o

m
e

 o
f 

th
o

se
 h

a
v
e

 g
iv

e
n

 u
p

 a
 f

a
ir
ly

 s
iz

e
a

b
le

 a
m

o
u

n
t 

o
f 

sp
a

re
 t

im
e

. 
 I
n

 n
o

 p
a

rt
ic

u
la

r 
o

rd
e

r 
o

f 
m

e
ri
t,

 t
h

a
n

k
s 

(a
n

d
 c

o
n

g
ra

tu
la

ti
o

n
s!

) 
m

u
st

 
g

o
 t

o
:-

 
 

Th
e

 S
te

e
ri
n

g
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
  

 (
* 

=
 P

C
 m

e
m

b
e

r)
 

P
u

b
lic

 B
o

d
ie

s 

M
ik

e
 A

xe
 

H
e

lly
 B

a
rb

e
r 

A
n

n
e

, 
A

n
th

o
n

y
* 

&
 R

ic
h

a
rd

 B
u

sh
 

D
r 

Jo
h

n
 D

a
lz

ie
l 

M
a

ry
 F

ie
th

 
G

ra
e

m
e

 F
o

rr
e

st
e

r 
(M

in
u

te
 S

e
c

re
ta

ry
) 

Je
a

n
e

tt
e

 F
o

rr
e

st
e

r 
M

a
ry

 F
o

x 
S
te

v
e

 F
ra

ze
r*

 
S
tu

a
rt

 F
ry

e
r*

 (
V

ic
e

 C
h

a
ir
m

e
n

) 
S
u

e
 H

a
lle

tt
 

P
e

te
r 

H
a

m
m

e
rs

le
y
 

R
o

b
e

rt
* 

&
 V

e
ro

n
ic

a
 H

o
d

g
e

s 
V

iv
ie

n
 K

o
u

ze
le

a
s 

 
Ja

m
e

s 
&

 S
a

n
d

ra
 L

a
n

g
fo

rd
 

M
a

rg
a

re
t 

Lo
c

k
w

o
o

d
 

M
a

rg
a

re
t 

M
c

Le
o

d
 

R
ic

h
a

rd
 P

ri
c

e
 (

C
h

a
ir
m

a
n

) 
M

a
u

ri
c

e
 S

m
it
h

* 
A

n
g

e
la

 S
to

c
k
* 

Jo
h

n
 T

a
lli

s*
 

E
d

w
in

 &
 S

h
a

ro
n

 T
u

rn
b

u
ll 

S
a

lly
 W

ill
m

o
tt

 

Li
n

d
a

 W
ilc

o
x 

–
 H

A
LC

 
A

n
g

e
la

 D
o

w
n

in
g

 –
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 F

ir
st

 
S
io

b
h

a
n

 O
’D

w
y
e

r 
–
 H

e
re

fo
rd

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

Fo
rw

a
rd

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 U
n

it
 

S
te

v
e

 B
e

ll 
–
 H

e
re

fo
rd

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

IT
 G

ro
u

p
 

To
n

y
 C

ra
m

p
 –

 H
e

re
fo

rd
 C

o
u

n
c

il 
R

e
se

a
rc

h
 G

ro
u

p
 

A
lis

o
n

 D
o

re
 &

 R
u

ss
 W

in
fi
e

ld
 –

 W
e

st
 M

e
rc

ia
 P

o
lic

e
 

D
a

v
e

 T
ri
st

ra
m

 –
 H

e
re

fo
rd

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

S
m

a
ll 

G
ra

n
ts

 G
ro

u
p

 
S
h

a
n

e
 S

m
it
h

 –
  

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 R

e
g

e
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

R
o

si
e

 D
a

v
id

so
n

 –
 H

e
re

fo
rd

sh
ir
e

 V
o

lu
n

ta
ry

 A
c

ti
o

n
 (

H
V

A
) 

  A
n

d
 n

o
t 

fo
rg

e
tt

in
g

: 
 P

h
il 

&
 S

ia
n

 o
f 

th
e

 T
a

rr
in

g
to

n
 A

rm
s 

w
h

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 a
 r

o
o

m
 f

o
r 

th
e

 S
te

e
ri
n

g
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 m

e
e

ti
n

g
s 

a
n

d
 m

u
c

h
 a

p
p

re
c

ia
te

d
 

re
fr

e
sh

m
e

n
ts

. 
 H

e
re

fo
rd

sh
ir
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

w
h

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 a
 g

ra
n

t 
o

f 
£
1
,0

0
0
 f

ro
m

 
th

e
 S

m
a

ll 
G

ra
n

t 
Fu

n
d

 f
o

r 
th

e
 Q

u
e

st
io

n
n

a
ir
e

 p
ro

je
c

t.
 T

h
is

 
in

c
lu

d
e

d
 t

h
e

 p
u

rc
h

a
se

 o
f 

a
 c

o
lo

u
r 

la
se

r 
p

ri
n

te
r 

th
a

t 
w

a
s 

u
se

d
 t

o
 p

ri
n

t 
b

o
th

 t
h

e
 Q

u
e

st
io

n
n

a
ir
e

 a
n

d
 t

h
is

 d
o

c
u

m
e

n
t,

 
sa

v
in

g
 u

s 
se

v
e

ra
l 
th

o
u

sa
n

d
 p

o
u

n
d

s.
 

 

62



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

3
9

 

63



64



 
PLANNING COMMITTEE 25TH AUGUST 2007 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Mr A Banks on 01432 383085 

   

 

 

 DCNC2007/0667/O - SITE FOR THE ERECTION OF AN 
ADDITIONAL BUILDING FOR PROVISION OF CARE TO 
THE ELDERLY MENTALLY INFIRM AT PENCOMBE 
HALL, PENCOMBE, BROMYARD, HEREFORDSHIRE, 
HR7 4RL 
 
For: Mr N Williams per Wall, James & Davies 15-23 
Hagley Road Stourbridge West Midlands  DY8 1QW 
 

 

Date Received: Ward: Bromyard Grid Ref: 
2nd March 2007   60224, 52072 
Expiry Date: 
27th April 2007 

  

Local Members: Councillor A Seldon and Councillor B Hunt 
 
Introduction 
 
The application was reported to the meeting of the Northern Area Planning Sub-Committee 
on 29th May 2007 when it was deferred for a Committee site visit. The site visit took place 
on14th June 2007.  The application was then reported back to the Northern Area Planning 
Sub-Committee on 27th June 2007. At that meeting the Sub-Committee resolved to grant 
planning permission contrary to the recommendation of the report.  This decision was 
accordingly referred to the Head of Planning Services to determine if it should be reported to 
the Planning Committee for further consideration. 
 
At its meeting on 27th June 2007 the Northern Area Planning Sub-Committee was 
recommended to refuse this application for the following reason: 
 

The proposal represents the provision of a new residential care facilities in an 
open countryside location outside locations where new residential development 
would be acceptable.  Its location is unsustainable by virtue of its remoteness 
from public transport facilities and services and the development would thereby 
increase the need to travel by private transport.  The applicant has failed to 
demonstrate that there are sufficient material planning considerations to 
outweigh these factors and therefore the proposal is contrary to Policies S1, 
DR2 and CF7 of the Herefordshire Unitary Development Plan 2007 and the 
guidance in Planning Policy Statement 7 – Sustainable Development in Rural 
Areas. 

 
In the debate the members of the Area Sub-Committee discussed the likely future demand 
for accommodation for the frail elderly including “EMI” units and concluded that there was a 
need for this facility. They considered that policy CF7 was directed to new developments and 
not extensions of existing facilities. They also felt that the site was well run and that the 
development would not be unduly prominent in the landscape.  
 
It was resolved to grant planning permission.   
 

AGENDA ITEM 10

65



 
PLANNING COMMITTEE 25TH AUGUST 2007 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Mr A Banks on 01432 383085 

   

 

 

The proposal raises the following issues: 
 

1. The site is in a highly unsustainable location, remote from services and public 
transport facilities. Development here was well outside any suitable location for new 
residential development and consequently the site failed the tests set out in policy 
CF7. 

2. The extension of the use was to provide a new building for 40 bedrooms. The 
existing facility has only 30. Consequently the proposal is of a much greater scale 
than would normally be implied by the term “Extension”. It was, in effect, a substantial 
new development in open countryside (for which there is no established need).  

3. Whilst the Northern Area Planning Sub-Committee gave significant weight to the 
argument that there is an increasing need for facilities for the frail elderly, it was 
pointed out in the debate that there is currently no shortage of EMI beds in 
Herefordshire. There is a shortage in Worcestershire and Shropshire and therefore, if 
this scheme goes ahead, it is quite likely to serve the needs of those two counties 
initially. There is no proven need for such a facility in Herefordshire at the moment 
and, if there were, this would not be the most suitable place for it. The proposals do 
not relate to the needs of Pencombe and the surrounding countryside. If a need 
arises in the future in Herefordshire as a whole then that can be addressed through 
the emerging LDF and/or other policy initiatives.  At present there is no need for this 
facility. 

4. The lack of adverse impact on the wider landscape does not overcome the objection, 
in principle, to this type of development in a remote countryside location. 

5. Given the absence of public transport links, and the absence of a sizeable local 
population from which to recruit staff, any additional employment will inevitably give 
rise to increased commuting by car. The remoteness of the site will also require 
visiting professional and visitors to the patients to travel by private transport – to the 
detriment of the Council’s policies on sustainable development and sustainable 
transport.  

 
In the light of the above arguments it can be seen that the proposal conflicts with the 
development plan policies which seek to restrict new development in the open countryside 
without special justification. Consequently, the application has been referred to this meeting 
of the Planning Committee for further consideration. 
 
The application was again deferred at the meeting of the 13th July 2007, in order that 
members of the Main Planning Committee could make a further site visit. 
 
Detailed comments have been received from colleagues in Adult and Community Services 
and these are as follows: 
 

Current Provision 
 
There are currently a number of homes within Herefordshire that are registered for 
Dementia, over 65 years of age (DE) nursing beds.  The majority of these homes are 
however registered for a number of categories. It is not generally appropriate that 
services for older people with complex psycho-behavioural disorders are integrated 
with other client groups in shared facilities and hence comparatively few of these 
places are utilised for DE provision. There are only two homes (Broomy Hill and 
Holmer Care Centre) that are registered purely for older people with a mental 
disorder.  The significance of this is that these two homes have built up a knowledge 
base and expertise in working with people with complex presentations characterized 
by psycho-behavioural disturbance. 
 

66



 
PLANNING COMMITTEE 25TH AUGUST 2007 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Mr A Banks on 01432 383085 

   

 

 

These two homes provide 89 beds, of which 23 are block purchased and 1 spot 
purchased by the PCT for people assessed as meeting full NHS continuing care, and 
3 for respite care.  Herefordshire Council currently spot-purchase a further 35 beds in 
these two homes.   
 
The Council is also spot-purchasing within Herefordshire a further 20 nursing 
placements in homes registered for DE and 39 placements in general nursing homes 
for people over 65 years of age with a mental disorder.  
 
There are also 22 people currently placed out of county due to: 

• Lack of capacity within Herefordshire. 

• lack of appropriate beds in an emergency 

• Personal choice, e.g. no appropriate nursing homes in particular areas - 
people in the Ledbury or Bromyard areas choose homes in Gloucestershire 
and Worcestershire.  

• Personal choice – to be close to family and/or friends 

• Top-up issues 
 
There is currently no provision of nursing beds registered for DE within the areas of 
Bromyard or Ledbury.  

 
Total registered nursing beds, number of beds registered for Dementia, over 65 years 
of age (DE) in Herefordshire. 
 

Area 
Total (DE) 

Nursing Places** 

Total registered 
Nursing Places 

 

Current (DE) 
nursing 

placements funded 
by HPCT and HC  

Total nursing 
placements for 

older people with 
mental disorder 
funded by HPCT 

and HC 

Bromyard 0 28 0 6 

Hereford 89 293 65 89 

Kington 53 127 8 9 

Ledbury 0 36 0 1 

Leominster 84* 115 2 9 

Ross on Wye 45 103 7 7 

Total 271 702 82 121 

Out of County - - 22 22 

 
*Beds in both the homes in Leominster are dual registered for residential and nursing beds – 
there is no indication of total number of EMI nursing places available –total beds have been 
included within nursing category  
 
**There are 265 beds registered for dementia, over 65 years of age (DE) however the 
majority of these beds are also registered and used by other service groups, i.e. Old age, not 
falling within any other category, which reduces the actual availability of DE nursing beds. 
 
Future need 
 
The needs analysis for older people conducted in 2006 anticipated the need for an 
extra 25 mental frailty nursing care placements funded by social care between 2007-
2011. 
 

67



 
PLANNING COMMITTEE 25TH AUGUST 2007 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Mr A Banks on 01432 383085 

   

 

 

Future Provision 
 
It is anticipated that social care will provide an extra 10 nursing beds for people with 
dementia, over 65 years of age (DE) via their block contracted beds in Autumn 2008. 
The extent to which out of County placements are influenced by current availability is 
not fully understood but it is likely that the needs of some of these individuals could 
have been better met through local provision.  
 
Within the experience of Herefordshire mental health services, there is a shortage of 
residential and nursing beds for older people with complex psycho-behavioural 
disorders.  It is not generally appropriate that they are managed with other client 
groups and the potential to make better use of beds also registered for general 
nursing is therefore currently limited both by this and the level of demand for general 
nursing care places..   

 
Additional comments have also been received: 

 
I would add to this that, at present, this planning application appears to offer the best 
current opportunity to enhance the supply of EMI beds in the County.  It may not be 
the ideal location and the scale of the development may also be more than we might 
want. There is indeed no guarantee that we would either require such numbers at 
this location or in fact be able to secure any capacity we did need at an affordable 
rate (the PCT would be spot purchasing places at prices to be negotiated). I have no 
real understanding of what falls within the definition of "planning gain" and guess that 
seeking agreement on "price" or, perhaps preferably, "eligibility through locality of 
potential residents", may not be permissible. It would be very nice if it was. 
In an ideal world we (with and through the PCT) would be encouraging and 
commissioning smaller numbers of appropriate beds at strategic locations across the 
County however this is unlikely to be readily available to us, in a sustainable manner, 
in the foreseeable future. 

 
The report to the 27th June Northern Area Planning Sub-Committee follows. 
 
1. Site Description and Proposal 
 
1.1  Pencombe Hall is a large Victorian house that is currently in use as a 30 bed care 

home for the elderly.  It is an impressive building of stone construction with a slate roof, 
set within landscaped grounds with a number of mature specimen trees surrounding.  
The land slopes down to the north-west to a tennis court and is bounded to the south 
west by the Little Cowarne to Pencombe road, onto which the property has two points 
of access.  The former coach house lies to the north-east and is now occupied as an 
entirely independent dwelling. 

 
1.2  The property occupies a raised position in the landscape with extensive views to the 

north towards Pencombe village. 
 
1.3  The application is made in outline with all matters reserved for future consideration and 

is for the erection of a building  for the provision of care for elderly and mentally infirm 
people.  The application is accompanied by indicative plans which suggest the erection 
of a split level single/two storey building to be located to the north west of the existing 
building, partly on the site of the tennis court.  The building will provide 40 bedroom 
accommodation and also incorporates facilities such as medical areas, staff rooms and 
day rooms for residents. 

 

68



 
PLANNING COMMITTEE 25TH AUGUST 2007 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Mr A Banks on 01432 383085 

   

 

 

2. Policies 
 
2.1 Herefordshire Unitary Development Plan 
 

S1 – Sustainable development 
DR1 – Design 
DR2 – Land use and activity 
LA2 – Landscape character and areas least resilient to change 
LA3 – Setting of settlements 
LA5 – Protection of trees, woodlands and hedgerows 
CF7 – Residential nursing and care homes 

 
3. Planning History 
 
None identified. 
 
4. Consultation Summary 
 
Statutory Consultations 
 
4.1 None required 
 
Internal Council Consultations 
 
4.2 Transportation Manager – No objection subject to conditions 

 
4.3 Environmental Health and Trading Standards Manager – No objections 

 
4.4 Forward Planning Manager - The application should be assessed against policy CF7 of 

the UDP.  The proposed care home is a new development and is considered to fall 
within the category of a residential use.  Pencombe is a rural open countryside location 
where there are strict controls on new residential development as far as the UDP is 
concerned.  Policy CF7 states that proposals for the provision of residential nursing 
and care homes will be permitted in areas where new residential development is 
acceptable.  Therefore policy H7 is applicable and this application does not meet any 
of the set criteria in this policy.  The proposal is contrary to policy.  

 
Conservation Manager 

4.5 Historic Buildings - This appears to be the right place to site an extension being set 
down at the back of the house.   It is however of a significant size and its essentially 
linear shape makes it stretch out into the countryside, fronting onto public footways.  It 
might have been preferable to set it round an enclosed courtyard and reduce its size 
so that it is clearly subservient to the main house reading more as a group of ancillary 
buildings rather than a major building in its own right, which competes with the main 
house, particularly when viewed from the north. 

 
4.6 Landscape - None of the trees on or adjacent to the site are protected by a TPO and 

the proposed application would have no direct impact on trees within or adjacent to the 
site. 

 
4.7 I am concerned that the proposed development would result in a dramatic increase in 

the volume of building in the area. The proposal dramatically extends the building into 
the lawned element of the site and would visually encroach into open countryside. The 
landscape character (Timbered Plateau Farmlands) surrounding the site is defined by 

69



 
PLANNING COMMITTEE 25TH AUGUST 2007 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Mr A Banks on 01432 383085 

   

 

 

wooded valleys and dingles and distinct boundary hedges and would generally be 
considered unable to accommodate significant development. The settlement pattern in 
this landscape is of dispersed farmsteads and hamlets and the clearly defined 
enclosure pattern relates to the historic integrity of this landscape. 

 
4.8 Whilst not an old or listed building the historic and cultural relationship of Pencombe 

Hall to the village should be considered important. I consider the development overly 
large and intrusive in relation to the existing buildings, landscaped grounds and the 
relationship of the hall to the nearby village. 

 
4.9 I would recommend the application be refused as contrary to policies DR1 and LA2 of 

the UDP. 
 
 
5.  Representations 
 
5.1 Little Cowarne Parish Council – Raise concerns regarding poor water supply and in 

respect to the treatment of sewerage.  Conclude that as the proposal is within the 
existing grounds there is no objection to the siting of the new building. 

 
5.2 Three letters of objection have been received from the following: 
 

Mr P. Mitchell, Gable Cottage, Bredenbury      
 
Mr & Mrs Tilling, Glebe House, Pencombe 
 
B.G. Potter, The Coach House, Pencombe    
 

 In summary the points raised are as follows: 
 

1. A large building would detract from the setting and importance of Pencombe 
Hall. 

 
2. The property is in a rural area and is not accessible and would be better placed 

in a town. 
 

3. The increase in traffic would have an adverse impact on the road network. 
 
4. No access to mains sewers.  The existing septic tank is inadequate and causes 

a nuisance. 
 

5.3 One letter of support has also been received from Mrs Williams, The Finches, 
Wellington, whose father is presently a resident at Pencombe Hall.  She is concerned 
that he continues to receive a high level of care and is concerned that he would have 
to move to another home if his condition continues to deteriorate. 

 
5.4 The application is supported by a statement submitted on behalf of the applicant by his 

agent.  This advises of the need for specialist elderly mentally infirm (EMI) in light of 
the fact that Herefordshire has the second oldest population in England.   

 
5.5 It goes on to say that a report published by Herefordshire Council in conjunction with 

the NHS Primary Care Trust notes “a shortage of beds for people with mental health 
problems.”  And, in addition that there appears to be a shortage of Nursing/EMI places. 

 

70



 
PLANNING COMMITTEE 25TH AUGUST 2007 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Mr A Banks on 01432 383085 

   

 

 

5.6 The applicant has a particular interest in this type of care and Pencombe Hall already 
has a high reputation in this field.  One of the advantages of locating a new specialist 
unit at Pencombe Hall is that residents would be able to transfer from a home providing 
residential care to one providing nursing care without enduring the disturbance of 
moving at a time of greatest need. 

 
5.7 The statement concludes that the advantages of the proposal would be that it would: 
 

a) make a significant contribution and investment to counter the shortfall in this 
type of care. 

b) Go hand in hand with the established facilities at Pencombe Hall. 
c) Represent a sensitive addition to the existing facilities which would blend 

comfortably with the architectural design of Pencombe Hall. 
 
5.8 The full text of these letters can be inspected at Northern Planning Services, Garrick 

House, Widemarsh Street, Hereford and prior to the Sub-Committee meeting. 
 
6.  Officer’s Appraisal 
 
6.1 The key consideration with this proposal is whether it is acceptable as a matter of 

principle.  Policy CF7 of the UDP refers specifically to residential nursing and care 
homes and states that: 

 
Proposals for the provision of residential nursing and care homes will be permitted in 
areas where new residential development is acceptable or where they involve the 
environmentally acceptable conversion of existing buildings…” 

 
6.2 The site lies in an area of open countryside where there would be a presumption 

against further residential development and therefore the proposal fails the policy test.  
Consequently it falls to be considered whether there are any other material planning 
considerations that outweigh the policy.  

 
6.3 The applicant’s agent has identified the lack of specialist EMI care and the fact that 

Pencombe Hall already has a background in providing it, and this forms the basis of 
their exceptional justification for the proposal. 

 
6.4 It remains the case that Pencombe is only identified as a smaller settlement and that 

the application site is some way outside of the village.  It does not represent a 
sustainable location in terms of access to services or in terms of minimising people’s 
need to travel.  Policies such as S1 and DR2 reinforce the principle of sustainable 
development and this is a key theme of the UDP.   

 
6.5 For a site on the fringes of a larger settlement with access to services and/or public 

transport, there may be greater justification for setting aside the provisions of CF7.  
However, this application site is so remote that the issues of sustainability cannot be 
set aside and therefore are not outweighed by the material considerations described by 
the applicant’s agent. 

 
6.6 The indicative plans give an idea of the scale of the proposal.  The Historic Buildings 

Officer has opined that the site is appropriate, but raises some reservations over the 
form of the new building.  It is considered that this could be addressed at the reserved 
matters stage through negotiation and an informed design.  The changes in levels 
across the site would assist in reducing the perceived scale of any development and 
the siting of the proposal also takes advantage of this. 

71



 
PLANNING COMMITTEE 25TH AUGUST 2007 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Mr A Banks on 01432 383085 

   

 

 

 
6.7 The Landscape Officer considers that the scheme would have an unacceptable visual 

impact on its surroundings.  However, the site is well screened by the mature trees that 
surround the site and his comments acknowledge that the scheme would have no 
impact upon these.  It is your Officer’s opinion that the proposal would have a limited 
visual impact.  An assessment has been made of this in the wider area and the site is 
not at all prominent from Pencombe village.  The retention of surrounding trees would 
help to ensure that this remains the case, as would a design that makes full use in the 
changes in levels across the site.  The proposal could therefore be considered to be 
acceptable in its visual impact. 

 
6.8 Matters relating to existing drainage problems and inadequacy of an existing septic 

tank are addressed by the submission which includes details of a replacement to serve 
the new development. 

 
6.9 Overall, however, the proposal is contrary to the UDP policy which seeks to direct new 

residential development to main settlements, and avoid new housing in isolated 
locations such as this one. The site has no public transport links and is only accessible 
along small country lanes. In that regard it is highly unsustainable. Any increase in 
activity on the site will inevitably lead to additional journeys by private transport for 
visitors and staff alike. The fact that there is an existing establishment on the site, and 
the extent to which detailed concerns over drainage and design can be addressed do 
not of themselves outweigh the over-riding policy objection. The application is therefore 
recommended for refusal. 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
That planning permission be refused for the following reason: 

The proposal represents the provision of a new residential care facilities in an open 
countryside location outside locations where new residential development would be 
acceptable.  Its location is unsustainable by virtue of its remoteness from public 
transport facilities and services and the development would thereby increase the 
need to travel by private transport.  The applicant has failed to demonstrate that there 
are sufficient material planning considerations to outweigh these factors and 
therefore the proposal is contrary to Policies S1, DR2 and CF7 of the Herefordshire 
Unitary Development Plan 2007 and the guidance in Planning Policy Statement 7 – 
Sustainable Development in Rural Areas. 
 
Decision: ................................................................................................................................  
 
Notes: ....................................................................................................................................  
 
...............................................................................................................................................  
 
 
 
Background Papers 
 
Internal departmental consultation replies. 

72



 
PLANNING COMMITTEE 25TH AUGUST 2007 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Mr A Banks on 01432 383085 Ext 3085 

   

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

This copy has been produced specifically for Planning purposes. No further copies may be made. 

  

APPLICATION NO: DCNC2007/0667/O  SCALE : 1 : 5000 
 
SITE ADDRESS : Pencombe Hall, Pencombe, Bromyard, Herefordshire, HR7 4RL 
 
Based upon the Ordnance Survey mapping with the permission of the controller of Her Majesty’s Stationery Office, © Crown Copyright.   
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.  Herefordshire Council.  Licence No: 
100024168/2005 
 

Slope

Water

Water

Water

Water

*

*

* *

*

*

****

*

*

*
*

*
**

*
*

*

*

*

*

*

*

*

*
* *

*
*

 

73



74



 
PLANNING COMMITTEE 24 AUGUST 2007 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Mr E Thomas on 01432 261961 

   

 

 DCNE2007/1224/F - PROPOSED TWO STOREY 
DWELLING FOR ANCILLARY ACCOMMODATION AT 
BLACK HILL, BRITISH CAMP, MALVERN, 
HEREFORDSHIRE, WR13 6DW 
 
For: Mr & Mrs Potts per Mrs V Greenhouse, Vanessa 
Greenhouse, 54 Doctors Hill, Bournheath, 
Bromsgrove, B61 9JE 
 

 

Date Received: Ward: Hope End Grid Ref: 
20th April 2007   76546, 40572 
Expiry Date: 
15th June 2007 

  

Local Members: Councillor RV Stockton and Councillor R Mills  
 

This application was considered at the Northern Area Planning Sub-Committee at its 
meeting on 25 July 2007 when Members resolved to grant planning permission contrary to 
the recommendation of the report.  This decision was accordingly referred to the Head of 
Planning Services to determine if it should be reported to the Planning Committee for further 
consideration. 
 

At its meeting on 25 July 2007 the Northern Area Planning Sub-Committee was 
recommended to refuse this application for the following reason: 
 

1. The proposed development, by virtue of its scale and visual prominence would fail to 
either protect or enhance the natural beauty and amenity of the area.  The 
development is thus contrary to policies LA1 and S7 of Herefordshire Unitary 
Development Plan. 

 

2. The development is tantamount to the erection of a new dwelling in open 
countryside.  The application does not accord with any of the exception criteria set 
out in policy H7 of the Unitary Development Plan and there are considered to be no 
other material considerations to justify the setting aside of adopted rural restraint 
policies. 

 

In the debate the quality of the existing dwelling was discussed there being no point of 
dispute upon this.  Furthermore it was generally agreed that the most appropriate way to 
provide ancillary accommodation was by way of a detached building rather than extension to 
the existing dwelling. 
 

Members commented that the new build was on the footprint of an existing building to be 
replaced.  This appeared to constitute the justification for the development.  There was little 
or no debate upon the impact of the development upon the visual amenity or quality of the 
AONB. 
 

The proposal raises the following issues: 
 

1. The accommodation sought is clearly somewhat greater than what would normally be 
regarded as ancillary accommodation, it provides a fully functional 2 bedroom 
dwelling, with no reliance at all on (nor physical attachment to) the main house.  

AGENDA ITEM 11

75



 
PLANNING COMMITTEE 24 AUGUST 2007 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Mr E Thomas on 01432 261961 

   

 

Consequently the proposal is tantamount to a new dwelling in open countryside.  
Policy H7 refers to such dwellings, however the proposal does not satisfy any of the 
acceptable exceptions thereto. 

 
Having reviewed the facts of the application I am clear that this proposal would present a 
clear conflict with established UDP policies intended to protect the AONB from 
unnecessary development. 
 
In light of the above it can be seen that there is a clear conflict with policy H7 in terms of 
the principle of the development in open countryside.  Furthermore the issue of the 
impact of the development upon the AONB does not appear to have been addressed. 
 
The report to the meeting of 25 July follows: 

 
1. Site Description and Proposal 
 
1.1  The application seeks planning permission for the erection of a two-storey building 

comprising living accommodation and garaging at Blackhill, British Camp, Colwall.  The 
existing dwelling is believed to date from 1917 and does not appear to have been 
extended historically.   Faced predominantly in stone, with brick quoins, window 
surrounds and some brick noggin in the gables, the dwelling appears to be a very good 
quality example of its type.  Fenestration and chimney detail are also of interest. 

 
1.2 The dwelling occupies an elevated position within the Area of Outstanding Beauty, 

accessed via a track taken from the Blackhill visitor car park.  It is isolated and set in 
the lea of the Shire Ditch Schedules Ancient Monument.  Overall, the setting is 
extremely attractive and characterised by common ground, large mature trees and a 
network of undulating footpaths.   

 
1.3 This application follows two unsuccessful attempts to secure planning permission for 

the extension of the dwelling.  The previous applications to build a two storey extension 
from the north facing elevation have been withdrawn on the advice of officers owing to 
the perceived adverse impact that this approach would have upon the form of the 
existing dwelling.  Although not listed, it is thought that Blackhill may be worthy of 
listing in the future.  English Heritage has been asked to advise in this regard. 

 
1.4 In the absence of an obvious means of extending the existing dwelling, the current 

application to create additional accommodation within a new building is put forward as 
an alternative  

 
1.5 The scheme involves the retention and conversion to a kitchen of a small brick built 

outbuilding located 2.5m from the north elevation of the dwelling.  This building 
appears contemporaneous with the dwelling.  From the rear of this it is proposed to 
create a glazed link containing a staircase to the new two-storey building, which would 
house two garage spaces and a living room at ground floor and two bedrooms with a 
bathroom at first floor.  The building would be sited upon the footprint of existing 
dilapidated garaging and it is understood that the replacement garaging incorporated 
within the scheme would be for use of the occupants of both the main dwelling and the 
annex. 

 
1.6 The building would have a simple rectangular form and a footprint measuring 6.6m x 

9.7m.  Height to the ridge would be 8m.  The design mimics some of the architectural 
traits exhibited by the existing dwelling, including exposed rafter feet, but is deliberately 
understated so as not to compete with the dwelling. 

76



 
PLANNING COMMITTEE 24 AUGUST 2007 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Mr E Thomas on 01432 261961 

   

 

 
2. Policies 
 
2.1    Herefordshire Unitary Development Plan 
 

S1 – Sustainable development 
S2 – Development requirements 
S7 – Natural and historic heritage 
DR1 – Design 
H7 – Housing in the countryside outside settlements 
LA1 – Areas of outstanding natural beauty 

 
3. Planning History 
 
3.1    NE06/3627/F – Proposed two-storey extension.  Withdrawn 7th February 2007  
 
3.2    NE06/2923/F – Proposed two-storey extension.  Withdrawn 6th November 2006 
 
3.3    NE06/0752/F – Proposed granny annex.  Refused 5th May 2006 
 
 
4. Consultation Summary 
 

Statutory Consultations 
 

4.1 English Heritage (Consulted owing to the proximity to the Shireditch Scheduled Ancient 
Monument):  No objection 

 
 Internal Council Advice 
 
4.1 Traffic Manager:  No objection 
 
4.2 Conservation Manager (Landscapes): Recommends refusal on the basis that the 

development would be visually intrusive and does not meet the exception criteria for 
development within the AONB as described by policy LA1.  Reference is made to the 
unique setting, which must be preserved. 

 
4.3 Conservation Manager (Building Conservation):  No objection subject to the agreement 

of and finish to external materials.  The officer is satisfied that the proposal provides a 
more acceptable solution to the protection of the main house than the earlier proposed 
extensions. 

 
4.4 Conservation Manager (Archaeology):  No objection 
 
 
5.  Representations 
 
5.1 Colwall Parish Council:  “Council objects to this application as it is Council’s policy to 

do so if new dwellings are outside of the settlement boundary.  If Herefordshire Council 
is mindful to grate this application then the new dwelling should remain as a Coach 
House to the main dwelling and should not be sold separately to it.” 

 
5.2 Malvern Hills Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB):  Objection on the basis that 

the development would be prominent within and detrimental to the Area of Outstanding 

77



 
PLANNING COMMITTEE 24 AUGUST 2007 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Mr E Thomas on 01432 261961 

   

 

Natural Beauty.  The building would compete with the main dwelling and has not been 
justified as rural exception housing. 

 
5.3 Campaign to Protect Rural England:  Objection.  The development is essentially a two-

storey dwelling in sensitive open countryside.  It would detract from both the wider 
landscape and the setting of the dwelling.  Concern is also raised at car parking 
arrangements. 

 
5.4 Natural England:  No objection.  The development would not appear to affect the 

Malvern Hills Site of Special Scientific Interest. 
 
5.5 The full text of these letters can be inspected at Central Planning Services, Garrick 

House, Widemarsh Street, Hereford and prior to the Sub-Committee meeting. 
 
6.  Officer’s Appraisal 
 
6.1 The key issues in the determination of this application can be summarised as follows: 
 

• The principle of development within the open countryside and 
AONB; 

• The impact of the proposed scheme upon the setting of the existing 
dwelling and the wider landscape. 

 
6.2 The application seeks permission for what is intended as ancillary accommodation to 

the main dwelling.  However, notwithstanding the close proximity of the building to the 
property the building is of a scale that would enable occupation entirely independent of 
Blackhill.  In short, there is an absence of co-dependence that one would expect to find 
between principal dwelling and ancillary, or incidental accommodation. 

 
6.3 It is acknowledged that the application results from pre-application discussion and that 

the approach is taken in preference to a traditional extension, discounted in order to 
preserve the dwelling in its current form.  However, in this context it is considered that 
the harm to the wider landscape would outweigh the benefit of maintaining the house 
as existing. 

 
6.4 The application is also considered contrary to Unitary Development Plan policy LA1 in 

that it is considered that the development would fail to either protect or enhance the 
natural beauty and amenity of the area in the national interest and would prove 
detrimental to the intrinsic natural beauty of the area. 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
That planning permission be refused for the following reasons: 
  
1.  The proposed development, by virtue of its scale and visual prominence would 

fail to either protect or enhance the natural beauty and amenity of the area.  The 
development in thus contrary to policies LA1 and S7 of Herefordshire Unitary 
Development Plan. 

 
2. The development is tantamount to the erection of a new dwelling in open 

countryside.  The application does not accord with any of the exception criteria 
set out in policy H7 of the Unitary Development Plan and there are considered to 
be no other material considerations to justify the setting aside of adopted rural 
restraint policies. 

78



 
PLANNING COMMITTEE 24 AUGUST 2007 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Mr E Thomas on 01432 261961 

   

 

 
Decision: ................................................................................................................................  
 
Notes: ....................................................................................................................................  
 
...............................................................................................................................................  
 
 
 
Background Papers 
 
Internal departmental consultation replies. 

79



PLANNING COMMITTEE 24 AUGUST 2007 

  Further information on the subject of this report is available from Mr E Thomas on Tel: 01432 261961 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

This copy has been produced specifically for Planning purposes. No further copies may be made. 

 APPLICATION NO: DCNE2007/1224/F  SCALE : 1 : 1250 
 
SITE ADDRESS : Black Hill, British Camp,  Malvern, Worcestershire, WR13 6DW 
 
Based upon the Ordnance Survey mapping with the permission of the controller of Her Majesty’s Stationery Office, © Crown Copyright.   Unauthorised reproduction 
infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.  Herefordshire Council.  Licence No: 100024168/2005 
 

 

Slope

Cliff

Car

S
hi

re
 D

itc
h

P
at

h 
(u

m
)

5557

Park

Path (um)

Path (um)

234.7m

BM 234.73m

4848

4343

Little

Kimbleton

 

80



 
PLANNING COMMITTEE 24 AUGUST 2007 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Mr R Close on 01432 261803  

   

 

 DCNE2007/0966/F - PROPOSED THREE STOREY 
BUILDING TO PROVIDE 13 APARTMENTS, WITH 18 
PARKING SPACES AND ASSOCIATED CYCLE 
PARKING AT LAND REAR OF HOMEND SERVICE 
STATION, THE HOMEND, LEDBURY, 
HEREFORDSHIRE, HR8 1DS 
 
For: Refined Petroleum Ltd per Matthews & Goodman, 
196 Deans Gate, Manchester,   M3 3WF 
 

 

Date Received: Ward: Ledbury Grid Ref: 
26th March 2007   70969, 38252 
Expiry Date: 
25th June 2007 

  

Local Members: Councillors ME Cooper, PJ Watts & K Swinburne  
 
This application was considered at the Northern Area Planning Sub-Committee at its 
meeting on 25 July 2007 when Members resolved to refuse planning permission contrary to 
the recommendation of the report.  This decision was accordingly referred to the Head of 
Planning Services to determine if it should be reported to the Planning Committee for further 
consideration. 
 
At its meeting on 25 July 2007 the Northern Area Planning Sub-Committee was 
recommended to approve this application. 
 
In the debate the Area Sub-Committee considered the design of the building in relation to its 
immediate and wider setting.  Despite the mix of styles and scale of buildings in the near 
vicinity, Members considered the development to be inappropriate both in terms of the 
character of the area and upon wider visual amenity, being visible on long views 
approaching the town.  The presence of the large petrol filling station canopy did not 
convince them that it would have a limited impact and visual amenity from the main road. 
 
Density issues were discussed, the site having a density of approximately 104 units per 
hectare.  They recommended refusal of the application based on the following concerns. 
 

1. Inappropriate drainage locally. 
2. Wider impact upon visual amenity. 
3. Density. 

 
The proposal raises the following issues: 
 

1. PPS1 advises local planning authorities to reject obviously poor design, whilst the 
design is out of the ordinary for Ledbury it is not of itself poor design. 

2. The site does not lie within the Conservation Area and benefits from no other special 
designation. 

3. Policy H15 provides advice on amenity issues, however the recommended densities 
contained therein refers to sites of 1 hectare or above.  Consequently the density 
issue in its own right is not contrary to policy.  Despite the case officer’s reference to 
‘harm’, no harm was identified as a direct result of the density of the development. 

AGENDA ITEM 12

81



 
PLANNING COMMITTEE 24 AUGUST 2007 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Mr R Close on 01432 261803  

   

 

 
In light of the above considerations it is considered that it would be very difficult to sustain a 
reasonable reason for refusal at appeal.  
 
The report to the meeting of 25 July follows:  
 
 
1. Site Description and Proposal 
 
1.1 The application site lies on the western side of Homend Crescent. The site has an area 

of some 0.118 hectare. The site comprises a private car park and an area of vacant 
land. The site is set at a materially lower ground level than Homend Crescent itself. To 
the rear of the site itself (along the western boundary) is a retaining wall of 
approximately 3.6 metres in height. The other side of this retaining wall (to the west) is 
a petrol filling station including a car wash facility, which is set against the 
aforementioned retaining wall. There is an existing pedestrian link from the application 
site to the petrol filling station via a steel staircase. This is a private pedestrian route 
and not a public right of way, although local residents have been utilising this 
pedestrian route. 

 
1.2 To the south of the application site is Dawes Court a part two-storey and part three-

storey residential development. To the east of the application site on the opposite side 
of Homend Crescent, set at a materially higher ground level, is a pair of semi-detached 
dwellings (3 & 5 Homend Crescent) and a terrace of four dwellings (5-8 Homend 
Crescent). To the north of the application site is a detached two-storey house known 
as ‘Castlebridge’. Homend Crescent has a completely varied series of developments in 
terms of their era, size, age, scale and design. It does not have a single uniform 
character or any real degree of homogeneity. There is a footway on the eastern side of 
Homend Crescent only. 

 
1.3 The site has few trees and little vegetation upon it. None of these trees are of any 

significant amenity value. 
 
1.4 The proposal is to erect a three-storey building that would accommodate thirteen 

apartments. Seven of these apartments would be one-bedroomed and six would be 
two-bedroomed. The building would have a mono-pitch roof as opposed to a flat roof. 
The building would be set at a materially lower ground level than Homend Crescent. 
Indeed it would be sited such that the highest point of the building would be set down 
22cm lower than the ridge line of the two storey dwelling at number 8 Homend 
Crescent. The second floor of the building would be inset by 1.5 metres from the main 
eastern elevation and by 2.5 metres from the main western elevation. 

 
1.5 The building has been designed such that the main habitable rooms of the apartments 

face east (away from the petrol filling station) with balconies provided to the first and 
second floor flats facing Homend Crescent. The ground floor apartments would have 
frontage gardens. The second floor apartments would also have outdoor amenity 
spaces facing west.  

 
1.6 Secure cycle parking storage would be provided beneath the rear of the building for 19 

bicycles. To the west of the building eighteen car parking spaces would be provided 
(including one space for disabled persons) together with a refuse store. The vehicular 
means of access onto Homend Crescent would be towards to north of the eastern 
boundary. 

 

82



 
PLANNING COMMITTEE 24 AUGUST 2007 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Mr R Close on 01432 261803  

   

 

1.7 The pedestrian route through the site to The Homend through the existing Petrol Filling 
Station would be maintained as a permissive footpath. 

 
1.8 In terms of materials to be used it is envisaged that the first and second floors be 

stretcher bond red brick. In this respect a light red stock brick is envisaged. The first 
floor elevations would be timber clad with horizontal boarded Douglas Fir. The roof 
would be an aluminium roof with a standing seam roof. The colour of the roof would 
need to be agreed. It is considered that a slate grey colour would be appropriate. 

 
2. Policies 
 
2.1    Central Government advice  

Planning Policy Statement 1 – ‘Delivering Sustainable Development’ 
Planning Policy Statement 3 – ‘Housing’ 
Planning Policy Guidance Note 13 – ‘Transport’ 

 
2.2    Herefordshire Unitary Development Plan  

S1 - Sustainable Development 
S2 - Development requirements 
DR1 - Design 
DR2 - Land use and activity 
DR3 - Movement 
DR5 - Planning Obligations 
DR13 - Noise 
H1 - Housing in the market towns 
H13 - Sustainable residential design 
H14 - Re-using previously developed land and buildings 
H15 - Density 
H16 - Car Parking 
H19 - Open Space Requirements 
T6 - Walking 
T7 - Cycling 
T11 - Parking Provision 
RST3 - Standards for Outdoor playing and public open space 

 
 
3. Planning History 
 
3.1    DCNE2004/4098/F – Erection of 6 town houses with garaging – Withdrawn 

Upon part of the application site (the northern extreme) that previously formed part of 
the curtilage of the dwelling known as ‘Casterbridge’ an outline permission was granted 
for a dwelling under reference DCNE/2004/2663/O on 30/09/2004. 

 
4. Consultation Summary 
 

Statutory Consultations 
 
4.1 Severn Trent Water has on objections subject to the imposition of an appropriate  

condition. 
 
 Internal Council Advice 
 
4.2    The Public Rights of Way Section has no objections to the proposed development. 

 

83



 
PLANNING COMMITTEE 24 AUGUST 2007 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Mr R Close on 01432 261803  

   

 

4.3 The Transportation Section has no objection to the proposed development. The 
adequacy of the local highway network, particularly Knapp Lane has been considered. 
The Transportation Section considers that the increase in traffic along Knapp Lane will 
be marginal and that Knapp Lane will not reach saturation. It is considered that there 
will be a small increase in delay, but within nationally acceptable limits. The 
maintenance of the pedestrian link is welcomed. It makes walking trips to the Town 
Centre, the food supermarket on the western side of The Homend and the train station 
easy. This helps to reduce the need for private car trips, including many along Knapp 
Lane. 

 
4.4    The Building Control Section has no objection to the proposed development. 
 
4.5 The Environmental Health Section has no objection to the proposed development 

subject to the imposition of conditions. 
 
5.  Representations 
 
5.1 Occupiers of twenty-one dwellings in the vicinity have objected on the following 

summarised grounds: - 
 

• excessive number of dwellings; 

• the local highway network is of an insufficient standard to cater with the additional 
traffic that the proposal would generate; 

• the building is too high; 

• the proposal would obstruct views; 

• the proposal does not provide for any affordable housing; 

• flat roofs are out of keeping with the vicinity; 

• loss of light to neighbouring dwellings; 

• the proposed development is too close to the petrol filling station for health & safety 
reasons; 

• the pedestrian link to The Homend should be maintained; 

• the land may be unstable; 

• concern as to emergency access to Dawes Court for emergency vehicles; 

• loss of privacy to the occupier(s) of dwelling(s) opposite; 

• the education system has insufficient capacity; 

• the refuse store is too close to the driveway of ‘Casterbridge’ and obstruct visibility; 

• loss of privacy to the occupiers of ‘Casterbridge’; 

• the pedestrian link from the application site to the Homend should be replaced by a 
more appropriately graded slope so that the pedestrian link can be utilised by 
persons with mobility problems; 

• the proposal would devalue existing property prices; 
 
5.2 The Council to Protect Rural England (Herefordshire) are concerned at the design of 

the proposal, the noise levels to the occupiers of the proposed apartments from the 
Petrol Filling station and the lack of affordable units. 

 
5.3 The Ledbury & District Civic Society object to the proposed development upon the 

following summarised grounds: - 
 

• The height of the building is inappropriate; 

• The design of the building is unsympathetic to its surroundings; 

• The parking provision is inadequate; 

84



 
PLANNING COMMITTEE 24 AUGUST 2007 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Mr R Close on 01432 261803  

   

 

• The footpath through the site is to be removed. This is a much needed facility 
given the lack / inadequacy of alternative pedestrian routes; 

• The density of the proposal is unacceptable. 
 
5.4    The Ledbury Area Cycle Forum welcomes the suitably designed and numerous cycle 

storage facilities that are imaginatively designed. 
 
5.5    Ledbury Town Council state: - 

“Members strongly object to the proposed design of the building and consider it 
inappropriate for an historic Market Town.  A three storey flat roofed building would be 
out of keeping with the street scene.  The pedestrian access from The Homend 
appears to lead to the parking area, which members believe would be contrary to 
pedestrian safety.  This walkway is well used by school children and is also a well used 
access to the local supermarket. 

 
The proposal also raises Health and Safety issues concerning the proximity of the 
Petrol Station’s tank vents and noise pollution from the car washer. 

 
The recommendation to refuse planning permission has been taken with regard to the 
following policies:- 

 

• Malvern Hills District Council Ledbury Housing Policy 1 (b) scale, character and 
density (c) unsatisfactory vehicular and pedestrian access (d) would adversely 
affect neighbouring properties, result in overlooking, and loss or residential 
amenity. 

• Malvern Hills District Council Housing Policy 17 (a) layout and design (c) siting 
and detailed design is unsympathetic to the character of neighbouring buildings 
and to the locality. 

• Unitary Development Plan H13 3.11 sustainable residential design. 

• Unitary Development Plan Transport Policy Traffic Impact 8.13.1 

• Unitary Development Plan H14 1.2 Re-Using previously developed land and 
buildings.” 

  
5.6 The full text of these letters can be inspected at Northern Planning Services, Garrick 

House, Widemarsh Street, Hereford and prior to the Sub-Committee meeting. 
 
6.  Officer’s Appraisal 
 
6.1 The application site les within the settlement boundary of Ledbury. Policy H1 of the 

Herefordshire Unitary Development Plan allows for residential development within the 
settlement boundary of the market towns, including Ledbury. The density of the 
proposal is high. In the long-term by making the most efficient use of land within towns, 
reduces the pressure to release green field sites in the open countryside for housing 
development. Therefore there is no objection to the principle of the development. It is 
the detail that requires further examination. 

 

6.2 It is considered that whilst Homend Crescent is a pleasant residential street, it has no 
defining characteristic or architectural form. In fact there are a range of buildings (e.g. 
bungalows, houses, flatted developments) of various eras with no consistent 
architectural style or design. It must be stressed that the site is not within the 
Conservation Area nor does it adjoin the Conservation Area. The proposed building is 
of a contemporary design. It’s siting on land at a materially lower ground level than 
Homend Crescent itself ensures that the height of the resultant building does not 
exceed the ridge height of number 8 Homend Crescent or the ridge height of the house 

85



 
PLANNING COMMITTEE 24 AUGUST 2007 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Mr R Close on 01432 261803  

   

 

to the north known as ‘Castlebridge’. Therefore I consider the height of the building to 
be acceptable. By “stepping back” / insetting the second floor the apparent mass of the 
building is effectively reduced. The proposed roof is not a flat roof but a mono-pitched 
sloping roof. 

 

6.3 The extent and height of the petrol filling station to the west means that the proposed 
development would not be readily visible from The Homend. One’s line of sight from 
both sides of The Homend would be obscured by the underside of the canopy of the 
Petrol Filling Station canopy. A glimpse would be obtained in the gap between the 
Petrol Filling Station and Dawes Court. However, it is considered that its design and 
appearance would be acceptable. 

 

6.4 In terms of the external appearance of the building the proposed material finish is 
considered to be appropriate. The use of a quality light red stock brick on the ground 
and first floor would assist in integrating this contemporary structure within the wider 
area whilst the use of horizontal timber cladding to the second storey will assist in 
reducing any apparent mass. 

 

6.5 The distance between the proposed building and the front of the dwellings at numbers 
5-8 Homend Crescent opposite would be 27 metres. This is well in excess of the 21 
metre privacy distance one would normally attempt to secure between habitable room 
windows. Similarly given the distance involved and the fact that the proposed building 
is no higher than number 8 Homend Crescent there would not be any undue loss of 
daylight or sunlight to those properties.  

 

6.6 No habitable room windows are proposed in the southern flank elevation and as such 
there would be no loss of privacy to habitable room windows within the Dawes Court 
flatted development. The height of the building and the respective distances would also 
ensure that there would be no undue loss of daylight to habitable room windows within 
the Dawes Court flatted development. Whilst habitable room windows are proposed in 
the northern flank elevation the distance to the house known as ‘Castlebridge’ would 
be some 34 metres, well in excess of the recommended 21 metre privacy distance.  

  

6.7 Therefore it is considered that there would be no undue loss of privacy, daylight and / 
or sunlight to neighbouring residential properties. 

 

6.8 In terms of the amenities of the occupiers of the proposed flats, significant effort has 
been made through the design process to ensure that the main habitable room 
windows face east away from the noise and odour source of the petrol filling station 
that is set at a lower ground level. Similarly the outdoor amenity areas in the form of 
balconies and gardens face east towards Homend Crescent away from the noise and 
odour source. This is considered to represent good practice in terms of the design 
process, with the constraints of the site informing the design. The Environmental 
Health Section have been consulted with regard the issue of noise and odour and are 
satisfied that the occupiers of the proposed apartments would enjoy a satisfactory level 
of amenity. 

 

6.9 The Building Control Section has been consulted with regard the issue of the stability 
of the land and do not raise objections. Similarly the issue of land contamination has 
been addressed. The Environmental Health Section has considered this matter and do 
not raise any objections. 

 

6.10 With regard the transportation matters, the Transportation Section consider that the 
local highway network has sufficient capacity to cater with the additional traffic that the 
proposed development would generate. With regard the car parking provision, 

86



 
PLANNING COMMITTEE 24 AUGUST 2007 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Mr R Close on 01432 261803  

   

 

eighteen car parking spaces are proposed to be provided. The policy of Herefordshire 
Council is that to reduce reliance upon the private motor vehicle the supply of car 
parking spaces should be reduced. The policy of Herefordshire Council is that a 
maximum of 1.5 spaces per dwelling should be provided. The Highways Development 
Design Guide suggests a maximum of one car space per one bedroomed unit and a 
maximum of two car parking spaces per two bedroomed unit. This would equate to 19 
car parking spaces. However, the Council’s policy is that the provision should be less 
than the maximum where the site has easy access to facilities by modes of transport 
other than the private motor vehicle. The application site is in a highly sustainable 
location as far as Ledbury is concerned. It is within easy walking distance of the Town 
Centre, the railway station and the food supermarket on the western side of The 
Homend. 

 

6.11 Following extensive negotiations the applicant has agreed that the private right of way 
(not a public right of way) through the site be retained as a permissive route. 

 

6.12 The provision for cyclists in terms of cycle storage facilities is of a very high design 
standard and accords with the Council’s policy. 

 

6.13 There would be space along the frontage between Homend Crescent and the frontage 
gardens for landscaping that could be secured by way of condition. 

 

6.14 Whilst it is considered that the proposal includes sufficient amenity space for the future 
occupiers of the proposed development in the form of balconies and front gardens, 
there is still a need to address the issue of children’s play equipment and youth / adult 
sports provision. In this respect the applicant’s have agreed to make the following 
commuted sums: - 

 

• £1,500 (index linked) towards the provision / enhancement of children’s play 
space / equipment within the Ledbury area; and 

• £8,190 (index linked) to the provision / enhancement of sports facilities within 
the Herefordshire Council area. 

 
This provision accords with the policies of the Herefordshire Unitary Development 
Plan and is considered to be acceptable by the Leisure and Countryside Section. 

 

6.15   In terms of impact upon the wider infrastructure the applicant’s have agreed to 
provide the following other commuted sums: - 

 

• £26,000 (index linked) towards education provision; and 

• £19,500 (index linked) towards sustainable transport initiatives within the 
Ledbury area. 

 
Both of these provisions fully meet the requests of both the Education Section and 
the Transportation Section. 

 
6.16 The policies within the Unitary Development Plan only require the provision of 

affordable housing within the market towns on developments of 15 dwellings (or 
more) or sites of more than 0.5 hectare. Neither threshold is reached in this case. 

 

6.17 The proposed refuse store would be set back some 5 metres from Homend 
Crescent. As such visibility from the driveway of the dwelling known as ‘Castlebridge’ 
would not be prejudiced. The entrance to the refuse store would be to the south of 
the building and it would be located some 18 metres from ‘Castlebridge’ itself. As 

87



 
PLANNING COMMITTEE 24 AUGUST 2007 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Mr R Close on 01432 261803  

   

 

such it is considered that the amenities of the occupiers of ‘Castlebridge’ would not 
be adversely affected. 

 

6.18 In terms of matters of potential air and ground pollution arising from the adjoining 
Petrol Filling Station this matter is controlled under separate legislation 
(Environmental Protection Act 1990). In terms of the issue of explosive risk from the 
adjoining Petrol Filling Station, the management of such facilities is controlled under 
separate legislation (i.e. Safety Regulations made under the Health and Safety at 
Work etc Act 1974 and a Petroleum Licence issued by the Authority with licence 
conditions under the Petroleum (Consolidation) Act 1928)). Such facilities are then 
inspected annually by the Council’s Petroleum and Explosives Officer to ensure 
compliance.. Indeed modern technology ensures that when fuel is delivered no 
vapour is released into the atmosphere. It is recovered back into the delivery tanker.  

 

6.19 The matters of views from existing dwellings and property prices are not material 
planning considerations. 

 

6.20 In conclusion, it is considered that the principle of the proposed development is 
acceptable; the scheme itself represents a high standard contemporary development 
that would integrate satisfactorily within the immediate environment, which has a 
mixed character and appearance. 

 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
1. The Head of Legal and Democratic Services be authorised to complete a 

planning obligation under Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 
1990 to (set out Heads of Agreement) and deal with any other appropriate and 
incidental terms, matters or issues; 

 
2. Upon completion of the above-mentioned planning obligation officers named 

in the Scheme of Delegation be authorised to issue planning permission 
subject to the following conditions:- 

 
 
 
 
1 -    A01 (Time limit for commencement (full permission) ) 
 

  Reason: Required to be imposed by Section 91 of the Town and Country 
Planning Act 1990. 

 
2 -   Prior to commencement of the development hereby permitted, samples of the 

materials to be used in the construction of the external surfaces of the building 
hereby permitted shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority for their 
written approval. The development hereby permitted shall not commence until 
the Local Planning Authority has given such written approval. The 
development shall be carried out in strict accordance with the approved 
materials and thereafter maintained as such. 

 
   Reason: To ensure a satisfactory external appearance to the development. 
 
3 -   No development shall take place until there has been submitted to and 

approved by the Local Planning Authority a scheme of landscaping using 

88



 
PLANNING COMMITTEE 24 AUGUST 2007 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Mr R Close on 01432 261803  

   

 

indigenous species. The submitted scheme of landscaping must include 
details as to the location of all planting, the species, their size and the density 
of planting. 

 
   Reason: To ensure that the development is satisfactorily integrated into the l

 ocality. 
 
4 -   All planting, seeding and turfing comprised in the approved details of 

landscaping shall be carried out in the first planting and seeding seasons 
following the first occupation of the any of the dwellings hereby permitted or 
the completion of the development (whichever is the sooner). Any trees or 
plants which within a period of five years from the completion of the 
development die, are removed or become seriously damaged or diseased shall 
be replaced in the next planting season with others of similar size and species, 
unless the Local Planning Authority gives written consent to any variation. 

 
  Reason: To ensure that the development is satisfactorily integrated into the 

locality. 
 
5 -   Prior to the first occupation of any of the dwellings hereby permitted the 

vehicular means of access, car parking, turning/manoeuvring area(s) for 
vehicles and secure cycle storage facilities shall be implemented. Thereafter 
these areas and facilities shall be kept available for such use. 

 
  Reason:  In the interests of highway safety and to encourage the use of modes 

of transport other than the private motor vehicle. 
 
6 -   Prior to commencement of the development hereby permitted full details of all 

boundary treatments (i.e. walling, fencing. gates or other means of enclosure) 
shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority for their written approval. 
The approved boundary treatments shall be fully implemented prior to the first 
occupation of any of the dwellings hereby permitted and thereafter maintained 
as such. 

 
   Reason:  To ensure a satisfactory appearance to the development. 
 
7 -   Prior to commencement of the development hereby permitted full details of a 

scheme of insulation against noise shall be submitted to the Local Planning 
authority for their written approval. The submitted scheme of glazing and 
passive ventilation shall be provided which achieves or exceeds the level of 
performance described in paragraph 5 of the noise assessment: SLR REF: 
402.0525.00006. The approved scheme shall be fully implemented prior to the 
first occupation of any of the dwellings hereby permitted and thereafter 
maintained as such. 

 
  Reason: To ensure that the occupiers of the dwellings hereby permitted enjoy 

a satisfactory level of amenity. 
 
8 -   Prior to commencement of the development hereby permitted full details of 

drainage, incorporating sustainable drainage principles and an assessment of 
the hydrological and hydrogeological context of the development, have been 
submitted to the Local Planning Authority for their written approval. The 
approved scheme shall be fully implemented prior to the first occupation of 
any of the dwellings hereby permitted and thereafter maintained as such. 

89



 
PLANNING COMMITTEE 24 AUGUST 2007 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Mr R Close on 01432 261803  

   

 

 
  Reason: To ensure that the development is provided with a satisfactory means 

of drainage. 
 

 9 - No development shall take place until the following has been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the local planning authority: 

 
a)   a 'desk study' report including previous site and adjacent site uses, potential 

contaminants arising from those uses, possible sources, pathways, and 
receptors, a conceptual model and a risk assessment in accordance with 
current best practice. 

 
b)   if the risk assessment in (a) confirms the possibility of a significant pollutant 

linkage(s), a site investigation should be undertaken to characterise fully the 
nature and extent and severity of contamination, incorporating a conceptual 
model of all the potential pollutant linkages and an assessment of risk to 
identified receptors. 

 
c)   if the risk assessment in (b) identified unacceptable risk(s) a detailed scheme 

specifying remedial works and measures necessary to avoid risk from 
contaminants/or gases when the site is developed.  The Remediation Scheme 
shall include consideration of and proposals to deal with situations where, 
during works on site, contamination is encountered which has not previously 
been identified.  Any further contamination encountered shall be fully 
assessed and an appropriate remediation scheme submitted to the local 
planning authority for written approval. 

 
  Reason:  In the interests of human health. 
 

10 -  The Remediation Scheme, as approved pursuant to condition no. (1) above, 
shall be fully implemented before the development is first occupied.  On 
completion of the remediation scheme the developer shall provide a validation 
report to confirm that all works were completed in accordance with the agreed 
details, which must be submitted before the development is first occupied.  
Any variation to the scheme including the validation reporting shall be agreed 
in writing with the Local Planning Authority in advance of works being 
undertaken. 

 
  Reason:  In the interests of human health. 
 
   Informatives: 
 
1 -    N15 - Reason(s) for the Grant of PP/LBC/CAC 
 
2 -    N19 - Avoidance of doubt 

90



 
PLANNING COMMITTEE 24 AUGUST 2007 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Mr R Close on 01432 261803  

   

 

DRAFT HEADS OF TERMS 
 

Proposed Planning Agreement 
 

Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended) 
 

   
Planning Application: - DCNE2007/0966/F 
 
Proposed three storey building to provide 13 apartments with 18 parking spaces and 
associated cycle parking at land rear of Homend Service Station, The Homend, 
Ledbury, Herefordshire HR8 1DS 
 
 

1. The developer covenants with Herefordshire Council to provide a pedestrian link 
across the land prior to the occupation of any of the dwellings hereby permitted and 
its future maintenance without obstruction or impediment. The ability of the general 
public to pass and re-pass along this route at no financial cost; 

 
2. The developer covenants with Herefordshire Council, to pay a commuted sum of 

£3,000 towards the provision / enhancement of the children’s play space / equipment 
within the Ledbury area prior to the first occupation of any of the dwellings; 

 
3. In the event of Herefordshire Council does not for any reason use the said sum in 

clause 2 within 10 years from the date of this agreement, the Council shall repay the 
developer the said sum or such part thereof, which has not been used by 
Herefordshire Council. 

 
4. The developer covenants with Herefordshire Council, to pay a commuted sum, of 

£8,190 towards the provision/enhancement of sports facilities within the 
Herefordshire Council area prior to the occupation of any of the dwellings. 

 
5. In the event of Herefordshire Council does not for any reason use the said sum in 

clause 4 within 10 years from the date of this agreement, the Council shall repay the 
developer the said sum or such part thereof, which has not been used by 
Herefordshire Council. 

 
6. The developer covenants with Herefordshire Council, to pay a commuted sum of 

£26,000 towards education provision within the Ledbury area prior to the occupation 
of any of the dwellings; 

 
7. In the event of Herefordshire Council does not for any reason use the said sum in 

clause 6 within 10 years from the date of this agreement, the Council shall repay the 
developer the said sum or such part thereof, which has not been used by 
Herefordshire Council. 

 
8. The developer covenants with Herefordshire Council, to pay a commuted sum of 

£19,500 towards sustainable transport initiatives within the Ledbury area prior to the 
occupation of any of the dwellings; 

 
9. In the event of Herefordshire Council does not for any reason use the said sum in 

clause 8 within 10 years from the date of this agreement, the Council shall repay the 
developer the said sum or such part thereof, which has not been used by 
Herefordshire Council. 

91



 
PLANNING COMMITTEE 24 AUGUST 2007 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Mr R Close on 01432 261803  

   

 

 
10. The sums referred to in paragraphs 2, 4, 6 and 8 above shall be linked to an 

appropriate index or indices selected by the Council with the intention that such sums 
will be adjusted according to any percentage increase in prices occurring between 
the date of the Section 106 Agreement and the date the sums are paid to the 
Council.  

 
11. The developer shall pay to the Council on or before the completion of the Agreement, 

the reasonable costs incurred by Herefordshire Council in connection with the 
preparation and completion of the Agreement. 

 

 

Decision:   

 

Notes: ....................................................................................................................................  

 

...............................................................................................................................................  

 

 

 

Background Papers 

 

Internal departmental consultation replies. 

92



PLANNING COMMITTEE 24 AUGUST 2007 

             Further information on the subject of this report is available from Mr R Close on Tel: 01432 261803 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

This copy has been produced specifically for Planning purposes. No further copies may be made. 

 APPLICATION NO: DCNE2007/0966/F  SCALE : 1 : 1250 
 
SITE ADDRESS : Land rear of Homend Service Station, The Homend, Ledbury, Herefordshire HR8 1DS 
 
Based upon the Ordnance Survey mapping with the permission of the controller of Her Majesty’s Stationery Office, © Crown Copyright.   Unauthorised reproduction 
infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.  Herefordshire Council.  Licence No: 100024168/2005 
 

 

Slope

Slope

Slope

86.2m

BM 81.44m

80.0m

El Sub Sta

79.1m

81.0m

1 to 24

142

Mymswood

Delamere

2
3
5

Settlands

Raguel

225

Lamorna

20

West View

T
h
e

Castlebridge

Garage

3

2
1

2
1

1

Home

1
2

Lawn

Dawes

Court

Superstore

Craig Side

The Knapp

W
e
stm

e
a
d

G
re

e
n
a
cre

s

O
ld

 P
ike

 H
o
u
se

House

Oakland

H
ig

h
vie

w

Lindum

Deanwood

Shalom

2
5

2
6

1
0

2
3

2
4

5

6
1

6
7

6
3

6
1

5
9

1

Ivydene 1
7

11

2

Beresford

4

The

Close

8

 

93



94



 
 PLANNING COMMITTEE 24 AUGUST 2007 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Mr A Banks on 01432 383085  

   

 

 DCNC2006/3893/F - DEMOLITION OF REDUNDANT 
RACING STABLES AND ERECTION OF 4 NO. 3 BED 
HOUSES (LOW COST MARKET) TOGETHER WITH 8 
PARKING SPACES AT RISBURY RACING STABLES, 
RISBURY, LEOMINSTER, HEREFORDSHIRE, HR6 0NQ 
 
For: Mr P Kelsall per Linton Design, 27 High Street, 
Bromyard, Herefordshire. HR7 4AA 
 

 

Date Received: Ward: Hampton Court Grid Ref: 
11th December 2006   55289, 54941 
Expiry Date: 
5th February 2007 

  

Local Member: Councillor KG Grumbley 
 
  
Introduction 
 
This application was reported to the Northern Area Planning Sub-Committee on 31 January 
2007 where it was deferred to allow a housing needs survey to be carried out and to 
investigate an appropriate mechanism through S106 to ensure that, if approved, the 
development provide affordable housing in perpetuity.  Consequently the matter was 
reported again on 25 July with a recommendation for refusal as set out below.  This decision 
was accordingly referred to Head of Planning Service to determine if it should be reported to 
planning committee for further consideration. 
 
The proposal represents development in the open countryside, beyond any recognised 
settlement boundary, and in an unsustainable location.  The applicant has failed to 
demonstrate that there are exceptional circumstances to warrant a departure from the policy 
considerations and, therefore, the application is contrary to Policy H10 of the Herefordshire 
Unitary Development Plan. 
 
In the debate Members of the Area Sub-Committee considered the findings of the local 
housing needs study, and that a local need existed.  They considered that despite the lack of 
local services or facilities the site was a suitably sustainable location.  They also concluded 
that the need for 4 local affordable dwellings was of sufficient weight that the difficulties in 
arriving at a suitable S106 agreement should be worked through, and that criteria 7 of policy 
H10 which restricts such dwelling to single plots, should be overridden. 

 
It was resolved to grant planning permission. 
 
The proposal raises the following issues: 

 
1. Risbury does not benefit from any local services.  The nearest schools are at Stoke 

Prior and Bodenham. 
2. The nearest shop/surgery is at Bodenham.  Job opportunities within Risbury are 

very limited, probably to domestic work and agricultural.  Anyone living in Risbury 
will be dependant upon the car for transport to such facilities. 

3. As the proposal is for 4 houses it is clearly contrary to criteria 7 of that policy. 

AGENDA ITEM 13

95



 
 PLANNING COMMITTEE 24 AUGUST 2007 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Mr A Banks on 01432 383085  

   

 

4. The difficulties of ensuring affordable dwellings in perpetuity. 
 
In light of the above it can be seen that the proposal conflicts with policy H10 of the UDP and 
raises serious implications for ensuring that any housing remains affordable in perpetuity. 

 
Following the Northern Area Planning Sub-Committee’s decision to approve this application 
and its subsequent referral to Main Committee, work has continued to try to provide a 
satisfactory form of words for a Section 106 Agreement.  A draft Agreement has been 
prepared by the applicant’s solicitor and is attached as an appendix to this report.  An extract 
from the applicant’s solicitor’s accompanying correspondence reads as follows: 
 
“… the purpose of my presentation of the first Draft 106 Agreement was simply to 
demonstrate my clients’ agreement to the basic principle of an onward sale of the proposed 
Affordable Housing Units to local residents at a discounted price and with a fallback position 
that they could sell those Units to the Marches Housing Association if no appropriate sale 
could be effected directly by them to a local resident.” 
 
 
Colleagues in the Council’s Legal Services Department have studied the detail of the 
Agreement and have identified a number of areas where its wording will need to be altered 
to address the concerns that Officer’s have continued to raise and are referred to in the 
original report to the Northern Area Planning Sub-Committee.  Discussions are continuing 
over the wording of the Agreement in order that an appropriate form of words might be 
agreed.  It is noted that Marches Housing Association have agreed to be the ‘beneficiary’ of 
a situation where the resultant dwellings cannot be sold to local residents. 
 
Your Officers remain concerned that, notwithstanding the fact that the proposal is clearly 
contrary to policy, the proposal will not actually deliver what is intended, that being 
discounted open market housing at a level that is truly affordable to local people.  The 
evidence is quite clear that, even where similar schemes have been the subject of a Section 
106 Agreement, they have failed to deliver the original intention.  This again is detailed in the 
original report to the Northern Area Planning Sub-Committee.  Whilst a form of words may 
eventually be agreed such fears have not been allayed and therefore the original 
recommendation remains unchanged. 

 
The report to the meeting 25 July follows: 
 
1. Site Description and Proposal 
 
1.1 The application site is located on the eastern fringe of the village of Risbury.  It is 

currently occupied by a large vacant agricultural building that has previously been used 
in connection with a racing stables.  The village has a linear form with little depth to 
development on either side of the road.  Residential dwellings lie to either side of the 
site. 

 
1.2 The site is flat but at a significantly lower level to the road and the open countryside to 

the north continues to fall away, giving extensive views across the wider landscape. 
 
1.3 The existing building sits quite close to the road, behind a mature native species 

hedgerow.  A separate building is located on the roadside boundary further to the east. 
 
1.4 The application is made in full and seeks to erect fair low cost open market dwellings 

with associated vehicular access and parking.  It is accompanied by a draft Section 
106 Agreement that is intended to ensure that the dwellings remain as Discounted Low 

96



 
 PLANNING COMMITTEE 24 AUGUST 2007 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Mr A Banks on 01432 383085  

   

 

Cost Housing and that they are made available for Herefordshire residents to 
purchase. 

 
1.5 The dwellings are arranged as two pairs of three bed semi detached properties, with a 

shared parking and turning area to the front. The access remains in the same position 
as exists at present, with the existing hedge removed and a new one replanted further 
back behind the visibility splay.  The building on the road frontage will be removed to 
the boundary of the applicant's land to maximise visibility in an easterly direction. 

 
1.6 The plans indicate that the dwellings would be simply designed, finished in red brick 

with tiled roofs and a lean-to porch to the front.  Drainage is shown to be via a bio-disc 
discharging to a series of soakaways located on an adjoining field that is also owned 
by the applicant. 

 
 
2. Policies 
 

Herefordshire Unitary Development Plan (Revised Deposit Draft) 
 

S1 - Sustainable Development 
S2 - Development requirements 
DR1 - Design 
DR5 - Planning obligations 
H6 - Housing in smaller settlements 
H9 - Affordable housing 
H10 - Rural exceptions housing 
H13 - Sustainable residential design. 

 
Leominster District Local Plan 

 
A2 - Settlement hierarchy 
A24 - Scale and character of development 
D48 - Affordable housing for local needs in rural areas. 

 
 
3. Planning History 
 

NC00/2791/0 - Proposed erection of three detached dwellings - dismissed on appeal 
11th July 2001. 

 
The Inspector upheld the Council's reasons relating to a lack of exceptional justification 
for redevelopment of the site for residential development in the open countryside, but 
attached little weight to the loss of an employment generating site. 

 
4. Consultation Summary 
 

Statutory Consultations 
 
4.1 None required 
 

Internal Council Consultations 
 
4.2 Transportation Manager -  
 

97



 
 PLANNING COMMITTEE 24 AUGUST 2007 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Mr A Banks on 01432 383085  

   

 

"Whilst the visibility "y" distances are around 35m, the speeds are lowish, and it is 
debateable if four dwellings would generate more traffic than the racing stables, so 
intensification is difficult to argue.  The proposal actually improves the visibility by 
resiting the hedge, and further improves the access by regrading the driveway adjacent 
to the carriageway to no more than 1 in 12.  On balance, we consider that, whilst the 
"y" distances do not meet standards fully, the proposal is a significant improvement 
over the existing access, and doubt if a refusal would be robust enough to succeed if 
appealed.  It is, therefore, recommended that conditions are imposed if planning 
permission is forthcoming." 

 
4.3 Strategic Housing – 
 

Further to the information provided on 31st January 2007,  a local housing needs 
survey has been undertaken for the Group parish of Humber,  into which Risbury falls. 
 
Housing Needs Survey 
 
The survey identified the need for 16 affordable houses across the Humber group with 
5 preferring Risbury itself and 8 would be willing to consider anywhere within the parish 
group. 
 
The type of affordable housing required is detailed on the table below. 
 
Therefore, the Housing Needs Survey appears initially to support a small development 
to meet local housing need within the Humber Group, although no income details are 
provided to ensure that those seeking low cost market housing can afford to purchase. 

 
 

98



 
 PLANNING COMMITTEE 24 AUGUST 2007 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Mr A Banks on 01432 383085  

   

 

 

 
Section 106 requirements 
 
Having considered the option of Low Cost Market the concern remains that the properties 
will not be delivered to affordable levels as outlined in the SPG Provision of Affordable 
Housing i.e. 3 bed - £110,000.   
 
The concerns arise from experience on negotiating low cost market housing on other sites 
throughout Herefordshire, where developers, both local and national, have identified that 
they would be unable to deliver at the levels indicated in the SPG.  On these occasions the 
developer has opted to provide additional rented houses or shared ownership, without the 
requirement for grant funding. 
 
In addition to this, where houses have been provided for low cost market by way of discount 
e.g. 30 or 40%, off the open market value, due to high house prices at the present time, this 
level of discount is not sufficient to enable local people to purchase as it exceeds their 
earnings.   
 
For example, 6 low cost market properties were provided by a private developer at £113,000 
for a 2 bed and £140,000 for a 3 bed which received planning permission based on a 

Where 
Type of 

household 
tenure required 

Registered 
with 

Homepoint 

Type of 
dwelling 
required 

beds 
req 

Weekly rent 
that can 
afford 

Afford to buy 

rent from housing assoc. yes house,bungalow 4 up to £90   
Existing 
households rent privately,shared 

ownership,rent from 
Housing Association yes house 3 don't know   

rent privately, rent from 
Housing Association no flat/apartment 2 up to £60   

rent from Housing 
Association, pegged yes house 3 up to £70   

rent privately,shared 
ownership,rent from 
Housing Association yes house 3 don't know don't know 

rent privately, rent from 
Housing Association no flat/apartment 1 up to £50   

Emerging 
households 

shared ownership no flat/apartment 1 don't know don't know 

anywhere 

Returning 
households 

other tenure required: 
whichever is financially 
practical. Interested in 
low cost self build on 
parents property within 
Parish. no house 2 up to £100   

Existing 
households pegged no house 3   up to £150000 

pegged no house    up to £150000 
Risbury 

Emerging 
households 

rent privately, rent from 
Housing Association, 
pegged  

house,bungalow, 
flat/apartment 2 up to £70 up to £120000 

pegged no house 3   up to £150000 Risbury 
or Stoke 
Prior 

Emerging 
households 

pegged no house 3   up to £150000 

99



 
 PLANNING COMMITTEE 24 AUGUST 2007 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Mr A Banks on 01432 383085  

   

 

discount of 30%.  The open market value of the properties were £160,000 for a 2 bed and 
£205,000 for a 3 bed and even with the discount compared to what local people could afford, 
this was not affordable by £19,755 and £40,805 respectively and the properties have been 
sold to people not considered as a high priority on the Homepoint Register and who may 
have otherwise been able to afford to purchase outright. This was due to the fact that local 
people were unable to purchase and the properties were sold as an exception to the S106 
agreement. 
 
Also, where a 30% discount has been set previously on a large scale development in 
Hereford City, this discount is not sufficient in today’s market to permit local people to 
purchase.  Therefore, it is possible that through a local Housing Association, a request may 
be received to transfer these to rented units, but with some grant funding. 
 
Whilst I understand that no information to date has been received in terms of the build costs, 
the proposals for 4 x 3 beds have been considered and at today’s values it is likely that the 
open market value would be approximately £180,000 – £200,000.  Therefore a discount 
would be required in the region of 45% for the initial and subsequent sales to meet the 
affordable housing requirements for the county. 
 
However, it must be noted that there is a risk that, as the property values increase at a 
considerable rate, that, if a discount of 45% is set at today’s values, in six or twelve months 
time when the development has been completed and ready for sale, the values may have 
increased, which would result in the 45% discount on the open market values exceeding the 
affordable limits of the county. 
 
There is a risk whether a private developer would be able to deliver affordable housing at 
affordable levels for the county and, therefore, should the application be approved, the 
properties should be sold at no more than the affordable housing levels referred to in the 
SPG provision of affordable housing. 
 

 
5. Representations 
 
5.1 Humber Parish Council - Recommends refusal 
 

Whilst recognising the need for affordable housing in the area, the Council does not 
consider that it is the correct place for such housing, because of the lack of facilities 
and the minimal public transport. 

 
5.2 Letters of objection have beeen received from the following:- 
 

M. J. White, Pentwyn, Risbury 
Mr. and Mrs. White, New Pentwyn, Turning Ways, Risbury 
Mr. D. Shelley, The Birches Farm, Pencombe 
Ms. C. Davies, The Birches Farm, Pencombe 
Mr. M. Warlock, The Birches Farm, Pencombe 
Mr. S. Thompson, Kia-Ora, Risbury 

 
In summary the points raised are as follows:- 

 
1.  The proposal is contrary to policy. 

 
2.  The vacancy of other dwellings built by the applicant demonstrates that there is  

   not a need for further property in the area. 

100



 
 PLANNING COMMITTEE 24 AUGUST 2007 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Mr A Banks on 01432 383085  

   

 

 
3.  Concerns about highway safety and access out of the site. 

 
5.3 The full text of these letters can be inspected at Northern Planning Services, 

Blueschool House, Blueschool Street, Hereford and prior to the Sub-Committee 
meeting. 

 
6.  Officer’s Appraisal 
 
6.1.1 These matters must be given careful consideration along with the criteria based 

policy of H10 which form the basis for the assessment of this application. 
 
6.2 Policy H10 reads as follows:  
 

Exceptionally, affordable housing may be permitted on land within or adjoining an 
established rural settlement which would not normally be released for development, 
provided that: 
 
 

1. the scheme will contribute to meeting a proven genuine and quantifiable local 
need for affordable housing as ascertained from an up-to-date local affordable 
housing needs survey. In the case of a single affordable dwelling, clear 
evidence of a long-term local need will be required;  

 
2.   it is evident that local housing conditions could not otherwise satisfy the need; 
 
3. the scheme respects both the character and size of the settlement concerned 

and the identified scale of need;  
 
4.  arrangements are made to ensure that the benefits of affordable housing, for  

single dwellings as well as larger schemes, will be enjoyed in perpetuity by 
subsequent occupants in local need as well as by the initial occupiers; 

  
5. the site’s location affords reasonable access to facilities and where possible 

public transport;  
 
6. proposals do not involve mixed developments consisting of open market 

housing to offset the lower return on affordable housing on the same site; and  
 

7.  in settlements other than Kington (policy H2), the main villages (policy H4) or  
smaller settlements (policy H6) the proposal is limited to the construction of a 
single affordable dwelling which does not exceed the dwelling and plot size 
limits set in policy H6 unless clear evidence is provided to indicate a need 
exists for a larger dwelling. 

 
The report will explore each of these criteria in turn to consider whether the proposal 
complies with them. 
 
1. Local Need 

 
A Housing Needs Survey has now been completed and this concludes that: 
 
The survey found 16 households with a potential affordable need within Humber, 
Ford & Stoke Prior Group Parish. These households are broken down as follows. 

101



 
 PLANNING COMMITTEE 24 AUGUST 2007 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Mr A Banks on 01432 383085  

   

 

 

• 2 households are currently renting from a Housing Association and wish to change 
properties within the Parish – 1 wishes to move into larger Housing Association 
rented property and the other wishes to move to cheaper rented Housing 
Association property. 

 

• 3 households wish to undertake discounted purchase and have been classed as 
“borderline affordable needs”,  

 

• Of the remaining 11 households, 8 wish to rent from a Housing Association, or have 
included this among their tenure options, 3 have included shared ownership among 
their options and 3 have included purchasing a property whose sale price is pegged 
at below market price by legal covenant. 

 
The definition of affordable housing contained within Planning Policy Statement 3 – Housing 
(PPS3) reads as follows: 
 
The Government is committed to providing high quality housing for people who are 
unable to access or afford market housing, for example, vulnerable people and key workers 
as well as helping people make the step from social-rented housing to home ownership. 
This section should be read together with the Government’s Affordable Housing Policy 
Statement.18. The Government defines affordable housing as including social rented 
and intermediate housing. 
 
The final sentence is key.  The term ‘intermediate housing’ is taken to mean shared 
ownership and not low cost or discounted open market housing which is referred to 
elsewhere in the document.  Your Officer’s opinion is that this proposal does not reflect this 
description and therefore cannot be considered to be ‘affordable’.  
 

2. Local Housing Conditions 
 
Like the majority of Herefordshire’s smaller rural settlements, house prices are way beyond 
the means of the average local person living in Risbury and there are not sufficient 
properties within the village to meet the potential demand identified by the Housing Needs 
Survey.  What is most important to consider is whether this need should be being met in 
Risbury at all. 

 
3. Size and Character of the Settlement 
 
The proposal reflects the linear form of the village and is generally considered to be of an 
acceptable scale and character.  It is noted that no objections have been raised to the 
scheme in respect of its design. 
 
4. Retention of affordable housing in perpetuity 
 
It is clear from the comments received from the Council’s Strategic Housing Team that there 
is a fundamental doubt as to whether housing can be delivered at a discounted level that 
makes it affordable to the average local person.   
 
Colleagues in Legal Services have attempted to draft a form of words for a Section 106 
Agreement to address all of the issues raised in the comments from Strategic Housing with 
limited success.  An Agreement would have to work on the premise that the applicant must 
sell the four 3 bed dwellings at a fixed price of £110,320 to persons with a local parish 

102



 
 PLANNING COMMITTEE 24 AUGUST 2007 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Mr A Banks on 01432 383085  

   

 

connection. If there are no buyers after three months for any/all of the dwellings, the owner 
must sell them to a Registered Social Landlord (RSL) at the same price. 
 
The RSL is required to sell at £110,320 within a further three month period to a person with a 
local parish connection. 
 
If at the end of this period if the RSL cannot sell to a local person, the RSL can apply to the 
Council to retain and lease the properties under a shared ownership scheme. It is presumed 
that occupiers under shared ownership would have to be local and would not be able to 
acquire more than 80% equity in any dwelling. 
 
The problems arise where either the owner or the RSL are able to sell on to a local person at 
the fixed amount. It is difficult to come to a satisfactory conclusion as to the mechanism for 
setting the subsequent sale price and what would happen if the then owner is unable to sell 
at that price to a local person.  Property could be advertised through Homepoint, but this is 
no guarantee that it will be successfully sold.  The examples highlighted by Strategic 
Housing show this to be the case.  
 
The Council has in the past agreed to a limited number of schemes where the discount was 
expressed as a percentage of the open market value at the date of sale. In this proposal, the 
initial price is determined by reference to the SPG. It may be possible that resale figures 
could be expressed as a percentage figure that equates to the SPG figure above, (i.e. if 
£100,320 is 60% of the open market value then a 60% discount applies on all subsequent 
sales).  
 
There may be other mechanisms, such as earnings related, but they may prove too complex 
to calculate in the future. Such mechanisms would also need to ensure that they do not 
conflict with the initial price so that the first residential owners are not penalised by having to 
sell at less than the price they paid in real terms. Any such discounted housing scheme will 
need to include a measure of Council involvement to ensure that local demand is met at the 
correct discounted price. 
 
There is also the question of mortgagees in possession clauses. Mortgagees are unlikely to 
prove funding unless they have the right to take possession in the event of mortgage 
arrears. They normally require the S106 to contain an exemption clause so that in the event 
of possession they can sell on the open market free of the discounted / local connection 
requirements. 
 
In conclusion, there is some doubt as to whether a Section 106 Agreement can adequately 
address all of the variables that might arise to secure the provision of discounted open 
market housing in perpetuity.   
 
5. Sustainability 
 
Risbury has not been identified as a smaller settlement for a reason.  It has no facilities and 
poor public transport links.  Hence, it is not considered to be a sustainable location for further 
residential development.  The framework for the provision of affordable housing is set by 
other policies in the UDP and settlements where it will be accepted, due to the existence of 
services and facilities, are identified.  Risbury is not a sustainable location and, therefore, the 
application fails this policy test.  This has very recently been endorsed by an appeal decision 
at 2 Cross Cottages in Risbury where the Inspector said: 
 
“In the interests of the promotion of sustainable development, there is now a significant 
restraint on new housing in such settlements.  This policy is carried forward in Policy H7 of 

103



 
 PLANNING COMMITTEE 24 AUGUST 2007 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Mr A Banks on 01432 383085  

   

 

the Herefordshire Unitary Development Plan.  I agree with the council that the appeal 
proposal would conflict with the content and purpose of these policies.” 
 
 
6. Mixed development 
 
Policy H10 expects developments to be affordable in the sense that they are applications 
made for rented or shared ownership dwellings.  The proposal does not accord with this part 
of the policy, as it is entirely for open market housing, albeit at a discounted level. 
 
7. Single affordable dwellings 
 
This part of the policy allows for developments of single dwellings outside of the main 
villages and smaller settlements.  In effect, this will be for local needs housing on a case by 
case basis.  The application is for four dwellings and does not comply with this part of the 
policy. 
 
 
Other material planning considerations 
 
It may be argued that the proposal allows the re-use of previously developed land and that 
the site does not have an alternative use.  Therefore, it is appropriate to consider its 
redevelopment. 
 
The site is occupied by an agricultural building and falls within a predominantly rural area.  
The circumstances of such a building adjacent to residential dwellings is not uncommon  
across Herefordshire.  It does not cause undue harm to the amenity of dwellings within the 
vicinity.  It is your officer’s opinion that this does not offer sufficient justification to override 
the Policy H10. 
 
Conclusion 
 
To summarise, the site is in an unsustainable location, where there is a presumption against 
further residential development, both open market or affordable.  In any event the Policy H10 
of the UDP would only permit a single affordable dwelling, not four as is proposed.   
 
Your officers are not satisfied that a Section 106 Agreement can be satisfactorily worded to 
address all of the potential variables that could arise to secure the development as 
discounted open market housing in perpetuity.     
 
The proposal does not propose a mixed development of open market to subsidise affordable 
housing.  However, in light of the description of what actually constitutes affordable housing 
as defined by PPS3, your Officer’s opinion is that this proposal does not reflect this 
description and therefore cannot be considered to be ‘affordable’  
 

The proposal therefore fails to meet a number of the criteria defined by Policy H10 of the 
UDP and fails on policy grounds.  Accordingly it is concluded that the proposal represents 
development in the open countryside and without exceptional justification is recommended 
for refusal. 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
That planning permission be refused for the following reason:  

104



 
 PLANNING COMMITTEE 24 AUGUST 2007 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Mr A Banks on 01432 383085  

   

 

 
1. The proposal represents development in the open countryside, beyond any  

recognised settlement boundary, and in an unsustainable location.  The  
applicant has failed to demonstrate that there are exceptional circumstances to 
warrant a departure from the policy considerations and, therefore, the 
application is contrary to Policy H10 of the Herefordshire Unitary Development 
Plan.  

 
Decision: ................................................................................................................................  
 
Notes: ....................................................................................................................................  
 
...............................................................................................................................................  
 
 
 
Background Papers 
 
Internal departmental consultation replies. 
 

105



 
 PLANNING COMMITTEE 24 AUGUST 2007 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Mr A Banks on 01432 383085  

   

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

This copy has been produced specifically for Planning purposes. No further copies may be made. 

  

APPLICATION NO: DCNC2006/3893/F  SCALE : 1 : 1250 
 
SITE ADDRESS : Risbury Racing Stables, Risbury, Leominster, Herefordshire, HR6 0NQ 
 
Based upon the Ordnance Survey mapping with the permission of the controller of Her Majesty’s Stationery Office, © Crown Copyright.   Unauthorised 
reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.  Herefordshire Council.  Licence No: 100024168/2005 

 

 

Butt Oak

160.1m

2300

Gallop

View

Pentwyn

Kia-ora

 

106



THIS DEED dated the                                  day of                               Two Thousand and 

Seven is made BETWEEN:- 

(1) THE COUNTY OF HEREFORDSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL of Brockington          

35 Hafod Road  Hereford  HR1 1SH (“the Council”) 

(2) PETER ROY KELSALL and ANNETTE RITA KELSALL both of Linwell House  

Hope End  Ledbury  Herefordshire HR8 1JQ (“the Owner”) 

WHEREAS: 

(1) The Council is empowered by Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 

(as amended) (“the Act”) to enter into an agreement with any person interested in land 

in its area for the purpose of restricting or regulating the development or use of that 

land. 

(2) The Owner is the registered proprietor free from encumbrances of land described in the 

First Schedule hereto (“the Land”). 

(3) The Owner has by its agent submitted to the Council an application for planning 

permission as described in the Second Schedule hereto (“the Application”). 

(4) The Council acting by its planning committee has resolved to delegate authority to its 

officers for the grant of planning permission (subject to conditions) in pursuance of the 

Application subject to the completion of this deed for the purpose of restricting or 

regulating the development or use of the Land in manner hereinafter appearing. 

(5) The Council is the local planning authority by whom the restrictions and obligations 

contained in this deed are enforceable. 

NOW THIS DEED is made pursuant to Section 106 of the Act and is a planning obligation 

for the purposes of that Act, Section 111 of the Local Government Act 1972, Section 2 of the 

Local Government Act 2000 and all other enabling powers and enactments which may be 

107



relevant for the purposes of giving validity hereto or facilitating the enforcement of the 

obligations herein contained with the intent to bind the Land and WITNESSES as follows:- 

1. Words and Expressions 

 In this Deed the following words and expressions shall where the context so admits 

have the following meanings:- 

1.1 The expressions the “Owner” and the “Council” shall include their respective 

successors in title and assigns. 

1.2 Words importing the singular number only shall include the plural number and vice 

versa and words importing the one gender includes the other gender and where there are 

two or more persons included in the expression “the Owner covenants” such covenants 

expressed or implied made by the Owner shall be deemed to be made by such persons 

jointly and severally. 

1.3 All references in this deed to a person or persons shall include corporations and 

unincorporated associations and all other legal entities. 

1.4 Words denoting an obligation on a party to do any act include an obligation to procure 

that it be done. 

1.5 Words placing a party under a restriction include an obligation not to permit 

infringement of that restriction. 

1.6 References to any statute or statutory instrument shall except where otherwise 

specifically provided include reference to any statutory modification or re-enactment 

thereof for the time being in force. 

1.7 “The Development” means the development of the Land as authorised by the Planning 

Permission. 

1.8 “The Plan” means the plan annexed to this deed. 

108



1.9 “Affordable Housing” shall have the meaning in paragraph 2 of the Council’s 

Supplementary Planning Guidance entitled “Provision of Affordable Housing” dated 

March 2001 updated November 2004 which defines Affordable Housing as “housing 

provided for rent or sale at a price level which can be sustained by local people in 

housing need where households are unable to access existing markets”. 

1.10 “Affordable Housing Units” shall mean the four residential units and ancillary areas that 

comprise the Development. 

1.11 “Commencement of Development” means to commence the Development pursuant to 

the Permission by the carrying out of a Material Operation. 

1.12 “Material Operation” has the meaning given by Section 56(4) of the Act. 

1.13 “Planning Permission” shall mean the planning permission subject to conditions issued 

by the Council permitting the Development pursuant to the Application and the 

expression Planning Permission shall include all reserved matter approvals granted 

thereunder 

1.14 “Registered Social Landlord” shall mean a registered social landlord as defined in Part 1 

of the Housing Act 1996 who is registered with the Housing Corporation under Section 

3 of that Act and has not been removed from the register pursuant to Section 4 of that 

Act or any statutory provision amending consolidating or replacing it for the time being 

in force and being a preferred development partner registered social landlord listed (or 

intended by the Council for listing) in Appendix 1 of the Council’s aforementioned 

Supplementary Planning Guidance. 

2. Covenants 

 The Owner for the purposes of Section 106 of the Act with the intention of binding the 

Land agrees and covenants with the Council to observe the restrictions and perform the 

obligations set out in the Third Schedule hereto. 

109



3. Reservations 

 Nothing in this deed shall prevent the Council from exercising any of its statutory 

powers or functions in relation to the development of the Land. 

4. Local Land Charge Provisions 

 This deed is a local land charge and shall be registered as such. 

5. Costs 

 Upon completion of this deed the Owner shall pay to the Council its reasonable and 

proper costs in the preparation and completion of this deed. 

6. Agreement and Declarations 

 IT IS HEREBY AGREED AND DECLARED that:- 

6.1 The restrictions and obligations in the Third Schedule to this deed are planning 

obligations enforceable by the Council in accordance with the provisions of Section 

106(3) of the Act against the Owner and his successors in title to the Land. 

6.2 With the exception of paragraphs 4 and 5 of this deed which have effect on the date of 

this deed none of the terms or provisions of this deed will have operative effect unless 

and until the date that the Planning Permission is issued by the Council and the 

Commencement of Development. 

6.3 If the Planning Permission shall expire before Commencement of Development or shall 

at any time be revoked this deed shall forthwith determine and cease to have effect but 

without prejudice to the validity of anything done or payments or contributions made 

whilst this deed is in force. 

6.4 Nothing in this deed shall prohibit or limit the right to develop any part of the Land in 

accordance with a planning permission (other than the Planning Permission) granted 

(whether or not on appeal) after the date of this deed. 

110



6.5 If any provision in this deed shall be held to be invalid illegal or unenforceable the 

validity legality or enforceability of the remaining provisions hereof shall not in any 

way be deemed to be affected or impaired. 

6.6 The Owner shall not be entitled to any costs or compensation whatsoever from the 

Council arising from the agreement restrictions and obligations contained in this deed. 

6.7 A person who is not a party to this deed has no right under the Contracts (Rights of 

Third Party) Act 1999 to enforce any term of this deed but this does not affect any right 

or remedy of a third party which exists or is available apart from such act. 

6.8 No person shall be liable for a breach of a covenant contained in this deed after parting 

with all interest in the Land or the part of the Land in respect of which such breach 

occurs but without prejudice to liability for any subsisting breach of covenant prior to 

parting with such interest. 

6.9 The headings in this deed are for convenience only and shall not be taken into account 

in the construction and interpretation thereof. 

7. Notices 

 A notice under this deed is valid only if:- 

7.1 It is given by hand sent by recorded delivery or document exchange or sent by fax 

provided that a confirmatory copy is given by hand or sent by recorded delivery or 

document exchange on the same day, and 

7.2 It is served 

7.2.1 at the address shown in this deed for the receiving party (and in the case of the 

Council is marked for the attention of the Head of Planning Services quoting 

reference DCNC2006/3893/F or at any address specified in a notice given by 

that party to the other parties. 

 

111



7.3 A notice 

7.3.1 sent by recorded delivery is to be treated as served on the second working day 

after posting if sent by first class post on the third working day after posting if 

sent by second class post 

7.3.2 sent through a document exchange is to be treated as served on the first 

working day after the day on which it would normally be available for 

collection by the recipient 

7.3.3 sent by fax is to be treated as served on the day on which it is successfully sent 

or the next working day where the fax is sent successfully after 1600 hours or 

on a day that is not a working day whenever and whether or not the 

confirmatory copy is received unless the confirmatory copy is returned through 

the Royal Mail or the document exchange undelivered. 

8. Waiver 

 No waiver (whether express or implied) by the Council or any breach or default by the 

Owner in performing or observing any of the obligations or other terms of this deed 

shall constitute a continuing waiver and no such waiver shall prevent the Council from 

enforcing any of the obligations or other terms of this deed or from acting upon any 

subsequent breach or default in respect thereto by the Owner. 

9. Arbitration 

 In the event of any dispute or difference arising out of this deed between the parties 

(other than a dispute or difference relating to a matter of law or concerning the meaning 

or construction of this deed) which is not resolved within 14 days such dispute or 

difference shall at the request of any party be referred for arbitration under the 

Arbitration Act 1996 to a sole arbitrator to be agreed between the parties or in the 

absence of agreement within fourteen days after any party has given to the other(s) a 

112



written request to concur in the appointment of an arbitrator to be appointed at the 

request of any party by the President or Vice President of the Chartered Institute of 

Arbitrators and in these respects these presents shall be construed as a submission to 

arbitration within the meaning of the Arbitration Act 1996. 

10. Warranty as to Title 

 The Owner hereby warrants to the Council that the title details referred to in recital 2 

and in the First Schedule hereto are complete and accurate in every respect. 

IN WITNESS of which this instrument has been duly executed as a deed by the parties and 

delivered the day and year first before written. 

 

FIRST SCHEDULE 

(“the Land”) 

The freehold land situated at Risbury, Leominster shown edged red on the Plan and forming 

part of the Title Number HE22694 

 

SECOND SCHEDULE 

(“the Application”) 

An application for Planning Permission dated the                          day of                         200  

made under the Council’s reference DCNC2006/3893/F for demolition of existing buildings 

(if any) and erection of four dwellings and associated garages and/or parking spaces and 

associated drainage. 

 

113



THIRD SCHEDULE 

1. To construct or procure the construction of the Affordable Housing Units in accordance 

with the Planning Permission and to current Housing Corporation scheme development 

standards and to the Joseph Rowntree “Lifetime Homes” standards. 

2. The Affordable Housing Units shall be occupied as a sole residence only by a person or 

in the case of two or more persons one of whom has a local connection with the parish 

of Humber Ford and Stoke Prior Group Parish or in the event of there being no person 

having a local connection to the parish of Humber Ford and Stoke Prior Group Parish a 

person with a local connection to the adjoining parishes of 

 or in the event of there being no person with a local connection with any of the 

preceding parishes any other person ordinarily resident within the administrative area of 

the Council. 

3. For the purposes of paragraph 2 of this Schedule “local connection” means having a 

local connection to one of the parishes specified above because that person: 

 is or in the past was normally resident there and that residence is or was of his own 

choice; or 

 is employed there; or 

 has a family association there; or 

 shows a proven need to give support to or receive support from family members; or 

 can show special circumtances; 

 and for the purposes of this paragraph 3: 

 “normally resident” shall be established by twelve months prior residence in one of the 

parishes specified in paragraph 2 of this Schedule 

 

 “employed” shall mean in the employ of another not being of a casual nature but shall 

not exclude part-time employment of 16 hours or more per week or self-employment 

 

 

 

114



 “family association” shall mean where a person or a member of his household has 

parents, adult children, brothers or sisters currently residing in one of the parishes 

specified in paragraph 2 above and who have been resident for a period of at least one 

year and that person indicates a wish to be near them 

 

 “support” shall mean a proven need to provide or receive personal and physical care to 

enable a person or a family member to live independently in the community 

 

 “special circumstances” shall not normally apply but amount to circumstances which in 

the view of the Council may give rise to a local connection. 

 

4. The Owner further covenants with the Council that in the event of a disposal of any one 

or more of the Affordable Housing Units (and in this Agreement the expression 

“disposal” or “disposed of” shall mean the completion of any transaction for the sale of 

the freehold or leasehold or any assignment of any terms created by a lease conferring a 

right to occupy such dwelling residentially) then such disposal shall not take place 

except in accordance with the following provisions:- 

4.1 such disposal shall not take place other than to a person or persons who intends to 

occupy the Affordable Housing Unit as his only or principal home and satisfies all or 

any of the criteria set out in paragraphs 2 and 3 of this Schedule and 

4.2 notice of intended disposal together with full sales particulars and details of the intended 

purchasers together with the circumstances whereby the intended purchasers satisfy the 

criteria set out in paragraphs 2 and 3 have been satisfied shall have been served by the 

Owner or any subsequent owner on the Council and 

4.3 the Council has within 28 days of receipt of the notice referred to in 4.2 confirmed in 

writing to the Owner that the disposal can proceed subject to the price for such disposal 

being determined in accordance with the provisions of paragraph 5 hereunder 

5. The purchase price applicable to the disposal or any subsequent disposal shall be: 

5.1 the open market value of the Affordable Housing Unit discounted in accordance with 

the provisions of the Supplementary Planning Guidance entitled “Provision of 

115



Affordable Housing” dated March 2001 and updated November 2004 or any subsequent 

modification thereof and in force at the time of the relevant disposal and where 

5.2 the open market value of the Affordable Housing Unit is the value of the dwelling with 

vacant possession if sold on the open market in good faith by a willing seller and 

disregarding the obligations in this deed and which shall be the mean of the total of two 

valuations obtained by the Owner from two independent RICS qualified valuers 

practising within 20 miles of the Development. 

6. If within a period of six months following the date of practical completion of the 

Development (and for this purpose practical completion shall be determined by the 

issue of a Practical Completion Certificate by the Council’s Building Control Officer) 

any one or more of the Affordable Housing Units has not been disposed of or occupied 

by a person or persons satisfying the criteria set out in paragraphs 2 and 3 of this 

Schedule then the Owner shall be at liberty to dispose of any one or more of the 

Affordable Housing Units not so occupied or disposed of to the Marches Housing 

Association a Registered Social Landlord approved by the Council and at a price 

determined in accordance with the provisions of paragraph 5 hereof. 

7. The Owner agrees so as to ensure compliance with the provisions of this deed that on 

the first and each and every subsequent disposal of any one or more of the Affordable 

Housing Units to apply to the Registrar of the Land Registry to enter a Restriction on 

that part of the Owner’s Registered Title number HE22694 comprising the 

Development and described in Schedule 1 hereto in the following terms:- 

 “No disposition of the registered estate forming or previously forming part of Title 

Number HE22694 is to be registered except on the filing at the Land Registry of a 

certificate by the registered proprietor’s solicitor or licensed conveyancer that the 

covenants contained in the Third Schedule of a Deed made pursuant to Section 106 of 

116



the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended) and made between the County 

of Hereford District Council of the one part and Peter Roy Kelsall and Annette Rita 

Kelsall of the other part dated the                    day of                             2007 have been 

complied with and notice thereof has been given to the Head of Planning Services, 

County of Hereford District Council  Brockington 35 Hafod Road  Hereford HR1 1SH 

reference DCNC2006/3893/F” 

 

EXECUTED AS A DEED when  ) 

THE COMMON SEAL of THE ) 

COUNTY OF HEREFORDSHIRE ) 

DISTRICT COUNCIL was ) 

hereunto affixed BY ORDER ) 

 

  Authorised Officer 

 

 

SIGNED AS A DEED by the said ) 

PETER ROY KELSALL in the ) 

presence of:- ) 

 

 
Witness signature: 

 

Name: 

 

Address: 

 

Occupation: 

 

 

SIGNED AS A DEED by the said ) 

ANNETTE RITA KELSALL in  ) 

the presence of:- ) 

 

 
Witness signature: 

 

Name: 

 

Address: 

 

Occupation: 

 

 

117



DATED                                                    2007  

 

 

 

 

THE COUNTY OF HEREFORDSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 

and 

 

MR PETER ROY KELSALL 

and MRS ANNETTE RITA KELSALL 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

DEED OF PLANNING OBLIGATION 

made under the provisions of 

Section 106 Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended) 

relating to freehold land situated at Risbury, Leominster  

and forming part of Title Number HE22694 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Beaumonts 

Beaumont House 

Offa Street 

Hereford 

HR1 2LH 

 
SN(CA)/Kelsall PR 28321/10 

118



 
PLANNING COMMITTEE                                                                                      24th AUGUST, 2007
  

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Mr R Pryce on 261957 Ext 1957 

   

 

 DCCE2007/1209/F - RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT 
TOGETHER WITH ALTERATIONS TO 10 LEDBURY 
ROAD TO PROVIDE 6 RESIDENTIAL UNITS AT 10 
LEDBURY  ROAD, HEREFORD, HEREFORDSHIRE, 
HR1 2SY 
 
For: Williams Bros per JBD Architects, Mortimer 
House, Holmer Road, Hereford, HR4 9TA 
 

 

Date Received: 17th April, 2007  Ward: Tupsley Grid Ref: 51760, 39633 

Expiry Date: 12th June, 2007 
Local Members: Councillors Mrs M. Lloyd-Hayes, W.J. Walling and A. Taylor  
 
INTRODUCTION 
 
This application was deferred at the Central Area Planning Sub Committee on the 6th 
June 22007 to allow members to undertake an inspection of the site and was deferred 
again at the Central Area Planning Sub-Committee meeting on 4th July 2007 to allow 
further consultation on amended plans.  The amendment being that the proposed two 
one-bedroom bungalows to the rear of the site have been deleted from the scheme 
thereby reducing the number new residential units to be created to 6.   
 
The application was considered by the Central Area Planning Sub-Committee at its 
meeting on 1st August where Members resolved to refuse planning permission 
contrary to the recommendation of the report.   
 
Members were particularly concerned that the proposal represented an 
overdevelopment of the site to the detriment of highway safety.   
 
The Traffic Manager has assessed both the original submission for eight units and the 
revised application for six units and in both instances, considers that the 
development will have no adverse impact on highway or pedestrian safety, that a safe 
access will be created and that adequate parking is being provided on site all in 
accordance with the adopted Unitary Development Plan policies.  In making this 
assessment, they have also examined the local accident record and considered the 
cumulative impact alongside other on-going developments along Ledbury Road.    
 
There are therefore not considered to be any substantive highway reasons for refusal 
that could be defended on appeal.  Consequently, the application is referred to this 
meeting of Planning Committee for further consideration. 
 
 
1. Site Description and Proposal 
 
1.1  The site is located on the eastern side of Ledbury Road, approximately 70 metres 

north of the junction with Eign Road and just south and opposite the junction with 
Templars Lane.  No 10 is a semi-detached brick and pitched slate roof property with an 
existing vehicular access off Ledbury Road.  The front garden is enclosed by a low 
stone wall, the rear and side boundaries are enclosed by a mixture of fencing and a 

AGENDA ITEM 14

119



 
PLANNING COMMITTEE                                                                                      24th AUGUST, 2007
  

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Mr R Pryce on 261957 Ext 1957 

   

 

wall.  North and south of the site are semi-detached and terraced properties all fronting 
Ledbury Road which are of similar design and period as number 10.  The site lies 
within an Established Residential Area as identified in the Herefordshire Unitary 
Development Plan 2007. 

 
1.2  Planning permission is sought for the demolition of an existing garage and 

conservatory and construction of a residential development comprising two 2 bedroom 
flats and four 1 bedroom flats with parking and turning area for 10 vehicles, associated 
cycle and refuse storage area.  The six flats are to be provided through conversion and 
extension of the existing property with the existing vehicular access widened serving 
the parking area to the rear. 

 
2. Policies 
 
2.1 Herefordshire Unitary Development Plan 2007: 
 
 S1 - Sustainable development 
 S2 - Development requirements 
 S3 - Housing 
 S6 - Transport 
 DR1 - Design 
 DR2 - Land use and activity 
 DR3 - Movement 

H13 - Sustainable residential design 
H14 - Re-using previously developed land and buildings 
H15 - Density 
H16 - Car parking 
T6 - Walking 
T7 - Cycling 
T8 - Road hierarchy 

 
3. Planning History 
 
3.1  CE2003/0601/O - Proposed residential development.  Approved 21st April, 2003. 
 
3.2  CE2006/4015/F - Residential development together with alterations to 10 Ledbury 

Road to provide 8 residential units.  Application withdrawn 24th January, 2007. 
 
4. Consultation Summary 
 

Statutory Consultations 
 

4.1  Welsh Water: No objections subject to conditions. 
 
 Internal Council Advice 
 
4.2  Traffic Manager: 

The proposed access to the development is of sufficient width to allow a vehicle 
entering to pass a vehicle waiting to leave the access. The visibility achievable from 
the access to the east from 2.4m setback achieves 43m which is adequate for 
compliance with stopping sight distances in Manual for Streets for 30mph, and from a 
2.0m setback (which is more suited to established urban situations due to width of 
footway) 52m is achievable, which equates to speeds of around 35mph. Due to the on 
street parking on the north side of the road to the east of the site, 85 percentile vehicle 

120



 
PLANNING COMMITTEE                                                                                      24th AUGUST, 2007
  

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Mr R Pryce on 261957 Ext 1957 

   

 

speeds are around 30mph.  To the west, approaching vehicles can be seen to the 
corner at the junction with Eign Road (around 70m). 

  

I also enclose a summary of the accident record for the full length of Ledbury Road 
from the signalled junction with St Owen Street to the roundabout at Bodenham Road. 
This shows that there have been 13 recorded personal injury accidents within this 
length within the 5 year period from May 2002 to April 2007 inclusive.   Of these 
accidents, 3 involved serious injury and 10 slight injury with a total of 14 casualties. 10 
of the accidents were in areas of high turning movements, namely at the two petrol 
stations (6 of which 2 involved serious injury), Central Avenue junction (3) and Eign 
Road junction (1).  

 
The remaining 3 accidents were within 75m of the proposed development and are 
summarised below:- 

  

20/9/05 Outside No 1 Ledbury Road  
Moped leaving car park at No 1 is struck by vehicle entering. Slight injury to rider 
29/9/05 40m S/W of Templars Lane 

Car reversing into driveway clips wall which collapses, slightly injuring a pedestrian on 
the footway 
21/4/07 22m N/E of Templars Lane 

Vehicle loses control and veers across road, striking parked vehicle and then collides 
with oncoming vehicle and overturns. Serious injury to driver of overturned vehicle  

  This information has been taken into account in my recommendation. 
  

I am satisfied that the proposed access is acceptable for the proposed development in 
terms of geometry and visibility. The internal layout proposed and level of parking 
provision is also acceptable. 

  
My recommendation is therefore that the application should be approved with 
conditions. 
 
In response to the amended proposals – The reduction in the number of units will be 
beneficial in terms of reducing vehicle movements to and form Ledbury Road and my 
recommendation of approval remains unchanged. 

 
 
5.  Representations 
 
5.1  Hereford City Council: Recommend refusal on the grounds of over intensive 

development of the site with deficient access onto a busy highway 
  

The City Council maintain their objection to he amended proposal as the amendments 
have not addressed their concerns.  

 
5.2  Eleven letters of objection have been received including a petition with 52 signatures.  

The main points raised are: 
 

1. Ledbury Road is already a very busy residential street where there have been a 
number of recent accidents.  The proposal will lead to further congestion and 
danger to highway safety. 

2. The access is unsafe. 

121



 
PLANNING COMMITTEE                                                                                      24th AUGUST, 2007
  

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Mr R Pryce on 261957 Ext 1957 

   

 

3. The development will lead to further pressure for parking which is already at a 
premium in the area partly due to the number of multi-occupancy dwellings in the  
locality. 

4. A number of recent large developments have been approved in the area which will 
further exascerbate the highway and parking problems. 

5. Any increase in traffic would lead to further danger to pedestrians and children 
accessing local schools. 

6. It would be impossible to create 10 parking spaces on site. 
7. The development will generate increased noise in the locality. 
8. The design is out of character with the area. 
9. The design will be an invasion of neighbours privacy. 
10. Over development of the site,  
11. Abuse of existing residents parking restrictions and illegal parking reduces visibility 

at local junctions, on street parking creates a pinch point in the road and no space 
for buses to pick up/drop off and proximity of the access to existing busy junctions 
all leading to increased danger to highway and pedestrian safety 

12. Over 150 dwellings have been approved in the locality over the last year or so and 
residential development along Ledbury Road has reached saturation point 

13. The loss of a further green space in the city will further reduce urban wildlife 
14. The parking area will reduce the enjoyment of neighbouring gardens. 
15. The development is contrary to Herefordshire’s Community Strategy, which states 

that it will ‘Put People First’ 
 

One further letter in response to the consultation on the amended plans received from 
16 Ledbury Road. They re-iterate previous comments in relation to unsafe access, 
inadequate parking.  Also comment that the development will overlook their property, 
will result in increased noise from the use of the balconies, the construction may affect 
the stability of the neighbouring property and its basement and that the bungalows 
were the least offensive element of the scheme 

 
5.3 The full text of these letters can be inspected at Central Planning Services, Garrick 

House, Widemarsh Street, Hereford and prior to the Sub-Committee meeting. 
 
 
6. Officers Appraisal 
 
6.1 The proposed site is large enough to accommodate some form of residential 

development and indeed, planning permission was granted in 2003 for a single 
dwelling on site.  As such the principle of residential development is considered 
acceptable. 

 
6.2 The proposed scale of the built development will largely follow that of the existing 

properties fronting Ledbury Road and will not appear disproportionate with the size of 
the site.  A traditional design is proposed for the elevation fronting Ledbury Road 
incorporating flat roof dormers, bay window, sash windows elsewhere and constructed 
from brick; all in keeping with neighbouring properties.  A more contemporary approach 
has been taken to the rear elevation.  This has been achieved through use of a 
different pallete of materials, predominantly Larch timber cladding, modern balcony 
and fenestration detailing and the form of the first and second floors is partly curved to 
create additional interest.   

 
6.3 As such the scale, design and materials proposed, whilst being somewhat different 

from what presently exists in the locality, will complement the local vernacular.  

122



 
PLANNING COMMITTEE                                                                                      24th AUGUST, 2007
  

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Mr R Pryce on 261957 Ext 1957 

   

 

Furthermore, the removal of the ‘backland’ element of this proposal reduces the extent 
of development and the consequential impact on the character of the area. 

 
6.4 A parking area for 10 vehicles is to be created along with the necessary cycle and 

refuse storage to the rear of the new accommodation.  The Traffic Manager confirms 
that this is acceptable to serve the number of units proposed and essentially amounts 
to one space per unit with four visitor spaces (a ratio of 1.5 spaces per unit).  This level 
of provision essentially accords with Policy H16 of the Herefordshire Unitary 
Development Plan which requires new housing development to provide an average 
maximum off-street car parking provision of not more than 1.5 spaces per dwelling.   A 
number of the flats will have some outdoor amenity space provided by balconies or 
enclosed patio areas, which in itself is considered acceptable and the deletion of the 
bungalows also enables a usable area of communal garden along with additional soft 
landscaping to be created for the benefit of the future occupants. 

 
6.5 The Traffic Manager confirms that the visibility and safety of the access is acceptable 

to serve the development and number of units proposed.  The development will 
undoubtedly lead to an intensification in the use of the site including an increase in the 
number of vehicle movements although this will now be reduced through the removal 
of the two bungalows.  Given the comments of the Traffic Manager and the level of off 
street parking proposed the development is considered acceptable. 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
That planning permission be granted subject to the following conditions: 
 
  
1   A01 (Time limit for commencement (full permission) ) 
 
  Reason: Required to be imposed by Section 91 of the Town and Country 

Planning Act 1990. 
 
2   B01 (Samples of external materials ) 
 
  Reason: To ensure that the materials harmonise with the surroundings. 
 
3   E05 (Restriction on delivery and construction hours) 
 
  Reason: In order to protect the amenity of occupiers of nearby properties. 
 
4   E18 (No new windows in specified elevation ) 
 
  Reason: In order to protect the residential amenity of adjacent properties. 
 
5   E19 (Obscure glazing to windows ) 
 
  Reason: In order to protect the residential amenity of adjacent properties. 
 
6   W01 (Foul/surface water drainage ) 
 
  Reason: To protect the integrity of the public sewerage system. 
 
7   W02 (No surface water to connect to public system ) 

123



 
PLANNING COMMITTEE                                                                                      24th AUGUST, 2007
  

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Mr R Pryce on 261957 Ext 1957 

   

 

 
  Reason: To prevent hydraulic overloading of the public sewerage system, to 

protect the health and safety of existing residents and ensure no detriment to the 
environment. 

 
8   W03 (No drainage run-off to public system ) 
 
  Reason: To prevent hydraulic overload of the public sewerage system and 

pollution of the environment. 
 
9   F39 (Scheme of refuse storage ) 
 
  Reason: In the interests of amenity. 
 
10   G01 (Details of boundary treatments ) 
 
  Reason: In the interests of visual amenity and to ensure dwellings have 

satisfactory privacy. 
 
11   H02 (Single access - footway ) 
 
  Reason: In the interests of highway safety. 
 
12   H06 (Vehicular access construction ) 
 
  Reason: In the interests of highway safety. 
 
13   H13 (Access, turning area and parking ) 
 
  Reason: In the interests of highway safety and to ensure the free flow of traffic 

using the adjoining highway. 
 
14   H27 (Parking for site operatives ) 
  Reason: To prevent indiscriminate parking in the interests of highway safety. 
 
15   H29 (Secure cycle parking provision ) 
 
  Reason: To ensure that there is adequate provision for secure cycle 

accommodation within the application site, encouraging alternative modes of 
transport in accordance with both local and national planning policy. 

 
INFORMATIVES: 
 
1   N15 - Reason(s) for the Grant of PP/LBC/CAC 
 
2   N19 - Avoidance of doubt 
 
Decision: ................................................................................................................................  
 
Notes: ....................................................................................................................................  
 
...............................................................................................................................................  
 
 

124



 
PLANNING COMMITTEE                                                                                      24th AUGUST, 2007
  

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Mr R Pryce on 261957 Ext 1957 

   

 

 
Background Papers 
 
Internal departmental consultation replies. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

125



CENTRAL AREA PLANNING SUB-COMMITTEE                                                1st AUGUST, 2007  

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Mr R Pryce on 261957 Ext 1957 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

This copy has been produced specifically for Planning purposes. No further copies may be made. 

  

APPLICATION NO: DCCE2007/1209/F  SCALE : 1 : 1250 
 
SITE ADDRESS : 10 Ledbury Road, Hereford, Herefordshire, HR1 2SY 
 
Based upon the Ordnance Survey mapping with the permission of the controller of Her Majesty’s Stationery Office, © Crown Copyright.   Unauthorised reproduction 
infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.  Herefordshire Council.  Licence No: 100024168/2005 

Slope

Slope

Slope

Slope
53.3m

B
M

 5
4
.1

5
m

BM

52.1m

52.10m

51.2m

El Sub Sta

52.7m

B
M

 5
3.

58
m

BM
 54.70m

53.6m

LB

53.3m

54.3m

53.9m

16

1
1

1
1
a

1
5

23

2
0

1
0

Hotel

50

46

1242

17

1

Foxglove Court

13

2

1

1

2

3

42

25

27

37

2
b

2
a

50

28

16

10

1

3

to

20

Community

Home

P
ar

is
h 

M
ew

s

1

2

The

Coach

House

6

8

5

9

15

5

C
h
ri
st

ia
n
 S

ci
e
n
ce

 C
h
u
rc

h

D
e
 L

a
cy

1 to 4

22

24a

24

18

4a

6

4

2

9a

5a

7a

11
a

1

10

1

14

2
0

Hospital

St Giles's

St Owen

Almshouses

157

1a

3a

21

130

4

23

1

Brierley Court

Williams's

Hospital

1 to 13

147

 

126



 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Mr R Pryce on 261957 Ext 1957 

   

 

 

127



128



 
PLANNING COMMITTEE 24 AUGUST, 2007 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Mr. R. Pryce on 261957 Ext. 1957 

   

 

 DCCE2007/1961/F - CONVERSION AND EXTENSION 
OF GARAGE/PREPARATION AREA TO SINGLE 
STOREY DWELLING AND EXTENSION OF TAKE-
AWAY PREPARATION AREA. FORMATION OF 
PARKING AREA FOR EXISTING FLATS AT 1-3 
PEREGRINE CLOSE, HEREFORD, HEREFORDSHIRE, 
HR2 6BS 
 
For: Pacemark Properties Limited, per Malcolm 
Rogers,  Dixon Rogers Designs, Highfields, Stanford 
Road, Great Witley, WR6 6JG 
 

 

Date Received: 19th June 2007 Ward: St. Martins & 
Hinton 

Grid Ref: 51442, 38606 

Expiry Date: 14th August 2007   
Local Members: Councillors Mrs. W.U. Attfield, A.C.R. Chappell and A.T. Oliver  
 
 
INTRODUCTION 
 
The application was considered by the Central Area Planning Sub-Committee at its 
meeting on 1st August where Members resolved to refuse planning permission 
contrary to the recommendation of the report.   
 
Members were concerned about the impact of the development on the character and 
residential amenity of the area and highway safety. 
 
Planning permission for the re-arrangement of the existing four flats to create three 
two storey mews houses, a first floor flat along with the construction of a further two 
cottages and extension of takeaway was refused on 26th July 2006 and an appeal 
dismissed on 2nd March 2007. 
 
The proposal for consideration under this application is now for the creation of only 
one extra property through the conversion and modest extension of the existing 
garage.  No works are proposed to the existing four flats and the size of the existing 
takeaway is not to be increased.   Off street parking is also proposed to serve the 
existing and proposed accommodation to which the Traffic Manger raises no 
objection.  Furthermore, the Planning Inspector in dismissing the appeal considered 
the creation of off street parking would be a highway gain and this assessment was 
made against a larger and a higher number of units.  The juxtaposition of the existing 
and proposed accommodation has been changed to ensure that satisfactory amenity 
standards are maintained and the proposed accommodation and the food preparation 
and cooking elements of the takeaway have now been segregated to which the 
Environmental Health Manager raises no objection.  
 
It is therefore considered that the revised proposals address all the issues raised by 
the Planning Inspector in dismissing the appeal on 2nd March 2007 including the 
proximity of the proposed accommodation to the takeaway; the design of the 

AGENDA ITEM 15

129



 
PLANNING COMMITTEE 24 AUGUST, 2007 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Mr. R. Pryce on 261957 Ext. 1957 

   

 

development; amenity standards, the extent of garden and the overall impact on the 
character of the area. 
 
There are therefore not considered to be any substantive reasons for refusal that 
could be defended on appeal.  Consequently, the application is referred to this 
meeting of Planning Committee for further consideration. 
 
 
1. Site Description and Proposal 
 
1.1  The site occupies a corner position bordering Hinton Road to the west, Acacia Close to 

the north and Peregrine Close to the south.  A detached two storey brick and slated 
pitched roof building occupies the northern half of the site with an attached single 
storey garage running along the western boundary.  This building is presently sub-
divided into two one bedroom flats and a fish and chip shop/Chinese takeaway at 
ground floor with one two bedroom and one one bedroom flat at first floor.  The 
southern part of the site is largely set out to lawn and the curtilage is enclosed by a 1.5 
metre high block wall.  The site is largely surrounded by existing properties including 
bungalows to the north, two storey dwellings to the east and south and a detached 
timber framed two storey property to the west which is Grade II Listed.  The site lies 
within the flood plain designated as both Flood Zone 2 and 3. 

 
1.2  Planning permission is sought for the extension and conversion of existing single 

storey building presently used as a food preparation/storage area in association with 
the adjoining takeaway to create a two bedroom residential unit and construction of a 
single storey extension and a takeaway off the northern elevation at ground floor to 
provide a new storage and food preparation area.  Part of the existing garden is to be 
changed to hardstanding to create five off street parking spaces with a further single 
space for the operators of the takeaway proposed along Acacia Close. 

 
2. Policies 
 
2.1 Herefordshire Unitary Development Plan 2007: 
 

S2 - Development Requirements 
S3 - Housing 
DR1 - Design 
DR2 - Land Use and Activity 
DR3 - Movement 
DR4 - Environment 
DR7 - Flood Risk 
DR13 - Noise 
H13 - Sustainable Residential Design 
H14 - Using Previously Developed Land and Buildings 
H15 - Density 
H16 - Car Parking 
HBA4 - Setting of Listed Buildings 

 
3. Planning History 
 
3.1  HC960077PF - Erection of external extraction ducting.  Approved 8th May, 1996. 
 

130



 
PLANNING COMMITTEE 24 AUGUST, 2007 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Mr. R. Pryce on 261957 Ext. 1957 

   

 

3.2  DCCE2006/1277/F - Conversion of 4 flats to 3 no. two storey mews houses and one 
first floor flat, demolition of outbuildings and development of two no. cottages and 
extension to existing takeaway.  Planning permission refused 26th July, 2006.   

 
Reason for refusal was: 
The proposal due to its cumulative scale and the intensification of development will 
have a harmful impact on the character and amenity of the area.  As such the 
development is contrary to Policies ENV14, H3, H12, H14, H21 of the Hereford Local 
Plan and Policies S1, S2, DR1, DR2, H13, H14 and H17 of the Herefordshire Unitary 
Development Plan. 

 
Appeal dismissed 2nd March, 2007. 

 
4. Consultation Summary 
 

Internal Council Advice 
 

4.1  Traffic Manager: No objections subject to conditions relating to the construction of the 
new parking area and enhanced cycle storage. 

 
4.2  Environmental Health and Trading Standards Manager: No objection. 
 
4.3  Conservation Manager: No objection. 
 
5.  Representations 
 
5.1  Hereford City Council: Recommend the application be refused as it is inappropriate 

development in an established residential area. 
 
5.2  Seven letters of objection received to date, the main points raised are: 
 

1.  The proposal will lead to futher congestion on narrow roads. 
2.  The takeaway has no dedicated off street parking. 
3.  The storage area for the takeaway is being moved to Acacia Close which is not 

suitable for heavy vehicles. 
4.  We are concerned about the location of refuse storage associated with the 

accommodation and takeaway. 
5.  Futher congestion will make it difficult for emergency vehicles to acccess. 
6.  The current application does not overcome previous concerns regarding 

vehicular activity,  and access obstruction caused by the takeaway business. 
7.  The local highway network and associated junctions are not suitable for 

accommodating further traffc associated with the development. 
8.  Existing pavements in the area are already used to park vehicles and the 

proposal will aggravate the problem. 
9.  The deeds for all properties on Acacia Close forbids any business activities. 
10.  The parking propsoed is inadequate and does not take account of visitors. 

 
5.3  The consultation period is yet to expire and therefore any further representations 

received between the time of writing this report and Committee will be reported in 
writing and orally on the day of the Committee. 

 
 The full text of these letters can be inspected at Central Planning Services, Garrick 

House, Widemarsh Street, Hereford and prior to the Sub-Committee meeting. 
 

131



 
PLANNING COMMITTEE 24 AUGUST, 2007 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Mr. R. Pryce on 261957 Ext. 1957 

   

 

6.  Officers Appraisal 
 
6.1 The proposal the subject of this application amounts to the extension and conversion 

of an existing garage/food storage area to create a new single storey two bedroom unit 
and construction of a single storey extension to the north elevation to provide a 
replacement food storage area.  No alterations are proposed to the existing flats. 
Neither is the size of the takeaway to be increased. 

 
6.2 The footprint and height of the existing building is to be slightly increased but the 

overall mass of the building will be comparable to the existing building and the design 
is considered to be an enhancement.  As such these alterations will have minimal 
impact locally or on the setting of the adjoining Listed Building.  Similarly, the single 
storey extension off the north elevation will follow the form of the existing single storey 
additions on the west elevation and is considered acceptable in terms of its design and 
materials.  The impact of the physical alterations to the property are therefore 
acceptable. 

 
6.3 No off street parking presently exists to serve the existing flats and therefore the 

applicants propose to address this deficiency through the provision of five off street 
parking spaces, one per unit.  A further parking space for the operator of the takeaway 
is also proposed off Acacia Close.  This will be an improvement on the existing 
situation in parking and highway safety terms and will relieve the pressure for on street 
parking in the locality.  This is confirmed by the Traffic Manager who raises no 
objection. 

 
6.4 A small area of communal garden is proposed along with a further private garden to 

serve the new additional unit and secure cycle and bin storage.  Although modest, this 
again will provide a usable area of garden for barbecues and informal recreation. 

 

6.5 The Head of Environmental Health raises no objection to the introduction of a further 
residential unit in terms of its relationship with the adjoining takeaway.  This issue was 
a particular concern of the Inspector in dismissing the appeal but under this 
application, the existing situation will remain unchanged and the activities such as food 
preparation and cooking which are most likely to have an impact on the amenity of the 
new dwelling are located on the opposite side of the building. As such the amenity of 
the occupants of the existing and proposed accommodation will not be adversely 
affected by the operation of the takeaway.  Nevertheless, further details are required of 
the replacement extraction equipment for the takeaway and this information is awaited 

 
 
6.6 The predominant concerns of local residents relates to the creation of an additional unit 

and resultant intensification in the use of the site in terms of parking and vehicle 
movements in particular.  It is considered that the proposed creation of one additional 
unit will not change the existing situation to such an extent as to warrant refusal of the 
application.  The Planning Inspector in dismissing the recent appeal commented that 
although the existing situation is not ideal, with the proposed off street parking it was 
deemed acceptable and this conclusion was based upon larger properties and an 
additional unit over what has now been proposed.  As the applicants have addressed 
the other issues raised by the Planning Inspector including the proximity of the 
proposed dwelling to the takeaway; the design of the development; amenity standards 
and the extent of garden, it is considered that the previous reasons for refusal have 
now been addressed and therefore the application is considered acceptable. 

 

132



 
PLANNING COMMITTEE 24 AUGUST, 2007 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Mr. R. Pryce on 261957 Ext. 1957 

   

 

RECOMMENDATION 
 

Subject to submission and approval of the takeaway extraction equipment, the 
officers named in the Scheme of Delegation to Officers be authorised to approve the 
application subject to the following conditions and any further conditions considered 
necessary by officers. 
 

1.  A01 (Time limit for commencement (full permission)). 
 
  Reason: Required to be imposed by Section 91 of the Town and Country 

Planning Act 1990. 
 
2.  B01 (Samples of external materials). 
 
  Reason: To ensure that the materials harmonise with the surroundings. 
 
3.  H06 (Vehicular access construction). 
 
  Reason: In the interests of highway safety. 
 
4.  H13 (Access, turning area and parking). 
 
  Reason: In the interests of highway safety and to ensure the free flow of traffic 

using the adjoining highway. 
 
5.  H29 (Secure covered cycle parking provision). 
 
  Reason: To ensure that there is adequate provision for secure covered cycle 

accommodation within the application site, encouraging alternative modes of 
transport in accordance with both local and national planning policy. 

 
6.  G01 (Details of boundary treatments). 
 
  Reason: In the interests of visual amenity and to ensure dwellings have 

satisfactory privacy. 
 
7.  E16 (Removal of permitted development rights) 
  
  Reason:  In order to safeguard the character and amenities of the locality. 
 
8. Finished floor levels shall be set no lower than 52.6 AOD unless otherwise agreed 

in writing with the local planning authority. 
 
 Reason: To protect the development from flood risk. 
 
 
Informatives: 
 
1.  N15 - Reason(s) for the Grant of PP/LBC/CAC. 
 
2.  N19 - Avoidance of doubt. 
 
 
Decision: ................................................................................................................................  

133



 
PLANNING COMMITTEE 24 AUGUST, 2007 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Mr. R. Pryce on 261957 Ext. 1957 

   

 

 
Notes: ....................................................................................................................................  
 
...............................................................................................................................................  
 
 
 
Background Papers 
 
Internal departmental consultation replies. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

134



CENTRAL AREA PLANNING SUB-COMMITTEE                           24
TH

 AUGUST, 2007 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Mr. R. Pryce on 261957 Ext. 1957 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

This copy has been produced specifically for Planning purposes. No further copies may be made. 

  

APPLICATION NO: DCCE2007/1961/F  SCALE : 1 : 1250 
          
SITE ADDRESS : 1-3 Peregrine Close, Hereford, Herefordshire, HR2 6BS 
 
Based upon the Ordnance Survey mapping with the permission of the controller of Her Majesty’s Stationery Office, © Crown Copyright.   Unauthorised reproduction 
infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.  Herefordshire Council.  Licence No: 100024168/2005 

 

Slope

Slope

Slope

Slope

Slope

Slope

Sub Sta

El

52.1m

LB

51.5m

51.2m

P
os

ts

Lifebelt

TCB

BM 52.80m

69

7
 to 1

2

6
7

13

74

1 to
 6

5

6

19

16

4

9

11a

15

1

1

1

1
7
5

2

1
6
5

The Granary

5

5

1
5
9

2

1
3
6

1
8
1

6

Shelter

1
0

8

2

1
2
2

1
2
4

1
3
2

1

1

9
2

1

1
4
9

1
4

7

1
0
6

2

Acacia

Cottage

1
6
3

 

135



136


	Agenda
	
	4 MINUTES
	6 NORTHERN AREA PLANNING SUB-COMMITTEE
	7 CENTRAL AREA PLANNING SUB-COMMITTEE
	8 SOUTHERN AREA PLANNING SUB-COMMITTEE
	9 Tarrington parish plan
	[1A] Tarrington Parish Plan_final draft

	10 DCNC2007/0667/O - SITE FOR THE ERECTION OF AN ADDITIONAL BUILDING FOR PROVISION OF CARE TO THE ELDERLY MENTALLY INFIRM AT PENCOMBE HALL, PENCOMBE, BROMYARD, HEREFORDSHIRE, HR7 4RL
	11 DCNE2007/1224/F - PROPOSED TWO STOREY DWELLING FOR ANCILLARY ACCOMMODATION AT BLACK HILL, BRITISH CAMP, MALVERN, HEREFORDSHIRE, WR13 6DW
	12 DCNE2007/0966/F - PROPOSED THREE STOREY BUILDING TO PROVIDE 13 APARTMENTS, WITH 18 PARKING SPACES AND ASSOCIATED CYCLE PARKING AT LAND REAR OF HOMEND SERVICE STATION, THE HOMEND, LEDBURY, HEREFORDSHIRE, HR8 1DS
	13 DCNC2006/3893/F - DEMOLITION OF REDUNDANT RACING STABLES AND ERECTION OF 4 NO. 3 BED HOUSES (LOW COST MARKET) TOGETHER WITH 8 PARKING SPACES AT RISBURY RACING STABLES, RISBURY, LEOMINSTER, HEREFORDSHIRE, HR6 0NQ
	[5] RISBURY RACING STABLES DRAFT SECTION 106 AGREEMENT

	14 DCCE2007/1209/F - RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT TOGETHER WITH ALTERATIONS TO 10 LEDBURY ROAD TO PROVIDE 6 RESIDENTIAL UNITS AT 10 LEDBURY  ROAD, HEREFORD, HEREFORDSHIRE, HR1 2SY
	15 DCCE2007/1961/F - CONVERSION AND EXTENSION OF GARAGE/PREPARATION AREA TO SINGLE STOREY DWELLING AND EXTENSION OF TAKE-AWAY PREPARATION AREA. FORMATION OF PARKING AREA FOR EXISTING FLATS AT 1-3 PEREGRINE CLOSE, HEREFORD, HEREFORDSHIRE, HR2 6BS

